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4 INDEX

(Note An asterisk (*) denotes Note number)

Armed Forces Tribunal Act (55 of 2007), Section 14,
Constitution, Article 226 - Jurisdiction of High Court - Petitioner apart
from challenging the punishment of discharge from service has also
questioned the constitutionality of various provisions of Air Force Act,
1950 - Air Force Act confers jurisdiction, powers and authority
exercisable by all Courts except the Supreme Court or High Court on
the Tribunal - There is no exclusion of jurisdiction of High Court - High
Court has jurisdiction to entertain the petition. [Ravindra Nath Tripathi
Vs. Union of India] (DB)...1553

wIeT go IS AT (2007 FT 55) SNT 14, WIAET,
FYEBT 226 — 9o7 A P FferETar — Areh 7 WATw B ARG
wt gl 33 @ araran arg W afafm 1950 $ AR SeEl @9
derfrear w o vy fear — arg 9= sfafan, ai= gy ar s
=raTed B BlsdY §H =aredl T gaisy aftrerRan, wfdwadl o
JiRER AfIEYeT S USed wRdT & — 9 rATad @1 AftaRar &1 1Y
Fras g — 9od WA B arfaet TE e @t Aftefar 2)
ey Brordt fa. giae st gTeam) (DB)...1553

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Section 11 - Res judicata - It
is necessary that the matter should be finally heard and decided by a
competent court. [Ram Prasad Vs. Rajendra Singh] ...1685

Rifaer ufgr wiear (1908 &7 5), %7 11 — §d@ ~d — qE JAES
2 fr Are o wEw =arad g Afuw vy @ e @ fvfa fear s

=rfeg | (I g fa. wei= RE) ...1685

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Section 96 - Death by
Electrocution - Deceased came in contact with loose and hanging live
wire - Compensation - In order to decide the just and proper
compensation or sum of damages, the court is bound to adopt the
practical approach - If specific provision, rule, regulation or guideline
is not available, the court may borrow the provision of some other

enactment to assess the compensation amount. [Ramdevi (Smt.) Vs.
Madhya Pradesh Vidyut Mandal] ...1639

Rifre afiar wiear (1908 &7 5), &%7 96 — faga areanad @ e —
m@#aﬁmgvﬁgaywﬁﬂma‘wﬁ#w—wﬁw—
raeTa vd ofad yftrex ar afugff & weh fraffRe s34 8q, e

®
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(Note An asterisk (*) denotes Note number)

AqEiRe giesin arm @ oy aen € - afr HiF R syes
e, fafer a1 faenfader suaesr a8 € 99 =mareg, aRrex &) von
frefRa o< @ fav feefl s aftiPrafiet &7 Sueer @np a0 wear 2
ErRd (fmfy) 3. 7.9, g gsa) ...1639

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 8 Rules 3 & 5, Evidence
Act (1 of 1872), Section 18 - Implied or deemed admission - Vague or
evasive reply in written statement - Pleadings made in the plaint can
get converted into evidence only when it passes test of proof - Mere
alleging a fact in the plaint with absence of denial in the written
statement with regard to the fact, cannot by itself entitle the plaintiffs
to decree by deemed admission. [Hari Singh Vs. Vikram Singh] ...1654

Rifaer gfar wfear (1908 &7 5) <% 8 499 3 7 5 WET
FEAfT (18672 T 1), GI°T 18 — [39féra a1 w7 74 &gl — fafea
FAF # IS AN FIAAF IR — q18 75 ¥ 53 7 arftram=) o) wex
% @oa 9 wRaffa frar o1 woar € w9 98 wga @ wEid aw WY —
el & Weg ¥ fafad s ¥ arefiqfy @ o @ Wiy arg w= & wey
a1 A3 fiees U ey & wush T W efy gRr e B fem)
gpeR el AT (R fiw fy. fawa Re) ...1654

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 23 Rule 1(4) - Suit
filed by plaintiff for declaration of title/share and injunction, was
withdrawn in Lok Adalat without seeking permission for filing a suit -
Subsequent suit shall be precluded on the same cause of action. [Ram
Prasad Vs. Rajendra Singh) ...1685

Rifaer gl afear (1908 &7 5), an}er 23 fraw 1(3) — I8 g1
U §F T ANOT g9 @R B fag A B, e vega w9 37 srpafy
e famr @tw srqrea ¥ A farawr mT - WA Ag g W uwETdad]
are gatRa g1 (I ware {4, wetwe fiye) ...1685

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 41 Rule 33 - Power of"
appellate court - No such plea of adverse possession was raised before
the trial court nor any declaration for ownership was sought and the
suit was merely for permanent injunction - Plaintiff solely sought
permanént injunction for restraining defendants from dispossessing
the plaintiff from the suit property - Trial court dismissed the suit by
holding that plaintiff has failed to prove his possession over the suit
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property and also failed to prove that the defendants were attempting
to dispossess him - First appellate court proceeded to decide the case
on the assumption that the suit was for declaration of ownership of
plaintiff/appellant based upon adverse possession - Held - The first
appellate' court has misdirected itself by rejecting the appeal of the
plaintiff on the ground not germane to the issue involved in the case -
Second appeal allowed with direction to the first appellate court to
decide the appeal afresh on merits. [Kailash Vs. Babulal] ...1669

frfaer wfrgr gfear (1908 &1 5) R 41 (9% 33 — sm?a?'

ATy @1 widw — fraer |raed ® wha T O  fiea oed @1 6y
twT sffrare, e mar o ety 9 & wifie A S "ivon ard) 1 of v
T $ad Wt AR ® fay o — It 7, 9% wwia § ardl & FEsa
‘Ft @ gfuarfaat #1 ted 8g A W ety 9wt — e |mnerr
4 ¥F aRUT $34 gV 9] @TRa fear f5 99wy w9y age wear
gifdd &3 A IBA &7 AR F8 qif¥yd & A N suwa wr &
gfErdhToT 9/ 4 FI1 BT UAH I W@ o — vA Al =g a7
T fafifyas w33 @ fag W gar % T, ufisa w= W= amemRa
ardl / afierelf & wrfieg &) gy @ oy on — afafeiRa — gem

Aiell =TT § 99 e UY off UHNT A U fadrere ¥ 9dg T8

ofT, <) &Y Adie wfier ove W ) femraw #Y — vem adfiell =ararey
s arfra &1 o fafifReg, o) @ amer W w9 w1 A 39 gy
feda srfra d5 | (@oma fa. TIgaTa) ...1669

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 39 Rule 1 & 2, Designs -

“Act (2 of 1911), Section 22, Trade Marks Act (47 of 1999), Sections
134, 135 - Requirements of granting injunction - Prima facie case -
Plaintiff by an interim injunction undoubtedly seeks to interfere with
the rights of the defendants before the plaintiff's right is finally
established, therefore very strong prima facie case in respect of his
rights should be asserted and it should so exist in favour of the plaintiff.
[SKOL Breweries Ltd. Vs. Som Distilleries Ltd. & Breweries Ltd.]
...1589

Ryfaer gfdar aiear (1908 &7 5), SR 39 9% 1 7 2, fomgT
FFETIT (1911 FT 2). svT 22, =TGR Fs Iferfrawa (1999 &1 47) arag
134, 135 ~ IR U7 BV7 BT VATV — ¥ g5 gHey — AT,
Fafe ARy g/ PrEde vu } I o7 aferR sfira: wenfia w1 |
gd, sfvarfeal @ afrewt ¥ sw@dw owar 2, gufag o@ @u=
AR’ @ d3g 3 affe yaw oM I=AT YHT BT YA AT A1y

™~
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Y 98 39 PR IR © ww A fyewm g anfyg ) (wete gads fa
fa. giv fsederdar fa. s gariltw far) ...1589

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 39 Rule 1 & 2 -
Temporary injunction - Irreparable Injury - The plaintiffs can be
compensated by way of damages and by keeping this important aspect
in mind the legislature has enacted Section 22(2) of the Designs Act,
wherein it is enacted that the suit can be filed for grant of damages
and therefore it can not be said that the plaintiff will suffer irreparable
injury. [SKOL Breweries Ltd. Vs. Som Distilleries Ltd. & Breweries
Ltd.] -.1589

Rifaer gfaar afear (1908 #7 ), 139 39 a5 1 7 2 — vy
R — Fyufy gfy — Jwar grT T 3 afigfd @Y o gedt @
IR 59 Tyl uge, Bt et A vy faEfer @ fearss afufam @
arT 22 (2) &1 AferfFrafrd #) 2, et ze affPrafa fear o 2 s
F@ari grE 52 o » fay ae uwga fear W wear @ el swafag
Iz Tl el o woar 6 ard) arquffa afy wea s (e 1o fa
fa. gin Redladw fa. s sadfer fa) ...1589

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 39 Rule 1 & 2 -
Temporary injunction - The grant of temporary injunction is
discretionary relief and discretion is to be exercised in favour of
plaintiff, if he comes with clean hands and with fair conduct. [SKOL
Breweries Ltd. Vs. Som Distilleries Ltd. & Breweries Ltd.] ...1589

Rifaer giar @Iear (1908 #T 5). 3139 39 997 1 T 2 — Jeens
2T — a¥eng AR 43frE Fgaiy @ i RdeRer B ad B ua
# TWT FEET B, AR aw Prwvear | vd werERer ¥ anar 21 (@Rl
4adte fa. fa. @i Reediedier fo. gos gader f) _ ...1589

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 39 Rule 1,2,3 & Order
43, Rule (1)(r) - Ex parte Injunction - Appeal - Order 39 Rule 3 is a
method and prescribes a methodology and procedure for granting
exparte Injunction - It is not an independent provision - Tt is'part and
parcel of Order 39 - It can't be divorced from the nature of power
given under Rule 1 and 2 - Therefore such an order is appealable under
Order 43 Rule (1)(r) - Hence petition under Art.227 is not maintainable.
[Radheshyam Rathi Vs. Rotary Club] ...1569

Rrfaer afbar afedr (1908 &7 5), 3R 39 97 1,2.3 T T 43,
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ﬁﬂﬂ(f)@ﬂﬂ vEvAT R — Al — aRY 30 R 3 uw fafr @
X el e e yae S Bg YOIl ud ufkdr fafdd ewar @ — a5
WAA SUET T ¢ — GE ARA 39 BT A AT & — S Frawm 19 2 &
Farfa « 73 ufem @ w@ey A Jerr T fHar w1 waar — swiay Iaa
HRY, ARY 43 Frw (1)(@IR) & wada afieha & — smsr-j_“ﬁ'q' 227 B
Fata aifaer niwviy | (e ad el 799) ..1569

Constitution - Article 21 - Right to live with Dignity - Freezing
" of bank account of the petitioner due to nonpayment of loan by his
‘parents - Petitioner is neither borrower nor guarantor and not even a
signatory of loan documents - Held - The action of the.bank is without
authority of law and violative of right to life. [Thakur Lal Dhakad Vs.
State Bank of India] ...1574

wiaenT — g7eeT 21 — ufaver @ arer waw &7 sffree — arht @
% @d W A a0 4 T FfE IwP wrar—Rar g ®\er o1 qaaE
T four war — grEfl T oA weft § v w ft mRdAwal € &k =mw
T[Sl &7 gwnaedl g J TH — g - 3 97 srfard e
Wﬁﬁmuﬁmﬁmﬁ%wsﬁwﬁmﬁmmmm@l(w
o ges fa. ¥ 479 afw gfean) L1574

Constitution - Articles 22(5) & 19 - See - National Security
Act, 1980, Section 3(2) [Deepak Purohit Vs, State of M.P.] (DB)...1561

WheTT — sgeeT 22(5) 7 19 — I@ — IwLHy gear IAfran
1960, 17 3(2) (Fue gxifea 3. 7.9, wow) ‘ (DB)...1561

Constitution - Article 226 - Habeaus Corpus - Date of Birth -

Date of birth recorded in school register cannot be relied upon in

absence of any material that on what basis such entry was recorded -

Ossification test shows that the corpus is major - She is free to decide
that with whom she wants to live. [Dilip Singh Gurjar Vs, State of M.P.]
(DB)...1521

W7 — JTBT 226 — T FogA BT — TR — ATAT TS

# aftfafaa s=ifafyr w fazama - foar o1 9, weF Wi W

" JuRera T % fFw ek W 9o afafe afifafReaa & 1§ € — after

fagra wdigor qoriar @ f5 iR qave @ — a8 fofa @ @ Rt wa=
2 f& a5 fews Wl e aredt 21 (Reho fye o fa @, <o)

: (DB)...1521

-
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Constitution - Article 226 - See - Armed Forces s Tribunal A ct, 2007,
Section 14 [Ravindra Nath Tripathi Vs. Union of India]  (DB)... 1553

| wfEmT — ygT 226 — d@ — wIVH Id JABIT FEAATI
2007, 1T 14 (XA BAwd fa. gfaa ot g (DB)...1553

_Constitution - Article 226 - See - Panchayat Raj Evam Gram
Swaraj Adhiniyam, M.P. 1993, Section 36(1) (a) [Ram Xumar Vs. State
of M.P.} _ 1578

. wfemrT — yqwT 226 — a‘a‘ ~ TFrgd o vd I Gy
FfEfran, 97 1993, &7 36(1)(v) (M §AR fa. 59, w=a) - ...1578

Constitution - Article 227 - Power of Superintendence - When
to be exercised - Held, if the order suffers from any jurisdictional error
or manifest procedural irregularity or impropriety or it is pregnant with
any palpable perversity - Interference can be made sparingly in rare
cases when such ingredients are fulfilled - It cannot be made as a matter
of routine on a drop of hat. [Gwalior Development Auth(')rity Vs.
Dushyaut Sharma] ) 1582 .

T — FYBT 227 — FHITT P} AT — &7 yTiT F AT
T FfRv — IAfERa — afe sk fed aftsiRar «) e @ use
gfparers afrafear a1 aFifaeg @ yaad o @ Redwar @ ofya @ -
fird gHoon ¥ HIAT Ao exdf v fHur S AFHaT 7 94 9Fd WETHl B
qfif et 2 — tur AfafRae v/ e TE far S e (e
fedauwie qaiRd) fa. g=ia =) - ...1582

Court Fee (M.P. Amendment) Act, 2012 (3 of 2013), Section 3 -
.Court Fee on appeals arising out of Motor Accident Claim - Court fee
on motor accident appeal which arises.out of motor accident claim filed
after 2nd of April 2008 shall be payable only @ 2.5% on the enhanced
amount. [Ram Gopal Vs. Haneef Khan] ) ...1645

Ty Fow (4.9, i) FEfg%, 2012 (2013 $T 3), HINT 3 —
Mex geed T | sw afld ¥ ey YEw — 2 AqA 2008 B
yTETd YEQd "iex gEedr d @ S "ieR gHed Jfld W ey
T, 9313 ¢ WO WX 9ad 2.5 TRera B 3w R/ A7 @M [ mr
fa. slie @) : ...1645

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 91 - Locus
Standi - One of the witness filed an application for production of
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statements of witnesses recorded during investigation but not filed
along with charge sheet - As witness was not a complainant therefore,
he has no right to participate independently in criminal trial - However,
when the investigating agency itself while submitting charge sheet
keeps mum and adopts method of pick and choose, Court is bound to
consider the relevancy of the documents - Courts exist for dispensation
of justice and not for its denial for technical reasons. [Babburaja Vs.
State of M.P.] ..1770

7UE UiHIT wfeur 1973 (1974 BT 2), ORT 91 — § wrd @7
Iferpre — v wieh 3 o9 gl @ wue yRd f5d W9 g amdew
TEE o, R emdwer @ < afifafan fear mar en, weg el
TH F W 9 T frar wr — ¥ wieh Rrermaed T 2, safie o
Wﬁw#‘wﬁawﬁwé#aﬂaﬁs‘aﬁmﬂﬁmaﬁq,
99 99 Gl W Ay un uegd wwd 99w ' 2 el wid
WIFHY WAEHl € g o7 €7 Ayl 2, =wrarew U9 swansy @)
QETaa W) faR s & fag 9iew @ - =t 1 afew, S 5@
a%ma?vqﬁsmﬁﬁaﬁaﬂwﬁ'wwﬁ?ﬁamﬁ$ﬁwl(aqwﬁ
Y. ) 1770

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 91 -
Summons to produce documents - Statements of some of the witnesses
recorded during investigation were not filed along with charge sheet -
Prosecutors are expected to act independently without affecting the
investigation - If some evidence is collected during investigation and
is relevant for the purposes of trial, enquiry or other proceedings before
Court, and if investigating agency purposefully does not like to disclose
the same, it is the duty of prosecution to make a request to bring all
other evidence collected but not produced before Court for fair justice.
[Babburaja Vs. State of M.P.] «.1770

TUE YSPAT WIed), 1973 (1974 BT 2), GINT 91 —SXAAT UTLA F D
fae w—mdver @ s afifafa ) T 59 wiftat @ BuE, sRY T
® Wy 9Ea T Y wrd—srmwr Wt wwlig R fem gy 9u @ erdard
T, Afaeel @ Mt 2—afy s @ e B wien wEwhE fear
T # AN RN St AeE @ e o sefarfat @ vt oy
T 2, AR A} a=wvr gl IR Aty S€ yse wE wen ared), a9
aﬁﬁmwaﬁw%‘ﬁswﬁmw%mﬁﬁmﬁmmﬁagﬂﬁaﬂ
Frae W, o e fea o @ Wy =maraw @ W gegd 9 fwar
T & | (FsRTeT 4. 7.9, wre) ...1770
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Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 156(3) -
Investigation - Power conferred under Section 156(3) of Cr.P.C. on
Judicial Magistrate is to be exercised with due caution - Before doing
so he has to apply his mind to know whether allegations in complaint,
prima facie, make out a case - Dispute between the complainant and
petitioner is regarding settlement of account which is a civil dispute -
Magistrate was not justified in referring the matter without assigning
any reason and without considering the complaint - Order passed by
JMFC and F.LR. registered in pursuance of order of Magistrate
quashed. [Ajay Goenka (Dr.) Vs. State of M.P.] - ...1759

FUF UiHar Gipar, 1973 (1974 &7 2), &7 156(3) — <907 — T4,
. B =g 156(3) @ A, e AT € ggwy @Y 98 wfea @
TAT WS AT B qrer fHAr o Wiy - ¥ w3 @ qd s s
TRETss &1 YA ST ARy a8 o @ fad & v e @ afieeq
TN AT IHIU Afed dd @ — Norasal & o 9 9 dEr 3
frefeor | weftm faarg fufyw faag @ - 1 s @ fa=mr aiw
Rremma w far fpa fasr afsee g Ao ¥ fear s
=maifaa @€ — e afvg e vem Aol gra wiRa fea @ e e
e @ IR B Il ¥ uuflEg @ T vuw gaw Rod
sftrefea | (s e {s1.) fa. w9, =) ...1759

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Sections 156(3) &
482 - On date of incident a F.I.R. was lodged by respondent No.2 in
police station and the same was registered under section 294, 324,
506-B/34 1.P.C. - Later on respondents No.1 & 2 filed a complaint under
Sections 307, 326,294, 5S06(B) of LP.C. and Section 3(1)(x) of Scheduled
Case and Scheduled Tribe (Prevention of Atrocities) Act regarding same
incident - Complaint/application (filed by the respondents No.1 & 2)
was ordered to be sent to the concerned Police Station for lodging of
the FIR on the basis of the complaint and submit a report after
conducting the investigation in the matter - Held - Impugned order to
register the alleged second FIR on the basis of complaint application
is contrary to law - Petition allowed. [Surendra Sharma Vs. Ramcharan
Lal Jatav] ) ...1787

gvE giHar m%‘ar 1973 (1974 &7 2). SIRIY 156(3) T 482 — AT
feaie o1 geaeff %. 2 g7 gfaw o 4 v worw qa Raid &< aerdt
Wl 3R I/ =HRT 294, 324, 506— /34 ALTH. @ Aqid golag fear T@r
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~ a1 A, y@Al ®. 1 7 2 3 MAF. # are 307, 326, 204, s06(H) T
T iy g9 agygfaa Senfa (EreEr faren) aftifrae @) ax
3(1{x) ® Fava Rrerwd o g @ wew § uwga @ T — (geeff
® 19 2 8R1 9d) Rramwa/amdss wdfta o 7 fera € smur
X yor qEAT Ruid <<f #=7 23g 99 o @ o @ik e o 919 w9
& I Ruid dw w3 & fav adfRm fear mr — affeife -
freraa amdws @ smaR w afefm ffa vem gu Raid 5w
P1 qrEifa amaw, fafy e & — @ifaer a9 (Y= ol fa wemERer
AT TIlcd) ..1787

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Sections 391 &
401 - Judicial Magistrate First Class, convicted the accused u/s 138 of
the Negotiable Instruments Act and sentenced to suffer imprisonment
with fine - Petitioner/accused preferred an appeal against the judgment
of conviction and sentence - During pendency of the appeal, an
application u/s 391 of Cr.P.C. was filed by the petitioner for taking two
documents as additional evidence - The application was allowed and
by keeping the appeal pending for decision by the impugned order, the
matter was remanded back to the Trail Court for recording the
additional evidence of the parties - Held - No infirmity and illegality in
the impugned order that may call for any interference in exercise of
the revisional jurisdiction. [Sharif Kha Vs. Gajanand] ...1755

TUE gibar wlear, 1973 (1974 7 2), 0 391 T 401 — RMA®
AT vem A 3 Afdrgaa B werw faea aftfras 31 oarr 138 @
Fatd qlofg faar it sRaw 3 wrer sefgves @ e frar —
arft / afges 3 deffy @ ey 3 fivfa @ g afla 91 - anfra
dfqd 1 & FvE, qUW. T ORT 391 @ Fadd & el
afaRRed wier & 37 F fod @ ¥ A gRT ades wega R wm -
AT AR fpar o arEfiw ARy grT afid B Profa @ farg
dfad TEHR, YHIOT farar =aTe ®t vEeR B sRad wew siffafea
e Bq v fya fear T — affeiRa — adfe smer & Si1F =0
a1 sdear Y f gaden sfrerRar &1 yait eva gy el swET 9@
Fraggsar gt | (TN% @ 4. o) ...1755

Designs Act (2 of 1911), Section 22 - See - Civil Procedure Code,
1908, Order 39 Rule I & 2 [SKOL Breweries Ltd. Vs. Som Distilleries
Ltd. & Breweries Ltd.] ...1589

Fomrg= Gt (1911 &1 2) T 22 — 3@ — RfaT afrar
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wlear, 1908 R 39 [49% 1 7 2 (Wid g3 fo. fa. i fediedi=
fa. tve gailier fa) . ' -...1589

Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 3 - Evidence of Eye Witnesses
- Reéliability - Appellant caught hold the infant child, push on his chest,
inflicted injury over the stomach by knife thereby his intestine has
come out - Eye witnesses version supported by doctor - Held -
Testimony of witnesses remained in ocular which is apparent from the
autopsy report - Prosecution has proved the chdarge beyond reasonable
doubt by cogent evidence. [Thavriya @ Thavar Singh Vs. State of M.P.]

' B (DB)...1722

GIEY a7 (1872 &7 1), &107 3 — Gew&g el an&al »r sy —
faeguigar — afienefl 4 772 Ry & uwe1, S €9 W wger.
9T R @4, 4 Ale ggas e Suel o AR oY Wy - geaeaEf
gieft o1 9uiq, fafecas g1 wafdfa — afafeifa - arférat 1 R
arEly 90 <& 2, o1 e ufidTa @ we @ - afaies | ey @) gee
ey ¥ gfwmgeya Wi € W wiaw frar| (emaRar 3% emax fig i«
7. I<7) (DB)...1722

Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 9 - Delayed Test Identification
Parade - After a lapse of considerable time identification by strangers
cannot be relied on - Identification by a witness for the first time in
court, should not form basis of conviction - Such evidence is a weak
type of evidence unless corroborated by the previous parade or other

evidence - Previous Identification is a check valve to the evidence of

Identification in the court. [Jagmohan Vs. State of MLP.]-.  ...1728

I a7 (1872 ®T 1) &7 9 — facrqd & &1 73 ggary ww -

— aftrs W €9 99 @ wyere, qqaRfyg 3T € 1E ygEm . fywars

T8l fear s owwar — iEl g7 NrEray # 9 R s BT,

Tiwfafy &1 amaR F9€Y 39T "Ry — oWr wisg SuWiR. USRS giey

e a@ & qduv W u1 a9 i g aftgw 9.8 — qday g,

qATad A UgAM $ °IEd &1 2P qled & | (Sried fa. 1.y, 3rea) .
- ...1728

Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 18-See - Civil Procedure Code,
1908, Order 8 Rules 3 & 5 [Hari Singh Vs. Vikram Singh]  ...1654

. R A (1872 BT 1), GINT 18 — & — Rifeer wfBar G,
1908, e 8 797 3 7 5 (R fiw fa. fawa fuw) «..1654 .

—
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Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 32 - See - Penal Code, 1860,
Section 302 [Sanju Vs. State of M.P.] (DB)...1712

TIET IIFIH (1872 BT 1) ST 32 — 7@ — 7vg TRAL 1860,
grer 302 (A A, 7.9, I57) (DB)...1712

Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 35 - Date of Birth - Entries in
School Register - An entry relating to date of birth made in school
register is relevant and admissible however, such entry is of not much
evidentiary value to prove the age of the person in absence of material
on which the age was recorded - As there is no evidence that at whose
instance and on what material the date of birth was recorded in school
admission register, such entry loses its evidentiary value. [Dilip Singh
Gurjar Vs. State of M.P.] (DB)...1521

e Jffray (1872 &7 1), €NT 35 — WAL — ¥rem gl 7
gfaficar — war ot ¥ w=ifafyr | w9 3 wd ufafe, gETa @
TEg § fowg @l 9 arg wfde o<1 3 fag, o ufafe <1 wifdas
Hea aftrs -, w9 Hi¥ ) suRera Tel g ) @ oy, siffafad &)
¥ — gfe oI wew ad & feae w5 w Fiv fow 9t @ aeR )
T ydw well ¥ o=rfafy afhyfafea @ 19 off, swa wfafie goe
giftas Yz @t adt ) (faefn g & fa. 7y, w=@) (DB)...1521

Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 45 - See - Penal Code, 1860,
Section 376 [Chhote alias Surendra Vs. State of ML.P.] ...1705

IRy e (1872 7 1), %T 45 — B@ — TUE GIoul 1860
g7 376 (BI2 8% Y= fa. wu. Iwa) ...1705

Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Sections 63 & 65 - Secondary evidence
- Both the sections are to be read conjointly - If one fulfills the test of
secondary evidence, the document can be treated as secondary
evidence. [Gwalior Development Authority Vs. Dushyant Sharma]
...1582

WIe AT (1872 &7 1), €INTY 63 7 65 — [aefigs wareg — <=1
g & gE "iel ueT weT 9nsy — afe #ig ffdye we § oY )
BRI 9a¥ar 2, 99 aeardw & fgdae a1ey A S gwar 2 (e
fedauie sk fa. g ) ..1582

Excise Act, M.P. (2 of 1915), Section 47-A to 47-D - Revision -
Jurisdiction - Liquor with vehicle was seized within the District Shivpuri
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- Application for release of liquor was rejected by Collector (Excise),
Shivpuri and order of confiscation was passed - Appeal was dismissed
by Excise Commissioner, Gwalior - As the offence was committed in
District Shivpuri, Order of confiscation was passed by Collector
(Excise), Shivpuri and merely because the appeal was dismissed by
Excise Commissioner, Gwalior, it cannot be said that Sessions Judge,
Shivpuri has no jurisdiction to hear revision against appellate order.
[Shashwat M. Sharma Vs. State of M.P.] %30

. TSB! FETTIH, A (1915 FT 2), avr 477 & 478 — gadheor —
sferaiiar — afeT @ wrel ared & Eyd frd @ Mar s R T
- Fogex @EEER)), REgd g7 #fewr Ht q79 F39 FG AWET FHEBR
femr s aifmwor @1 sy Wik fear T - aEw A,
qifaR gRT afie e — 1% sruvre, Ragd fad A sia e @,
FAF (IEEMNY), Ragd gR aftrexor &1 gy wla fear T Sk A=
gatat fF afid &1 e srgam, arfaas g™ @R faar T e, 1%
el $8l o "ddl fo qfieh arder & favg gafiger g7 a1 aftreRar
g =i, REgd & wff @) (errag . wwf fa w19, w=w)... %30

Family Court Act (66 of 1984), Sections 3, 7 & 8(c) - Suit for
recovery of 'Stridhan' was filed on 01.05.2000 at Gwalior Court - On
04.03.2002 the Family Court was established uinder Family Courts Act
to the area of Municipal Corporation, Gwalior - Held - All the
proceedings after 08.03.2002 by Civil/District Court cannot be held to
be legal and decree passed by trial Court (ADJ) is found to be without
jurisdiction - Suit is transferred as per Section 8(c) of the Act to the
Family Court, Gwalior. [Balram Shivhare Vs. Suneeta Shivhare (Smt.)|

...1656

BT =TT AUy (1984 #7 66). G 3, 7 T 8(¥}) — EhwA
®1 g BF d1€ TEIAAR =IATAT | 01.05.2000 FT UFA fHaT — 04.03.
2002 @1, FH @A Ay & duda R afaer frm, arfaax
g9 & fod sgw wraran wrfia fear T on - afrfrefRa — os.0a.
2002 @ g¥aAra Rafa« /foear =maraw gRT ) 19w+ edarfaat ot da
Tdl ST W1 g&ar A faare <maray (o) g1 wiRa &) 78 fewy -
e aftreRar @ &9 9 T - 9w @ atufam @ o a7 ) @
ATAR g AATad, Afaax & Fafva fear 1@ (Favm e fa
Tt e (sfrfa) ..1656

" Hindu Marriage Act (25 of 1955), Section 13 - Condonation of
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Cruelty - Meaning of - Held - It is forgiveness and reinstatement with
knowledge - It consists of a factum of animus-remittendi - The sexual
intercourse is a strong inference of condonation with its dual
requirement i.e. forgiveness and restoration. [Sanjay Agrawal Vs. Jyoti

Agrawal (Smt.)] (DB)...*29

fe=g, faare Sferfayw (1955 #1 25), arT 13 — FXGT ® fory Tt —
o7 9o — afufeiRe — w8 sqde & W@ A vengar @ - g
A BT arey At € — e wwrm A @1 yge ey 2,
SHB! S AT B |ier Jerfa A€ g9 g 9T | (WS auard fa
sifa arara (shaf) (DB)...*29

Industrial Disputes Act (14 of 1947), Section 25-N & 25-0 -
Closure of Establishment - A harmonious reading of these provisions
would make it clear that in case, sanction is granted u/s 25-O for closure
of the establishment, there would not be any applicability of Section
25-N - The petitioners have received compensation on account of
closure of the establishment - Consequently, there was no occasion for
the petitioners to claim any relief against retrenchment - That being
50, the Labour Court was not right in entertaining their application for
retrenchment compensation - The Industrial Court was right in allowing
appeal from the award of Labour Court - Writ Petition under Article
227 of the Constitution of India challenging the order of Industrial Court
dismissed. {J.P. Gupta Vs. Eveready Industries India Ltd.] ...1526

e fre faars aferfaam (1947 &7 14), SINT 2507 @ 25377 ~ ®mq=T
# 7 HeA — 1 IUEH] F WAGAYdd U5 W Ig wWee g oA
Afy eRT 25—a @ Sfuvid e §€ fFY W R A werT @ W
8. U9 O_T 25—-U4 &1 &g gaisgar 9¢f gtfl — gt 3 werne 55 8 W
# RV gfex grwr fear @ — aRvma: v 8 g vedt B Rivs
et ggaly 1 qrar 31 @ fav $IE sRor T o — A 't gy AW
ey g1 vedl gfaax 2 SWeT ks wEvr e Sfua wE em —
et AT gRT A9 [ATATTd @ I4re @1 Al Ho[¥ Y1 Sfua o
- alfe Iy @ aRkw & gaidl 2 g9, ard @ 9faen @
YWY 227 B wla Re afaer wRe | (@@ gar fa. RS Feei
gtear fa.) ...1526

Interpretation of Statutes - Exclusion of Jurisdiction - Clauses
which purports to exclude the jurisdiction of the Courts must be read -
strictly. [Ravindra Nath Tripathi Vs. Union of India] (DB)...1553
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BT FT (7T — FfeiRar a1 avaeT — Es Wt aTeal #
ATSIRAT #7 Argas= areafifa o3@ € o worag oy @ T ST 4ifay |
=y P A g o i) . (DB)...1553

Law of Torts - Strict Liability - Negligence of Servant or
employee - Respondent or company can not escape from the liability
on any count. [Ramdevi (Smt.) Vs. Madhya Pradesh Vidyut Mandal]

‘ : ...1639

JuFg fafer — W?-Bﬁ??ﬂﬁﬁ— BaEH 1 BHIIT FRT T0LIT —
veff a1 ot fall AN Rerfy ¥ Scoverfier © 7@ a9 wodr) (e
(sfrafar) fa. 7w, faga wsa) ...1639

Limitation Act (36 of 1963), Section 5 - Condonation of delay -
Delay of 1128 days - Delay by State - A liberal view should be taken as
in the matter of State where nobody.is personally affected, but it is
people at large affected and the machinery employed by the State is
impersonal machinery, however, the explanation furnished must be
bonafide - Long term delay must be appreciated in the light of
submissions made and circumstances brought on record - It should be
seen that State is serious enough in having taken action against erring
officers - In the present case although show cause notice was issued to
guilty officers in the year 2003 but nothing has been brought on record
as to what are the consequences of such show cause issued to them -
Explanation of 1128 days alse not found sufficient rather reflects
lethargy and negligence on the part of State - Application for
condonation of delay rejected - Consequently appeal is also dismissed.
[State of ML.P. Vs. Virendra Shankar] (DB)...1489

TR St (1963 #7 36) arer 5 — few B fyv we —
1123%‘Wm—wmﬁm—w$m#wqﬁ:ﬁw
YT =IRY, Wl Y @fowrrd o0 | gafya @ siar @ afve, amw
arT garfad g & &% o g Fratfra ameen. adafyas arawen g
e, afig, vwga frar T wWeeRT wgHiE g i — w4 aafy @
faera &1 AftneE, afrde w Y ™ e o9 el 1 RRefEt
@ Jren®s A few WA Wi — W' wr wrn AR fy ousa, Qi
IR@mREl $ feg srfad 52 oM @ foy gafw 7 @ T @ —
TEAT wBHXr A, dufy At aftreIRAt B W 2008 ¥ SR F@ret e
Tt 5 w2 o, fag 3 IR A, afRe W) e ) a9
o 5 TR S SR qaret w1 @ar aROT gam & — 1128 Faev @
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e fY qie w1 urr T afes weg @) iR 9 enorey d SuET
gfafsfag oxar € — faam &) 71 &1 ades sl foar T —
gfvmra: ardia = @il (g, v f5. IR= w9) (DB)...1489

Motor Vehicle Act (59 of 1988), Sections 147 & 149 - Liability
of Insurance Company - When there is no statutory liability to pay
compensation by the Insurance Company to the deceased who had
travelled as an unauthorised passenger in the vehicle, the Insurance
Company cannot be directed to pay the compensation amount and

. recover the same from the owner of the vehicle. [United India Insurance
Co. Ltd. Vs. Jagannath] ...1671

T I AETIT (1988 ®T 59) GINIY 147 T 149 — FHAT BHAT BT
FEveIg—aq € & g7 91 Tas o 9w 3T S 67 $Ig Sl
g Y e ae= o amferga Al @ o9 F g & oft, o FEE Bt
yRrpT A =T T3 U9 SW AT @ Wrll ¥ aqen o fag Prfim
FFar o gwdr | (gaEes 3% swR=n &, fa. fa. srrme) ...1671

Motor Veliicle Act (59 of 1988), Section 166 - Accident Claim -
Driver in reversing the tractor back, as a result, deceased fell down
into quarry and was pressed under huge quantity of muram collapsed
from the quarry - He was seriously injured and died after sometimes
during treatment in the hospital - It is a case where the death occurred
on account of use of the vehicle at the time of accident - There was
proximate connection between the use of the vehicle and the actual
cause of death - Claims tribunal has not committed any error in helding
the driver as well as the owner of the offending vehicle responsible to”
satisfy the award. [Bhura @ Gopal Vs. Shankutala Bai] %26

wev w7 AT (1988 FT 59), €T 166 — FHETT TTGT — ATAD
BN gdeY fi8 (Rad) o @ uRvmrasy ga 1 wem ¥ AR sk
EE oFT ¥ W B ST AT F A\ 9 1A — 98 THR TU |/ uEd
g3 MY el ¥ 9UAR @ JINE §B Y UEE St 4 B e -
qg U] UHI & el el $ WY 978 @ SUAIT B BIRYT g, B
g% — 9189 B SUGIT HIX g & arafad ol $ 949 Frecad! d9g
& — TMAr AfRERYT 7 JeduT DY qTd qET @ Alad AR el # @il
# are ¢ gic @ fae swverfl oeuee oiF qfe F1Ra 78 @1 21
(X1 Sw Mua fa. waTar 47g) . *26

Motor Vehicles Act (59 of 1988), Sections 166 & 173 -



INDEX 19
Compensatton - Multiplier - Multiplier on the age of claimants would be
applicable if their age is more than the age of deceased - In a case of
bachelor's death one half deduction towards personal expenses may be
made from the earning of deceased to capitalize the loss of dependency
applying the multiplier either at the age of deceased or as per the age of
the claimant whichever is higher. [Jakir Hussain Vs. Dinesh]  ...1604

Flew qr7 AT (1988 FT 59), SIIQ 166 T 173 — TAHY —
To% — J@reaial 7 AR BT TS AR &1 Ay S Ay qas @)
g | It € — afyafea @Y 7oy @ wowwr ¥ a1 @ qae AN Ay v
TU® TN P T TEIEAiel &) Ay @ IR, o # aqftie @ srfEear
®) T B TSllmd o @ fay goo @ A € 9 ) sed whiwg
ad & Fwia 31 o wed) 21 (@ifee gdw fa. i) ...1604

Narcotic Drugs and Psychotropic Substances Act (61 of 1985) -
Re-testing of Samples - Heroine was seized from the possession of
Petitioner - However, the F.S.L. report shows the contraband as Opium
- Prosecution filed application for re-testing of sample from Hyderabad
- Any request for re-testing of sample may be permitted in exceptional
circumstanees for cogent reasons to be recorded - Application must be
made within 15 days from the date of receipt of test report - Cogent
reasons have been assigned by Trial Court - Revision dismissed.
[Dinesh Kumar Yadav Vs. Union of Indla] . 1779

wIT9E R div FTFErdt gerel aferfaw (1985 #T 61) — YA
1 g7 g — Al & Fesl | AT oT=a B T — f vp.TEgA. P
Ratd, fafsfrg werel &t wiam <afd @ - aftmtes 3 =3 $) g w4
FERTETE W BRI BT ARST Uwd fBar — A B g sma @ i
FrT smarfes aRRefrt § aox fear s woar 2, R w9d@ F0T
gffafea fed T g - wra vl vifa @) ffyr @ 15 Rt @ oz
AT B AR — fHaRer raad ERT U9d R Ry T @ —
g elRer | (feeer AR aE fa. g ate i) ..1779

National Security Act (65 of 1980), Section 3(2) - Preventive
Detention - Object of = Objective of preventive detention is to prevent
a person from acting in.any manner prejudicial to the security of the

State or from acting in any manner prejudicial to the maintenance of
public order. [Deepak Purohit Vs. State of M.P.] (DB)...1561
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TSI GRET FIraT (1980 FT 65). €T 3(2) — ARG (e —
77 933 — Pare g o1 I afyw F1 Iva B grer § o
ufaad el gorR # ST a3 R @ AT WART B IRET S
fore sfrae fodl 9o @ sEad w9 Aem 1 (Suw R f1
A9, ) (DB)...1561

National Security Act (65 of 1980), Section 3(2) & Constitution,
Articles 22(5) & 19 - Order of Preventive detention passed on the ground
pertaining to Public Order - Act of detenu was merely individual i.e. it
affected only two injured persons, but did not affect the peace or tranquillity
of rest of the community in any manner - Therefore, it could not be held to
be a breach of Public Order constituting the basis of detention of the
petitioner. [Deepak Purohit Vs. State of M.P.| (DB)...1561

Y1 VT ATEAAT (1980 FT 65), FINT 3(2) T WiIAF, AT 22(5)
7 19 — e g d Gt amER ® fare FRig o1 ey wika fear
TR — FE) BT wed AF AT AT AATa S Bad ] IATed Afda g
8¢ Wy AW WqI ¥ ity @ gwifa & el uer @ gariea sl e
— ;9 Al EeT &1 W e AT W Gaarn, e arfl & e o
IR Tfea & e | ([Fuw yRifta fa 1y o) (DB)...1561

National Security Act (65 of 1980), Section 3(2) & Constitution,
Articles 22(5) & 19 - Preventive Detention -Not punitive - Detenu can
claim no right of peremptory hearing or a show cause notice before the
detention order is passed by the authority. [Deepak Purohit Vs. State
of M.P.] (DB)...1561

T geer FAraT (1980 T 65), €17 3(2) T WiAEIT, dWE
22(5) T 19 — Frawe Arig—gverars 781-54), vifter g/ ke ardw
giita fpd o € qd e gaard @ siftrer o1 a1 FReT aqen Aifed
&7 grar 8] &) ear | (e g f4 1y wsa) (DB)...1561

National Security Act (65 of 1980), Section 3(2) & Constitution,
Articles 22(5) & 19 - Preventive detention - Order of detention against
the detenu passed on 08.06.2012 - Activities of detenu which could
have been prejudicial to the maintenance of Public Order in the year
2010, cannot be held to be proximate and relevant for forming subjective
satisfaction of the detaining authority. [Deepak Purohit Vs. State of
M.P.] (DB)...1561
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?rtgz‘)zr VT I (1980 BT 65) GWT 3(2) T m%smr FBT

22(5) 7 19 — farve Aoy — 90 @ faeg RTTe 08.06.2012 &) Prde
Ay uIRT fen =T — §9) @ SrfEAry st 99 2010 ¥ @F wawRn @
e s fod ufired @ wod o, 3% iy gt ) afyafs
H@%Wﬁﬁg%@ﬁwwﬁ#aﬁmﬂﬂaﬁmmuﬂw
qifed 4. ww. ) (DB)...1561

Negotiable Instraments Act (26 of 1881), Section 138 -
Amendment in the complaint - Complainant wrongly mentioned the
cheque N0.332534 in place 0f 332554 in the comf)laint as well as in the
notice - After completion of cross-examination of complainant an
application for amendment in complaint regarding cheque number filed,
which was allowed by the trial court - Revision against the order was
also dismissed by the A.S.J. observing that the case is at defence stage
and petitioner/accused has an opportunity to defend his case - Held -
Courts below have committed illegality in allowing such amendment.
[Lekhraj Singh Kushwah Vs. Brahmanand Tiwari] ...1783

yvprey ferad Jferfaas (1881 &1 26) &7 138 — Rremaad 4
geg7Rregasal 4 Rema # gwn Aifew & @ |, 332554 B N
W A% 7. 332534 Taq o0 ® Sfeafea fear — Rrergasal @ yRdeor
gof g1 @ Sueia 9% TEX @ Way ¥ Rrewwd 4 wutes @q smdw
g far m, 59 faameT |Imred g1 A9y fear ety @ feg
gheaeT ff Ffy. w3 = g1 5w foooh @ a1 wrie fear @ fe
U] 94 B UHT WX 2 T A/ afigad g F oud w=e @
AR S F—fHfrafRa—sa duteq 99r v § P et |
Ideal IR W 2| (Qene Rz gyae A swrre fer) ...1783

Negotiable Instruments Act (26 of 1881), Sections 138 & 139 -
Burden of Proof - In cases of Section 138 of N.I. Act, presumption u/s
139 of N.I. Act may not lead to injustice or mistaken conviction -
Doctrine of reverse burden introduced by Section 139 of N.I. Act should
be delicately balanced. [Anirudh Saini Vs. Piyush Agrawal] ...1747

By ferad AT (1881 BT 26), GRTY 138 T 139 — AT BT TV
— e R aRPEs @) O 138 @ THRON ¥, uxeT frad ot @
"IN 139 & WA SULRI, 9T AT Hed3l <Nfafe @ stk 7 o <1 9
— W foma aff & g 139 g1 wxafae A R @ Rigig
e ¥ wfea g ARy (@Feg 90 4 Ry samara) ...1747
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Negotiable Instruments Act (26 of 1881), Sections 138 & 139 -
Burden of Proof-Initially the burden of proof is on accused to rebut the
presumptions u/s 139 of N.L. Act by raising a probable defence-If he
discharges the said burden, the onus thereafter shifts on the complainant
to prove his case. [Anirudh Saini Vs. Piyush Agrawal] ...1747

BT fraa IRy (1881 @7 26), ST 138 7 139 — WA BT

#IT — UHT 94979 991 o33 gawna feraa affraw 3 et 139 & aalq
SUHROTTAT BT WS B¥1 @ Ay, WYH H7 AN RS Iv } afge w
gar @ — afy 9% aue 999 9R &1 fided #Rar 2, 99 S9d yHE
Rreraedl I AT ST B AT s B AR arar 2 | @freg I
fa. fyy arara) L ..1747

Panchayat Raj Evam Gram Swaraj Adhiniyam, M.P. 1993 (1 of
1994), Section 36(1)(a), Constitution, Article 226 - Setting aside of
election - Respondent No. 7 contested the election of Member of
Janpad Panchayat by suppressing the fact that he has already been
convicted u/s 302 of I.P.C. and has been sentenced to undergo life
imprisonment - Respondent No. 7 was apparently disqualified u/s
36(1)(a) of Adhiniyam, 1993 - High Court in suitable cases is not
prevented from declaring under Article 226 that a person elected to
Janpad Panchayat was not qualified to be chosen as a Member and in
restraining him to function as a Member - Election of respondent No.

7 quashed. [Ram Kumar Vs. State of M.P.] ...1578

THrgd VST ¢ T W@Oror SfEfGan, AH. 1993 (1994 FI. 1), EIRT
36(1)(¢), wivEry, aq=8T 226 — faraT & srgrea fEar omar —  goaef
. 7 % OUT YA @ WS B GG @S, §9 924 Ft fourex f5 S9
agd € M. @ g 302 © Faud siufug fEar @ eiv aeiEs
FRMEN qiad @ fae queifye fear T & — gweff #. 7 yae wu 4.
afrfgs 1003 &Y o 36(1)(T) @ e PrfdT — s=9 <y, Sfw
gpxon § AT 226 B Aqda =Em Hed @ fad Frafa T 6
T gargd X Praffaa S afy, aew @ w9 ¥ 93 91 @) gdar
T4 <Ear @l 99 wEw B vu ¥ o v 4 U — el w7 &
Prafaw afrEfea)l (@ $aR fa. 7.9, wa) ...1578

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302 - Circumstantial Evidence
- Appellant was sleeping with his wife in his room - In the morning he

lodged a complaint that in the night his wife has committed suicide by
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hanging herself-In postmortem the cause of death was strangulation and
was homicidal in nature-As the appellant was alone in the room and the
explanation given by him appears blatantly false and unreliable-
Appellant is guilty of committing murder. [Rakesh Tiwari Vs. State of
M.P.] (DB)...1737

qUg Giear (1860 &7 45), &1 302 — TRR o~ wrew — ardaneft
A9 FR ¥ AT gl S Wi ul @I o — gaw 9ua fierad < @,
fo sua) o=l 7 Uy ¥ WE T B8 W dCHOY AR FIRA DT —
| GET F Y BT SO TAT Hl el [ ATG 9 WOy $T qardr 1Tl
— gf adleneff oR & a@ar o1 A Swe g e T waERer
yoia: fiear vd sfdwawsy udla etar € — ardlareff saar &1 < f@w
faars 4. 7.9, <<n) (DB)...1737

’ Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302, Evidence Act (1 of 1872),
Section 32 - Murder - Appellant No. 2 who was having a katar in his
hand had caught hold the deceased and appellant No. 1 inflicted injuries
by knife - 10 injuries of sharp and pointed weapon found by doctor on
the person of deceased - Evidence of eye witnesses, oral dying
declaration and dying declaration found to be cogent, consistent and
reliable - It stood established that both the appellants assaulted
deceased with knife/katar with the intention of committing his murder
- Sentence of life impriosnment held proper. [Sanju Vs, State of ML.P.]

' (DB)...1712

§UE WIBaT (1860 T 45). SIIRT 302, TIgy IE1a% (1872 &7 1), €IeT
32 — gy — afreneff ®. 2 IR T ¥ wer fod, oo w1 e <@
e afiereff %, 1 3 =9 9@ aftwr ogae -~ fafvcs 1 395 @ Wk
R gREIR U4 I3Ta TS @1 10 9 g — weagsefl wifirn &1 e,
MRas J@ITas $oF (@ JegHIHE B2, 9ad, YUTd 79 fawaaa
gi=m o @ — 7w enfum st € 5 Siet anflarf¥fal A qae w s
FAT BIRT HE © ATAT | AT/ FeR ¥ oam Ha1 — FrefiaT FRE
BT FUSRY Sfaa sevdr 4T (Wy, f3. 9.9, =) (DB)...1712

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302 - Medical Evidence -
Authoritative text books - Portion of any other authoritative text books
be put to the Doctor with a view to give him an opportunity to explain
his stand. [Rakesh Tiwari Vs. State of M.P.] (DB)...1737
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7Y WIRdT (1860 BT 45), €T 302 — RAfFela wew — g5y gead
—ﬁrmaﬁamﬁargaﬁwasﬁmwﬁﬁmﬁaﬁqm
et gy fifeeas 1 9emn fdt <38 9Ty gwae @ Anr | ST 8
Y fard f. 7. wwa) (DB)...1737

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302 - Suicidal or Homicidal -
Medical Evidence - Ligatures marks were found to be transverse on
the neck however, in the case of suicide they would have gone upwards
- When the team of doctors have opined with certainty that it was a
case of strangulation, then it would be difficult for the Court to
substitute its opinion and hold that the death was suicidal. [Rakesh
Tiwari Vs. State of M,P.] (DB)...1737

FvS WIedl (1860 BT 45) EIRT 302 —3THECAT IT T7qT —
fafeedia wreg — €T W RSt g9 o1 frewa wrar v feeg, smeteenr
31 Reafd ¥ 98 SR #) aiv wen wrar — 99 Rifrcost = A9 1 Aga
a%mexwaﬁﬂ%aawm'aﬁmummmwa%mw
e St sRenfam Fem @iy gy B aewra @Y B grom BT
BT g1 fIBw e fa. 7.y, w=a) (DB)...1737

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 302 or 304-II - Murder or
Culpable Homicide not amounting to murder - Appellant created a
scene when he was stopped, he caused injury to his infant son using
knife, which he was having - Held - He was having motive - Offence
u/s 302 IPC cannot be converted into Section 304 Part I1, 1PC.
[Thavriya @ Thavar Singh Vs. State of M.P.] (DB)...1722

TUS WIEdT (1860 BT 45), GV 302 a7 304 I~ §ear a7 57
P &7 o 1 aravErE ArT g — adverreff F qaETen e iy oy
S 1 T, wEd A Rig) (F B O @ we s1Rd @ o sud 9
ouT — AFAFEART — S wre 3Y® o7 — T 302 WA, BT Iy, Ay
304 AT II wed. o woRafda Y fear s awar | (@ralar 9w amex
g fa 7.y, Isg) (DB)...1722

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 302, 352, 84, 304-11I -
Unsoundness of mind - Various questions put by trial Court to accused
answered satisfactorily - Trial Court observed that he understand that
the act done by him is wrong - Held - Defence of unsoundness of mind
or incapable of knowing the nature of the act committed by him is to be
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established hf the accused by cogent defence - Otherwise the common
man is presumed to know the nature of the consequence of the act
done. [Thavriya @ Thavar Singh Vs. State of M.P.] (DB)...1722

TUS WIaGT (1860 BT 45) &IV 302, 352, 84 7 304 II— faead RAgla
— AT |mAaTeE BRT 4 1 At geat &1 aftigea 3 Walseee o9
4 SR fear — farer ey 3 ger fear fe 99 9w 8 5 9o
g1 f&a T o Taw @ - afufaiRa - faw fagfa @ swe gwo
fed T g @ wey B WA A EH g o7 9979, AT gR1 999
gag ¥ i si97 @y — =g w99 &t Y 14 670 @
memﬁﬁaﬁwmﬁﬂ?ﬁmﬁmwaﬂmﬁw
fa. w9, o) (DB)...1722

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 307, 323/34 - Attempt to
Murder - According to x-ray report no bony injury was found - Neither
the Radiologist was examined nor x-ray report was proved - Held -
The only act which could fall within the perview of Section 307, L.P.C.
is an act which by itself must be ordinarily capable of causing death in
the natural and ordinary course of events and accused's criminal liability
must be limited to the act which he in fact did, and can not be extended
so as to embrace the consequence of another act which he might have
done but he did not do - Conviction u/s 307 converted into Section 323/
34 of I.P.C. [Ram Sanehi Vs. State of ML.P.] ...1699

U GIRaT (1860 T 45) GWRIC 307, 323,/34 — EAT &7 §IT —
T Rid @ aqar &g afRer @te a8 g 1€ — 7 w fafevor
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79, # wulefia) (W =& f3. 9.9, w=7) ...1699

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 352 - Use of Criminal Force
- Held - Said charge has been fully established from the evidence of
P.W.1 - No argument to disprove has been made - Same has rightly
been found proved - Appeal dismissed. [Thavriya @ Thavar Singh Vs.
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State of M.P.] (DB)...1722

598 GledT (1860 &7 45), ST 352 — ATURIfereF I &7 TIT —
FtfreiRo—sea o= s 1 @ wiew ¥ i wenfw fea T -
T &1 B fay 1Y a% =4 a1 Tar-ved Ft SR vy @ wifa
Tar Rr-Afie |l (araRar 3w e g fa. 1.y, )

(DB)...1722

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 376 - Rape - Lack of injury -
Itis well settled propostition of law that mere lack of inj ury or sign of
struggle on the person of the prosecutrix or absence of any injury on
her private parts are not sufficient circumstance to disbelieve the
version of the prosecutrix - Where the ocular evidence as well as expert
evidence (medical evidence) are available and both are conflicting to
each other then in such a situation, the ocular evidence would prevail
over the expert evidence. [Chhote alias Surendra Vs. State of M.P.|

...1705

TUE W/edl (1860 BT 45), T 376 — FATHIY — Fe & T —
Tg fafer &1 wfamify werfa e @ f5 w3 afrateh @ ok o= e
AT AT e B RE BT AwE W s pwral w e wie a8t
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Suder & v Tl U gER @ faRtarard 2, a9 oW Reify ¥, migw
e, faetvs wew R afverd s (st 9w g . wg. wsa)
...1705

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 376, Scheduled Castes and
Scheduled Tribes (Prevention of Atrocities) Act (33 of 1989), Section
3(1)(xi), Evidence Act (1 of 1872}, Section 45 - Caste of Prosecutrix -
Any documentary evidence - Whether produced or proved on record -
No inference could have been drawn by the trial court to hold the caste
of prosecutrix covered under the Act - To hold conviction under the
Act the prosecution is bound to prove the caste of the victim covered
under the Act as well as of the accused like appellant to invoke the
provision of the Act - Convition and sentence of the appellant set aside.
{Chhote alias Surendra Vs. State of M.P. ...1705

Tvs glear (1360 #T 45), GT 376, FFglaa ol v aggla
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2 — adraneff @ Swfufy @i TverRy surd] (812 S AR f4. 7w,
VY)Y S ..1705

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 420, Stamp Act (2 of 1899),
Section 35 - Partnership deed - Insufficiently Stamped - In a complaint
for offence punishable under Section 420 of I.P.C., the Trial Court has
no authority to refuse to take such documents in evidence by holding
the same to be inadmissible on the ground of lack of requisite stamp
duty as per the provisions of Stamp Act. [Dharmendra Bhura Vs. State
of M.P.] %27

TUS WIRGT (1860 BT 45), €IRT 420, ¥IFT AT (1899 &7 2).
&7vT 35 — qrflent fad@ — Uty vy & werffgg — A1EE. B HRT 420
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Scheduled Castes and Scheduled Tribes (Prevention of
Atrocities) Act (33 of 1989), Section 3(1)(xi) - See - Penal Code, 1860,
Section 376 [Chhote alias Surendra Vs. State of M.P.] «.1705

Faafya wify Jiv ggfaa wonfa (eearare Fareer) sfEafar
(1989 ®T 33), €T 3(1)(xi) — @G — FvE WlEar, 1860. IeT 376 (BT VH
W= fa. 7.9, =) ...1708

Service Law - Appointment - Qualification - Crucial date’
on which a candidate must possess the requisite qualification would
be the last date on which the applications are to be submitted - It
was necessary for the Petitioner to submit the proof of passing of
eligibility examination atleast on the date when selection was made
- Rejection of the candidature for want of requisite documents
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cannot be said to be unjustified. [Draupati Tiwari (Smt.) Vs. State
of M.P.] (DB)...1512

®ar fafer ~ Frgfa — agar — weayyf fafyy, R RiBr ot areff
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Service Law - Date of Birth - Correction - Matriculation
Certificate - In the letter of offer of appointment, it was mentioned
that in case the person fails to produce certificate in proof of age, the
same shall be assessed by Medical Board - However, there is nothing
that the date of birth was recorded on the basis of the certificate
produced by Petitioner or on the basis of medical report - Matriculation
certificate subsequently filed by Petitioner shows different date of birth
- Other school certificates also tally with the date of birth mentioned in
Matriculation Certificate - As per Implementation Instruction No. 76,
Date of Birth is required to be treated as has been mentioned in
Matriculation certificate - Respondents are directed to treat the date
of birth of the petitioner as has been mentioned in Matriculation
Certificate and to permit him to continue in service till he attains the
age of superannuation according to said date of birth. [{Chandra Bhusan
Vs. South Estern Coal Field Led.] ...1546
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Service Law - Doctrine of Relation Back - Appointment -
Qualification - Appellant had appeared in supplementary examination
of Class XII - Taking part in examination is not the complete exercise
of obtaining educational qualification - Passing of examination would
be only when the resuit is declared - Subsequent declaration of result
would not mean that the candidate must be treated to havepassed the
examination with retrospective effect. [Draupati Tiwari (Smt.) Vs. State
of M.P.| ’(DB)...1512

- war faftr — Raerr 3@ a1 Rrera — Ay — sear — adaneff
BT X1 B e whar ¥ 381 — whar ¥ dor dafre sdar aftrgra
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foard (shmfer) fa, 7.9, w5) (DB)...1512

Service law - Place of Posting - Revocation of Suspension -
Whether employee can claim as a matter of right the place of posting
from where he was placed under suspension ? - Held - A Government
servant has a statutory right of lien to hold a substantive post and not
a place - Govt. servant has no statutory, legal or constitutional right
to get reinstated on the same place after revocation of suspension.
[Dheer Singh Yadav Vs. State of M.P.] : . *28

@ar [3fer — ggvergar &7 YT — [Ad a7 gy @ — 91 SHa
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...7*28

SpeL‘t_’ﬁc ReliefAct, 1963 (47 of 1963), Section 16(c) - Readiness
& Willingness - Plaintiff compelling defendant for closing of windows
and ventilators and making partition wall, which was not a part of the
contract - Held - The plaintiff was not ready & willing for getting sale
deed executed in his favour and he himself was avoiding to perform
the agreement by imposing arbitrary conditions. [Kaluram Agarwal Vs.
Dinesh Kumar] - . ...1689
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fafafese srqaiy Ffefgw (1963 &7 47) &er 16 (&) — dare 7
varie — ard), gfaard & Rasfear sl dwmmml & 9t s @ fay
fagw &% wer 2 a2 iy 33 ol AR w1 fef st T 2. o 1%
dfaer &1 90T TE o — AaffreiRa — T s s 7 faey faew @1
frsgres HYR WM 8q AR 9 o ad o Y 98 Wy, W e
sitRifg & SR @71 wredT we ¥ 79 = 2 | (@I snar AL faaw
FAN) ' ...1689

Specific Relief Act (47 of 1963), Section 20 - Specific
Performance of Contract - Decree of specific performance is a
discretionary relief and Court is not bound to grant such relief on
its asking - Although discretion is to be exercised on the basis of
sound and reasonable grounds but the Court should take care to
see that it is not used as an instrument of oppression to have unfair
advantage to the plaintiff - Value of the house at the time of
agreement was more than Rs. 2 lacs and would never fetch the
value of Rs. 25,000/~ on the date of agreement - Appeal is partly
allowed - Decree of Specific Performance of Contract set aside -
Plaintiff is entitled to a decree of refund of advance amount of Rs.
22,984/- with interest @ 6% per annum. [Dulari Bai (Smt.) (Dead)
Vs. Rameshwar Dayal Shrivastava] ...1619
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-

Specific Relief Act, 1963 (47 of 1963), Section 20 - Specific
performance of contract - The plaintiff himself was avoiding the
performance of the contract - He unnecessarily burdened the
defendant with conditions, not a part of the contract before
execution of sale deed - The trial court committed no mistake in
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refusing the decree for performance of contract. [Kaluram Agarwal
Vs. Dinesh Kumar] : -+ ...1689
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Specific ReliefAct (47 of 1963), Section 20 - Suit for specific
performance - Agreement to sell or loan transaction - More than
90% of the sale consideration and that too in odd figures of Rs.
22,984/- is alleged to have been paid at the time of agreement - In
agreement it was mentioned that one gentleman is residing in the
suit property and the sale deed will be executed after getting it
vacated from him - In plaint it was mentioned that as the defendants
are not getting the suitable alternative accommodation therefore,
time for the execution of sale deed was extended thrice - Plaintiff
also admitted that he does not know about the measurements of
the house - Conduct of plaintiff in agreeing to purchase a house
without inspecting it is highly unnatural - It can be inferred that
real intention was not to purchase the house in question and the
defendant never intended to sell the house to plaintiff. [Dulari Bai
(Smt.) (Dead) Vs. Rameshwar Dayal Shrivastava] ...1619
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Specific Relief Act, 1963 (47 of 1963), Section 22 - Refund of
earnest money - Earnest money for part consideration of the contract
and mentioned as such in the contract - No clause forfeit for earnest
money nade in the contract -The defendant has a duty to refund it to
the plaintiff with interest. [Kaluram Agarwal Vs. Dinesh Kumar]

...1689
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Stamp Act (2 of 1899), Section 35 - See - Penal Code, 1860,
Section 420 [Dharmendra Bhura Vs. State of MLP.] L %27
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Trade Marks Act (47 of 1999), Sections 134, 135 - See - Civil
Procedure Code, 1908, Order 39 Rule 1 & 2 [SKOL Breweries Ltd.
Vs. Som Distilleries Ltd. & Breweries Ltd.] ...1589
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FAREWELL

JUSTICE M.A. SIDDIQUI

BornonJuly 1, 1951. Joined legal practice as an Advocate in the year
1974. Also worked as part-time law lecturer in Saifia College from 1975 to
1976. Was Head of the Department, Faculty of law Ravindra College, Bhopal
for two years before joining the Judicial services. Joined Judicial Service as
Civil Judge, Class-Il on August 7, 1978, promoted as Civil Judge, Class-I on
August 24, 1984, as C.J.M. on June 29, 1989 and as officiating District Judge
on August 09, 1991. Was granted Selection grade on May 8, 1999 and Super
time scale on April 1, 2005. Worked as Special Judge, Chhatarpur for trial of
cases under SC/ST (Prevention of Atrocities' Act) in the year 2002. Worked
as District and Session Judge at Tikamgarh, Sehore and Mandla. Was Posted
as Director, Public Prosecution, Bhopal from June 28, 2010 till elevation.

Elevated as Additional Judge of the High Court of Madhya Pradesh
on September 13, 2010, appointed as permanent Judge on September 11,
2012 and demitted office on June 30,2013.

We wish His Lordship a healthy, happy and prosperous life.
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Hon'ble Mr. Justice Krishn Kumar Lahoti, Acting Chief J ustlce,
bids farewell to the demitting Judge :-

We have assembled here to bid a warm and affectionate farewell to
Hon'ble Shri Justice Mohammad Anwar Siddiqui, who will be demitting office
on 30" June, 2013. after a successful tenure as a judge of this Court.

Justice Mohammad Anwar Siddiqui, was born on 1% July, 1951 at
Bhopal. After graduating in law from Barkatulla University Bhopal, he had
joined the bar at District Court, Bhopal as an Advocate in year 1974 and
started practice under the able guidance of Justice Faizanuddin, Former Judge
of Supreme Court. After some time, Justice Siddiqui had joined the office of
Mr. Aziz Ahmed Siddiqui, a leading Lawyer of Criminal side at Bhopal. Having
deep academic inclination, he-had also rendered his services as part time Law
Lecturer in Saifia College, Bhopal, from 1975 to 1976. He, thereafter had
worked as Head of the Department, Faculty of Law at Ravindra College,
Bhopal for two years before joining the judicial services.

Justice Siddiqui joined Judicial Services as Civil Judge, Class Il on 7%
August, 1978 he was promoted as Civil Judge, Class  on 24" August, 1984, and
as C.J.M. on 29" June, 1989. On August 9, 1991 he was promoted to the post
of officiating District Judge. He was granted selection grade on 8 May, 1999
and super time scale on 1* April, 2005. During his long career ds member of the
district judiciary he had worked in different capacities at various places, including
Sehore, Bilaspur, Shujalpur, Jagdalpur, Betul, Shajapur, Alirajpur, Gwalior,
Chhatarpur, Tikamgarh, Mandla and Bhopal. He had worked as Special Judge,
Chhatarpur for trial of cases under SC/ST (Prevention of Atrocities) Act, in the
year 2002, Thereafter, he had worked as District and Sessions Judge at Tikamgarh,
Sehore and Mandla. He was also appointed as Director, Public Prosecution,
Bhopal from 28" of June, 2010, which post was held by him till his elevation as
Judge of Madhya Pradesh High Coust.

Recognizing his merit and juristic talent, he was clevated as Additional
Judge of M.P. High Court on 13" Sept., 2010 and was appointed as permanent
Judge on 11 Sept., 2012.

During his tenure as a Judge of the Madhya Pradesh High Court, Justice
Stddiqui has disposed of 3509 cases which includes First Appeals, Miscellaneous
Appeal, Writ Petitions, Writ Appeals, Miscellaneous Civil Cases, Miscellaneous
Criminal Cases, Criminal Appeals and Criminal Revisions etc. Justice Siddiqui
bad made significant contribution both on Judicial and Administrative sides of the
High Court. During his tenure, Justice Siddiqui has delivered several land mark
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jud;gments which adorn the Law Journals. It may not be possible for me to make
areference to all those judgments. )

A former Judge of the Supreme Court has said; I quote-"A judge ought to be
bestowed with the sense of complete detachment and humility. He ought to remember
that he is not himself an author of his deeds. He is only an actor who has to play hisrole
conforming to the script which represents the Will of the Author playwright and thus
surrendering himselfto the will of God. According to Islam, such surrender is the
supreme act of religion." I find all these qualities in Justice Siddiqui.

Justice Siddiqui has also shared Bench with me and with other senior
judges and we have found him to be well prepared and well versed with latest
provisions of Law. He followed the ideals of judicial administration; to hear
patiently, to consider diligently, to understand rightly and to decide judiciously.
It was a matter of great pleasure to sit with him.

Justice Mohammad Anwar Siddiqui has throughout been soft spoken,
courteous to all and respected by the Bar and the Bench alike. I am sure that
vast experience of Justice Siddiqui for more than 35 years in the field of
dispensation of justice will be useful in future also and he will continue to
render his valuable services to the legal fraternity and the society.

[ wish Justice Mohammad Anwar Siddiqui and Mrs. Rashida Siddiqui
best of health, happiness, prosperity and peaceful life.

Shri R.D Jain, Advocate General, Madhya Pradesh bids farewell :-

We have assembled here to bid farewell to Mr. Justice Mohammad
Anwar Siddiqui who is demitting the office on 30" of June 2013 after a
distinguished career as a judge of the MP High Court.

Your Lordship assumed, the office as a judge of the High Court on
13.9.2010. Your Lordship's elevation as a judge of the MP High Court brought an
era of sincerity, devotion to work and dedication. Today is a parting moment as
far as the office as a judge is concerned. Though all of us know the date of retirement
ofajudge on the day of appointment but when it arrives we feel that it would never
have come and in relation to some of the judges'it is not relished lightly.

Bornon 1.7.1951 and after having obtained higher education of B.A.
LL.M, your Lordship joined the judicial services on 7.8.1978 and was
confirmed as Civil Judge on 1.5.1982.

You were then appointed as CIM/ACIM w.e.f. 29.6.1989 and
thereafter promoted/posted as Officiating District Judge in Higher Judicial
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service w.e.f. 9.8.1991. You were granted the selection grade w.e.f. 8.5.1999
and were confirmed as District Judge in Higher Judicial Services w.e.f.
20.1.1996 and worked as such in district Tikamgarh, Sehore and Mandla
district. You were posted as Director Public Prosecution at Bhopal on
28.6.2010 and again on 13.9.2010.

In the matter of appointment of a Judge whether from the Bar or from the
services care is taken to include persons with character, merit and integrity. The
abundance of these qualities has led to the appointment of Your Lordshipasa
judge ofthis Court.

On account of the vast experience possessed by Your Lordshipas a
judge and having worked in different capacities Your Lordship had privilege
to assess the pulse of the system and the decisions rendered by Your Lordship
reflected this quality very eloquently. Though My Lord's period asa judge
was very short but during this short period My Lord delivered hundreds of
judgments and out of these judgments about 100 judgments have also been
published in vafious journals and these judgments will surely throw light on
various aspects of law which will guide the newcomers in the field.

I personally feel that Your Lordship's tenure as a judge will always be
remembered. ] also think that a person in legal profession never retires. He
only changes the vocation and Your Lordship will also continue to provide
guidance to the legal fraternity which may result in bringing up a perfect judicial
system.

Your lordship were quick in understanding and in my estimation the
atmosphere of your Court has always been smiling. Your Lordships' fairness
as a judge was deeply impressive. Our High Court will be deprived of the
services of a brilliant judge after Your Lordships' retirement.

T'am sure that you will be enjoying very best of health throughout your -

rest of life. Though My Lord is retiring today from the Office of High Court Judge
but Your Lordship has still to serve the legal world and I hope that youwill provide
services in this direction in the years to come and by the great treasure of knowledge
My Lord will be a guide and philosopher for newcomers.

On behalf of the Government of Madhya Pradesh and Law officers of the
State and on my own behalf wish My Lord illustrious, healthy and long life.

o
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Shri Adarsh Muni. Trivedi, President, M.P. High Court Bar
Association, bids farewell:- '

"We all have assembled here to bid a cordial farewel! to your Lordship
Hon'ble Shri Justice M. A. Siddiqui on your demitting the office of a Judge of
this Hon'ble High Court on 30" of June, 2013.

Today, when we are bidding a farewell to your lordship; the clouds are
leaning over the earth. The nature is writing the poetry of farewell. The earth and
the heavens seem to caress each other with rolling tears of parting and dreaming
of clouas, +wves, woods and rocks passing away into a golden future.

Born on 1% July 1951, Your Lordship obtained degrees of B.A. and
L.L.M. and joined your long journey on the chariot of Judiciary on 7t August
1978. Your life as a Judge of Sub-ordinate Courts exposed you to the
wonderful natural beauty of erst-while Madhya Pradesh from one corner of
Jagdalpur to other comet of Alirajpur, wherefrom you gathered valuable insights
and varied life-spans of people, which moulded your distinct philosophy of
law and justice, you with your excellence were promoted to Higher Judicial
Service with, effect from 9th August 1991 ; were granted Selection Grade
Scale w.c.f. 8th May 1999 and Super Time Scale w.e.f. 13 April 2005. Your
Lordship adorned the seats of District and Sessions Judge at Tikamgarh,
Sehore and Mandla and prior to elevation were posted as Director of Public
Prosecution at Bhopal. Your Lordship have been elevated as a Judge of this
Hon'ble High Court on 13th September, 2010.

The constellations of high ideals and values, Your Lordship have
cherished, practiced and propounded in your life and Judgments, are thought
provoking and enduring. Your Lordship have been an eminent scholar, a jurist
par excellence and a Judge of high repute and kind heart, who enriched the
law through incessant efforts and complete dedication. Oliver Wendell Holmes
Jr. has said in his "Common-Law" :-

"The life of the law has not been logic; it has been experience.”

Your Lordship have secured and served the larger cause of humanity and
kept your resolutions with due diligence, honesty and your vivid experience of
human life and nature, with a relief-oriented attitude and anyone who knocked
your door, gets substantial Justice, with your true commitment to human values.
Your Lordship have always been sympathetic to the human sufferings. Cicero
says in'De legibus' - "The people’s good is the highest law."

Robert Frost says :- -
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"Two roads diverged in a
Wood and I,

Itook the one less
Travelled by,

And that has made all
The difference.”

And it was how Your Lordship delivered Judgments with a difference.,
Who can give law to love. Love towards humanity is a greater law to itself, Your
Lordship have played a different role that of a master-finctionary of Constitutional
powers with sublime humanism, which has assured excellence and freedom from
prejudice, It is humanity not blue-nose legality, which serves the cause of Justice.

India’s tryst with destiny inaugurated a new dawn 66 years ago with
vibrant values wiping out colonial denial of human rights for the masses. I am
afraid to say that the exotic Pre-Independence Bench-Bar theory and elitist
system of Britishers still existing in Bar, and we still feel proud of this elitist
system. Imperial injustice became obsolete with Independence of India long
ago and substantial Justice has become the birth-right of the least and lost.
Then why there should not be a departure from the "status-quo." This macro-
challenge demands now radical humanitarian changes both in Bench and the
Bar. The Justice Delivery System ought not to be untouchable and
unapproachable for those humans standing on marginal lines since hundreds
and hundreds of years and are still being denied their human-rights for cause
of so-called race of Development, which has now become blindfolded. The
Fundamental Rights are not mercy of the sovereign on the citizens of India.
We have these rights because we born as human-beings. We have no written
Fundamental Right of Dignity of Individuals, but still have a birth-right to live
with dignity, which is being brutally crushed even after 66 years of
independence, each day and everywhere and we have to think over the change
in entire system of the country. What prevailing over the country in' words of
Oliver Goldsmith is :-

"Law grind the poor, and rich men rule the law"

It is the truth which always prevailed in Your Lordship's Judgments,
particularly the Judgments delievered in the petitions under Section 482
Cr.P.C., which have revealed the face of System in many cases, where
innocents had been found framed freakishly. These Judgments have glimmered
the rays of hopes in the eyes of victimized people, and which has givena
humanitarian face to Justice Delivery System, we dreamt of which since long,

B Y
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Your Lordship possess the wealth of the soul which is the only true wealth.

"B T O JEART WA B | '

T4 I O T R/ R ||

Your Lordship will always be remembered for your ever smiling face,
pleasing Court manners, mutual respect and deep knowledge. The word
'Anwar’ in Your Lordship's name is an Arabic word which means in English’
'luminous' and in Hindi' ‘s@iftfa—g@rer@ . Your Lordship within your-self
are a light-house, illuminated with the light of your own soul,

Akbar Illahabi says :-

“EX SR aHGal 8, JTaR—U—3ardl 9|
I sedie, FemdaigarHi &l

We all the members of M.P. High Court Bar Association wish you great
fame like a song of bird and the luminous success. The Kingdom of Almighty Allah
rests within you. The progress is the law of the life. Each coming day will provide
you its own gifts. The omnipresent shall shower His all blessings upon you to keep
your promises and commitments towards the society. We pray to God :-

Wag IRE: A | |

[LONG LIVE FOR AHUNDRED YEARS]

@ Rl 9IRT wIe, 99 & & 8 e R

In a verse dedicated to you

"Rl Ree o € g At 8L

FY BHIH Hl 8, AES B At S (1]
g ol & 3Ol A A A [ FE QT
= A AR e gy ol SR =

& a8 9% ¥ g A9 | Mithe 81 W
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Shri D.K. Dixit, President, M.P. High Court Advocates' Bar
Association, bid's farewell ;-

Today we are bidding farewell to Hon'ble Shri Justice M.A. Siddiqui
who is demiting the office on 30/06/2013 and because of the Holidays on 29-
30 June we have assembled today in this ovation.

My lord Hon'ble Shri Justice M.A. Siddiqui performed his duties of
Judge very well and must be remembered in the annuals of the history of this
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Hon'ble Court Shri Justice Siddiqui possessed all the qualities of a good judge
and to appear before him was always an experience of learning and knowledge,

Hon'ble Justice Siddiqui born on 01/07/1951 at Bhopal, obtained the
degreesof B.A.and LL .M. and joined the services on 07/08/1978. He got timely
promotion and became the District and Sessions Judge on 05/08/1991. Also received
the selection grade and Super time scale on 08/05/1999 and 01/04/2005 respectively,
served at somany places in the state and elevated to the Bench on 13/09/2010 and
contributed immensely in this period which is very short.

We all have seen him very closely and found in him a very gentle soul
and a good human being, always ready, to help the right litigant. Nobody has
ever suffered any adverse treatment in his court.

My lord Hon'ble Shri Justice M.A. Siddiqui as a Judge delivered
- several landmark Jjudgments which are published in the law journal in golden
words, quite helpfull for the lawyers and it is sure that Hon'ble Shri Justice
Siddiqui will always be remembered for his contribution in the legal field
specifically in the field of Criminal law.

[ on behalf of the members of High Court Advocates' Ba-r Association

and on my own behalf convey our good wishes to Hon'ble Justice Siddiqui

and his family and pray to god to give him good health and prosperity in futire
life. Talso request him to make himself available for us whenever we remember
him and keep himself busy in catering the need of society at large.

ShriShivendra Upadhyaya, Chairman, State Bar Council of M.P.
bids farewell:-

S I TR AR A Aee R R o & et B sos
ﬁmmﬁmgﬁlwmmmmmﬁﬁl
mﬁ'wquﬁawﬁmmwmﬁmw%ﬁ@m

e ST O AR UF o Tg | o ReaN 59 9t o7 T € Ry anel Rierorra

&1 9 v fie & @ 45w vd apRutes A i ga
. 99 o 1978 ¥ ORI Bt o) v R To WHA =R WO ST
mﬁﬁmlwmwmmﬁﬁmﬁﬁmwmm%eﬁﬁﬁ
&1 AT o S & | =T 3 @ # fr- _
wantafr o aefle 2, 9fy o e
dig, gufy wer o, ¢ AT ghaw ||
-aaﬁwﬁmﬁwﬁmﬂmwméaﬂv@ﬁmﬁ

L N

-

o}



)

)

41
gt ¥ | R of) g AT ared) TRE R gEeR 8 BIg a1 oY B '

ST 5 TR T w3 oo, Welier 9 €W | W e e 9w
a3 el Al & R TP wrTest® Bl | A9 o eI, oHTd! Saia e
& = ¥ Sher are B SR | SRR @ < ¥ 3o oY o e ¥ wdl e
R & sws PR # ored AR § 7O, oy Afgwn uRYT B Wi Tewl @ AR W o
SeT B AR S IR B AR AU WA 30T § 9 ER W} Tg FETI Gl
iﬁﬁmmqﬁﬁmw@mwaﬁamwaﬁwwm
@ W FE T | :

Shri Rashid Suhal Siddiqui, Asstt. Solicitor General, bids farewell :-

We have assembled here today to bid farewell to one of our eminent
Judge Sri. M. A Siddiqui on his last working day at Jabalpur High Court.

Shri M.A. Siddiqui was born on 1% July 1951 at Bhopal, on 7" Aug.
1978 he joined State Judiciary as Civil Judge Class IT and then he was
promoted as Chief Judicial Magistrate on 29.6.1989. He was appointed as
officiating District Judge on 9.8.1991. In the year 2002 he was appointed as
Special Judge for trial of cases under SC/ST Prevention of Atrocities Act.
Thereafter he was appointed as Director Public Prosecution Bhopal and in
the year 2010 he was elevated as Judge of this Court.

Hon'ble Justice Siddiqui is a courteous, multilingual judge with a great
sense of humor. He is known for his intelligent, hard working and punctuality. He
is a thorough gentleman both in and outside the court. He treated all with the same
standard without bias or favour. Justice Siddiqui was a simple and moderate person
with sincerely and devotion to duty due to which he rose from lowest to the
highest echelon of justice delivery system in the state. Known for his integrity,
hard work and judicial reticence, aman full of wisdom, self imposed discipline
and loved by many people as he stood what he has decided. He is known for his
ruthless honesty and candour.

He had a way of making everyone comfortable with his wit and
compassion, [ saw some of his uniqueness while he was dispensing justice.
His larger than life, personality touches so many people and he will be sadly
missed. I wish him all the best for his post retirement life.

I on behalf of Government of India, all the Law Officers of Central
Government and on my own behalf, express our best wishes for good health,
happiness and peace for the days ahead.
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Shri T.S. Ruprah, General Secretary, Senior Advocates' Counci],
bids farewell :- '

My Lords, this assembly bids farewell to Hon'ble Shri Justice
Mohammad Anwar Siddiqui who is demitting the office of the Judge of the
High Court of Madhya Pradesh.

My Lord in your short span as a Judge of the High Court you have depicted
qualities of a most balanced Judge. Your Lordship realised the difficulties and
miseries of the poor and the down trodden and dispensed justice compassionately.

Your Lordship always gave patient hearing even to the young lawyers and
the atmosphere in the Court has been very congenial. Your Lordship has always
been very humorous within and outside the court and has won the hearts of the
members of the Bar, Your Lordship would be remembered in all times to come.

I, on behalf of the Senior Advocates Council and on my own behalf
extend good wishes to Your Lordship and hope that you will be engaging
yourself in other. activities, which will be beneficial to the society. We are sure
that Your Lordship's legal knowledge, experience gained during all these years
and a brilliant academic career shall be utilized for the betterment of the poor
and the needy; I extend my good wishes to you and to your family members
for a healthy, peaceful and happy active long life.

Farewell Speech delivered by Hon'ble Mr. Justice M.A.Siddiqui:-

My Lord, Hon'ble the Acting Chief Justice, Shri K.K. Lahoti ji, Hon'ble
Administrative Judge Shri Ajit Singhji, and all Hon'ble Senior, Sister and Brother
Judges, Shri R.D. Jain, Advocate General of Madhya Pradesh, Shri A.M. Trivedi,
President, High Court Bar Association. Shri D.K. Dixit, President, High Court
Advocates' Bar Association. Shri Shivendra Upadhyay, Chairman, State Bar
Council of Madhya Pradesh, Shri R.S. Siddiqui, Assistant Solicitor General for
Union of India, Shri T.S. Ruprah, General Secretary of the Senior Advocates
Council, family members of Hon'ble Lordships, members of Bar, officers of Registry,
Judicial Officers, Distinguished Guests, Ladies and Gentlemen.

At the very outset, | express deep gratitude to the Almighty God, who
is omnipotent, the most benevolent and merciful, for showering blessings on
me and who has given this life and opportunity to me.

Iexpress my gratitude and regards to Hon'ble the Acting Chief Justice
Shri K.K. Lahoti, for his worthy words and all dearest speakers and I thank
each one of you for your generous comments about me. I know that [ am not
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worthy for the same words, but as there is tradition of our culture that when a
person goes permanently or temporarily, he is adored and all his shortcomings
and mistakes which he has done in the past all ignored.

T also pay regards to my father Late Mohd. Ismail, who always guided
me to join legal fraternity since the very beginning of my school days. I am
also deeply indebted to my late mother Mrs. 1.Q. Begum, who taught me the
moral values, I tried my level best to adopt them in my life.

When I was in LLB first year, in the year 1969, my father Mohd.
Ismail passed away, who was an honest Circle Police Inspector, who, could
not afford more than a bicycle throughout his service career. On his death, I,
my mother, brothers and sisters were dependent only on the family pension.
When [ was studying LLB, I started doing tuition work. I passed LLB degree
with the "7th position in merit list. I took admission in LLM Course in the year
1972 and was awarded National Scholarship. In the year 1974, I started
practice as an Advocate under the able guidance of Mr. Faizanuddin Saheb
who later became Judge of this High Court and Judge of the Supreme Court.

After some months, I joined the office of Mr. Aziz Ahmed Siddiqui, a
leading Criminal Lawyer at Bhopal. So, I struggled up to this time.

After doing LLM in the year 1975, ] worked as part time Law Lecturer
in Saifia College, Bhopal in the year 1975 to 1976. In the year 1976, I was
the head of the Department of Law, at Ravindra College, Bhopal for last two
years before joining the judicial services. ’

1joined Judicial Services on 7.8.1978 and I was elevated as Judge of
this esteemed High Court in September 2010 and now I am going to retire
from the 35 years of Judicial services.

As far as retirement is concerned the date of retirement is fixed with
the joining of initial service any how I am lucky that my retirement extended
for two years due to elevation to the High Court.

Somebody has sent this message to me and [ am sharing it with you
and the message says:

Y, W, w3 TR, e wer ﬂé‘r o W,
THTE, TS it AR H= HEY Fal | ]9 8 |
I am grateful to my wife Mrs. Rasheda Siddiqui for her support inevery
part of my life.  am grateful to my son Yusuf Siddiqui, and daughters Nuhrul-huda
Siddiqui, Amarah Khan and Huma Khan, who have always co-operated with me
during my long strenuous journey as a Judge of Subordinate Court.



44

I'shall be failing in my duties, if 1 will not remember my Senior Judges Shri
K.K. Lahoti, Shri Ajit Singh, Shri Rajendra Menon and specially Shri Rakesh
daksena and all my senior Judges, who constantly guided me., As it is well known
that this Court is very much over burdened by work and despite sincere and hard
work by all the Judges, Advocates & staff, pendency of cases is increasing day by
day and people are not getting justice in time. In this regard much work is to be
done. In the present scenario one poetry may be quoted;

¢ ST g W =i S el

99 vEd f5 ofeRT B ggAd & W

Iam very much satisfied with my life and [ have fully enjoyed it. At this
stage there is no shortage of anything in my life. In this view it can be said;

337 9/ BT AT A1 597 HE R,
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I am also grateful to all my well-wishers and all the guests who have
assembled here to witness the.occasion.

I'am also thankful to the learned Advocates, friends and my relatives
for their guidance and support.

Tam also thankful to Dr. Ved Prakash Sharma, Registrar General and his
team of registry officers for their kind cooperation. I am also grateful to Shri Dr.
A.C. Sonkar for his kind help & co-operation for the health of mine & my family.

I'am also thankful to my staff members Shri Dinesh Roy Reader, Shri
Jitin Chourasia, Private Secretary, Shri K.K. Agrawal, Shri Mahendra Kumar
Dixit, Personal Assistants, Mrs. Sheeba Biju, Steno, Shri Gangoli, Asstt.
Protocol Officer, P.5.0s. Shri Rajendra Upadhyay and Shri Mohan Singh,
Shri Janardan Shukla and Shri Prakash Londe, Driver, as well as the bungalow
staff, who have worked very sincerely with me.

Before parting, I want share this thought that being a firm believer, I
once again pay my regards and gratitude to Almighty God. I believe that
whatsoever good or bad happens it comes from Almighty God and it is not
arbitrary but it depends upon the good or bad deeds (Karm) of us. I have
lived a satisfactory life and except one wish, all wishes are fulfilled-and my last
wish is to get salvation ( Moksha), this is the aim of every believer mankind.

R &Y & ¥ Rarl & Y 96
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Lastly, I pay heartily condolence to victims of Kedarnath floods.



NOTES OF CASES SECTION

Short Note
*(26)
Before Mr. Justice GD. Saxena
M.A. No. 1302/2005 (Gwalior) decided on 17 July, 2013

BHURA @ GOPAL ... Appellant
Vs.
SHANKUTALABAI & ors. ... Respondents

Motor Vehicle Act (59 of 1988), Section 166 - Accident
Claim - Driver in reversing the tractor back, as a result, deceased
fell down into quarry and was pressed under huge quantity of
muram collapsed from the quarry - He was seriously injured and
died after sometimes during treatment in the-hospital - It is a
case where the death occurred on account of use of the vehicle at
the time of accident - There was proximate connection between
the use of the vehicle and the actual cause of death - Claims
tribunal has not committed any error in holding the driver as well
as the owner of the offending vehicle responsible to satisfy the
award.

wev arT affran (1988 fb-r5g) ERT 166 — GEHTTT &9 —
wTAF g0 oaex 18 (Raw) o33 @ uRvmeaaey 4as | @sr o
iy 3ty EE gwed @ 7w @ 99 A @ | |9 W — 9% THR
w9 | =19 gan IR aeurd ¥ ITAR @ I §P AAY YTET SHD!
qeq ¥ T — 48 VT YR ¥ Wl gEeT § WY aEd ® SuAT W
FRUT [og FIRG g5 — 87T B 9wAT MY (Y T ARAAS BT B
frg Precadl w9g & — A ARG A Sedwd HIF AT ATEA B
aTa® st e f el B aad 3 gfie B fag Swvad) SEIE] BiY
fe FRa Y # F

Case referred : .
AIR 1982 AP 436.

O.P. Singhal, for the appellant.
" Prakhar Dhengula, for the respondents No.1, 3, 4 &S5.
O.P. Mathur, for the respondent No.8.
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~Short Note
*(27)
Before Mr. Justice U.C. Maheshwari
M.Cr.C. No. 262/2013 (Jabalpur) decided on 21 March, 2013

DHARMENDRA BHURA - ...Applicant
Vs,
STATE OF M.P. & anr. ...Non-applicants

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 420, Stamp Act (2 of 1899),
Section 35 - Partnership deed - Insufficiently Stamped - In a complaint
for offence punishable under Section 420 of I.P.C., the Trial Court has
no authority to refuse to take such documents in evidence by holding
the same to be inadmissible on the ground of lack of requisite stamp
duty as per the provisions of Stamp Act.

Fve ghar (1860 7 45) &TINT 420, W7y FSfIT (1899 T 2)
&IV 35 — GrfiTet ot — avufs 0 @ wIftud — #1394, 1 ST 420
@ siafa AR @ Rrerw J, fa=or <Taa w1 ¥w gRem wRd gg
T4 5 TEY B g ¥ A ¥ TR SRR $7 5T vter 99 fv

I8 WM Afefa @ Sudel @ IR FiRm W e @ A9 B
TR UX SITET & |

Ishan Soni, for the applicant.
‘R.P. Tiwari, G.A. for the non-applicant No. I/State
Sunil Jain, for the non-applicant No.2.

Short Note
“(28)
" Before Mr. Justice Sujoy Paul
W.P. No. 1673/2013 (Gwalior) decided on 15 April, 2013

DHEER SINGH YADAV : ...Petitioner
Vs.
STATE OF M.P. & anr. ...Respondents

”

Service law - Place of Posting - Revocation of Suspension -
Whether employee can claim as a matter of right the place of posting
from where he was placed under suspension ? - Held - A Government
servant has a statutory righ_t of lien to hold a substantive post and not

aplace - Govt. servant has no statutory, legal or constitutional right )

to get reinstated on the same place after revocation of suspension.
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Cases referred :

2005(4) MPHT 352, ILR (2003) MP 491, (2003) 3 SCC 485, (2003)

© 2. SCC 111, (2006) 1 SCC 368, (2007) 5'SCC 371. (1989) 2 SCC 84,

(1989) 4 SCC 99, (1997) 9 SCC 248.

Prashant Sharma, for the petitioner.
M.P.S. Raghuvanshi, Addl. A.G. for the State.

Short Note
*(29)(DB)
Before Mr. Justice A.K. Shrivastava & Mr. Justice B.D. Rathi
F.A. No. 39/2009 (Gwalior) decided on 25 June, 2013

SANJAY AGRAWAL ...Appellant
Vs. . \
JYOTIAGRAWAL (SMT.) ...Respondent

Hindu Marriage Act (25 of 1955), Section 13 - Condonation of
Cruelty - Meaning of - Held - It is forgiveness and reinstatement with
knowledge - It consists of a factum of animus-remittendi - The sexual
intercourse is a strong inference of condonation with its dual
requirement i.e. forgiveness and restoration. d

fa=y farE ey (1955 &7 25), mwm—m'ﬁrafﬁmw‘i—
77 e — sEfaiRa — a8 SE(EE &9 U@ QA WU ® - g
YT @1 Smwa wfase @ — dfire W WY w1 gaa fred 2,
SUPY AT orderen & Wi FAeqld &W U YT Wi

The judgment of the Court was delivered by : A.K. SHRIVASTAVA, J.
Cases referred :
AIR 1975 SC 1534, 2004(1) MPWN 110, AIR 2006 SC 1662.

V.K. Bharadwaj with Vinod Jain, for the appellant.
Rishikesh Bohre, for the respondent.
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Short Note
*(30)
Before Mr. Justice Brij Kishore Dube
M.Cr.C. No. 5148/2013 (Gwalior) decided on 3 July, 2013

SHASHWAT M. SHARMA : ...Applicant
Vs.
.STATE OF M.P. & anr. ...Non-applicants

Excise Act, M.P. (2 of 1915), Section 47-A to 47-D - Revision -
Jurisdiction - Liquor with vehicle was seized within the District Shivpuri
- Application for release of liquor was rejected by Collector (Excise),
Shivpuri and order of confiscation was passed - Appeal was dismissed
by Excise Commissioner, Gwalior - As the offence was committed in
District Shivpuri, Order of confiscation was passed by Collector
{Excise), Shivpuri and merely because the appeal was dismissed by
Excise Commissioner, Gwalior, it cannot be said that Sessions Judge,
Shivpuri has no jurisdiction to hear revision against appellate order.

ST JfAIT, 7H. (1915 BT 2), GIT 477 & 4787 ~ gadiaor —
FErBIRar — afe1 @ wre arew B AEg e @ Wy ored fear T4
— AT (AEHN), REgd g afaw Bt g3q oo 2y ardeT e
e w1 @i aiftrexor &1 amdwr wiRe fem T - sewT Ay,
Iferay gy afe wlRer — g% arxre, REqd Rt ¥ siRa fear
TR (AEBR), Rragd grT Aftrexor &1 ey wiRke AT Tt Sk AN
gafay & afia ® arveTd arEa, @i g1 wrRe R T o, 1
TE FET ST AT fF afcht ARy # feg (T g @ afmeRar
U wgrarefrer, Rragd & T @

Case referred :
2009 RN 226.(HC).

R.K. Upadhyay, for the applicant.
Pramod Pachauri, P.P. for the non-applicant/State.
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LL.R.J2013]M.P. State of M.P. Vs. Virendra Shankar(DBj . 1489

LL.R. [2013] M.P., 1489
WRIT APPEAL :
Before Mr. Justice Shantanu Kemkar & Mr. Justice M.C. Garg
W.A. No. 285/201 1 (Indore) decided on 29 January, 2013

STATE OF M.P. & ors. Appellants

Vs.
VIRENDRA SHANKAR & anr. - ... Respondents

Limitation Act (36 of 1963), Section 5 - Condonation of delay -
Delay of 1128 days - Delay by State - A liberal view should be taken as in
the matter of State where nobody is personally affected, but it is people at
large affected and the machinery employed by the State is impersonal
machinery, however, the explanation furnished must be bonafide - Long
term delay must be appreciated in the light of submissions made and
circumstances brought on record - It should be seen that State is serious
enough in having taken action against erring officers - In the present case
although show cause notice was issued to guilty officers in the year 2003
but nothing has been brought on record as to what are the consequences
of such show cause issued to them - Explanation of 1128 days also not
found sufficient rather reflects Iethargy and negligence on the part of State
- Application for condonation of delay rejected - Consequently appeal is

‘also dismissed. : (Paras 30 to 33)
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JUDGMENT

The Judgment of .the Court was delivered by :

M.C. GARG, J. :- This writ appeal has been filed with application for
condonation of delay in filing of the appeal which is barred by 1128 days. To
support the original application, fresh application for condonation of delay

has been filed as I.A. no. 4886/12. It is on this application, arguments were
heard.

2.L In this application, the ground which has been taken to explain the
delay are as follows :

(i) That on 28/02/2008, a letter has been sent by the
Govt. Advocate, Indore to the SDO Neemuch informing the
judgment passed in Writ Petition no. 9006/2003 on 13/02/
2008 and thereafter in the matter an opinion of the Govt.
Advocate, District Court Parisar, Neemuch dated 27/05/2009
was sent to the Collector, Neemuch stating the grounds for
filing the writ appeal in the matter. Thereafter, the Collector
District Neemuch had written a letter dated 08/06/2009 to the
Secretary, Law and Legislative Affairs Department, Bhopal
for getting permission to file writ appeal stating the grounds of
appeal. Thereafter, the-Sub Divisional Officer, Sub-Division
Neemuch also wrote a letter -dated 12/06/2009 to the
Secretary, Law and Legisiative Affairs Department, Bhopal
for getting permission to file writ appeal in the matter.

( This clearly shows that for more than a year, matter remained
pending with the Government Advocate for giving opinion )

(i) Thereafter, a letter dated 17/07/20090f Under
Secretary was received in the Office of Collector District
Neemuch which was addressed to the Colector stating that



-

LL.R.[2013]M.P. ~ State of M.P. Vs. Virendra Shankar(DB) 1491

for getting permission to file writ appeal it is necessary that
letter for getting permission should be sent through appropriate
/ proper Govt. Revenue Department then permission will be
granted. After receiving this letter the Collector District
Neemuch had written a letter dated 29/07/2009 bearing
Number 947/2009 Neemuch to the Secretary, State of M.P.,
Revenue Department, Mantralaya, Vallabh Bhawan, Bhopal
for obtaining permission from the Law Department and again
vide reminder letter no. 1275/2009 Neemuch dated 24/10/
2009 for obtaining permission from the Law Department.

(i)  Thereafter, the Collector, Neemuch after receiving the
permission from the Law Department wrote aletter No. 1565/
2009 dated 22/12/2009 along with permission letter dated
27/11/2009 of Law Department to the OLC ( SDO ) Revenue,
Neemuch for taking necessary steps to file writ appeal in the
matter.

3. The appellants also made the averments that the officials responsible
with the file of the present case did not look into the matter or rather with
ulterior motive did not take any action in the matter. They did not even inform
the higher officials regarding the orders passed by the Hon'ble High Court in
the Writ Petition. Thereafter, contempt petition no. 427/2009 was filed and
same was decided vide order dated 10/11/2010 and after the decision in
contempt petition the matter was traced, then for the first time it came to be
known that Law Department vide its memo dated 27/11/2009 has granted
permission to file writ appeal in the matter.

( This shows that even though an opinion for filing of the appeal was
granted by the Law Department somewhere in November, 2009, second
exercise has been done for obtaining permission from the Law Department
which clearly shows that there is utter negligence on the part of the department)

4. List of dates on which reliance has been placed by the learned counsel
for the appellant seeking condonation of delay shows that after 28th of
February, 2008, legal opinion was received on 27th of May, 2009 i.e. after
more than one year, thereafter, even though letter was written by the Collector,
District-Neemuch to the Secretary on 8th of June, 2009 for the permission to
file an appeal, permission was granted on 27th of November, 2009 i.e. after
five months. It is also surprising that despite receiving notice of contempt in



1492 State of M.P. Vs. Virendra Shankar(DB) LL.R.[2013]M.P.

the year 2009 of which notices were issued to the concerned officials and an
order was passed by this Court in the contempt petition on 10th of November,
2010, appeal has been filed on 02nd of May, 2011, which again reflects on
the lethargy and utter negligence on the part of the government machinery.

5. The appellants also submitted that after filing the writ appeal, the
Collector, Neemuch immediately issued various show cause notices dated
02/04/2011, 08/04/2011, 29/04/2011 to the OIC and the concerning Dealing
Clerk by name Shri Dilip Kumar Jangde, ( 2) Shri Kailash Chandra Upadhyaya
(3) Shir Jmna Das Bairagi (4) Shri Vijay Kumar Jain (5) Shri Ajay Shukla (6)
Shri Narendra Gangwal and OIC of the case Shri. N.S. Rajawat for explaining
delay caused in filing the writ appeal as to why appeal could not be traced in
time and presented before the court. It is further submitted that against these -
persons, enquiry was initiated and still is going on. When the matter came to
the knowledge of Shri Radheshyam Sharma, SDO ( Revenue) OIC he
immediately took necessary steps and collected the record of the case for
filing the writappeal.

6. It is also pertinent to mention here that at the time of filing of writ
petition bearing no. 9006/2003 the show cause notices have also been issued
against the then OIC of the Case ( 1) Shri L.P. Borasi, (2) Shri Virendra Singh
Rawat ( 3) Shri Dipak Saxena for concealing the actual facts of judgment
dated 01st October, 2002 passed in S.A. no. 401/2000. It is further submitted
for this negligence and for concealing the actual facts of the case and the delay
caused in the filing of this writ appeal, the enquiry was initiated against these
persons and is still going on. It is also surprising that issuance of show-cause
started in April, 2011 which again shows the state of affairs of the Government.
[ Nothing has been done so far on any of the show cause notice. It is only
stated that the inquiries are pending. Thus, it is apparent that no action has
been taken against anyone responsible for the delay. ]

7. Application though has been supported with an affidavit, but the
averments made in the affidavit are similar to what has been stated in the
application. It may be observed here that nothing has been brought on record
as to whether any final order has been passed against any defaulting officer
against whom show cause notice has been issued. It is apparent that despite
initiation of action against the officials in the year 2003, even after nine years,
nothing material has been done.
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8. . Areply has been filed t6 the aforesaid application by the respondents -
who have submitted that the story to condone the delay is concocted story to
cover total lethargy and total negligence on the part of each of the appellant.
It has been submitted that the averments made by the appellant for condoning
the delay are of without any merit. Lists of dates have been filed by the
respondent to explain that how the delay has taken place on the part of

appellant,

13/02/2008

W.P. no. 9006/2003 State of M.P. and three others Vs,
Virendra Shankar decided by this Hon'ble Court. This Hon'ble
Court while affirming the order dated 26/11/2002 of Board of
Revenues set aside the earlier order passed by subordinate
revenue authorities. : ~

Proceeding before appellant no. 3 Case no. A 74/08-09

29/01/2009

Respondent submitted an application before Tehsildar ,
Neemuch with zerox copies of order passed inj W.P. no. 9006/
2003 and other relevant documents with a request to record
his name on the disputed land illegally removed from revenue
records ( Zerox copy of application and affidavit were
submitted with earlier reply )

29/01/2009

Appellant no. 3 on the above application registered a case
and directed publication.

17/02/2009

Respondent in person filed documents. Appellant no. 3
directed to seek instruction from appellant no. 1 in view of the
order passed on 13/02/2008 by Hon'ble High Court as also
invited objection by an advertisement.

17/03/2009

No one objected in response to advertisernent again guidance
sought by appellant no. 3 from appellant no. 1

2.4/03/2009

Instructions not received from appellant no. 1 Issue reminder.

31/03/2009

Case adjourned

P4/04/2009

Case adjourned

1 8/05/2009

On respondents application, opinion of Govt. Advocate sought.
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12/06/2009

On the opinion of Govt Advocate it was decided to file writ
appeal in view of letter dated 08/06/2009 written by appellant
no. 3 to Govt. of M.P. Zerox copies of certified copy of
proceeding of case no. A-74/08-09 have been submitted with
the earlier reply

First Contempt Petition no. 427/2009

10/11/2010

Direction to appellant no. 1 to look into the matter and needful
be done within 8 weeks. It was made clear by the Hon'ble
Court that if for the same relief petitioners are required to
approach this Court then the same shall be taken seriously.
( xerox copy of certified copy with earlier reply ) '

Second Contempt Petition no. 417/2011

18/05/2011

Direction to comply with the order passed in W.P. no. 9006/
2003 within eight weeks positively. ( Zerox copy of certified
copy submitted with earlier reply )

9. The respondents also submitted that for enforcing the order , contempt
petition was filed on 10th November, 2010. Not only that, second contempt
petition being Contempt Petition no. 417/2011 was also filed on 18th of May,
2011. Itis also submitted that there had been constant correspondence between
the appellant and the relevant government officers. A letter was written by
Tehsildar. Some details of the correspondence between Tehsildar Collector
and SDO and Nayab Tehsildar has been detailed as under :

Correspondence between appellants interse

02/02/2009 | Letter by Tehsildar Apellant no. 4 to appellant no. 1 collector,
Neemuch
05/05/2009 | Letter by Collector Appellant no. 1 to Tehsildar Appellant no. 4.
08/05/2009 | Letter by SDO appellant no. 3 to Collector appellant no. 1
12/05/2009 | Letter by Naib Tehsildar to Collector Appellant no. 1
08/06/2009 | Letter by appellant no. 1 to Secretary, Law and Legislative
' Deptt.( Zerox Copies of certified copies are submitted )

23/03/2011 | Caveat filed by respondent before the Hon'ble Court.

10.  Itisthus submitted that even though the appellants were aware of the
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total proceedings and the order passed by the learned single Judge and were -
also aware of the contempt proceedings which were taken, they still did not
file any writ appeal within time. This shows that the appellants were having
callous approach even though they were disobeying the order dated 13/02/
2008 of the writ Court as is apparent from the proceedings initiated by the -
Tehsildar, Neemuch and precipitated by other appellants. It is submitted that
the appellants have deliberately disobeyed the order passed by this Court in
Contempt Petition and delay is of more than three years which does not call
for any indulgence of this Court as the appellants did not deserve any sympathy
from this Court. The delay is not bonafide in the facts of the case. The affidavit
filed is also not specific and do not explain inordinate delay in filing the writ
appeal, hence it is prayed that the application be dismissed.

I1.  Wehave heard the submissions from both the sides and also considered
the facts of this case. It would be appropriate to take note of the order passed
by the learned Single Judge of this Court. Writ petition was filed against the
order dated 26th November, 2012 passed by the Board of Revenue, in
Revision no. 1411/2000. By this order, revision filed by the respondent was
allowed and in consequence thereof, order passed by the authority was set
aside. Some relevant facts are :

() One Laxman Prasad was allotted 0.281 hectares of land on
patta basis by Naib Tehsildar Neemuch vide order dated 31st July, 1991.
The possession of the land in question was handed over to the pattedar under
the provision of M.P. Gramoki Dakhalrahit Bhumi ( Vishesh Upabandh)
Adhiniyam, 1979 ( hereinafter referred to as' Adhiniyam').

(i) After taking over the land, he made the land cultivable by
spending a huge amount thereupon.

(i)  Anapplication was moved by Tehsildar, Neemuch before the
Sub-Divisinal Officer, Neemuch seeking review of the order dated 31st July,
1991, but without issuing any notice of the said application to the
pattedar, vide order dated 07th December, 1994, Sub-Divisional Officer
granted the requisite permission to Tehsildar, Neemuch to review the order
dated 31st July, 1991. On this, Tehsildar passed the order dated 16th of
May, 1995 whereby the patta originally granted in favour of Laxman Prasad
on 31st July, 1991 was cancelled on the ground that the said patta had been
granted in violation of the provisions of the Adhiniyam. The aforesaid order
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was challenged by the Pattedar by filing an app.eal before the Sub-Divisional
Officer, but the said appeal was dismissed vide order dated 14th July, 1995.

(ivy  Second appeal filed by the pattedar also met with the same
fate, when it was dismissed vide order dated 19th of June, 2000.

(v) After the pattedar died, a revision petition was filed before the
Board of Revenue by his legal representatives. Board of Revenue on

* consideration of the matter allowed the revision petition vide order dated 26th -

of November, 2002 and consequently, set aside of the order passed by the
authority. :

12, It will be appropriate to take note of the following observations made
by the learned Single Judge in the impugned judgment which reflects upon the
conduct of the petitioner and also goes to show that there was no hearing
given to the writ petitioner before SDO and that authority which passed the
impugned order had no right to to do so.

A perusal of the impugned order AnnexureP/1 passed
by the Board of Revenue ( para 6 thereof ) depicts that the
Board of Revenue has noticed that at the time of grant of lease
( patta), the pattedar Laxman Prasad, who was aged 95 years,
did not know that Naib Tehsildar was not the competent
authority to grant patta, but it was the Tehsildar. It has also
been noticed that the land in question had been made cultivable
by the pattedar and after expiry of few years the patta in
question could not cancelled. Another ground noticed by the
Board of Revenue is that there was no power of review available
under the Adhiniyam and the order passed by the authorities
could only be appealed against .

On_a specific querry put by the Court to the
learned Government Counsel, it has not been disputed
by Shri Gajankush that there is no power of review in
the Adhinivam?.

13. It was in these circumstances, the order passed by the Board of
Revenue was upheld by the learned Single Judge of this Court. One of the
observations which is relevant in this case is that Annexure-P/3 had been
passed by the SDO behind the back of pattedar without affording any
opportunity of hearing given to him. Learned counsel for the appellant

-

w}
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submitted that in this case, a suit was filed by pattedar with respect to the
aforesaid land seeking declaration , but the said suit was dismissed, even an
appeal filed by him was also dismissed.

14, Despite that, the appellants have neither filed any suit for recovery of
the land. They have also not taken any stand before either of the authority 1.e.
Tehsildar or the Board of Revenue to grant any opportunity of hearing to the
legal heirs of pattedar, even though it is conceded by the learned counsel that
the order canceling the allotment of the pattedar was passed on the back of
the pattedar. Neither at any stage prior to coming to Board of Revenue nor
before the Board of Revenue, the appellant took a stand that they would give
an opportunity of hearing to pattedar / representatives of pattedar. Such course
has not even been sought before us to seek condonation of delay and to
support their application . The appellants have relied upon the following
judgments.

State of Bihar and another Vs. Abhay Chand Bothra.reported in
(2000) 9 SCC 292; Special Tehsildar Land Acquisition, Kerala reported
in (1995) 10 SCC 634; State of Karnataka Vs. Y. Moideen Kunhi (dead
by Irs and others reported (2009) 13 SCC 192; Collector, Land Acquisition,
Anantnag and another Vs. Mst. Katiji and others reported in AIR 1987
SC 1353; State of Haryana Vs. Chandra Mani and others reported AIR
1996 SC 1623 ; Maniben Devraj Shah Vs. Municipal Corporation of
Brihan Mumbai reported in (2012) 5 SCC 157

15.  On the other hand, learned counsel for the respondent, while
questioning the right of condonation of delay, has supported the order on
merit, but even on the point of condonation, has submitted that the lethargy
which has been shown on the part of the appellant shows that they have not
been able to explain any sufficient cause for the purpose of seeking indulgence
of this Court for conconding delay in filling of the appeal. The judgment cited
on behalf of the respondents are produced hereunder.

Maniben Devraj Shah Vs. Municipal Corporation of Brihan
Mumbai reported in (2012) 5 SCC 157; Postmaster General and others
Vs. Living Media India Limited and ‘another reported in (2012) 3 SCC
563; Oriental Aroma Chemical Industriesd Limited Vs. Gujarat Industrial
Development Corporation and another reported in (2010) 5 SCC 459;

16.  We have gone through the judgments cited by the parties.
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17. Inthe case of State of Haryana Vs. Chandra Mani and others( supra),
it has been observed by the Apex Court that:

“It is notorious and common knowledge that delay in
more than 60 per cent of the cases filed in this Court - be jt by
private party or the state - are barred by limitation and this
Court generally adopts liberal approach in condonation of
delay finding somewhat sufficient cause to decide the appeal
on merits. It is equally common knowledge that litigants
including the State are accorded the same treatment and the
law is administered in an even handed manner. When the State
is an applicant, praying for condonation of delay, it is common
knowledge that on account of impersonal machinery and the
inherited bureaucratic methodology imbued with the note-
making, file-pushing, and passing-on-the- buck ethos, delay
on the part of the State is less difficult to understand though
more difficult to approve, but the State represents collective
cause of the community. It is axiomatic that decisions are tdken ,
by officer/agencies proverbially at slow pace and encumbered
process of pushing the files from table to table and keeping it
on table for considerable time causing delay - intentional or
otherwise - is a routine. Considerable delay of procedural red
tape in the process of their making decision is a common
feature. Therefore, certain amount of latitude is not
impermissible. If the appeals brought by the State are lost for
such default no person is individually affected but what in the
ultimate analysis suffers, is public interest.

The expression "sufficient cause” should, therefore, be
considered with pragmatism in justice-oriented approach rather
than the technical detection of sufficient cause for explaining
everyday's delay. The factors which are peculiar to and
characteristic of the functioning of the Governmental conditions
would be cognizant to and require adoption of pragmatic
approach in justice-oriented process. The Court should decide
the matters on merits unless the case is hopelessly without
merit. No separate standards to determine the cause lajd by
the State vis-a-vis private litigant could be laid to prove strict
standards of sufficient cause. The Government at appropriate

-
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18.

19.

level should constitute legal cells to examine the cases whether
any legal principles are involved for decision by the Courts or
whether cases require adjustment and should authorise the
officers take a decision or give appropriate permission for
settlement. In the event of decision to file appeal needed prompt
action should be pursued by the officer responsible to file the
appeal and he should be made personally responsible for lapses,
ifany.

Equally, the State cannot be put on the same footing
as an individual. The individual would always be quick in taking
the decision whether he would pursue the remedy by way of
an appeal or application since he is a person legally injured
while State is an impersonal machinery working through its
officers or servants. Considered from the perspective, it must
be held that the delay of 109 days in this case has been
explained and that it is a fit case for condonation of the delay.

1499

Learned counsel appearing for the appellant relied emphatically on
the observations made by the Hon'ble Supreme Court that when an application
is filed by the State, it must be considered that State is an impersonal machinery
working through his officers or servants. In that case, considering that the
delay was of only 109 days, the delay was condoned.

In the case of Collector, Land Acquisition, Anantnag and another
Vs. Mst. Katiji and others ( supra) , considering that there was a delay of
only four days, the delay was condoned. However, in the matter the following
principles were led down for interpreting words ' sufficient cause’ as finds
place in section 5 of the Limitation Act. It has been observed that

3. The legislature has conferred the power to condone -

delay by enacting S. 51 of the Indian Limitation Act of 1963
in order to enable the Courts to do substantial justice to parties
by disposing of matters on 'merits'. The expression "sufficient
cause" employed by the legislature is adequately elastic to
enable the Courts to apply the law in a meaningful manner
which subserves the ends of justice that being the life-purpose
for the existence of the institution of Courts. It is common
knowledge that this Court has been making a justifiably liberal
approach in matters, instituted in this Court. But the message
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* does not appear to have percolated down to all the other Courts .
in the hierarchy. And such a liberal approach is adopted on
principle as it is realized that - "Any appeal or any application,
other than an application under any of the provisions of 0. .
XXI of the Code of Civil Procedure, 1908, may be admitted
after the prescribed period if the appellant or the applicant
satisfies the Court that he had sufficient cause for not preferring
the appeal or making the application within such period."

1. Ordinarily a litigant does not stand to benefit by
lodging an appeal late.

2. Refusing to condone delay can result in a meritorious
matter being thrown out at the very threshold and cause of
justice being defeated. As against this when delay is condoned

. the highest that can happen is that a cause would be decided
onmerits after hearing the parties. -

3. "Every day's delay must be explained” does not mean
that a pedantic approach should be made. Why not every hour's
delay. every second's delay ? The doctrine must be applied in
arational common sense pragmatic manner.

4. When substantial justice and tec hnical
considerations are pitted against each other, cause of substantial
justice deserves to be preferred for the other side cannot claim
to have vested right in injustice being done because of a non-
deliberate delay.

5. There is no presumption that delay is occasioned
deliberately, or on account of culpable negligence, or on
account of mala fides. A litigant does not stand to benefit by
resorting to delay. In fact he runs a serious risk.

6. It must be grasped that Judiciary is respected not on
account of its power to legalize injustice on technical grounds
but because it is capable of removing injustice and is expected
to do so. Making a justice-oriented approach from this
perspective, there was sufficient cause for condoning the delay

- in the institution of the appeal. The fact that it was the 'State’,
which was seeking condonation and not a private party was
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altogether irrelevant. The doctrine of equality before law
demands that all litigants, including the State as a litigant, are
accorded the same treatment and the law is administered in an
even-handed manner. There is no warrant for according a
stepmotherly treatment when the 'State' is the applicant praying
for condonation of delay. In fact experience shows that on
account of an impersonal machinery (no one in charge of the
~ matter is directly hit or hurt by the judgment sought to be
subjected to appeal) and the inherited bureaucratic
methodology imbued with the note-making, file pushing, and
passing-on-the-buck ethos, delay on its part is less difficult to
understand though more difficult to approve. In any event, the
- State which represents the collective cause of the community,
does not deserve a litigant non grata status. The Courts
therefore have to informed with the spirit and philosophy of
the provision in the course of the interpretation of the
expression "sufficient cause". So-also the same approach has
to be evidenced in its application to matters at hand with the
end in view to do even-handed justice on merits in preference
to the approach which scuttles a decision on merits. Turning
to the facts of the matter giving rise to the present appeal, we
are satisfied that sufficient cause exists for the delay. The order
of the High Court dismissing the appeal before it as time
barred, is therefore, set aside. Delay is condoned. And the matter
is remitted to the High Court. The High Court will now dispose of
the appeal on merits after affording reasonable opportunity of
hearing to both the sides.

20.  The nextjudgment relied upon is the judgment delivered by the Apex
Court in the case of State of Bihar and another Vs. Abhay Chand Bothra
(supra). In the said case, taking into consideration the steps taken by the
State including lodging of FIR against guilty officials, after two years, the delay
in filing SLP was condoned. Relevant paragraphs are reproduced hereunder:

- 4. On 14th December, 1998, this Court, while issuing
notice for final disposal of the SLP and directing an ad-interim
stay of the impugned order, condoned the delay in filing of the
SLP in view of "special facts and circumstances and, in
particular, the statements made in the affidavit filed before the
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High Court." Subsequently, on 4th J anuary, 2000, this Court
‘made the following order :-

The Letters Patent Appeal has been dismissed by the
Division Bench of the High Court as barred by time. We have
perused the application filed in the High Court under Section
5 of the Limitation Act seeking condonation of delay. It appears
that the departmental authorities were deliberately trying to -
work against the interest of the Revenue. Mr. B.B. Singh,
learned Counsel appearing for the State submits that against
the Deputy Collector, Land Reforms, Birpur who had
committed other irregularities also, proceedings were instituted.
He refers to Page E of the list of dates and events in that behalf,
He, however, is unable to tell us as to the nature of the
proceedings or action, if any, has been taken against the Deputy
Collector, Land Reforms, Birpur. Mr. B.B. Singh seeks six
weeks' time to furnish the information.

We have pointed to Mr. Singh that if no action has
been taken against the Deputy Collector, Land Reforms, Birpur
till date, an adverse inference may have to be drawn against
the State.

We are informed by Mr. B.B. Singh, learned Counsel
appearing for the State that action has since been initiated
against, the concerned official and even a First Information
Report has been filed and investigation is in progress.

21. Another judgment relied upon by the appellants is the judgment
delivered by the two judges bench of the Apex Court in the matter of State of
Karnataka Vs. Y. Moideen Kunhi ( dead by LRs } and others {( supra). In

this case, while dealing with the delay in appeal filed by the State and

considering the word ' sufficient cause', the Apex Court condoned the delay

by imposing heavy costs of Rs. 10 lacs on the exchequer. Some paragraphs

relevant arising out of the aforesaid judgment are para nos. 19 to 23. These

paragraphs are reproduced hereunder

“ On perusal of the explanation offered it is clear that
the officials who were dealing with the matter have either
deliberately or without understanding the implications dealt with
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the matter in a very casual and lethargic manner. It is a matter
of concern that in very serious matters action is not taken as
required under law and the appeals/petitions are filed after
long lapse of time. It is a common grievance that it is so done
to protect unscrupulous litigants at the cost of public interest
or public exchequer. This stand is more noticeable where vast
tracts of lands or large 'sums of revenue are involved.

Even though the courts are liberal in dealing with the
belated presentation of appeals/applications, yet there is a limit
upto which such liberal attitude can be extended. Many matters
concerning the State Government and the Central Government
are delayed either by the nature of bureaucratic process ot by
deliberate manipulation of the same by taking advantage of
loopholes in the conduct of litigation. Several instances have
come to the notice of this Court where as noted above appeals
have been filed where the revenue involved runs to several
crores of rupees. It is true that occasionally delay occurs which
is inexplicable in normal circumstances.

The case at hand is a classic example where the
circumstances are the same. More than 4000 acres of land
are involved out of which, according to the State, nearly 3500
acres constitute forest land. Ultimately, the Court has to protect
the public justice. The same cannot be rendered ineffective by
skillful management of delay in the process of making challenge
to the order which prima facie does not appear to be legally
sustainable.

The expression “sufficient cause' as appearing in
Section 5 of the Indian Limitation Act, 1963 (in short the
*Limitation Act') must receive a liberal construction so as to
advance substantial justice as was noted by this Court in G
Ramegowda, Major etc. v. The Special Land Acquisition
Officer, Bangalore (AIR 1988 SC 897). Para 8 of the
judgment reads as follows: '

. The law of limitation is, no doubt, the same for a
private citizen as for governmental authorities.
Government, like any other litigant ‘must take
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responsibility for the acts or omissions of its officers. But .
a somewhat different complexion is imparted to the matter
where Government makes out a case where public interest
was shown to have suffered owing to acts of fraud or bad
faith on the part of its officers or agents and where the
‘officers were clearly at cross-purposes with it.

Therefore, in assessing what, in a particular case,
constitutes sufficient cause&quot; for purposes of Section 5,
it might, perhaps, be somewhat unrealistic to exclude from the
considerations that go into the judicial verdict, these factors
which are peculiar to and characteristic of the functioning of
the government. Governmental decisions are proverbially slow
encumbered, as they are, by a considerable degree of
procedural red tape in the process of their making. A certain
amount of latitude is, therefore, not impermissible. It is rightly
said that those who bear responsibility of Government must
have “a little play at the joints™ . Due recognition of these
limitations on governmental functioning -- of course, within
reasonable limits -- is necessary if the judicial approach is not
to be rendered unrealistic. It would, perhaps, be unfair and
unrealistic to put government and private parties on the same
footing in all respects in such matters. Implicit in the very nature
of governmental functioning is procedural delay incidental to
the decision-making process. In the opinion of the High Court,
the conduct of the law officers of the Government placed the
Government in a predicament and that it was one of those
cases where the mala fides of the officers should not be imputed
to Government. It relied upon and trusted its law officers.
Lindley, M.R., in the In re National Bank of Wales Ltd. (1899)
2 Ch. 629 at p.673 observed, though in a different context:

“Business cannot be carried on upon principles of
distrust. Men in responsible positions must be trusted by
those above them, as well as by those below them, until
there is reason to distrust them”, ;

< Keeping in view the importance of questions of law
which are involved we are inclined to condone the delay subject
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to payment of exemplary costs which we fix at rupees ten
lakhs to be paid within a period of 8 weeks to the respondents.
The delay is condoned subject to the payment of the aforesaid
amount as costs. After making the payment the receipt thereof
shall be filed before this Court alongwith an affidavit. Only
after the payment is made the special leave petitions shall be
listed for admission. We make it clear that we have not
expressed any opinion on the merits of the case.

22.  Inthatcase, the land involved in question was more than 4000 acres
and there was delay of 14 years. It was a case of playing a fraud relating to
non-surrender of the land. Other judgments referred to above was also
discussed in this case.

23.  Other judgments cited by the appellants which has also been relied
upon by the respondents and does not support the case of the appellant is the

judgment delivered in the case of Maniben Devraj Shah Vs. Municipal

Corporation of Brihan Mumbai (supra).

24.  Inthisjudgment, all the previous judgments have been considered.
Relevant observations which show the mind of the Apex Court in having
discussed the various submissions made are as follows :

Shri A.S. Bhasme, learned counsel for the appellants
argued that the reasons assigned by the learned Single Judge
for condoning more than 7 years and 3 months delay in filing
the appeals are legally unsustainable and the impugned order
is liable to be set aside because the explanation given by the
Corporation lacked bonafides and was wholly unsatisfactory.
Learned counsel emphasized that in the absence of any denial
by the Corporation that it has a battery of advocates to deal
with thelitigation, the transfer of Shri Ranindra Y. Sirsikar in
January, 2004 to Miscellancous Court and, thereafter, to other
Courts has no bearing on the issue of delay because the suits

- filed by the appellants had been decided in May, 2003 and no
explanation has been given as to why applications for certified
copies.could not be filed for 7 years and 5 months. Shri Bhasme
submitted that even if one advocate / law officer was
transferred from one department / division to another, nothing
prevented the Corporation from taking steps to apply for
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certified copies of the judgment. Shri Bhasme further submitted
that the story of misplacement of papers was concocted by
the Corporation and the same ought to have been rejected by
the High Court because the assertion made 1n that regard was
vague to the core and no indication was given as to when the
papers were traced and by whom. In support of his argument,
Shri Bhasme relied upon the judgments of this Court in Oriental
Aroma Chemical Industries Limited v. Gujarat Industrial
Development Corporation (2010) 5 SCC 459. -

The expression “sufficient cause” used in Section 5 of
the Limitation Act, 1963 and other statutes is elastic enough to
enable the Courts to apply the law in a meaningful manner
which serve the ends of justice. No hard and fast rule has
been or can be laid down for deciding the applications for
condonation of delay but over the years this Court has
advocated that a liberal approach should be adopted in such
matters so that substantive rights of the parties are not defeated
merely because of delay. - ’

The applications filed for condonation of delay and the
affidavits of Shri Sirsikar are conspicuously silent on the
following important points:

a) The name of the person who was having custody of
the record has not been disclosed. ’

b) The date, month and year when the papers required
for filing the first appeals are said to have been misplaced have
not been disclosed.

¢) The date on which the papers were traced out or
recovered and name of the person who found the same have
not been disclosed.

d) No explanation whatsoever has been given as to
why the applications for certified copies of the judgments of
the trial Court were not filed till 23.8.2010 despite the fact
that Shri Sirsikar had given intimation on 12.5.2003 about the
judgments of the trial Court.
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"e) Even though the Corporation has engaged battery

of lawyers to conduct cases on its behalf, nothing has been
_said as to how the transfer of Shri Ranindra Y. Sirsikar .
operated as an impediment in the making of applications for
certified copies of the judgments sought to be appealed against.

22. Unfortunately, the learned SingleJudge of the High
Court altogether ignored the gapping holes in the story
concocted by the Corporation about misplacement of the
papers and total absence of any explanation as to why nobody
even bothered to file applications for issue of certified copies
. of judgment for more than 7 years. In our considered view,
the cause shown by the Corporation for delayed filing of the
appeals was, to say the least, wholly unsatisfactory and the
reasons assigned by the learned Single Judge for condoning
more than 7 years delay cannot but be treated as poor apology
for the exercise of dlSCI’CthI‘l by the Court under Section 5 of
the Limitation Act.

25.  Thus as per the aforesaid judgments, if explanation furnished by the
appellants seeking condonation of delay is not proper, then the Court will be
well within its right to refuse the application for condonation of delay.

26.  Now coming to the judgment cited on behalf of the respondent, we
find that the respondent in addition to relying upon the judgment delivered in
the case of Maniben Devraj Shah Vs. Municipal Corporation of Brihan
Mumbai (supra) is also relying upon the judgment delivered in the case of
Postmaster General and others Vs. Living Media India Limited and
another Relevant discussions which appears in this case stands incorporated
in paragraphsno. 25-30 which have been reproduced hereunder :

25.  We have already extracted the reasons as
mentioned in the &quot;better affidavit&quot; sworn by Mr.
Aparajeet Pattanayak, SSRM, Air Mail Sorting Division, New
Delhi. It is relevant to note that in the said affidavit, the
Department has itself mentioned and is aware of the date of
the judgment of the Division Bench of the High Court in LPA
Nos. 418 and 1006 of 2007 as 11.09.2009. Even according
to the deponent, their counsel had applied for the certified
copy of the said judgment only on 08.01.2010 and the same



1508 State of M.P. Vs. Virendra Shankar(DB) LL.R.[2013]M.P.

was received by the Department on the very same day. There
is no explanation for not applying for certified copy of the
impugned judgment on 11.09.2009 or at least within a
reasonable time. The fact remains that the certified copy was
applied oniy on 08.01.2010, i.e. after a period of nearly four
months. ' '

» 26.  Inspite of affording another opportunity to file
better affidavit by placing adequate material, neither the

. Department nor the person in-charge has filed any explanation
for not applying the certified copy within the prescribed period.
The other dates mentioned in the affidavit which we have
already extracted, clearly show that there was delay at every
stage and except mentioning the dates of receipt of the file and
the decision taken, there is no explanation as to why such delay
had occasioned. Though it was stated by the Department that
the delay was due to unavoidable circumstances and genuine
difficulties, the fact remains that from day one the Department
or the person/persons concerned have not evinced diligence
in prosecuting the matter to this Court by taking appropriate
steps.

27.  ltisnotin dispute that the person(s) concerned
were well aware or conversant with the issues involved including
the prescribed period of limitation for taking up the matter by
way of filing a special leave petition in this Court. They cannot
claim that they have a separate period of limitation when the
Department was possessed with competent persons familiar
with court proceedings. In the absence of plausible and
acceptable explanation, we are posing a question why the delay
is to be condoned mechanically merely because the
Government or a wing of the Government is a party before us.

28.  Though we are conscious of'the fact that in a matter of
condonation of delay when there was no gross negligence or
deliberate inaction or lack of bonafide, a liberal concession
has to be adopted to advance substantial justice, we are of the
view that in the facts and circumstances, the Department cannot
take advantage of various earlier decisions. The claim on
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account of impersonal machinery and inherited bureaucratic
meéthodology of making several notes cannot be accepted in
view of the modern technologies being used and available.
The law of limitation undoubtedly binds everybody including
the Government. '

29.  In our view, it is the right time to inform all the
government bodies, their agencies and instrumentalities that
unless they have reasonable and acceptable explanation for

." the delay and there was bonafide effort, there is no need to
accept the usual explanation that the file was kept pending for
several months/years due to considerable degree of procedural
red-tape in the process. The government departments are under
a special obligation to ensure that they perform their duties
with diligence and commitment. Condonation of delay is an
exception and should not be used as an anticipated benefit for
government departments. The law shelters everyone under the
same light and should not be swirled for the benefit of a few.
Considering the fact that there was no proper explanation
offered by the Department for the delay except mentioning of
various dates, according to us, the Department has miserably
failed to give any acceptable and cogent reasons sufficient to
condone such a huge delay. Accordingly, the appeals are liable
to be dismissed on the ground of delay.

30.  Inview of our conclusion on issue (a), there is no need
to go into the merits of the issues (b) and {(c). The question of
law raised is left open to be decided in an appropriate case.
In the light of the above discussion, the appeals fail and are
dismissed on the ground of delay. No order as to costs -

In this case also, since proper explanation was not furnished, the Court
did not decree to condone the delay

"27.  In the judgment delivered in case of Oriental Aroma Chemical
Industriesd Limited Vs. Gujarat Industrial Development Corporation and
another (supra ), paragraphs no 14 to 16 are relevant which are reproduced
hereunder

14. © We have considered the respective
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submissions. The law of limitation is founded on public policy.
The legislature does not prescribe limitation with the object of
destroying the rights of the parties but to ensure that they do
not resort to dilatory tactics and seek remedy without delay.
The idea is that every legal remedy must be kept alive for a
period fixed by the legislature. To put it differently, the law of
limitation prescribes a period within which legal remedy can
be availed for redress of the legal injury. At the same time, the
courts are bestowed with the power to condone the delay, if
sufficient cause is shown for not availing the remedy within the
stipulated time. .

15.  Theexpression “sufficient cause” employed in
Section 5 of the Indian Limitation Act, 1963 and similar other
statutes is elastic enough to enable the courts to apply the law
in a meaningful manner which sub serves the ends of justice.
Although, no hard and fast rule can be laid down in dealing
with the applications for condonation of delay, this Court has
justifiably advocated adoption of a liberal approach in
condening the delay of short duration and a stricter approach
where the delay is inordinate - Collector, Land Acquisition,
Anantnag v. Mst. Katiji (1987) 2 SCC 107, N. Balakrishnan
v. M. Krishnamurthy (1998) 7 SCC 123 and Vedabai v.
Shantaram Baburao Patil (2001)'9 SCC 106.

16.  Indealing with the applications for condonation
of delay filed on behalf of the State and its agencies/
instrumentalities this Court has, while emphasizing that same
yardstick should be applied for deciding the applications for
condonation of delay filed by private individuals and the State,
observed that certain amount of latitude is not impermissible in
the latter case because the State represents collective cause of
the community and the decisions are taken by the officers/agencies
at a slow pace and encumbered process of pushing the files from
table to table consumes considerable time causing delay - G
Ramegowda v. Spl. Land Acquisition Officer (1988) 2 SCC
142, State of Haryana v. Chandra Mani (1996} 3 SCC 132,
State of U.P. v. Harish Chandra (1996) 9 SCC 309, State of
Bihar v. Ratan Lal Sahu (1996) 10 SCC 635, State of Nagaland
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v. Lipok Ao (2005) 3 SCC 752, and State (NCT of Delhz) v
Ahmed Jaan (2008) 14 SCC 582.

28.  Inthelightof the facts of this case and in the light of the principles
which can be deduced and considering the delay which was of 1061 days in
this case and explanation given by the State having not been found satisfactory,
the court refused to condone the delay. .

29.  Thus, the principles which have been laid down by the Apex Court
right from the year 1996 are very specific and gives guidelines about exercise
of discretion for the purpose of considering sufficient cause, on the basis of
which, condonation of delay is sought to be condoned.

30. [Right from 1996, while there has been consistent stand that in

the matter pertaining to the State where nobody is personally affected,

but it is people at large affected and the machinery employed by the

State is impersonal machinery, a liberal view should be taken, the

Courts have clarified the position of the law by stating that the

explanation furnished must be bonafide. The difference between short.
term delay and long term delay must be appreciated in the light of the

submissions made and the circumstances brought on record in the form

of explanation furnished by way of an affidavit. It should be also seen

that the State was serious enough in having taken action against erring
officers and in appropriate cases even heavy costs has been imposed

even to the extend of Rs.10 lacs. In this case, show cause to guilty

officials were allegedly issued. Soon after filing of writ petition in the
year 2003, nothing has been brought on record to show this Court as to
what are the consequence of such show cause issued and if any
particular officials has been punished on account of negligence.|

31.  Applying the aforesaid principles, when condonation of delay is sought
of more than 1100 days and the explanation furnished is also not found to be
sufficient and rather reflect lethargy and negligence on the part of the State as
also considering the merit of this case which shows that the appellants have
taken action against the respondents on their back, we find that this is not the
case where indulgence should be granted in favour of the appellants.

32.  Even otherwise, even on merit, the appellants are not entitled to have
indulgence of this Court, in as much as before Tehsildar, they have tried to
take advantage on the back of the respondents. They have not cared to serve
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them. The authority who passed the order cancelling the Patta was admittedly
not authorized to do so. Moreover even after, the suit filed by the respondents
was dismissed and appeal was also dismissed, no action has been taken to
seek possession of the suit property by filing a suit for possession or by granting
fair opportunity of hearing to the respondents by taking his stand before the
authority who proceeded ex-parte.

33.  Inview of the aforesaid observations, we find no merit in the application
for condonation of delay and consequently, dismi ss the same. Needless to say
that this would also result in dismissal of this writ appeal. While doing so, we
are not prohibiting the State to take appropriate action as may be available on
the basis of the order passed by the Civil Court.

Appeal dismissed.

LL.R. [2013] M.P.,, 1512
WRITAPPEAL
Before Mr. S.A. Bobde, Chief Justice & Mr. Justice K.K. Trivedi
W.A. No. 900/2011 (Jabalpiir) decided on 25 February, 2013

DRAUPATITIWARI (SMT.) ...Appellant

Vs.

STATE OF M.P. & ors. ...Respondents
A. Service Law = Appointment - Qualification - Crucial date

on which a candidate must possess the requisite qualification would be the
last date on which the applications are to be submitted - It was necessary
for the Petitioner to submit the proof of passing of eligibility examination
atleast on the date when selection was made - Rejection of the candidature
for want of requisite documents cannot be said to be unjustified. (Para 8)

F. war fafer — frgfar — agar — wwwaqel Rl fow fafyr ot
st @ g aaere sET B WIfRY w@w, amdET weqd Bt @ afyy
fefer gt — ol &t #91 @ @9 o9 fafYr w adar War sl B33 a7
TqH U I ATTEAF off, W4 W AT AT o7 — andfdrg exardet @
AT & BRYT IRRfar sedier frar T S T ST o wwar |

B. Service Law - Doctrine of Relation Back - Appointment -
Qualification - Appellant had appeared in supplementary examination
of Class XII - Taking part in examination is not the complete exercise
of obtaining educational qualification - Passing of examination would
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- be only when the result is declared - Subsequent declaration of result
would not mean that the candidate must be treated to have passed the
examination with retrospective effect. . (Para 10)
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Cases referred :

(1993) Supp. (3) SCC 168, (2007) 4 SCC 54, (2008) 7 SCC 153,
AIR 1994 SC 1761.

Udyan Tiwari, for the appellant.
Sanjay Dwivedi, G.A. for the respondents No. 1 to 4.
P.N. Dubey, for the respondent No.5.

ORDER

The Order of the court was delivered by:
K.K. Trivepy, J: . This writ appeal under Section 2(1) of the M.P. Uchcha
Nyayalaya (Khand Nyayapeeth Ko Appeal) Adhiniyam, 2005, has been filed
calling in question the order dated 12.8.2011 passed in Writ Petition
No.11983/08(S), by which the writ petition filed by the appellant against the
order of the Additional Commissioner, has been dismissed.

2 Facts giving rise to filing of this appeal in brief are that an advertisement
was issued by the Gram Panchayat concerned for appointment of Anganwadi
Worker in the centre in question. The appellant and the respondent No.5
submitted their candidature for appointment to the aforesaid post. The appellant
claimed the preference being a polio affected person with 45% disability and
having passed Higher Secondary Schoo! Certificate Examination. It was stated
by the appellant that she was the local resident of the ward and was entitled
for appointment as Anganwadi Worker. The respondent No.5 also submitted
her candidature and claimed the preference being the widow, having passed
the Higher Secondary Schoo! Certificate Examination. The process of selection
was done, the candidature of respondent No.5 was excluded, the appellant
was selected and appointed by the Selection Committee vide order dated
29.9.2007. The appellant joined on the post on 5.10.2007, after tendering
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resignation from the post of Asha Karyakarta, According to the appellant, she
underwent the training and was working on the post.

3 The selection and appointment of appellant was challenged before the
Collector by the respondent No.5. The allegations were made that the appellant
was already working as Asha Karyakarta, her brother-in-law was a Panchayat
Secretary/Panchayat Karmi of Gram Panchayat and, therefore, she was
ineligible to be appointed on the post of Anganwadi Worker. The contention_
was raised that the candidature of respondent No.5 was wrongly rejected
though she has passed the qualifying examination. The Additional Collector,
however, after hearing all the sides dismissed the appeal of the respondent
No.5 0n 27.12.2007. Being aggrieved by the dismissal of the appeal by the
Additional Collector, the respondent No.5 filed a second appeal before the®
Additional Commissioner Sagar Division, Sagar. After hearing the appeal, the
Additional Commissioner reached to the conclusion that candidature of
respondent No.5 was wrongly rejected as she, too, was qualified to be
considered for selection. The appeal filed by the respondent No.5 was allowed

‘by the impugned order dated 18.9.2008, which was sought to be challenged
in the writ petition before this Court by the appellant. Since the writ petition
has been dismissed by the order under challenge in this appeal, the present
intra court appeal has been filed,

4 Learned counsel for the appellant Shri Udyan Tiwari, vehemently
contended that the [eamed Single Judge has not carefully examined the findings
recorded by the Additional Collector and has reached to the conclusion that
the Additional Commissioner, Sagar Division Sagar has rightly interfered with
the findings of the Additional Collector and has rightly set aside the order of
the Additional Collector. It is contended that there was a period prescribed
for making of an application for selection for appointment on the post of
Anganwadj Worker. The respondent No.5 was ineligible on the date of making
of the application for her appointment on the post and even when the selection
process was completed and the order of appointment was issued in respect
of the appellant, the result of the examination of respondent No.5 was not
notified. As she has failed in the qualifying examination in one subject and the
result of supplementary examination was declared much after the selection
process was over, the respondent No.5 was not to be considered at all for
selection on the post of Anganwadi Worker . This materially important aspect
was overlooked by the Additional Commissioner even when he interfered
with the categorical findings recorded by the Additional Collector of the district.
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This particular aspect was not looked into by the learned Single Judge and
wrongly the writ petition of the appellant was dismissed.

5 Per contra, it is submitted by Shri P.N. Dubey, learned counsel
appearing on behalf of the respondent No.5, that the supplementary
examination of the respondent No.5 for the qualifying examination had taken
place in the month of July 2007. The result was not notified though she came
to know about passing of the said examination through some information put
in the internet by the concerned Board and, therefore, she filed an affidavit
before the Selection Committee that she has qualified the examination, but
the mark sheet of the same has not been received by her. It is, thus, contended
that on the date when the selection was conducted, the respondent No.5 had
already acquired the qualification prescribed for appointment on the post and,
thus, her candidature was not to be excluded. It is contended that the fact
relating to receipt of the mark sheet subsequently was not disputed, but the
result was already notified and the same will be co-related to the date of
examination, therefore, the candidature of the respondent No.5 was not to be
rejected only on the ground that the respondent No.5 had not passed the
qualifying examination. Secondly, the aspect that the brother-in-law of the
appellant was in the employment as Panchayat Secretary of the Gram Pancayat
and the process of selection was also for the purposes of making appointment
of an Anganwadi Worker within the same Gram Panchayat, the appellant was
not entitled to take part in such selection. Thus, it is contended that if these
aspects were considered by the Additional Commissioner and the order of
the Additional Collector of the district was set aside with a direction to appoint
more metitorious candidate, no wrong was committed by the Additional
Commissioner. Since these aspects have rightly been appreciated by the learned
Single Judge, it is submitted by Shri P.N. Dubey, learned counsel for the
respondent No.5, that no interference in the order passed by the learned
Single judge is called for and the writ appeal deserves to be dismissed.

6.  Wehave heard learned counsel for the parties at length and minutely
perused the record as well as relevant Scheme of making appointment.

7 The Scheme was made by the State Government for appointment of
Anganwadi Worker and circulated on 10.7.2007 which is available on record
of writ petition as Annx.P/7. The Scheme specifically prescribes that a
candidate seeking appointment on the post of Anganwadi Worker must have
educational qualification of Higher secondary (10+2) froma recognized Board,
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if the appointment was to be made in urban or rural areas, Only intribal areas,
if the candidates are to be appointed, the minimum educational qualification
~ prescribed was Villclass pass. The advertisement was issued pursuance to
the said Scheme by the concerned authorities in the month of August 2007
prescribing the last date for receipt of the application form in the office of the
Project Officer between 4.8.2007 to 13.8.2007. It is not in dispute that the
application was submitted by the respondent No.5 on 9.8.2007 before the
Project Officer. In the application itself, the respondent No.5 has mentioned
that she has been declared failed in the Higher Secondary School Certificate
Examination of 2006 in one subject in which she has taken part in the
supplementary examination and as soon as the result is declared the mark
sheet would be produced. The respondent No.5 also gave an affidavit to this
effect. It is, thus, contended that in fact the result of the examination was
declared sometime in the month of September 2007 and subsequently a mark
sheet was made available. With the return, the respondent No.5 has filed the
document to show that the result was declared for the examination held in the
month of July 2007 and the respondent No.5 was declared successful in M.P,
State Open School Higher Secondary Certificate Examination. However, the
date of declaring the result was not mentioned in the mark sheet produced as
Annx.R/2 filed along with the return of the respondent No.5. The appellant
has filed an application for taking additional documents on record in this appeal
and along with the said application, a certificate of the centre Incharge, the
Principal of the Government Excellent Hi gher Secondary School No.1,
Chhatarpur, has been produced in which it is categorically said that the
respondent No.5 had taken part in the supplementary examination held in the
month of July 2007 in English subject for the Higher Secondary School
Certificate Examination and the result of the said examination was declared
on 12.10.2007.Though an additional affidavit has been filed by the respondent
No.5 and she has controverted that the result was not declared in the month
of October 2007 as claimed, but was declared sometime much before the
date of selection, but nothing has been placed on record to indicate that the
result of the examination of the respondent No.5 was declared before
29.9.2007 i.e. the date on which the selection process was completed and
the appellant was appointed.

& The law in respect of the specific dates, as also the eligibility conditions
with respect to the educational qualification has been well settled by the Apex
Court in the case of Rekha Chaturvedi (Smt.) Vs. University of Rajasthan
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and others [(1993) Supp(3) SCC 168] and in the case of Ashok Kumar
Sonkar Vs. Union of India and others [(2007) 4 SCC 54], wherein it has
been categorically held that the crucial date on which a candidate must possess
" the requisite qualification would be the last date on which the applications are -
fo be submitted. In case a specific date is prescribed for filling the forms, that
will be the date on which the candidate must possess the essential qualification.
If on that day educational eligibility was not available to the respondent No.5,
as her result of supplementary examination was not declared by that time, she
was not cligible to make an application nor the same was to be considered.
Even if with the permission she has made the application, it was more so
necessary for her to submit a proof of passing of the eligibility examination at
least on the date the selection was made. The document produced by the
appellant before this Court, the certificate issued by the Centre Incharge and
the Principal of the Higher Secondary School is not controverted in its true
sense. It was not proved by the respondent No.5 that the result of her
examination was declared much before the date the process of selection was
over. In case of Pramod Kumar Vs. UP.Secondary Education Services
Commission and others [(2008) 7 SCC 153], the Apex Court has laid down
that all eligibility conditions are to be verified before permitting any candidate
to take part in selection. If the application of respondent No.5 was scrutinised -
and her candidature was rejected because she had failed to produce the proof
of passing the qualifying examination, again no wrong was committed by the
selection Committee. Though it is stated at bar that the result of examination
was seen by the respondent No.5 in internet, no attempt whatsoever was
made to produce a proof of such declaration of result either before the selection
committee or writ Court or before the writ appellate Court. The respondent
No.5 could have obtained a certificate in that respect from the competent
authority of the M.P. state open School Board under Right to Information
Act. The writ petition itself was filed in the year 2008, such were the allegations
made by the appellant in the writ petition, but nothing was placed on record
by the respondent No.5 to show that she has in fact passed the examination
on the date when the selection process was completed or priof to the said
date. Rejectlon of her candidature was thus cannot be said to be unjustified.

9 Facing with such a situation, learned counsel for the respondent No.5
has contended that since the result of examination of respondent No.5 was
. sibsequently declared and she has passed the qualifying examination, therefore,
_ relating back the date of taking part in the qualifying examination, it was to be
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held that the respondent No.5 has passed the Higher Secondary School
Certificate Examination in the month of July 2007, when she has taken part in
the said examination. It is, thus, contended that even otherwise if the mark
sheet was not supplied to the respondent No.5 timely and the same could not
be produced before the concerning committee for consideration of the
candidature of respondent No.5 for appointment on the post of Anganwadi
Worker, the rejection of her application only on this count was not justified.
This aspect was not considered by the Additional Collector while deciding the
. first appeal of the respondent No.5, but has been rightly taken into
consideration by the Additional Commissioner in second appeal and it has
been held that the rejection of the candidature of respondent No.5 was
unjustified. Since it was found that otherwise the respondent No.5 was more
meritorious than the appellant, it is contended by the learned counsel for the
respondent No.5 that rightful directions were given for cancellation of improper
appointment of appellant and a further direction was given for appointment of
respondent No.5. It is contended that pursuance to such cancellation of
appointment of appellant, the order of appointment was already issued in
respect of respondent No.5, therefore, the learned Single Judge was right in
appreciating all these aspect and rejecting the claim made by the appellant in
the writ petition. It is contended that the writ petition was, thus, rightly dismissed.

10: We are unable to agree with the submissions made by learned counsel for
the respondent no.5. To us the respondent No.5 could not be said to be qualified
to take part in the selection for appointment on the post of Anganwadi Worker on
the last date of submission of the application form. F irstly, as per the law laid
down by the Apex Court in the case of Rekha and Ashok Sonkar (supra) once
the cut off date is prescribed, every candidate must fulfil the eligibility conditions
on the cut off date prescribed. Secondly, logicaily it is not possible to accept that
the respondent No.5 would be deemed to have passed the qualifying examination
in which she has taken part in the month of July 2007, in J uly 2007 itself, since the
result of which was declared only in the month of October 2007. Taking part in
the examination is not the complete exercise of obtaining an educational qualification
as prescribed.The passing of examination would be only when the result of the
examination is declared. Only on the basis of declaration of the result subsequently,
iteould not be said that a candidate must be treated to have passed the examination
with retrospective effect, from the date he or she has taken part in the said
examination, We get support in holding so from the decision of the Apex Court in
case of Council of Homeopathic system of Medicinn, Punjab and others V.
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Suchintan and others (AIR 1994 SC 1 761) wherein while dealing with almost -
same submission, the Apex Court refused to make applicable the "doctrine of
relation back™ in para 33 of report which reads thus :-

"33. Supposing he passes in that subject or subjects in the .
supplementary examination he is declared to bave passed at the
examination as a whole. This should obviously be so; because
once he completes all the subjects, he has to necessarily be
declared to have passed. Merely on this language, "declared to
have passed at the examination as awhole", we are unable to
understand as to how the "doctrine of relation back" could ever
be invoked. The invocation of such a doctrine leads to strange
results. When a candidate completes the subjects only in the
supplementary examination, then alsone, he passes the
examination. It is that pass which s declared. If the "doctrine of
relation back" is applied, it would have the effect of deeming to
have passed in the annual examination, held at the end of 12
months, which on the face of it is untrue.”

"11:  If this analogy as propounded by the learned counsel .for the
respondent No.5 is accepted, then it will create such anomalies in the matter
of recruitment as all those who were not qualified on the cut off date of making
of application, would start claiming that subs:qﬂenfly they became qualified
after declaration of result of their examination and, therefore, they should
have been given an opportunity to take part in the selection. In that eventualities,
the process of selection will never be completed nor any selection would be
finalised. The other aspect is that the test has been laid down by the Apex
Court that eligibilities are to be examined only on the date of occurrence of
certain events such as creation of post or availability of vacancies. Thisbeing .
s0, if the date of passing of the examination is to relate back to the date of -
taking part in the examination, such a pronouncement of law by the Apex
Court would render meaning less. Even otherwise, there would be no
justification for prescribing a last date for submission of the form. We are of
the considered opinion that the eligibility conditions are to be examined only
and only on the Iast date of submission of the form and not otherwise as has
been laid down by the Apex Court in the case of Rekha and Ashok Kumar
(supra). In view of this, the submissions made by learned counsel for the
respondent No.5 are liable to be rejected outrightly. Accordingly, thereisno
hesitation in our mind to hold that the respondent No.5 was not qualified or
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- eligible to take part in the selection held for the appointment on the post of
Anganwadi Worker in the concerned area in the year 2007 as she has not
passed the qualifying examination upto the last date of submission of the
application form for appointment on the said post at the relevant time.

12: - The other aspect is that the allegations were made that the appellant
was related to a Panchayat Karmi/Secretary of the Gram Panchayat and,
therefore, she could not have been selected for appointment. The Scheme
made by the State Government itself contemplates the prohibited degrees of
relations who may not be applicant for seeking appointment on the post of
‘Anganwadi Worker. The explanation given in this respect in paragraph 4 of
the Scheme miakes it clear that only the father, mother, brother; sister, husband,
wife, son, daughter and the daughter-in-law are the relations in prohibited
degrees of a candidate if any such relative is holding a post in the Panchayat
or other offices within the project in the same area, and if such persons are
directly related, the candidate concerned will not be eligible to take part in
-selection for appointment on the post of Anganwadi worker, The allegations
made against the appellant was that her husband's brother was the Panchayat
Karmi/Secretary of Panchayat. Firstly the said relation is not under the
prohibited degree and secondly a Panchayat Karmi or a Secretary of the
Gram Panchayat had nothing to do with the selection of Anganwadi Worker.
The process of selection as prescribed makes it clear that the Committee is to
be constituted under the chairmanship of Sub Divisional Officer of which the
Child Development Project Officer is the Secretary. The Chief Executive
Officer of a Janpad Panchayat, the President of the Health and Women Child

Development Committee and one of the member nominated by the Janpad

Panchayat are the member of such a Committee, If selection is made, another
Committee is constituted to decide the objections with respect to the
preliminary Selection which consist of Chief Executive Officer of Zila Panchayat
as President and District Programme Officer, Child Development Officer,
President of the Health and Women and Child Development Committee of

Zila Panchayat and one of the Woman member nominated by the Zila Panchayat

as member of the said Committee,

. 13:  The objection was raised with réspect to the selection of appellant by
the respondent No.5, which was decided by the said Committee and thereafter
the appointment of appellant was made. In all such proceedings, a Secretary
of the Gram Panchayat had no role to play and, therefore, such an objection
raised by the respondent No. 5 with respect to the selection of the appellant
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on the post was rightly rejected. If these aspects are taken into consideration,

. infact, the learned Additional Collector has given the reasoned findings in his

order passed on 27.12.2007 and has rejected such contention of the
respondent No.5 in appropriate manner. However, while interfering in such
findings recorded by the learned Additional Collector, the Additional
Commissioner passed the impugned order dated 18.9.2008 without
appreciating all these facts. No reasons were assigned as to how the findings
recorded by the additional Collector were not justified. These aspects were
not rightly considered by the learned Single Judge and findings were given
that the order passed by the Additional Commissioner was not to be interfered.

14:  Inourconsidered opinion, if these aspects are taken into consideration,
it was to be held that there was no occasion for the Additional Commissioner
to interfere in a reasoned order of Additional Collector and the second appeal
of respondent No.5 was not to be allowed. However, since these aspects
have not been taken into consideration by the learned Single Judge and the
writ petition of the appellant has been dismissed, we are afraid, we are not in
a position to affirm the order of the learned Single Judge. Consequently, this
writ appeal is allowed. The order passed in Writ Petition No.11983/2008(S)
on 12.8.2011 is hereby set aside. The order passed by the Additional
Commissioner in Case No.679/Appeal/89/07-08 dated 18.92008 is hereby
quashed and the order passed by the additional Collector in Appeal No.04/
Appeal/B 121/2007-2008 dated 27.12.2007 is affirmed. The appellant be
continued on the post of Anganwadi Worker at the present place of posting.

15: The writappeal is allowed to the extent indicated herein above. There
shall be no order as to costs. -

Appeal allowed.

LL.R. [2013] M.P., 1521
WRIT APPEAL
Before Mr. Justice S.K. Gangele & Mr. Justice D.K. Paliwal
~W.A. No. 137/2013 (Gwalior) decided on 3 May, 2013

DILIP SINGH GURJAR ...Appellant
Vs. )
STATE OF M.P. & ors. ...Respondents

A. Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 35 - Date of Birth -
Entries in School Register - An entry relating to date of birth-made in
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- school register is relevant and admissible however, such entry is of not
much evidentiary value to prove the age of the person in absence of
material on which the age was recorded - As there is no evidence that
at whose instance and on what material the date of birth was recorded
in school admission register, such entry loses its evidentiary value.

(Para7and 9)

# TIeT T (1872 7 1) &IRT 35 — w=fafer — wrer goft
3 gfaflear — wen St ¥ wfafy @ 99 @1 1 ufafe, yoa w
g 2 faeg aafda 9 oy ey s @ fag, 9 ufafe &1 @fias -
1ed e TE, w9 S 9 suRem 9 e w R g sifrfafeag )
T — qfr o1 wen 7 5 f5ae e w A f5w 9 @ s w
ot 99 uofl § st aftifafea @) 73 off, Ier afafe agar wifdas
qea @t < 2

B. Constitution - Article 226 - Habeaus Corpus - Date of
Birth - Date of birth recorded in school register cannot be relied upon
in absence of any material that on what basis such entry was recorded
- Ossification test shows that the corpus is major - She is free to decide
that with whom she wants to live. - (Paras 12 & 13)

W e — T 226 — 951 yoglwenr — wlofr —
T 9ol # afhfafaa swfafyr wr fawam &6 foar s gaan, w80 @i
qarr) sufea S fr o amar ) s9q yfafe afyfafea &) o @ -
afRer fyera wdeor <oriar € 5 N aavwe @ — a7 iy |1 @
wWad ¢ & 9% feae 9 w1 asd 2

Cases referred :

AIR 2010 SC 2933, (2008) 13 SCC 133, 2010 AIR SCW 1866,
(2012) 5 SCC 201, (2001) 5 SCC 714.

R.B.S. Tomar, for the appellant.
M.P.S. Raghuwanshi, Addl. A.G. for the respondents No. 1 to 3
Balwant Singh, for the respondent No.4.

JUDGMENT

The Judgment of the Court was delivered by :
D.K. PaLIwAL, J. :- This writ appeal has been preferred under Section 2(1)
of the Madhya Pradesh Uchcha Nyayalaya (Khand Nyaya Peeth Ko Appeal)
Adhiniyam, 2005 against order dated 27.2.2013 passed by learned Single
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Judge in writ petition No.4310/2012 (Habeas Cbrpus).

2. . Brieffacts of the case are that respondent No.4-Mahendra Singh filed
writ petition No.4310/2012 (Habeas Corpus) for production of her minor
daughter Ku. Seema before this Court who is in the wrongful confinement of
appellant (respondent No.4 before the writ Court). She was missing since
11.10.11. Report of the incident was lodged at police Station, Bhanwarpura,
Distt. Gwalior and a case under Sections 363 and 366 of IPC has been
registered. In his return, the appellant submitted that Ku.Seema was major
and he got married with her with her free consent under the Arya Samaj
customs. It is further submitted that appellant and Ku.Seema had filed a writ
petition No.1998/2012 and vide order dated 28.3.2012 passed in the writ
petition this Court granted themn protection considering the ossification report
of Ku.Seema.Appellant had filed a petition under Section 482 of Cr.P.C.
before this Court for quashing the criminal case registered against him and
this Court after hearing the parties, directed the appellant to approach the
Investigating Officer along with all the documents and proofs showing his
innocence vide order dated 27/7/12. Thereafter, the police authorities got the
ossification test of Ku.Seema cenducted and it was found that Ku.Seema
was major. It is submitted that police authorities have not submitted the
ossification report along with the charge-sheet. It is further submitted that

" writ petition filed by respondent No.4 came up for hearing on 27.2.13 and
* this Court holding that Ku.Seema is minor, handed over her custody to

respondent No.4. Being aggrieved, appellant has preferred this writ appeal.

3. It is submitted by Shri R.B.S.Tomar, learned counsel for the appellant,
that the order passed by learned Single Bench is contrary to law, and therefore,
deserves to be set aside. The Hon'ble Writ Court has not considered the fact
that the mark-sheet submitted by respondent No.4 is suspicious. No inquiry

.- about the age of Ku.Seema has been held. It is further submitted that life of

Ku.Seema is not safe in the custody of respondent No.4. It is prayed that
order dated 27.2.13 be set aside and custody of Ku. Seema be given to him.
The learned counsel for the respondents siibmits that Ku.Seema is minor,
therefore her custody has rightly been handed over to her father who is her
natural guardian. '

4. We have considered the rival submissions and perused the record. To
prove that corpus is minor, school leaving certificate of Ku. Seema has been
produced in which the date of birth of corpus has been mentioned as
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5.12.1995. It has been Veriﬁed'by the police from the school admission register.

The appellant has relied on the x-ray report in which the age has been reported

as 18 years. This report has been issued by Kapoorchand Memorial Digital

" X-ray Clinic. The learned counsel for the appellant has submitted that police

has also got the ossification test conducted regarding the age, but the ossification
report has deliberately been suppressed.

5. Leaned counsel for the respondents/State has submitted that the date
of birth mentioned in the school register would prevail over the age detcrmmed
by radlolo gical exarmnatlon -

6. In the case of Madan Mohan Singh and others vs Rajm Kant &
another, AIR 2010 SC 2933 the Supreme Court has observed in para 16 as
under :-

“16. So far as the entries made in the official record by an
official or person authorised in performance of official duties
are concerned, they may be admissible under section 35 of
the Evidence Act but the Court has a right to examine their
probative value. The authénticity of the entries would depend

- on whose information such entries stood recorded and what
was his source of information. The-entry in School Register/ .
School Leaving Certificate require to be proved in accordance
with law and the standard of proof required in such cases
remained the same as in any other civil or criminal cases.”

7. In the matter of Babloo Pasi Vs. State of Jharkhand and another
reporred in (2008) 13 SCC 133, commenting on the evidentiary value of the
entry in the sghool register, it is held by the Apex Court that Section 35 of the
Evidence:Act lays down that an entry in any public or other official book,
register or record, stating a fact in issue or relevant fact made by a public
servant in the discharge of his official duty especially enjoined by the law of
the country isitself a relevant fact. In para 28 it is observed that it is trite that
to render a document admissible under Section 35, three conditions have to
be satisfied, namely: (i) entry that is relied on must be one in a public or other
- official book, register or record; (ii) it must be an entry stating a fact in issue
" or arelevant fact, and (iii) it must be made by a public servant in discharge of
his official duties, or in performance of his duty especially enjoined by law. An
entry relating to date of birth made in the school register is relevant and
admissible under Section 35 of the Evidence Act but the entry regarding the
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age of a person in a school regiéter is of not much évidentiary value to prove .
 the age of the person in the absence of the material on which the age was
recorded. (See Birad Mal Singhvi v. Anand Purohit, 1988 Supp SCC 604).

8. In the matter of Jabar Singh v. Dinesh and another, 2010 AIR SCW
1866, it has been held in para 12 that entry of date of birth of Respondent
No. 1 in the admission form, the school records and transfer certificates did
not satisfy the conditions laid down in Section.35 of the Evidence Act inasmuch
as the entry was not in any public or official register and was not made either
by a public servant in the discharge of his official duty or by any.person in
performance of a duty specially enjoined by the law of the country, therefore,

_ the entry was not relevant under Section 35 of the Evidence Act for the purpose
of determining the age of Respondent No. 1. .

9. Now we shall examine the evidentiary value of the date of birth
recorded in school admission register / school leaving certificate in the light of
above settled legal position: In the copy of the school admission register date
of birth of Ku.Seema has been mentioned as 5-12 1995, In Annexure P/1
(school leaving certificate), it i$ mentioned that Ku.Seema was admitted in
class 3rd on 11/11/2006. The school leaving certificate is said to have been
issued on 13-10-2011. A bare perusal of the said certificate would show that
the appellant was admitted on 11-11-2006 and her name was struck off from
. theroll of the institution on 25-06-2009. The said school leaving certificate
was not issued in ordinary course of business of the school. There is nothing
oh record to show that the said date of birth was recorded in a register
maintained by the school in terms of the requirements of law as contained in
Section 35 of the Evidence Act. There is no evidence that at whose instance
and on what material the date of birth was recorded in the School admission
register. Therefore, the entry regarding date of birth mentioned in the school
admission register and in the school leaving certificate loses its evidentiary
value.

10.  Thelearned counsel for the appellant placing reliance on Om Prakash
Vs. State of Rajasthan and another, (2012) 5 SCC 201, submitted that the

" opinion of the doctor regarding the age based on radiological examination
and ossification test, be treated as strong evidence.

11.  Inthe matter of Ramdeo Chauhan v. State of Assam, (2001) 5 SCC
714, the Hon'ble Apex Court has added an insight for determination of this
issue when it recorded as follows:-

¥
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“Of course the doctor's estimate of age is not a sturdy substitute
for proof as it is only his opinion; But such opinion of an expert
cannot be sidelined in the realm where the court gropes in the
dark to find out what would possible have been the age of a
citizen for the purpose of affording him a constitutional
protection. In the absence of all other acceptable materials, if
such opinion points to a reasonable possibility regarding the
range of his age it has certainly to be considered.”

12, Theradiological report of Kapoorchand Memorial Digital X-ray Clinic
shows that the age of Ku. Seema was 18 years. On the direction of this Court
passed in the writ petition, the police had got examined Ku. Seema and in that
report it has been opined that the age of Ku. Seema is above 18 years and
below 19 years on 2.2.2013.

13. * Inview of above, we find that when it is not proved that date of birth
- was entered in the school admission Register in accordance with the provisions
of Section 35 of the Evidence Act and also in absence of any material on the
basis of which it was recorded, no reliance can be placed on it. In the light of -
medical opinion not only of a doctor of private clinic but also of a government
medical officer, in our considered opinion, Ku. Seema appears to be major.
Therefore, only she can decide with whom she wants to live,

14.  Resultantly the appeal is partly allowed. The impugned order is set
aside, Corpus Ku. Seema is at liberty to live with whom she wants.

Parties to bear their cost.’
Appeal partly allowed.

LL.R. [2013] M.P., 1526
WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice K.K. Trivedi
W.P. No. 262/2003 (Jabalpur) decided on 27 November, 2012 .

J.P. GUPTA & ors. ' ... Petitioners
Vs. '
EVEREADY INDUSTRIES INDIALTD. & ors. ...Respondents

Industrial Disputes Act (14 of 1947), Section 25-N & 25-0 -
Closure of Establishment - A harmonious reading of these provisions
would make it clear that in case, sanction is granted u/s 25-0 for closure
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of the establishment, there would not be any applicability of Section
25-N - The petitioners have received compensation on account of
closure of the establishment - Consequently, there was no occasion for
the petitioners to claim any relief against retrenchment - That being
so, the Labour Court was not right in entertaining their application for
_retrenchment compensation - The Industrial Court was right in allowing
appeal from the award of Labour Court - Writ Petition under Article
227 of the Constitution of India challenging the order of Industrial Court
dismissed. ‘ _(Paras 13 to 16)

i farT AT (1947 BT 14), €T 25¥7 T 2591 — ®ITA
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ORDER

K.K. Travept, J: This petition under Article 227 of the Constitution
of India is directed against the Order dated 28th of June, 2002 passed by the
Industrial Court, Bench at Bhopal whereby the appeal filed by the respondents
against the award passed by the Labour Court has been allowed and the
award has been set aside on the ground that dispute was raised by the
petitioners with respect to the validity of an agreement executed by the
~ employees’ union with the employer with respect to the enhancement of the
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retrenchment compensation and it was further contended that the action of
retrenchment of the petitioners by the employer was unsustainable in eye of
law because of non-compliance of the provisions of Section 25-N of Industrial
Disputes Act, 1947 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”). After adducing the
evidence, the Labour Court reached to the conclusion that such an agreement
by the Union was not in accordance with law and, therefore, the said agreement
was declared to be invalid and ilicgal. Similarly the Labour Court reached to
the conclusion that though a sanction was obtained for closure of the factory
of the respondents, but it was necessary to comply with the provisions of
Section 25-N of the Act and since it was not complied with, the petitioners
were illegally retrenched on account of closure of the factory of respondents.
It is contended that against said award, an appeal was preferred by the
respondent employer and though the provisions of law were made clear,
reliance was placed in several decisions of the Apex Court, wrongly relying
the decisions which were not applicable, appeal of the respondent employer_
has been allowed, therefore, this writ petition is required to be filed.

2. A tragedic incident took place in the factory of respondents at Bhopal
in intervening night of 2nd/3rd December, 1984. A prohibitory order was issued
by the State Govt. to shut down the factory. Thereafter respondents moved
an application for grant of sanction for closure of factory under section 25-0
of the Act which was allowed and sanction was granted on the terms of payment
of compensation to the existing workmen and to offer them employment in
other units of respondents, if possible. Notice was given, compensation was
paid and the factory was closed. There was an agreement said to be entered
into between the employer and workers' Union for extra payment of
compensation. Thereafter, challenging the said agreement and complaining
non-compliance of provisions of section 25-N of the Act, thus seeking to set
aside retrenchment claim, was made before the Labour Court, Bhopal, which
was allowed. The appeal was preferred by the employer before the Industrial
Court which was allowed by the impugned order, hence this writ petition is
filed under Article 227 of the Constitution of India.

3. It is contended by the learned senior counsel for the petitioners that
the law is well settled by the decisions of the Apex Court in several cases.
Before amendment in the provisions of the Act, the operation of the law was
different and different provisions were there for payment of compensation to
workmen who were terminated on account of closure of any establishment.
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However, after the decisions rendered by the Apex Court in certain cases,
the amendments were made in the provisions of the Act and now it has become
necessary to comply with the provisions of Section 25-N of the Act even if
the establishment is closed on account of sanction granted by a competent
Government. It is contended that this particular aspect has not been considered
by the appellate authority and appeal of the respondents has illegally been
allowed, therefore, order passed by Appellate Authority is liable to be set
aside and that of the Labour Court is liable to be affirmed.

4, Per contra, it is submitted by learned senior counsel for the respondents
that provisions of Section 25-N of the Act would be attracted only in $uch
cases where the retrenchment is done. In case of termination of employees
under the provisions of Section 25-0 of the Act after obtaining sanction from
the competent Government, the provisions of Section 25-FFF would be
attracted and in such circumstances where the specific provisions are made
for compensation to workmen in case of closing down of undertakings which
have already been defined in the Act, the provisions of Section 25-N would
not be attracted. Such a situation has been examined by the Apex Court, after
taking note of the laws relating to application of such provisions in the decisions
rendered on earlier occasions and since it has been held by the Apex Court
that independent provisions of Section 25-FFF have been made in the Act,

therefore, provisions of Section 25-N of the Act, would not be attracted. No
- ‘wrong was committed by the Industrial Court in allowing the appeal of the
employer and setting aside the award granted by the Labour Court on wrong
interpretation of the provisions of the Act. It is contended that the entire petition
being based on misconceived facts is liable to be dism_iss'ed.

5. I have heard learned counsel for the parties at length and examined
the record. .
6. Undisputedly, the provisions were added in the Act after several

decisions of the Apex Court and specific chapters have been added. Chapter
V-B has been added by an amendment made in the year 1976, Chapter V-B
infact contains special provisions relating to law for retrenchment and closure
of certain establishments. The said provisions are attracted in such industries
as have been defined under Section 25L(a) . Specific provision has been
made under Section 25-N as amended by Act No. 49 of 1984 with effect
from 18.8.84. The provisions are re-produced for ready reference :-
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“25-N. Conditions precedent to retrenchment of workmen.-

(1) No workman employed in any industrial establishment to
which this Chapter applies, who has been in continuous service
for not less than one year under an employer shall be retrenched
by that employer until,--

(a) the workman has been given three months' notice in writing
indicating the reasons for retrenchment and the period of notice
has expired, or the workman has been paid in lieu of such
notice, wages for the period of the notice; and

(b) the prior permission of the appropriate Government or such
authority as may be specified by that Government by
notification in the Official Gazette (hereafter in this section
referred to as the specified authority) has been obtained on an
application made in this behalf.

~

(2) An application for permission under sub- section (1) shall
be made by the employer in the prescribed manner stating
clearly the reasons for the intended retrenchment and a copy
of such application shall also be served simultaneously on the
workmen concerned in the prescribed manner.

(3) Where an application for permission under sub-section (1)
has been made, the appropriate Government or the specified
authority, after making such enquiry as it thinks fit and after
giving a reasonable opportunity of being heard to the employer,
the workmen concerned and the persons interested in such
retrenchment, may, having regard to the genuineness and
adequacy of the reasons stated by the employer, the interests
of the workmen and all other relevant factors, by order and
for reasons to be recorded in writing, grant or refuse to grant
such permission and a copy of such order shall be
communicated to the employer and the workmen.

(4) Where an application for permission has been made under
sub- section (1) and the appropriate Government or the
specified authority does not communicate the order granting
or refusing to grant permission to the employer within a period
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of sixty days from the date on which such application is made,
the permission applied for shall be deemed. to have been

~ granted on the expiration of the said period of sixty days.

(5) An order of the appropriate Government or the specified
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authority granting or refusing to grant permission shall, subject -

to the provisions of sub-section (6), be final and binding on

. all the parties concerned and shall remain in force forone year

from the date of such order.

(6) The appropriate Government or the specified authority may,
either on its own motion or on the application made by the
employer or any workinan, review its order granting or refusing
to grant permission under sub- section (3) or refer the matter
or, as the case may be, cause it to be referred, to a Tribunal
for adjudication: '

Provided that where a reference has been made to a Tribunal
under this sub- section, it shall pass an award within a period
of thirty days from the date of such reference.

(7) Where no application for permission under sub-section

(1) is made, or where the permission for any retrenchment has
been refused, such retrenchment shall be deemed to be illegal
from the date on which the notice.of retrenchment was given
to the workman and the workman shall be entitled to all the
benefits under any law for the time being in force as if no notice
had been given to him.

(8) Notwithstanding anything contained in the foregoing
provisions of this section, the appropriate Government may, if
it is satisfied that owing to such exceptional circumstances as
accident in the establishment or death of the employer or the

like, it is necessary so to do, by order, direct that the provisions .

of sub- section (1) shall not apply in relation to such
establishment for such period as may be specified in the order.

(9) Where permission for retrenchment has been granted under
sub- section (3) or where permission for retrenchment is

deemed to be granted under sub-section (4), every workman
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who is employed in that establishment immediately before the
date of application for permission under this séction shall be
entitled to receive, at the time of retrenchment, compensation
which shall be equivalent to fifteen days' average pay for every
completed year of continuous service or any part thereof in
excess of six months.”

7. Similarly provisions of Section 25(0) are introduced by the Amending
+ Act No. 46 of 1982 with effect from 21.8.1984 which reads this :-

“25(0). Procedure for closing down an undertaking-

(1) An employer who intends to close down an undertaking of
an industrial establishment to which this Chapter applies shall,
in the prescribed manner, apply, for prior permission at least
ninety days before the date on which the intended closure is to
become effective, to the appropriate Government, stating
clearly the reasons for the intended closure of the undertaking

. and a copy of such application shall also be served

- simultaneously on the representatives of the workmen in the
prescribed manner: '

Provided that nothing in this sub-section shall apply to an
undertaking set up for the construction of buildings, bridges,
roads, canals, and dams or for other construction work.

(2) Where an application for permission has been made under
sub-section (1) the appropriate Government, after making such
enquiry as it thinks fit and after giving a reasonable opportunity
of being heard to the employer, the workmen and the persons
interested in such closure may, having regard to the genuineness
and adequacy of the reasons stated by the employer, the
interests of the general public and all other relevant factors, by
order and for reasons to be recorded in writing, grant or refuse
to grant such permission and a copy of such order shall be
. communicated to the employer and the workmen.

(3) Where an application has been made under sub-section
(1) and the appropriate Government does not communicate
the order granting or refusing to grant permission to the
employer within a period of sixty days from the date on which
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such application is made, the permission applied for shall be
deemed to have been granted on the e;cpiration of the said
period of sixty days.

(4) An order of the appropriate Government granting or
refusing to grant permission shall, subject to the provisions of
sub-section (5), be final and binding on all the parties and shall
remain in force for one year from the date of such order.

~ (5) The appropriate Government may, either on its own motion
or on the application made by the employer or any workman,
review its order granting or refusing to grant permission under

" sub-section (2) or refer the matter to a tribunal for adjudication:

Provided that where a reference has been madetoa
Tribunal under this sub-section, it shall pass an award withina
period of thirty days from the date of such reference.

{6) Where no application for permission under sub-section
(1) is made within the period specified therein, or where the
permission for closure has been refused, the closure of the -
undertaking shall be deemed to be illegal from the date of
closure and the workmen shall be entitled to all the benefits

" under any law for the time being in force as if the undertaking
had not been closed down.

(7) Notwithstanding anything contained in the foregoing

~ provisions of this section, the appropriate Government may, if
it is satisfied that owing to such exceptional circumstances as
accident in the undertaking or death of the employer or the
like, it is necessary so to do, by order, direct that the provisions
of sub-section (1) shall not apply in relation to such undertaking
for such period as may be specified in the order.

(8) Where an undertaking is permitted to be closed down under
sub-section (2) or where permission for closure is deemed to
be granted under sub-section (3), every workman who is
employed in that undertaking 1mmed1ately before the date of
application for permission under this section, shall be entitled
to receive compensation which shall be equivalent to fifteen
days’ average pay for every completed year of continuous -
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] service or any part thereof in excess of six mon

: There is an amendment made in the said provision by the State of
Madhya Pradesh vide Amending Act No. 32 of 1983, with effect from
28.10.1983 which reads thus :~

£25-O. Procedure for closing down an undertaking.—

(1) An employer who intends to close down an undertaking of
an industrial establishment to which this Chapter applies shall
apply for prior permission at least ninety days before the date 7
on which the intended closure is to be become effective, to the
State Government stating clearly reasons for the intended
closure of the undertaking and a copy of such application shall
also be served simultaneously on the representatives of the
workmen by registered post with acknowledgment due. ]

(2) Where a notice has been served on the State Government
by an employer under sub-section (1) of section 25FFA and
the period of notice had not expired on the Sth August, 1983,
such employer shall not close down the undertaking but shall,
within a period of fifteen days from the said date, apply to the
State Government for permission to close down the
undertaking,

(3) Where an application for permission has been made under
sub-section (1) or sub-section (2) the State Government after
making such enquiry as it thinks fit and after giving a reasonable
opportunity of being heard to the employer, the workmen and
the persons interested in such closure may, having regard to
the genuineness and adequacy or the reasons stated by
employer, the interests of the general public and all other
relevant factors, by order and for reasons to be recorded in
writing, grant or refuse to grant such permission and copy of
such order shall be communicated to the employer and the
workmen.

. (4) Where an application has been made under sub-section
(1) or sub-section (2) as the case may be, and the State
Government does not communicate the order granting or
refusing to grant permission to the employer within a period of
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. sixty days from the date on which such application is made,

the permission applied for shall be deemed to have been granted
on the expiration of the said sixty days. '

(5) An order of the State Government granting or refusing to
grant permission shall, subject to the provisions of sub-section
(6), be final and binding on all the parties and shall remain in
force for one year from the date of such order.

(6) The State Government may, either on its own motion or
on the application made by the employer or any workmen,
review its order granting or refusing to grant permission under
sub-section (3) or refer the matter to a Tribunal for
adjudication:- '

Provided that where a reference has been made to a
Tribunal under this sub-section, it shall pass an award within a

. period of thirty days from the date of such reference.

(7) Where no application for permission under sub-section
(1) or sub-section (2) is made within the period specified
therein, or where the permission for closure has been refused,
the closure of the undertaking shall be deemed to be illegal
from the date of closure and the workmen shall be entitled to
all the benefits under any law for the time being in force as if
the undertaking had not been closed down.

(8) Notwithstanding anything contained in the foregoing
provisions of the section, the State Government may, if it is
satisfied that owing to such exceptional circumstances as
accident in the undertaking or death of the employer or the
like it is necessary so to do, by order, direct that the provisions
of sub-section (1) shall not apply in relation to such undertaking
for such period as may be specified in the order.

(9) Where an undertaking is permitted to, be closed down under
sub-section (3) or where permission for closure is deemed to -
be granted under sub-section (4), every workman who is
empowered in that undertaking immediately before the date

. ofapplication for permission under this section, shall be entitled

to receive compensation which shall be equivalent to fifteen
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days’ average pay for every completed year of continuous
service or any part thereof in excess of six months.”

The only difference between the two is that before coming into the
force of the Amendment in the year 1984, similar provisions were made by
the State of ML.P. by amending the Act with effect from 28.10.83. Undisputedly,
the application for closure of the factory of the respondents was made sometime
in the year 1984, i.e. after coming into force of the amendment made by the
State of M.P. in Section 25-O of the Act with effect from 28.10.83. Now,
therefore, it has to be examined whether there was any application of Section
25-N of the Act in such circumstances or not.

8: The reason and object of providing reasonable restriction in the case

of retrenchment of a workman as is mentioned in the amending Act is to make
. protection of such service of the employee so that he may not suffer the loss
of emoluments and livelihood all of a sudden if he is retrenched from service
without any notice. The said object is fulfilled by prescrlblng the method of
seeking approval for closure of an undertaking as is added by the State of
M_.F. in the amendment made in Section 25-O of the Act, as in sub-section (9)
of Section 25-O of the Act as amended by the State Government, it is
- specifically prescribed that where an undertaking is permitted to be closed
down under sub-section (3) of Section 25-O of the Act or where permission

for closure is deemed to be granted under sub-section (4) of Section 25-0 of

" the Act, every workman who is employed in that undertaking immediately
before the date of application for permission under this section shall be entitled
to receive compensation which shall be equivalent to 15 days’ average pay
for every completed year of continuous service or any part thereof in excess
of six months. The object of Section 25-N of the Act is, thus, fulfilled by
giving such a protection in Section 25-0(9) of the Act and, therefore, it would
not be necessary for an employer to seek sanction for retrenchment of an
employee in case he is granted permission to close down his establishment.
The closure of an establishment means nothing but retrenchment as is clearly
mentioned in Section 25-FFF and 25-FFA of the Act. For better apprecxatlon
prov151ons of Section 25-FFF are reproduced thus :-

“25FFF. Compensation to workmen in case of closing
down of undertakings.- - :

(1) ~ Where an undertaking is closed down for any reason
whatsoever, every workman who has been in continuous

N
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service for not less than one year in that undertaking
immediately before such closure shall, subject to the provisions
of sub- section (2), be entitled to notice and compensation in
accordance with the provisions of section 25F, as if the
workman had been retrenched:

Provided that where the undertaking is closed down on account
of unavoidable circumstances beyond the control of the
employer, the compensation to be paid to the workman under
clause (b) of section 25F shall not exceed his average pay for
three months. '

Explanation.-- An undertaking which is closed down by reason
merely of — '

(i) financial difficulties (including financial losses); or
(i) accumulation of undisposed of stocks; or

(i)  theexpiry of the period of the lease or licence granted
to it; or ' :

(iv) in a case where the undertaking is engaged in mining
operations, exhaustion of the minerals in the area in which such
operations are carried on; shall not be deemed to be closed
down on'account of unavoidable circumstances beyond the
control of the employer within the meaning of the proviso to
this sub- section.

(1 A) Notwithstanding anything contained in sub- section (1),
where an undertaking engaged in mining operations is closed
down by reason merely of exhaustion of the minerals in the
area in which such operations are carried on, no workman
referred to in that sub- section shall be entitled to any notice
or compensation in accordance with the provisions of section

25F, if-- |

(a) the employer provides the workman with alternative
employment with effect from the date of closureat the same
remuneration as he was entitled to receive, and on the same

" terms and conditions of service as were applicable to him,

1537
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immediately before the closure;

(b) the service of the workman has not been interrupted by
such alternative employment; and

(c) the employer is, under the terms of such alternative
employment or otherwise, legally liable to pay to the workman,
in the event of his retrenchment, compensation on the basis
that his service has been continuous and has not been
interrupted by such alternative employment.

(1B) For the purposes of sub- sections (1) and (1A), the
expressions” minerals” and" mining operations" shall have the
meanings respectively assigned to them in clauses (a) and (b)
of section 3 of the Mines and Minerals (Regulation and
Development) Act, 1957 (67 of 1957).

(2) Where any undertaking set- up for the construction of
buildings, bridges, roads, canals, dams or other construction
work is closed down on account of the completion of the work
within two years from the date on which the undertaking had
been set- up, no workman-employed therein shall be entitled
to any compensation under clause (b) of section 25F, but if the
construction work is not so completed within two years, he
shall be entitled to notice and compensation under that section
for every [ completed year of continuous service] or any part
thereot in excess of six months.”

A harmonious reading of the aforesaid provision will make it clear that
once sanction is granted to close down an establishment, as is defined under
Section 2(ka) (and it is not in dispute that the establishment of the respondents
is covered under the aforesaid definition), retrenchment of workmen is obvious
and compulsory. Such retrenchment would not be covered under the
retrenchment protected under Section 25-N of the Act.

.9 As is contended by learned Senior counsel for petitioners, the laws
laid down by the Apex Court which have taken note of by the appellate Court,
relate to the consideration of the application of provisions as were existing
before the amendment made in the Act. Reading in extenso the law laid down
by the Apex Court in the case of Pipraich Sugar Mills Ltd. vs. Pipraich
Sugar Mills Mazdoor Union (AIR 1957 SC 95), referring to the law laid
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- down by the Apex Court in the case of M/s Hathisingh Manufacturing: ‘
Co.Ltd. and another vs. Union of India and others (AIR 1960 SC 923) o
and Hariprasad Shivshanker Shukla and another vs.A.D.Divelkar and. - ¢ v on
others (AIR 1967 SC 121), it has been contended that the law laid down by e T
the Apex Court was with respect to the provisions of the Act as were existing-
before the amendments incorporated by the Parliament in the Act. Since the”
law so laid down by the Apex Court was with respect to grant of benefit to e
the employer, ultimately protecting the rights of the employees or workmen, N ‘
exhaustive amendments were made, new provisions were added and, o
therefore, it was necessary for the appellate Court to discard the submissions
made by the employer and to hold that compliance of provisions of Section - |+~ .+
25-N of the Act was mandatory even when the sanction was granted by the - .~ .
competent Government to close down the industry. It is further contended .
that in case of Charan Lal Sahu vs. Union of India (AIR 1990 SC 1480), = . ..
Union Carbide Corporation vs. Union of India and others (AIR1990SC = ™ *°
273), Union Carbide Corporation etc. vs. Union of India etc. (AIR 1992
SC 248) and H.P. Mineral & Industrial Development Corporation
Employees’ Union vs. State of H.P. and others [(1996) 7 SCC 139], again
the law laid down was with respect to unamended provisions and the specific <~
provisions of amendment were not taken note of as the case was not one. ’_.,
which falls after coming into force of the amendment in the Act. It is contended ;
that similar was the situation when the case was considered by the Apex Court ~
in the matter of Lal Mohd. Vs. Indian Railway Construction Company '
Limited (AIR 1999 SC 355). It is further submitted by learned senior counsel -
for petitioners that the apex court has considered applicability of Section25-N -
of the Act in the case of M/s Empire Industries Limited Vs. State of
Maharashira and others, AIR 2010 SC 1389 and as such the compliance.
of such a provision was necessary. Thus, it is contended that the law as is’
available was to be considered after coming into force of the amendment
made in the Act and it was to be held that since the mandatory provisions of - .
Section 25-N of the Act were not complied with, the retrenchment of the . . Y
petitioners was illegal and in view of this, the findings arrived at by the Labour - ; %, .
Court were to be affirmed. However, the Industrial Court has set aside thes™ oo
order passed by the Labour Court without giving any reason only on the basis” 70

of law laid down by the Apex Court in the aforesaid cases which in fact were S
not applicable at all. It is again contended that similar was the situation with .-

' respect to the agreement said to be executed and, therefore, findings arrived .-
at by the Industrial Court were perverse and were liable to be set aside. ‘
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10:  Inresponse to these submissions of the learned Senior counsel for
petitioners, learned senior counsel appearing for respondents has placed
reliance heavily in the case of Lal Mohd. (supra), Punjab Land Development
and Reclamation Corporation Limited, Chandigarh Vs. Presiding Officer,

Labour Court, Chandigarh and others [(1990) 3 SCC 682], and in
S.M Nilajkar and others vs. Telecom District Manager, Karnataka (AIR
2003 SC 3553). Learned senior counsel has contended that in the aforesaid
laws, the Apex Court has considered the applicability of the provisions of
Section 25-N of the Act in the given circumstances. It is putforth that in the
specific circumstances, the Apex Court has considered the applicability of
Section 25-FFF of the Act and has reached to the conclusion that once a
closure validly come into effect the relationship of employer and employee
does not survive and ceases to exist. In view of the law laid down by the Apex

Court, it has to be seen whether still there was requirement of compliance of -

Section 25-N of the Act or not. Placing reliance in the case of Maruti Udyog
Ltd. vs. Ram Lal and others [(2005) 2 SCC 638], it is contended by learned
Senior counsel for the respondents that earlier the provisions of Section 25-O
was not available since the same was struck down by the Apex Court, the
only protection that was available to the workman whose services were
terminated as a result of closure was contained in Section 25-FFF of the Act.
Evenin the case of H.P. Mineral and Industrial Development Corporation
Employees Union (supra), the Apex Court has given approval of an action if
taken in compliance of provisions of Section 25-O of the Act, which came
into force after the amendment made in the Act and it was categorically held
that if the provisions in such manner have been complied with, there would
not be any existence of relationship of master and servant between the employer
and employees and, as such, there would not be an alleged non-compliance
of any othér mandatory provisions. Thus, it is contended that grant of sanction
to close down the establishment of respondent itself was sufficient to authorise
the discontinuance of service of persons like petitioners and undisputedly this
provision was specifically complied with, therefore, there was no occasion
for the Labour Court to hold that the action taken by the respondents for
discontinuance of employment of workmen like petitioners was violative of
provisions of Section 25-N of the Act. It is contended that independent
procedure has been prescribed in Section 25-O of the Act, which further
contains the provisions of grant of compensation for the retrenchment of
employees/workmen in terms of the order of the closure of the establishment.
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11:  Learned Senior counsel for respondents further has drawn the attention
of this Court to the fact that the agreement sought to be challenged before the
Labour Court in fact was challenged before this Court in M.P.N0.2109/1985
{(Union Carbide Karmchari Sangh Navi Bagh Vs. Union of India and
others) and the Division Bench of this Court has dismissed the said writ petition
vide order dated 1.8.1991. It is contended that since the agreement was once
found to be legal by this Court, it could not be challenged before the Labour
Court. In view of this, findings arrived at by the Labour Court were not
sustainable and the same have been set aside in rightful manner by the Industrial
Court.

12:  The Apex court has considered the law as was available before the
amendment in the Act, in the cases of Pipraich Sugar Mills Ltd. (supra),
M/s Hathi Singh Manufacturing Co. Ltd. (supra) and Hari Prasad
Shivshankar Shukla (supra), but mainly the consideration was what would
amount to retrenchment as prescribed in section 25F of the Act and as is
defined in section 2(00) of the Act. In none other but definite words the
meaning 'retrenchment' was interpreted by the Apex court in the case of Hari
Prasad Shivshankar Shukia (supra) in following manner :

“For the reasons given above, we hold, contrary to the view
expressed by the Bombay High Court, that retrenchment as
defined in Section 2(00) and as used in Section 25-F has no
wider meaning than the ordinary, accepted connotation of the
word: it means the discharge of surplus labour or staff by the
employer for any reason whatsoever, otherwise than as a
punishment inflicted by way of disciplinary action, and it has
no application where the services of all workmen have been
terminated by the employer on a real and bonafide closure of
business as in the case of Shri Dinesh Mills Ltd. or where the
services of all workmen have been terminated by the employer
on the business or undertaking being taken over by another
employer in circumstances like those of the Railway Company.”

The meaning of retrenchment would not be changed merely because some
amendments are made in the Act because there is no amendment in the
definition of retrenchment made by the Parliament. Even otherwise the
provisions of Section 25-N of the Act are simply made for protection of
employees from illegal retrenchment and said action do not contain any non-
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abstente clause. Meaning thereby the other provisions of the Act are not made

applicable only after compliance of provisions of section 25-N of the Act.
_ This is further clear from the definite findings of the Apex court given in para
5, 6 and 7 in the case of H.P. Mineral and Industrial Development
el Corporatzon Employees Union (supra) which reads thus :-

5. We are unable to accept this contention. It is no doubt
true that in Section 2(00) the expression ‘retrenchment’ is
defined to mean the termination by the employer of the service
- of a workman for any reason whatsoever otherwise thanas a
punishment inflicted by way of disciplinary action and categories
- referred to in clauses (a) to (c) have been expressly excluded
from the ambit of the said definition. But as far back as in
1957 a Constitution Bench of this-Court in Hariprasad
- Shivshankar Shukla v. A.D. Divikar had laid down that
‘retrenchment’ under Section 2{00) of the Act would not cover
termination of services of all workmen as a result of the closure
of the business. The said decision was considered by the
Constitution Bench of this Court in Punjab Land
Development and Reclamation Corpn. Ltd. v. Presiding
Officer, Labour Court, wherein it has been observed:

“Mr V.A. Bobde submits, and we think rightly, that the sole
reason for the decision in Hariprasad was that the Act
postulated the existence and continuance of an industry and
where the industry, i.e., the undertaking, itself was closed down
L or transferred, the very substratum disappeared and the Act
- ' could not regulate industrial employment in the absence of an
industry. The true position in that case was that Sections 2(00)
and 25-F could not be invoked since the undertaking itself
e ceased to exist.

* & %

The judgments in Sundara Money and the subsequent decisions
in the line could not be held to be per incuriam inasmuch as in
Hindustan Steel and Santosh Gupta cases, the Division
LT ‘ ~ Benches of this Court had referred to Hariprasad case and
SN -; ) .- rightly held that its ratio did not extend beyond a case of
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termination on the ground of closure and as such it would not
be correct to say that the subsequent decisions ignored a
binding precedent.

* % ¥

For the purpose of harmonious construction, it can be seen
that the definitions contained in Section 2 are subject to there
being anything repugnant in the subject or context. In view of
this, it is clear that the extended meaning given to the term
‘retrenchment’ under clause (00) of Section 2 is also subject
to the context and the subject-matter. Section 25-F prescribed
the conditions precedent to a valid retrenchment of workers
as discussed earlier. Very briefly, the conditions prescribed
are the giving of one month's notice indicating the reasons for
retrenchment and payment of wages for the period of notice.
Section 25-FF provides for compensation to workmen in case
of transfer of undertakings. Very briefly, it provides that every
workman who has been in continuous service for not less than
one year in an undertaking immediately before such transfer
. shall be entitled to notice and compensation in accordance
with the provisions of Section 25-F as if the workman had
been retrenched. (emphasis supplied) Section 25-FFA
provides that sixty days' notice must be given of intention to
close down any undertaking and Section 25-FFF provides
for compensation to workmen in case of closing down of
undertakings. Very briefly stated Section 25-FFF which has
been already discussed lays down that ‘where an undertaking
is closed down for any reason whatsoever, every workman
who has been in continuous service for not less than one year
 in that undertaking immediately before such closure shall,
" subject to the provisions of sub-section (2), be entitled to notice
and compensation in accordance with the provisions of Section
25-F, as if the workman had been retrenched’.”

(emphasis supplied)

6. From the aforementioned observations it is evident that
the definition of ‘retrenchment’ as defined in Section 2(00) of
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the Act has to be read in the context of Sections 25-FF and
25-FFF of the Act and if thus read ‘retrenchment’ under Section
2(00) does not cover termination of service as a result of
closure or transfer of an undertaking though such termination
has been assimilated to retrenchment for certain purposes,
namely, the compensation payable to the workmen whose
services are terminated as a result of such closure, In that view
of the matter Section 25-N which deals with retrenchment
cannot apply to the present case where termination of the
services of the workmen was brought about as a result of the
closure of the undertaking.

7. There is.one more reason why Section 25-N cannot
be made applicable to the workmen in the present case.

Sections 25-N and 25-O were inserted in the Act by Act No.

32 of 1976 whereby Chapter V-B was introduced in the Act.

Section 25-N imposed restrictions in the matter of
retrenchment of workmen employed in large undertakings while
Section 25-0 dealt with the procedure for closing down such
undertakings. Section 25-O was held to be unconstitutional

by this Court in Excel Wear case. The striking down of Section

25-0 would not, ipso facto, result in enlargement of the ambit
of Section 25-N s0 as to cover termination of services of
workmen as a result of closure which was otherwise outside
the ambit of Section 25-N. We are, therefore, unable to uphold
the contention of Shri Sharma that Section 25-N was applicable
in the present case and it was obligatory for the Management
of the respondent- Company to give three months' notice as
required by Section 25-N. Since Section 25-O was not
available on account of the said provision having been struck
down by this Court the only protection that was available to
the workmen whose services were terminated as a resulf of
closure was that contained in Sections 25-FFA and 25-FFF
of the Act. It is not disputed that both these provisions have
been complied with in the present case. ’

13:  Ithasbeen pointed out hereinabove, as to what is the law presently
available under which the action has been taken. Section 25-F FF of the Act
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has also been made as a protective provisions in the Act. Nothing has been
said in Section 25-N of the Act that even in the case where the sanction is
granted under Section 25-O of the Act, still the employer would require to
obtain a sanction to retrench the employees/workmen, before complying with -
the order of closure of the establishment. Thus, if the reading of both the
provisions are made harmoniously, it will be clear that there would not be
application of Section 25-N of the Act, in case the sanction is granted for the
closure of the establishment of an employer by the competent Government in
exercise of its power prescribed under the provisions of the aforesaid Act.

14:  Reliance placed by learned senior counsel for the petitioners in the
case of Straw Products Limited, Bhopal and another vs. Union of India
and others 1986 MPLJ 473 is totally misconceived. Division Bench of this
Court was examining the correctness of the order refusing to grant sanction
to close down an industry as applied under Section 25-O of the Act and since
simultaneously an application under Section 25-N of the Act, was also made
by the said employer, both were rejected simultaneously. This Court was not,
infact, examining the applicability of provisions of Section 25-N of the Act,
despite the fact that sanction was granted under Section 25-O of the Act, to
close down the industry. Thus, reliance placed by learned senior counsel for
petitioners in the case of Straw Products Limited, Bhopal and another vs.
Union of India and others (supra) is totally misconceived.

15:  Looking to these submissions if the law laid down by the Apex Court
in the case of Maruti Udyog Ltd (supra) is examined, it will be clear that the
specific provisions made by the Parliament have been taken into consideration.
The submission that special protection granted under the added provisions of
Chapter V-B would not be affected, cannot be accepted. The scheme of the
Actis to be seen. The scheme of the Act is to grant protection to the employees
from the illegal action of retrenchment or removal of such employees or
workmeén from the industrial employment by the employer. If adequate
arrangement is made for their protection even when sanction is required to be
granted for closing down of an industry, it has to be treated that the object of
the specific provisions made in Chapter V-B are achieved. That being so,
contention of learned senior counsel for petitioners cannot be accepted.
Undisputedly, petitioners have received compensation from the employer on
account of their discontinuance from employment because of the closure of
the establishment. It is also not in dispute that before the closure of the

“
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establishment, sanction from the appropriate Government was asked for which -

was granted. It is also not in dispute that these facts were brought to the
notice of the employees or workmen before effecting the closure of the
establishment. Consequently, there was no occasion for the petitioners to claim
any relief against the retrenchment as they were compensated for discontinuance
from employment in adequate manner. This being so, Labour Court was not
right in entertaining their application or granting any relief to them. Though
specific discussion in this respect has not been done by the appellate authority
in its order with respect to the application of Section 25-N of the' Act or the
provisions of Section 25-O of the Act as has been done hereinabove, but still
the law permits such retrenchment in case of grant of sanction to close the
establishment, of course, only after payment of compensation which in the
case in hand has already been done.”

16:  Consequently, there is no force in the writ petition, same deserves to
be and is hereby dismissed. However, there shall be no order as to costs.

Petition dismissed.

LL.R. [2013] M.P., 1546
WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice K. K. Trivedi
W.P. No. 390/2011(S) (Jabalpur) decided on 2 January, 2013

CHANDRA BHUSAN ...Petitioner
Vs.
SOUTH EASTERN COAL FIELD LIMITED & anr. ...Respondents

Service Law - Date of Birth - Correction - Matriculation
Certificate - In the letter of offer of appointment, it was mentioned that
in case the person fails to produce certificate in proof of age, the same
shall be assessed by Medical Board - However, there is nothing that
the date of birth was recorded on the basis of the certificate produced
by Petitioner or on the basis of medical report - Matriculation certificate
subsequently filed by Petitioner shows different date of birth - Other
school certificates also tally with the date of birth mentioned in
Matriculation Certificate - As per Implementation Instruction No. 76,
Date of Birth is required to be treated as has been mentioned in
Matriculation certificate - Respondents are directed to treat the date
of birth of the petitioner as has been mentioned in Matriculation
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Certificate and to permit him to continue in service till he attains the
age of superannuation according to said date of birth.(Paras 6,7 & 8)
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Cases referred :

W.A. No. 270/2009 decided on 03.09.2009, W.A. No 584/2009
decided on 07.08.2009, AIR 1564 SC 1006.

- K.C. Ghildiyal, for the petitioner.
Greeshm Jain, for the respondent No. 1.
S. Chaturvedi, for the respondent No.2.

ORDER

K.K. Trivepi, J: The petitioner has approached this Court ventilating
his grievance against the action of respondent No.1 of not recording the correct
date of birth of the petitioner in his service roll and making the petitioner to
retire on the basis of wrong date of birth recorded in the service record of the
petitioner. It is contended that the original mark-sheet produced by the
petitioner specifically contains the right date of birth of the petitioner to be
11.04.1956. Such a document was made available at the initial time of
recruitment. This fact is clear from the endorsement made on the document
itself by the Employment Exchange and, therefore, it was necessary for the
respondent No.1 to act on the representation of the petitioner and to direct
correction in the date of birth of the petitioner. It was found by the petitioner
when a Pan Card was issued to the petitioner that his wrong date of birth was
recorded in the service record and that being so, the representation was made
by the petitioner. It was specifically pointed out by the petitioner that there is
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some sort of manipulation done in the service record of the petitioner and,
therefore, the correction of the date of birth of the petitioner was necessary in
terms of the conditions mentioned in the statutory agreement. However, since
stch a prayer of the petitioner has been rejected by the respondents, he is
required to approach this Court.

2. The contention of the petitioner is that he was appointed as Piece
Rated Badli Loader in the establishment of South Eastern Coal Fields Limited
in the year 1978. He was posted in Bijuri Sub Area, Hasdeo. The petitioner
had completed 22 years of age on the date of*his initial appointment. The
relevant documents, such as mark-sheet of the examination of Higher
Secondary School Certificate, were produced by the petitioner at that time.
On 01.01.1985 the petitioner was promoted on the post of Explosive Carrier
and subsequently on the post of Lamp Cleaner on 03.09.1996. Later on he
‘was promoted as Lamp Charger category on 01.01.1999 and subsequently
on the post of Lamp Fitter on 01.01.2006. At no point of time the petitioner
was informed about correction in his date of birth. Even when he came to
know about such mistake committed in recording the date of birth and made
an application before the Personnel Manager of the respondent No.I on
09.04.1998, nothing was done by the respondent No.1. The reminder was
submitted by the petitioner on 12.09.2002 and he insisted for redressal of
grievance but nothing was done. Since on the basis of wrong date of birth the
petitioner is sought to be retired now, he is required to file the present writ
petition.

3. Notices of the writ petition were issued. Under the order of the Court,
respondent No.2, the Board of Secondary Education, Bhopal, was impleaded
as a party. The respondents have filed their returns. Respondent No.1 has
mainly relied on a document said to be prepared under Rule 48 of the Mines
Rules, 1955. It is contended that in the said document the date of birth of the
petitioner was not recorded but only the age of the petitioner was written. It
was said that at the time of initial appointment the petitioner was aged 27
years. The initial date of appointment of the petitioner is 22.11.1978. However,
nothing has been placed on record to indicate as to how this age was ascertained
and whether any declaration was made by the petitioner in that respect or not.
The return of respondent No.2 is only this much that the marksheet produced
by the petitioner was got verified from the records of the Board and it is found
that the correct entries in the date of birth of the petitioner are made in the
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. said certificate. The respondent No.1 was called upon to produce the original
document Annexure R-1 relied by the respondent No.1, which has been
produced and shown to the Court. However, even in the original record,
there is no reference as to how age of the petitioner was mentioned in the
statutory document. ‘

4, The petitioner has filed certain application for taking documents on
record. Such application has been considered and documents have been taken
onrecord. A perusal of those documents will indicate that on certain occasion
the petitioner was required to submit certain forms in which the details of his
family were given. However, in some of the documents, manipulations have
been found.

5. Heard learned Counsel for the parties at length and perused the records
minutely.
6. The sole question would be whether the petitioner was knowing about

the recording of his date of birth in his service rolls or the statutory document
prepared at the initial time of engagement of the petitioner in service or not. It
is not in dispute that the offer was given to the petitioner by respondent No.1
for appointment on 15.11.1978. The said offer produced as Annexure P-1
indicates that the petitioner was called upon to furnish certain certificates,
such as certificate of domicile, certificate of caste and certificate in proof of
age. As far as the certificate in proof of age is concerned, a note was appended
to this column wherein it was categorically said that in case the petitioner fails
to produce certificate in proof of the age, the same shall be assessed by the
Medical Board of the area. Soon after the offer extended to the petitioner, it
appears that the document Annexure R-1 was prepared in which the name of
the petitioner was mentioned. However, all other things were mentioned in
accordance to the declaration made by the petitioner, except the age. Nothing
was said with respect to the age whether any certificate in proof of the same
was produced by the petitioner or not and whether the same was recorded
on the basis of medical report after ascertainment of the age of the petitioner.
Thus, it cannot be said that such fact relating to age of the petitioner on the
date of initial appointment was recorded in terms of the instructions issued
under the offer letter of the respondent No.1. Now if that was the situation
and if any dispute was raised by the petitioner soon after coming into know
about such discrepancy, it was necessary on the part of the respondents to
get an enquiry conducted in that respect. The transfer certificate issued by the
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school authorities further reflects the date of birth of the petitioner. The same

is tallying with the date of birth mentioned in the Matriculation Certificate. In
some of the records of the respondent No.1 subsequently prepared, the date
of birth of the petitioner was written to be 22.11.1951 but there is nothing
available on record to indicate that any such declaration was made by the
petitioner or any document in that respect was produced by him. Though it is
a fact that the petitioner has signed such forms but it cannot be said that the
forms were filled by the petitioner in his own handwriting.

7. There is an agreement with respect to the correction in the date of
birth. However, it is true that only if apparent error has been pointed out then
only the matters are required to be referred.to the Age Determination
Committee but it is also clear that under the instructions so issued, the certificate
of Matriculation has to be treated as the conclusive proof of date of birth. The
document, as produced by the petitioner, indicates that he had already passed
the matriculation on the date when initially he was offered the employment
and the said document was produced before the Employment Exchange. The
said document was duly endorsed by the Employment Exchange. Therefore,
it cannot be accepted that such a document was never brought to the notice of
respondent No. 1. That being so, an enquiry in this respect was required to be
conducted by the respondent No.1to ascertain as to how a particular date of
birth of the petitioner is mentioned in the statutory document when specially
there was nothing placed on record to show that such a date of birth was
declared by the petitioner. From where date of birth of the petitioner to be
22.11.1951 had come to the notice of respondent No. 1, is not clear. Thus, it
was imperative on the part of the respondents to look into such request made
by the petitioner in the year 1998.

8. In the return of the respondent No. 1, this particular document, making
of the application, has not been denied. On the other hand, they have mentioned
the said document, for the purpose that about the dispute of date of birth, for
the first time after 20 years of service, the petitioner has made the
representation. If such a representation was made, it was necessary for the
respondent No.1 to get an enquiry conducted in that respect and to pass the
appropriate orders. Learned Counsel for the petitioner has drawn attention of
this Court to the order passed by the Division Bench of this Court in W.A.
No.270/2009 (Rajendra Kumar Mehta vs. South Eastern Coal Fields Ltd.
& others), decided on 03.09.2009. It is contended by learned Counsel

in
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appearing for the petitioner that the dispute with respect to the date of birth,
vis-a-vis making reference of the said dispute in terms of the Implementation
Instruction No.76 was considered by the Division Bench of this Court and it
has been categorically held by this Court that the date of birth is required to
be treated as has been mentioned in the Matriculation Certificate in terms of
the aforesaid Instruction No.76. Again relying in the case of Sheikh Mumtaz
vs. South Eastern Coal Fields Ltd. & others, W.A.No.584/2009, decided
on 07.08.2009, learned Counsel for the petitioner has pointed out that where
the reliefs were refused by the Single Bench of this Court, the writ appellate
Court has granted the relief in terms of Tmplementation Instruction No.76. It
is contended that in view of the law laid-down by this Court, it would be .
appropriate to command the respondent No.1 to treat the petitioner in service

till he attains the age of superannuation in accordance to the date of birth . '

recorded in his Matriculation Certificate.

9. Per contra, it is conterided by learned Counsel appearing for
respondent No.1 that these instructions have been considered by this Court
in various cases. Relying in the decisions rendered by the Apex Court as also
by this Court in several other cases, the Single Bench of this Court has refused
to entertain such a claim. It is pointed out that at the best the matter can be
referred to the Age Determination Committee and no relief could be granted
to the petitioner. Further placing reliance in the case of State of Madhya
*-Pradesh and others Vs. Bhailal Bhai, AIR 1964 SC 1006, it is contended
that because of the delay caused by the petitioner in raising the dispute with
respect to the date of birth, he is not entitled to any relief and the writ petition
deserves to be dismissed.

10.  The submissions made by learned Counsel for the parties are
considered. It is not the case that the petitioner was not vigilant about
the discrepancies committed in mentioning the date of birth of the
petitioner in the record. As has been pointed out herein above, the first
representation was made by the petitioner in the year 1998. No attempt
whatsoever was made by the respondent No.l to get the said
representation decided, after verifying the date of birth of the petltloner
from the records of the respondent No.2, Board. It is also not proved by
the respondent No.1 that petitioner was fully aware of the date of birth
recorded in his service record from day one. Thus, it cannot be said that
the petitioner was not vigilant about his rights. Such a stand taken by the
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respondent No.1, thus, cannot-be accepted. Now the fact remains that

the statutory provisions have been made for verifying the date of birth of
an employee. For the said purpose, even in the offer letter the note was
made by the réspondent No.1 itself. It is not acceptable as to why the
" petitioner would not have produced the Matriculation Certificate before
the respondent No.1 in proof of his date of birth. It is also not clear as to
why such a document was not available in the record of the respondent
No.1 even when it was produced before the Employment Exchange from
where reference was made with respect to employment of the petitioner.
It is also not clear as to how a particular date as has been mentioned in
subsequent forms, has-been ascertained by the respondent No.l,
" especially when there was no such declaration made by the petitioner.
Lastly, the petitioner was never put for medical examination for the
purposes of ascertainment of his age on the initial date of appointment
even in accordance to the note ' made in the offer letter issued to the
- petitioner. Therefore, in fact it has to be held that the petitioner has
produced the certificate of Matriculation, which was to be accepted as
proof of the date of birth but the same was never taken note of by the
respondent No. 1. In view of this, the petitioner is entitled to the relief as
was granted by the Division Bench of this Court in the case of Rajendra
Kumar Mehta (supra) and Sheikh Mumtaj (supra). The law laid-down
by the Apex Court as also by this Court in different cases is not applicable

in view of the basic difference in the facts and circumstances of the present

case from the cases decided by the Apex Court and this Court.

11..  Consequently, this writ petition is allowed. The respondents aré
directed to treat the date of birth of the petitioner as has been mentioned
in the Matriculation Certificate in terms of the Implementation Instruction
No.76 and to permit him to continue in the employment till he attains the
age of superannuation according to the said date of birth. The petitioner
be reinstated in service and the period of absence from service be

regularized by making the payment of arrears of salary to the petitioner. -

The aforesaid exercise be completed within a period of one month from
the date of the order.

12.  The writ petition is allowed to the extent indicated herein above.
However, there shall be no order as to costs.

Petition allowed.

-
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WRITPETITION -
Before Mr. S.A. Bobde, Chief Justice & Mr. Justice Aﬂt Smgh
W.P. No. 360/2002 (Jabalpur) decided on 21 March, 2013 -

RAVINDRANATH TRIPATHI | .~ ...Petitioner .
Vs. ' ’
UNION OF INDIA & ors. S Respondents

. A Armed Forces Tribunal Act (55 of 2007), Section 14
Constitution, Article 226 - Jurisdiction of High Court - Petitioner apart

from challenging the punishment of discharge’ ‘from service has also.

questioned the constitutionality of various provisions of Air Force Act,
1950 - Air Force Act confers Jurlsdlctlon, powers and authority

exercisable by all Courts except the Supreme Court or High Courton -

the Tribunal - There is no exclusion of ]urlsdlctmn of High Court - High
Court has jurisdiction to entertain the petltlon (Paras 7 to 12)
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B. Interpretation of Statutes - Exclusion of Jurisdiction -
Clauses which purports to exclude the Jurlsdlctlon of the Courts must
be read strictly. (Para 10)
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Rajendra Tiwari with Abhishek Tiwari-as amicus cunae :
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ORDER '

The Order of the «court was delivered by:
S.A. BospE, C.J.: A question is raised by the respondents whether the
petitioner has an alternative remedy under Section 14 of the Armed Forces
Tribunal Act, 2007 (hereinafter referred to as the AFT Act).

2, The petitioner has approached this Court for relief against the order
dated 27.7.2000 imposing a punishment of discharge from service on him. In
addition he has questioned the constitutionality of Sections 82, 83, 84 and 86

- of the Air Force Act, 1950 being ultra vires Article 14 of the Constitution of
India; Rules 24 and 31 of the Air Force Rules, 1969 being ultra vires Article
14 of the Constitution of India; Section 50 (b) of the Air force Act 1950 being
ultra vires Article 22 (2) of the Constitution of India and Rule 15 (2) (g) (ii) of
the Air Force Rules, 1969 being ultra vires Article 20 (2) of the Constitution
of India.

3. According to the respondents the petitioner has equally efficacious . -
alternative remedy under Section 14 of the AFT Act, which enables a person
aggrieved by an order pertaining to any service matter may make an application
to the Tribunal for redressal. Since the question raised on behalf of the
respondents is of general importance we requested Shri Rajendra Tiwari,
learned Senior Counsel to assist the Court as amicus curiae.

4. According to the amicus curiae and the réspondents, Section 14 of
the AFT Act provides an alternative remedy to the petitioner even when he
challenges the constitutional validity of provisions of a statute such as Air Force
Act, 1950. The main submission of Shri Tiwari is based on the observations
of the Supreme Court in the case of L. Chandra Kumar Vs. Union of India
and others (1997) 3 SCC261, wherein the question raised was whether
Tribunals should not be allowed to adjudicate upon matters where the vires of
legislations is questioned, and that they should restrict themselves to handling
matters where constitutional issues are not involved. The Supreme Court
rejected the contention that the matters relating to constitutional validity of
statute cannot be raised before the Tribunals. The Supreme Court observed
as follows:

"90.......It has been contended before us that the Tribunals
should not be allowed to adjudicate upon matters where
the vires of legislations is questioned, and that they should
restrict themselves to handling matters where
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constitutional issues are not raised.. We cannot bring -
ourselves to agree to this proposition as that may result in
splitting up proceedings and may cause avoidable delay.
If such a view. were to be adopted, it would be open for
litigants to raise constitutional issues, many of which may
be quite frivolous, to directly approach the High Courts
and thus subvert the jurisdiction of the Tribunals. Moreover,
even in these special branches of law, some areas do involve
the consideration of constitutional questions on a regular
basis; for instance, in service law matters, a large majority
of cases involve an interpretation of Articles 14, 15 and

-16 of the Constitution. To hold that the Tribunals have no

power to handle matters involving constitutional issues
would not serve the purpose for which they were
constituted. On the other hand, to hold that all such
decisions will be subject to the jurisdiction of the High
Courts under Articles 226/227 of the Constitution before
a Division Bench of the High Court within whose territorial
jurisdiction the Tribunal concerned falls will serve two
purposes. While saving the power of judicial review of
legislative action vested in the High Courts under Article
226/227 of the Constitution, it will ensure that frivolous
claims are filtered out through the process of adjudication
in the Tribunal. The High Court will also have the benefit
of a reasoned decision on merits which will be of use to it
in finally deciding the matter.

91. It has also been contended before us that even in
dealing with cases which are properly before the Tribunals,
the manner in which justice is dispensed by them leaves
much to be desired. Moreover, the remedy provided in the

. parent status, by way of an appeal by special leave under

article 136 of the Constitution, is too costly and in
accessible forit to be real and effective. Furthermore, the
result of providing such a remedy is that the docket of the
Supreme Court is crowded with decisions of Tribunals that
are challenged on relatively trivial grounds and it is forced

. to perform the role of a First Appellate- Court. We have
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already emphasised the necessity for ensuring that the High
Courts are able to exercise judicial superintendence over
the decisions of Tribunals under Article 227 of the
Constitution. "

5. In conclusion the Supreme Court declared Clause 3 (d) of the Article
323-B to the extent they exclude the jurisdiction of the High Courts and the
Supreme Court under Articles 226/227 and 32 of the Constitution as
unconstitutional in the following words

“In view of the rea'.s*oning adopted by us, we hold
that Clguse 2(d) of Article 3234 and Clause 3(d) of Article
323B, to. the extent they exclude the jurisdiction of the

'High Courts and the Supreme Court under Articles 226/
227 and 32 of the Constitution, are unconstitutional
Section 28 of the Act and the "exclusion of jurisdiction" _
clauses in all other legislations enacted under the aegis of
Articles 3234 and 323B would, to the same extent, be
unconstitutional. The jurisdiction conferred upon the High
Courts under Articles 226/227 and upon the Supreme Court
under Article 32 of the Constitution is a part of the
inviolable basic structure of our Constitution. While this
jfurisdiction cannot be ousted, other courts and Tribunals
may perform a supplemental role in discharging the powers
conferred by Articles 226/227 and 32 of the Constitution.
The Tribunals created under Article 3234 and Article 323B
of the Constitution are possessed of the competence to test
the constitutional validity of statutory provisions and rules.
All decisions of these Tribunals will, however, be subject
to scrutiny before a Division Bench of the High Court within
whose jurisdiction the Tribunal concerned falls. The
Tribunals will, nevertheless, continue to act like course of
first instance in respect of the areas of law for which they
have been constituted. It will not, therefore, be open for
litigants to directly approach the High Courts even in cases
where they question the vires of statutory legislations
(except where the legislation which creates the particular
Tribunal is challenged) by overlooking the jurisdiction of
the concerned Tribunal. Section 5(6) of the Act is valid
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- and constitutional and is to be interpreted in the manner |
we have indicated.

06.  According to Shri Tiwari the same position in law would operate in
relation to the jurisdiction conferred by AFT Act on the Tribunal constituted
under that Act and, therefore, the petitioner must not only approach that
Tribunal as an alternative remedy provided to him by law, but this Court cannot
entertain the petition since the Supreme Court has observed that it is the
Tribunal alone which should act as a Court of first instance, and not this Court.
Shri Tiwari further contended that the statement of law by Supreme Court 1s
binding on this Court, which indeed it is, and if this Court exercises jurisdiction,
the same shall be contrary.to the statutory provisions. We must, therefore,
examine the statutory provisions. Section 14 of the Armed Forces Tribunal -
Actreads as follows:-

"14 - Jurisdiction, powers and authority in service
matters. (1) Save as otherwise expressly provided in this
Act, the Tribunal shall exercise, on and from the appointed
day, all the jurisdiction, powers and authority, exercisable
immediately before that day by all courts (except the
Supreme Court or a High Court exercising jurisdiction
under articles 226 and 227 of the Constitution) in relation
to all service matters. ’

(2)  Subject to the other proyisions of this Act, a person
aggrieved by an order pertaining 1o any service matter
may make an application to the Tribunal in such form and
accompanied by such documents or other evidence and
on payment of such fee as may be prescribed.

(3)  On receipt of an application relating 1o service
matters, the Tribunal shall, if satisfied after due inquiry,
as it may deem necessary, that it is fit for adjudication by
it, admit such application; but where the Tribunal is not
so satisfied, it may dismiss the application after recording
its reasons in writing.

(4) For the purpose of adjudicating an application, the
Tribunal shall have the same powers as are vested in a
Civil Court under the Code of Civil Procedure, 1908, (5
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of ]908) while trying a suit in respect of the following
matters, namely- :

(@)  summoning and enforcing the attendance of any
person and examining him on oath;

()  requiring the discovery and production of
documents:

(c) receiving evidence on affidavits;

(d)  subject to the provisions of sections 123 and 124
of the Indian Evidence Act, 1872, (1 of 1872) requisitioning
any public record or document or copy of such record or
document from any office;

(e) issuing commissions for the examination of
witnesses or documents;

11 reviewing its decisions;

(g)  dismissing an application for default or deciding it
exparte;

(h}  setting aside any order of dismissal of any application
for default or any order passed by it exparte; and

(i) any other matter which may be prescribed by the
Central Government.

(5)  The Tribunal shall decide both questtons of law and
facts that may be raised before it."”

07.  Wefind that on plain reading of Section 14 of the AFT Act, which in sharp
contrast to Section 14 of the Administrative Tribunals Act, the AFT Act confers
the jurisdiction, powers and authority exercisable by all Courts except the Supreme
Court or the High Court exercising jurisdiction under Article 226 and 227 of the
Constitution of India on the Tribunal on and from the appointed day. In other
words it does not confer the jurisdiction, power and authority of the High Court
under Articles 226 and 227 of the Constitution of India on the Tribunal.

08.  On the other hand Section 14 of the Administrative Tribunals Act,
1985 reads as follows: -
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- "14. Jurrsdacnon powers and authority of the Central
Administrative Tribunal - (1) Save as otherwise expressly
provided in this Act, the Central Admmzstranve Tribunal
shall exercise, on and from the appointed day, all the
jurisdiction, powers.and authority exercisable immediately
before that day by all courts (except the Supreme Court)
inrelation to -

(a) recruitment, and matiers concernmg recruitment, to
any All-India Service or to any civil service of the Union
or a civil post under the Union or to a Post connected
with defence or in the defence services, being, in either
case, a post filed by a civilian,;

(b) all service matters concerning -
(i) a member of any All-India Service; or

(ii) a person [not being a member of an All-India Service
_ or a person referred to in clause (c)] appointed to any civil
service of the Union or any civil post under the Union; or

(ifi) a civilian [not being a member of an All-India Service or
a person referred to in clause (¢} appointed to any defence
services or a post connected with defence, and pertaining to
the service of such member, person or civilian, in connection
with the affairs of the Union or of any State or of any local
or other authority within the territory of India or under the
control of the Government of India or of any corporation or
society owned or controlled by the Government,

(¢) all service matters pertaining to service in connection
with the affairs of the Union concerning a person
appointed to any service or posi referred lo in sub-clause
(ii) or sub-clause (iii) of clause (b), being a person whose
services have been placed by a State Government or any
local or other authority or any corporation or society or
other body, at the disposal of the Central Government for
such appointment.

Explanation: For the removal of doubts, il is hereby
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declared that references to "Union" in this sub-section
shall be construed as including references also toa Union
- Territory."

. This provision purports to confer the jurisdiction, power and authonty
of all Courts (except the Supreme Court) and on Administrative Tribunal.

09. Inthe cucumstances, we find that there is no exclusion of the _]UIlSdICtlon
of this Court under Article 226/227 of the Constitution in relation to subject
matters, but on the contrary what is conferréd on the Tribunal is the jurisdiction,
powers and authority exercisable by all Courts except the powers and authority
of the Supreme court and the High Court under Article 226 and 227 of the
Constitution of India.L. Chandra Kumar's case (supra) cannot be treated as
authority for the proposition as contended by Shri Tiwari that every Tribunal
established under Articles 323-A and 323 (B) of the Constitution alone has
jurisdiction to decide upon the matters involving the constitutional validity of
statutes. Undoubtedly, Clause 2 (b) of Article 323-A and Clause 3 (d) of
Article 323-B, to the extent they exclude the jurisdiction of the High Courts
and the Supreme Court under Articles 226/227 and 32 of the Constitution
have been held to be unconstitutional, but that is clearly on the ground that the
jurisdiction conferred upon the High Court under Article 226/227 of the
Constitution of India and upon the Supreme Court under Article 32 of the
Constitution of India is a part of the inviolable basic structure of our
Constitution. Thus, the point can be viewed from two aspects; one, what
powers have been conferred on the Tribunal under the AFT Act and two,
correspondingly whether there is any exclusion of jurisdiction of the High
Courts. This can be done only by considering the plain meaning of the
parliamentary legislation by which jurisdiction has been conferred on the
Tribunal. As noted earlier the plain words of Section 14 of the AFT Act only
confers the jurisdiction, power and authority exercisable by all Courts and in
the same breath carves out an exception in relation to the powers of the
Supreme Court or the High Court exercising jurisdiction under Articles 226/
227 of the Constitution. Considering the matter from the point of view of exclusion
of jurisdiction of the High Court, Parliament has left no doubt in expressing its
intention o retain the jurisdiction of the High Court under Article 226/227 of the
Constitution in relation tothe service matters governed by the AFT Act.
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10, Ttis well settled that clauses which purported to exclude the jurisdiction
of the Courts must be read strictly. :

11.  We may add that the observations apply with greater force while
considering the subject of exclusion of jurisdiction of High Court under Articles
226/227 of the Constitution, which in fact cannot be excluded vide L.
Chandra Kumar (supra).

12.  Intheresult weare of the view that this matter is liable to be entertained
by this Court. Hence issue Rule, Returnable within six weeks. Notice be issued
to the Attorney General.

Order accordingly.

1.L.R. [2013] ML.P., 1561
WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice Rakesh Saksena & Smt. Justice Vimla Jain
W.P. No. 11254/2012 (Jabalpur) decided on 2 April, 2013

DEEPAK PUROHIT ...Petitioner
Vs. , -
STATE OF M.P. & ors. ...Respondents

A. National Securify Act (65 of 1980), Section 3(2) &
Constitution, Articles 22(5) & 19 - Preventive detention - Order of
detention against the detenu passed on 08.06.2012 - Activities of detenu
which could have been prejudicial to the maintenance of Public Order
in the year 2010, cannot be held to be proximate and relevant for
forming subjective satisfaction of the detaining authority. (Para 14)

@ T gar T (1980 FT 65) 7T 3(2) T T
AT 22(5) T 19 — fyarw fradag — 4@ 3 fasg fET® 08.06.2012 &1
frtg sy TRE fear T — ¥ @ SRAGEM W G 2010 B AP
arqRel @ aeEml @ R aRee B ged o, o Prig uiterd 3
afmfrs Yqfc a9 2 A= U9 YEIT 819 @ gRen e @ S
qHdl | '

B. National Security Act (65 of 1980), Section 3(2} &
Constitution, Articles 22(5) & 19 - Order of Preventive detention passed
on the ground pertaining to Public Order - Act of detenu was merely
individual i.e. it affected only two injured persons, but did not affect
the peace or tranquillity of rest of the community in any manner -

N
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Therefore, it could ‘ﬁot be held to be a breach of Public Order
constituting the basis of detention of the petitioner. (Para 10)

@ wgly g IR (1980, w1 65) aRY 3(2) T WG,
afgsa‘azz(s)am—ahim?m@wafﬁamﬂﬂwﬁﬁnmﬁﬁam
Frew ika faar T — T8 o1 o A AR o7 iy Suw ST
& 3mew =afyd vwifg g Wy Oy wEr 1 Wi @ vty o fed
YHR ¥ wyHifad ad fear — maﬁmmmwwq—eﬁwm
TPal, fwd A @ Rt &1 aeR Tfed 8 6 |

C. National Security Act (65 of 1980}, Section 3(2) &
Constitution, Articles 22(5) & 19 - Preventive Detention -Not punitive
- Detenu can claim no right of peremptory hearing or a show cause
notice before the detention order is passed by the authority. (Para 4)

T T gYaT AaT (1980 BT 65), GRT 3(2) T W
JLTBT 22(5) T 19 — Frared Al — gvsrgs 78 — 8, wte™ grr
Frier sy wiRa 5 o /@ qd et gaard @ sifter 1 ar srer
Fail Aifew o1 <m@T 9d SR wsar|

D.  National Security Act (65 of 1980), Section 3(2) -
Preventive Detention - Object of - Objective of preventive detention is
to prevent a person from acting in any manner prejudicial to the security
of the State or from acting in any manner prejudicial to the maintenance
of public order. (Para d4)

24 IR T Gffam (1980 @7 65), GRT 3(2) — Frane
favle — @7 95597 — frans PRig o1 sq3w wfw & w9 gean
# fay sfma 5 yor & ool v @ FoE A g @
Faeer % fay gfiga fedl gyor ) sfad s | Qe 2

Cases referred :

) AIR 1957 SC 688, AIR 1975 SC 550, AIR 1974 SC 2154, AIR
1992 SC 687.

J.A. Shah, for the petitioner.

Yogesh Dhande, Dy. G.A. for the respondents.

ORDER

The Order of the court was delivered by :
Raxzsn SAKSENA, J: Petitioner, the deten, by this petition under Art.226 of the
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Constitution of India, has invoked the writ jurisdiction of this Court seeking
quashment of the order dated 8.6.2012 (Annexure-P/1) whereby he has been
detained under the provisions of National Security Act, 1980. The aforesaid
detention order was passed by District Magistrate, Indore on the following grounds:

Y (& ATFRIR 9T B SNIRS gafy @ &l @ 6
TRHY ¥ 2006 | AU HFET B Y AT FRT ARGIE, ATHATSH,
YITETS FHET S 5 SR ufed 6 & [ U g B @Y W
T Tewal ¥ e AR W R UHe USdr 2| ue
JRIEE fafafrdl @ deq & Rl W 9w W) gfodarers
FrfaE) 1 T 2

fesiis 4—6—2012 &1 LA 10—10 FoI ARTIYT AUSAlS foar

AT AVSAIS 99 B HID TR X AT &7 o7 fF A &) 9% e
A THH B G Ig A o1 5 9 wse e frar IREo
UGS Bl Blg 9% YWY THEd § ¥ IRE U9 @ fod
T S 3 B BRY WM ¥ ARA @ FRm W 9, AR S 86
Fe® M @ TR R A oY S yrdg o 707 FH 984 AW |
FSBT e o AN Avedls 19 99 B T w99 f
PTe] 3 2Ie+ §1 Bl 5ol W e UgarE | §9 HeAl § &% # <e9a
. &1 areTaRYT PR stex e egawer 7 A 8 1 | RuiE w® A
ST S7aIR TR Y, B, 204 /12 °ORT 307, 34 UEfA 73 :2: /3 5
gollag o T & fon 71| 39 Ul Q@ SANr A BT
TEIR & ME ] N AU ATIHT IS AegH PR E ¥ | TH "l
& TR fF 5-6—2012 BT FHRIR U= ISTaRIIN, TN Ui,
e wree, w2 g, ga gfvar ¥ faega w9 @ yafie gy 81
IS favE T9Y Y68 Do drdard) A8l 31 13 o 3 F41 A 9/
PR A TTAT Tfed o) e @aRll Y W PR GHd § | 3: A9
freg TGP B T8 DIAE I WET AT SETES 8 TR

- o faRer R 39 AT 6e §, ﬁ%amﬁﬂ's‘arﬁsﬁ
- iR m R

4— . YD S IRY B g e A, WRT WIR, 7T
foely, Trog IR (S iR, B, AT T (@) R, A Bt
AT T &1 JATER & 7 qoon 915 3 g9 SuRed 81HR
A9 U i BT UG T ¥ 3T e 2|

Iy
(1) faiia 4—3—2006 &} A9 BRAET A= T gror Reras
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T ISP AIS B R A8 B AN URER RAR gEd A TR
&Y e ugars, M- miorn €, e 7 WM A 39 @) gEa 9
GREATE] B G0 U | T ST $EN R Y. B 94 /2008 SRT 324,
323, 204, 506, 34 ALE.R & HIW B 918 FAd==T TEE =wTey
uw frar Tan | fTae) Ted sivrm RreR IR, %, 1 IR o )

(2)  Fri 11-3—2009 H MU BRI B TART B TR
TR QAL 09 /3 /5039 4T TR W B o AT, HRATEY B
I W A AT S $EIR IR AR FHAG 126 /2006 HRT 379
7efd. BT B B uEeer A SRE A aRd uw @ e
e ST GRUTY @ 9N 7 wpeR ST @t | e ¥ 9T
fardrerr =renr =aravera A U frar T | R qhe IR . 2 W
Her e B |

(3) MU gTw fRATE 15—07—2010 B A9 Wil wfed vaaa
BIPR BRATE W9 FMA T TR AT el BT by aRGIE, TS0
TS AR, S QAR B gAS! 41| R R | o W g8 w
374 B. 267 /10 YIRT 327, 323, 294, 506, 34 TTE. BT BTAH B THYI
¥ 915 faee arem =rarerd g e | Raar Ted 9y R,
IRRT . 3 W el & |

{4) qTUD FIRT R’NE 2—9—2010 B AU Wi wird e
BIPY BRATET THI AT 9 IRE O & 71 & it 128 29 oy,
Freells iferar €1 @ W9 ¥ A Y A ¥ TR, 9 @ dgs
q aRdle TR ITETE dic TgATE | BRI B Rud WY o
S 51X UX STURTT BA(G 343 /10 €T 307, 394, 34 HISFA SHTHT
€T 25 I GaT BT THROT Hrgd fan srex fedem o farar siav
YHIT ¥ 915 fad=m e <Ay § g7 fE | e 9ed
TR R, ®. 4 o Hem )

(5) femie 4—6—2012 B A 10—10 99 TR Fogad foar
WAEE AUSAlS Wd T PP R X AT ¥ET o] 5 o) ) ag enrare
B gHH B A UgHT A 3@l o wHP wsd Mhrel fiar AR
AUSEls Bl lq Sth JHNICH uTeliaret g & IR 0 & B3/
arl TET 3 @B BRI A | AR P Fwa A 916 4R o ews
d$® Mura 3 T R B F9 F ura o qAT WH 987 o |
TEPT RieeTral df TR Avsald dia 9919 B T4 O 98 0 Big
A TIfe &1 @) g TR AT WA | 39 HTAT 9 &9 ¥ <5 @
arareRe P gt} e srawr d w1 W 8 T | RO woamn o
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T8I UY 3. B, 204 /12 €RT 307, 34 WA T3 :2/ 3 5 W
goiag He faea-r # foram | _

_ $9 TOR SURea @ 59 I8 faeard & w4 ¥ 5 s e
Hfesa § 53 TPR FHd B Al qIRAT B G B DA | AIHT
TWAA U W =R HRAT SRR B fFa ¥ T g 90w © | 9y
& AP @ 97 81 B Y9 WA & | 8 SHie TS freg
Ty e AT, 1980 B ORI 3 (2) B TEA FRAATE B S
FEaTE B TR '

SR BRI D MR ST RATD 08—06—2012 BT <ITAeRIA

TRT 9 W ERER 9 99 5 ™)
| foren <o
foren gy, w9,
2. The aforesaid order was passed on the representation made by

Superintendent of Police, West district Indore on 7.6.2012. On the same day,
the grounds of the order along with its particulars were supplied to detenu
and he was sent to Central Jail, Rewa in execution of the detention order. An
information in this regard was supplied to his father Radheshyam Purchit on
the same day. Detention order was approved by the Government.

3. Petitioner has challenged his detention order mainly on the grounds
that the said order was issued without affording any opportunity of hearing to
him or giving any show cause notice to him and that the grounds on which the
detention order was passed pertained merely to the law and order and not to
public order since they did not affect the public at large.

4. As far as the first ground of challenge is concerned, the provisions of
detention under National Security Act find roots in Arts. 21-22 of the
Constitution of India. Art. 21 postulates that no person shall be deprived of
hislife or personal liberty except to the procedure established by law. Before
a person is deprived of his life or personal liberty, the procedure established
by law must be strictly followed and must not be departed from to the
disadvantage of the person affected. Although Art.19 guarantees the freedom
of all citizens to move freely throughout the territory of India, but it is subject
to reasonable restrictions imposed by the Constitution of India. In the beginning
in Gopalan A.K. Vs. State of Madras- AIR 1957 SC 688, the Apex Court
held that the rights conferred by Art.19 are the rights of free men and a person
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whose personal liberty has been taken away under a valid law of punitive
[Art.21] or preventive [Art.22] detention cannot complain of the infringement
of any o_f the fuidamental rights guaranteed by Art.19. According to this view,
Arts.21-22 formed a self-contained code to which the other provisions of
Part III weré not attracted. Though this view has, however, been overturned,
bit by bit, by the Supreme Court itself, but in cases of Khudiram Das V.
State of W.B.-AIR 1975 SC 550 and Haradhon Saha Vs. State of W.B.- .
AIR 1974 SC 2154, the Supreme Court held that even though Art.19 may be
applicable, alaw of preventive detention, which complies with the requirements ,
of Art.22(5), cannot be held to offend against Art.19, as the elements of
procedural reasonableness and natural justice are embodied in Art.22(5) itself.
Even otherwise the law of preventive detention is not punitive, since the objective
of preventive detention is to prevent a person from acting in any manner
prejudicial to the security of the State or from acting in any manner prejudicial
to the maintenance of public order. Therefore, the grant of opportunity of
hearing or issue of show cause notice before passing of the detention order
would essentially frustrate the objective of the law. What the detaining authority
is bound to do, is to follow the procedure strictly provided in the statute, as
stich we are of the view that detenu can claim no ri ght of peremptory hearing
or a show cause notice, before the detention order is passed by the authority.

‘5. Next ground of challenge of the detention is that the incidents, which
have been made grounds for passing the detention order, are either stale or
do not pertain to 'public order".

6. In the order dated 8.6.2012, District Magistrate mentioned that in the
year 2006, detenu committed five offences like Maar-peet, stabbing and
attempt to commit murder etc. which affected public order of the society. For
preventing such activities of the detenu time to time preventive measures were
also taken.

7. The latest ground relates to the incident dated 4.6.2012 wherein it is
alleged that in the night at about 10 o'clock detenu and his associate, Kalu @
Purushottam caused knife injury to Gopal when he did not give water to them
for consuming liquor. Knife injury was caused on his thigh. When his father
Narayan Mandloi tried to save him, Kalu also caused injury on his hand. It is
alleged that by this incident an atmosphere of terror was created in the area
and the public order was disrupted. On report being lodged with the police,
offence under section 307/34 LP.C. and section 3(2)(v) of SC/ST (Prevention
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of Atrocities) Act was registered.

8. " On perusal of the first/information report of the aforesaid incident, it is
revealed that it was lodged at 11:00 p.m., but it was not disclosed in it that
any terror was caused in the locality or it affected anybody else than the
- victims of the incident. Thodgh the said incident is said to have taken place
near the shop of one Agrawal, but no particulars about the fact that the incident
in any manner affected the public or the locality at large or unleashed a terror
in the locality were given. - ' o '

9. Supreme Court in number of cases held that there is clear distinction
between “law and order” and “public order” and pointed the difference
between the two. In case of Victoria Fernandes Vs. Lalmal Sawma and
others-AlIR 1992 SC 687, Supreme Court held:

~ “The distinction between the areas of 'law and order’ and 'public
order' is one of degree and extent of the reach of the act in
question on society. It is the potentiality of the act to disturb
the even tempo of life of the community which makes it

- prejudicial to the maintenance of the public order. If a
contravention in its effect is confined only to a few individuals
directly involved as distinct from a wide spectrum of public, it
would raise the problem of law and order only. It is the length,
magnitude and intensity of the terror wave unleashed by a

- particular eruption of disorder that helps distinguish it as an
act affecting 'public order' from that concerning 'law and order'.
The question to ask is : Does it lead to disturbance of the
current life of the community so as to amount to a disturbance
of the public order or does it affect merely an individual leaving
the tranquility of the society undisturbed ? This question has
to be faced in every case on its facts.[See: Dr. Ram Manohar
Lohia Vs. State of Bihar, (1966) 1 SCR 709=(AIR 1966

- 8C 740); drun Ghosh Vs. State of West Bengal, (1970) 3
SCR 288= (AIR 1970 SC 1228); Ram Ranjan Chatterjee
Vs. State of West Bengal, (1975) 3 SCR 301 = (AIR 1975
"SC 609); dshok Kumar Vs. Delhi Administration, (1982)
2 8CC 403=(AIR 1982 SC 1143)].”

¢

10. Keeping in view the above proposition of law, if we examine the
aforesaid ground, we find that the act of detenu was merely individual in the
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sense that it affected only two injured persons, but did not affect the peace or
tranquility of rest of the community in any manner, therefore, it could not be
held to be a breach of public order constituting the basis of detention of the
petitioner.

11.  The ground relating to the incident dated 4.3.2006 is that because of
an old dispute petitioner abused complainant and his brother and intimidated
them by knife for which offence under sections 324,323,294,506,34 of the
Indian Penal Code was registered. Apparently this incident also related to
individual person and did not cause any breach of public order. Apart from it,
it is stale also, since it cannot be held to be proximate or relevant for forming
the subjective satisfaction of the detaining authority in the year 2012. -

12, Other ground that on 11.3.2009 detenu committed theft of the scooter
of Rakesh Galani and thereby committed offence under section 379 of the
Indian Penal Code, in our opinion, cannot by any stretch of imagination be
held to have caused breach of public order, in the absence of any partlculars
about the desperate character of the detenu indicating his indul gence insuch
type of activities regularly and affecting the public at large. '

13.  Inthe ground pertaining to the incident dated 15.7.2010 detenu along
with his associates is said to have assaulted and intimidated complainant Sanjay -
Kamle for illegally extorting money from him. Similarly on 2.9.2010 he and
his associates demanded money from complainant Mukesh Luniya for liquor
" and on not yielding his demand, hurled abuses and in an attempt to cause
death, assaulted him with sword, iron rod and stick causing serious injuries to
him. On report being lodged by complainant a case under sections 294, 307/
341P.C. was registered against detenu and his associates. On examining the
first information reports of both the aforesaid incidents, it transpires that the
incidents occurred at public places and detenu and his associates attempted
to extort money from the complainants and also caused injuries to complainants.
In the later incident, they reached armed with weapons at the milk diary of
complainant in the night at about 8:30 p.m. and after abusing and intimidating
him, caused serious injuries to him.

14.  Looking to the nature of the above incidents, it can be concluded that
the aforesaid acts of detenu could have impact upon large section of the
community and have affect on the public order, but the fact remains that
detaining authority passed the detention order on 8.6.2012 on the basis of -
incident which occurred in the night of 4.6.2012. As we have already found
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that the said incident did not amount to be an activity of detenu affecting the
public order, it is difficult to hold that the detention order could have been
passed on the basis of incidents, which occurred in the year 2010, i.e. about
2 years earlier to the passing of detention order. The activities of detenu which
could have been prejudicial to the maintenance of public order in the year
2010 cannot be held to be proximate and relevant for forming subjective
satisfaction of the detaining authority for passing the detention order on
8.6.2012. No doubt, had the incident dated 4.6.2012 affected the public
order of the society, the activities of detenu which affected public order of the
society in the year 2010 could have been relevant, as the past conduct or
antecedent history of detenu, and could appropriately be taken into account
in making the detention order. '

15.  Since the detaining authority passed the detention order making the
incident 0f4.6.2012 a ground of detention of petitioner which we have found
not affecting the public order, merely on the basis of past history of the detenu
which, in our opinion, was not proximate or relevant for constituting the
subjective satisfaction for passing the detention order, in our opinion, the
impugned detention order cannot be sustained.

16.  For the aforesaid reasons, we allow the petition and quash the

" detention order No.30/Detn./St./2012 dated 8.6.2012 passed against the

petitioner. Respondents are directed to release the petitioner immediately if
not required in any other case.

Petition aliowed.

L.L.R. [2013]) M.P., 1569
" WRIT PETITION
. Before Mr. Justice Sujoy Paul
W.P. No. 2285/2013 (Gwalior) decided on 8 April, 2013

RADHESHYAM RATHI | 1 .. Petitioner
Vs, _ : '
ROTARYCLUB & ors. . Lo ...Respondents

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 39 Rule 1,2,3 & Order
43, Rule (1)(r) - Ex parte Injunction - Appeal - Order 39 Rule 3 is a
method and prescribes a methodology and procedure for granting
exparte Injunction - It is not an independent provision - It is part and

parcel of Order 39 - It can't be divorced from the nature of power
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given under Rule 1 and 2 - Therefore such an order is appealable under
Order 43 Rule (1)(r) - Hence petition under Art.227 is not maintainable.
(Paras 9 & 12)

. Ryfer GlFar aiear (1908 &7 5), TR 39 497 1,23 T SR 43,
frm (1)(are) — vavely @R — sl — sew 39 fraw 3 o fafr @
Ftx ywus =ree yaE wxA oY 9vel g9 i faka e @ - 9%
WAA ST T 2 —~qE AR A AT -~ 1329
Fada & 1€ wfdd @ wWvy ¥ aaw 7@ foqr 1 gear — gufay 9w

AR, AR 43 P ()(@R):® afada aficha 2 — ad: AT 2271 &

sada grfasr gigvfig =&V
Cases referred :

1993 MPLJ 52, AIR 1984 Gauhati 86 (FB), AIR 2000 SC 3032,
AIR 1963 MP 208, 1978 (1) MPWN SN 447, AIR 2002 Gauhati 146, AIR
2004 AP 310.

Prashant Sharma, for the petitioner.
V.K. Bharadwaj with Alok Katare, for the respondent No.1.

-ORDER

Susoy Paur, J: In this petition filed under Article 227 of the
Constitution, the petitiorier has challenged the order of the Court below dated
26.3.2013 whereby the Court below has passed the ex-parte injunction against
the defendants. The matter was heard on the question of maintainability.

The brief facts necessary for adjudication of this matter are as under:-

1. The respondent No.1 filed a suit for declaration and permanent and
mandatory injunction stating that the plaintiff- Club (Rotary Club, Birla Nagar)
is running under Rotary International District 3050. A declaration is sought in
the said suit that the election held on 3.10.2012 be quashed, result of elected
candidate be set aside and a direction be issued to recount the valid votes in
the presence of the election officer and after recounting, results be declared.
Along with the said suit an application under Order 39 Rule 1 and 2 r/w
Section 151 C.P.C. (Annexure P-6) and another application under Order 39
Rule 3 C.P.C. (Annexure P-7) were filed. The Court below entertained those
applications and passed the impugned ex-parte injunction order. At the time
of admission, an objection is raised by the plaintiff/respondent that the impugned
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order is appealable under Order 43 Rule 1 C.P.C. and this petition is not
entertainable. The petitioner submits that the petition is maintainable because
the order passed by the Court below is under Order 39 Rule 3 C.P.C. and
against this order no appeal lies under Order 43 Rule 1 C.P.C. Thus, with the
consent of parties, this matter was heard on the question of" maintainability.

2. Shri Prashant Sharma, learned counsel for the petitioner drew the
attention of this Court on Order 43 Rule 1(r). This provision reads as under:-

“l.  Appeal from orders.-An appeal shall lie from the
following orders under the"provisio'ns of section 104 namely'-‘ ‘

fy) an order under rule-1, rule 2 (rule 2A) rule 4 or rule'
10 of Order XXXIX.”

3. By placing heavy reliance on the Ianguage employed in this rule, Shri
Prashant Sharma submits that there is a deliberate omission and legislature
has not chosen to insert rule 3 under the purview of Order 43 Rule 1(r)C.PC.
Thus, he submits that no appeal lies when order'is ‘passed by the Court below
under Order 39 Rule 3 C.P.C. In addition, he relied on the order dated
2.5.2005 passed by the Apex Court in Suresh Bhasin Vs."Ramesh Chandra
and others and judgment of this Court in Gajraj Szngh & Orhers Vs Ram
Kumar reported in (1993 MPLJ 52).

4. Per contra, Shri V.X. Bharadwaj, learned senior counsel assisted by
Shri Alok Katare, Advocate for respondent No.1 submits that the appeal is
very much maintainable and in support of that contentlon he rel 1ed on various
authorities.

5. [ have bestowed my anxious con51derat10n on the rival contentlons of
the parties on the question of maintainability and perused the record

6. A plain reading of Order 39 Rulel shows that it has been
compartmentalized into two d1v131ons - ' : '

()  Thetemporaryi mjunctlon._ 7
(ii) Interlocutory orders. A - l L J

7. Rule 1 to 5 fall under “temporary i mjuncnon whereas rule 6 to. 10 fall
under interlocutory orders. It is, thus, clear that all ordefs under Order 1to5
of Rule 39 are, in fact order of “temporary injunction”.

8. - Proviso to Rule 3 under Order 39 was mserted by Act No 104 of
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1976 w.e.f. 1.2.1977. In original Rule 3, the powers were given to the Court
to grant ex-parte injunction without notice to the other side. However, a proviso
aforesaid was added which mandates that while granting such injunction ex-
patte, the Court shall record reasons for its opinion that the object of granting
injunction would be defeated by the delay and may require the applicant/
plaintiff to fulfill the requirement of Clause (a) and (b). Thus, Rule 3 is a method
by which the Court may grant ex-parte injunction and direct notices to the
opposite party. This power is exercised in the situation where it appears to the
Court that the object of granting injunction would be frustrated by the delay,
in such cases ex-parte injunction can be passed. The basic power to grant
temporary injunction is there in Rule 1 & 2 of Order 39. Rule 3 only deals
with a particular situation for exercise of power to grant injunction ex-parte.

9. Under Order 39 Rule 3 a Court only decides whether to grant injunction
ex-parte or after giving notice to the other side. If the Court decides to issue
notice and passes injunction order after giving notice, the power, in fact, is
exercised under Order 39 Rule | & 2. In cases where the Court decides to
pass injunction order without giving notice, in that eventuality also, the power
of granting injunction is traced and flows from Order 39 Rule-1 and 2. Order
39 Rule 3 is only a method and option for the Court to issue injunction after
giving notice or without giving notice and prescribes the methodology and
. procedure for granting ex-parte injunction. In the event Court deems it proper
to grant ex-parte injunction, it is obliged to assign reasons for its opinion.

10.  In AIR 1984 Gauhati 86 (EB) (Akmal Ali and others etc.Vs. State
of Assam and others), the Court opined that procedure for granting ex-parte
injunction is laid down in Rule 3, whereas Rule 1 & 2 combined together is
repository of Court's power of granting injunction.

11.  InAIR 2000 S.C. 3032 (4. Venkatasubbiah Naidu Vs. S.Chellappan
and others), the Apex Court opined that it cannot be contended that the
. power to pass ex-parte interim orders of injunction does not emanate from
Order 39 Rule 1. The said rule is repository of the power to grant orders of
temporary injunction with or without notice, interim or temporary or till further
orders or till the disposal of the suit. Thus, it is held by the Apex Court that
any order passed in exercise of aforesaid power in Rule 1 would be appealable
under Order 43 Rule 1 CPC. This Court iri AIR 1963 MP 208 (Chhaganlal
Vs. Niwasdas Goyal) opined that where an order of temporary injunction is
issued ex parte, that order is nonetheless an order under Rule (1) or (2) of
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Order 39 CPC and would as such be appealable. The same view is taken by
this Court in 1978 (1) MPWN SN 447 (Sitaram V. Rajabeti). In AIR 2002
Gauhati 146 the Single Judge followed the Full Bench judgment in 4kmal Ali
(supra). In AIR 2004 AP 310 (Innovative Pharma Surgicals V. Pigeon
Medical Devices Pvt. Ltd. & Ors.) the High Court of A.P. took the same
view. So far 1993 MPLJ 52 (Gajraj Singh and others Vs. Ram Kumar
and others) is concerned, in my opinion, the said judgment is of no assistance
to the petitioner. In the said case, the application was preferred under Order
39 Rule 3 CPC, but Court did not grant any injunction. Only notices were
directed to be issued (para 7). If injunction is not granted, it is clear that the
powers under Order 39 Rule 1 and 2 are not exercised. In that event, such
order, by no stretch of imagination, can be said to be an order passed under
Order 39 Rule 1 and 2. Mere issuance of notice without any injunction will
not fall within the powers under Order 39 Rule 1 and 2. On this factual
foundation, in Gajraj Singh (supra), the Court opined that mere issuance of
notice will not make an order appealable under Order 43 Rule 1 (r). In the
present case, admittedly, injunction has been passed which is necessarily an
order passed under Order 39 Rule 1 and 2. On the basis of aforesaid analysis,
the case of Gajraj Singh (supra) is distinguishable and is of no assistance to
the petitioner.

12.  Inmy considered opinion, merely because two separate applications
were filed by the plaintiff under Order 39 Rule (1) and (2) read with Section
151 CPC and under Order 39 Rule 3 CPC respectively will not mean that
Order 39 Rule 3 is an independent provision. Rule 3 is part and parcel of
Order 39. Rule 3 merely provides a method to grant ex-parte injunction when
certain conditions are satisfied. When the conditions are satisfied, the Court
may grant injunction ex-parte which is necessarily a power exercised under
Order 39 Rule 1 and 2 CPC. Rule 3 cannot be divorced from the nature of
power given to the Court u/r 1 & 2 and it has to be read with Rule 1 and 2
CPC. In other words, in my opinion, when Court decides to grant injunction
ex-parte by invoking Rule 3 aforesaid, even then it only shows that Court was
satisfied that it is a fit case for grant of ex-parte injunction and in that eventuality,
it exercises the power under Rule 1 & 2 to grant injunction. Therefore, merely
because in Order 43 Rule 1 (r), the Rule 3 of Order 39 is not menticned, it
will not mean that the order impugned would not be appealable. Accordingly,
I am unable to hold that this petition under Article 227 of the Constitution is
maintainable. Petitioner has a remedy of appeal under Order 43 Rule 1 (1).
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The order of the Supreme Court in Suresh Bhasin (supra) can be relied upon
by the petitioner before the appropriate appellate forum. In my opinion, this
petition is not tenable and therefore, I leave it open for the petitioner to rely
on the said order before appropriate appellate forum. Petition is not
entertainable for the reasons stated above. It is dismissed without expressing
any opinion on the merits of the case, Needless to mention that liberty is
reserved to petitioner to avail aforesaid remedy.

Certified copy of the impugned order be retumed to the petitioner
after obtammg photocopy of the same.

Petition dismissed.

L.L.R. [2013] M.P,, 1574
WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice Sujoy Paul
W.P. No 7387/2012 (Gwalior) decided on 12 April, 2013

THAKUR LAL DHAKAD ... Petitioner
Vs. -
STATE BAI_‘JK OF INDIA & ors. ...Respondents

" -Constitution - Article 21 - Right to live with Dignity - Freezing
of bank account of the petitioner due to nonpayment of loan by his
parents - Petitioner is neither borrower nor gnarantor and not even a
signatory of loan documents - Held - The action of the bank is without
authority of law and violative of right to life. (Paras 6,8 & 12)
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Cases referred :

II (1993) BC 326, (1997) BC 655, III (2004) BC 417, 2005(2)
MPLJ 500

VK. Bharadwaj with Arvind A garwal, for the petitioner.
. .M. Agarwal, for the Bank.
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| ORDER

Susoy PauL, J: This petition is directed against the action of the

~ respondents State Bank of India (SBI) in freezing / seizing bank account of

the petitioner.
Brief facts necessary for adjudication are as under :-

1.  Petitioner is a teacher and is posted in Govt. Primary School, Vijaypur,
District Sheopur (MP). The petitioner's monthly salary and allowances are
regularly credited by the office of the District Education Officer, Sheopurin
his saving account no. 53040600892 maintained by the respondent no. 2.
Salary is only means of livelihood for the petitioner and his family. The petitioner

“has three daughters who are studying in higher classes of different educational

institutions. It is the case of the petitioner that when he went to the Bank/
respondent no. 2 for taking payment of salary for the month of July, 2011
from said saving account, he was informed that said account is freezed by the

_ respondent no. 2 on 24.6.2011. It is stated that the petitioner’s wife is suffering

from serious ailment and petitioner requires money for her treatment. MRI
reports of petitioner's wife is filed as Annexure-P/3. In‘nutshell, the petitioner
submits that his entire salary is deposited in the aforesaid saving account and
if the said account is seized, it results into depriving him from the fruits of
salary and leads him to starvation. He submits that in absence of salary from
July, 2011, the petitioner is facing great financial hardship. It is difficult for him
to run the cart of his family, provide adequate medical facility to ailing wife
and pay fees and provide other expenses to his daughters. He submits that
aforesaid action of the respondents Bank is without any authority of law and
therefore, a mandamus be issued against the respondents.

2. In turn, Mr. M.P. Agarwal, learned counsel for the Bank submits that
the petition is not maintainable. Disputed questions of fact are involved which
can be determined by the civil court. It is stated that the petitioner's parents
Smt. Savitri Devi Dhakad (mother) and Shri Khubiram Dhakad (father) had
jointly obtained term loan for purchasing tractor on 15.4.1999 from the
respondent no. 3 Bank. The said loan account of petitioner's parents became
irregular. Later-on, the petitioner's father expired but the petitioner did not
pay any heed to regularize the loan account. For this reason, the petitioner's
loan account was put on hold. By placing reliance on Annexure- R/1 it is
stated that the petitioner was informed to repay the said loan and therefore,
his loan account was freezed. It is further argued by Mr. Agarwal that agreement
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for hypothecation shows that borrower had given consent for recovery of
loan as public money and therefore, it can be recovered from the petitioner. It
is stated that the petitioner's parents signed the said agreement for
hypothecation, which contains a clause that in the event loan is not repaid, it
can be recovered from the heirs. He submits that the petitioner on the one
hand wants to enjoy the property béing legal representative and on the other
hand wants to avoid repayment of loan liability. He submits that the petitioner
being heir cannot avoid the said payment and respondents have not erred in
freezing the said account. He relied on the judgment of Allahabad High court

‘in Radhika Devi and another vs. Branch Manager, Bank of Baroda and
others, reported in I1 (1993) BC 326; Delhi High Court in State Bank of
India vs. M/s. Samneel Engineering Company and Ors., reported tn (1997)
BC 655 and Jharkhand High Court in Hindustan Malleables & Forgings
ltd. vs. Union of India & Anr., reported in III (2004) BC 417 (DB).

3. Mr. V. K. Bhardwaj, was requested to. assist the court in this matter
as Amicus curie. Accordingly, I had advantage of hearing Mr. Bhardwaj, learned
senior counsel with Shri Arvind Agrawal, Advocate for the petitioner. Mr.
Bhardwaj, also addressed the court on the aforesaid issue.

4 [ have heard learned counsel for the parties and perused the record.

5. First objection of the respondents SBI is that this petition is not
maintainable. It is stated that disputed questions of fact are involved which
cannot be gone into in this writ proceeding.

6. The petitioner is a teacher and freezed account is his salary account.
This factis not in dispute. It is also not in dispute between the parties that the
petitioner has larger family liability and he is only bread winner in the family.
His entire salary is deposited in the said saving account which is seized by the
Bank. It cannot be also disputed that the respondents Bank is amenable to
writ jurisdiction of this court being “State” within the meaning of Article 12 of
the Constitution of India, The petitioner has approached this court for protection
of his fundamental rights including the right to live with dignity. It is stated that
because of freezing the account petitioner's source of livelihood is affected
which hit Article 21 of the Constitution. In my opinion, the petition is very
much maintainable. The petitioner's fundamental right flowing from Article 21
is affected and therefore, this writ petition is very much maintainable. In my
opinion, there is no disputed questions of fact involved which necessitated this
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court to relegate the petitioner to avail alternative remedy. Thus, this objection
of the Bank is overruled.

7. The pivotal question to be decided in this case whether the action of
the petitioner in freezing the petitioner account on account of nonpayment of
loan by his parents is legal, justiciable and permissible in law ?

8. The petitioner admittedly is neither borrower nor the guarantor. His
" parents had obtained loan from the Bank. The petitioner is not a signatory of
loan documents including the agreement of hypothecation. Accordingly, those
documents cannot be pressed into the service against the petitioner. Despite
repeated queries by the Bench, Mr. M.P. Agrawal, learned counsel for the
respondents / Bank is unable to show any enabling provisions which gives
powers to the Bank to recover the loan amount of parents from the petitioner.

9. In2005 (2) MPLJ 500 (Jagdish Prasad Batham vs. Union of India
and others), this court disapproved the action of the Bank in stopping
withdrawal from the petitioner's account without his consent. It is held that
the petitioner although stood his surety and guarantor to a loan, his saving

- account cannot be freezed without his consent and without following “due

process”.

10.  Inmy opinion, the petitioner's case is on better footing. The present
petitioner is neither borrowér nor guarantor and accordingly, his loan account
could not have been seized on account of nonpayment of loan by his parents.
The bank may be at liberty to take action on the property which is mortgaged
or file civil suit for recovery but in absence of any enabling provisions, they
have no right to recover the amount by freezing the petitioner’s saving account.

11.  Judgments cited by Mr. M.P. Agrawal, has no application in the present
facts and circumstances of the case. In M/s. Samneel (supra), Delhi High
Court had discussed various provisions of recovery of debts due to Banks'
and Financial Institution Act, 1993. The said judgment has no application in
the present matter. Similarly, in Radhika Devi (supra), the borrower undertook
to repay the loan. Accordingly, Court ordered for repayment of loan in para 8
of the said order. The question involved in the present matter was not
addressed by the Court in Radhika Devi (supra). In Hindustan Malleables
& Forgings (supra) also, the issue was totally different. In that case it is held
that the Bank may direct to open current account of the customer in the Bank.
However, the said matter deals with the question of continuance of credit
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facility to the customer. This judgment has also no application in the present
‘matter.

12. Inthe considered opinion of this court, the respondents-have erred in
freezing the petitioner's loan account. The said action is without any authority
of law. Accordingly, I am unable to approve the said action.

13. Resultantly, the respondents Bank is directed to permit the petitioner
to operate the said account forthwith. The petitioner shall be free to operate
the said account in accordance with law. However, this order will not preclude
the Bank to recover loan of the petitioner's parents in accordance with law.

14. Petition is allowed to the extend as indicated above. No costs.
Petition allowed.

LL.R. [2013] M.P., 1578
WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice Ajit Singh
W.P. No. 18423/2010 (Jabalpur) decided on 16 April, 2013

RAMKUMAR ...Petitioner
Vs. .
STATE OF M.P. & ors, ‘ ...Respondents

Panchayat Raj Evam Gram Swaraj Adhinivam, M.P. 1993 (1
of 1994), Section 36(1)(a), Constitution, Article 226 - Setting aside
of election - Respondent No. 7 contested the election of Member
of Janpad Panchayat by suppressing the fact that he has already
been convicted u/s 302 of I.P.C. and has been sentenced to undergo
life imprisonment - Respondent No. 7 was apparently disqualified
u/s 36(1)(a) of Adhiniyam, 1993 - High Court in suitable cases is
not prevented from declaring under Article 226 that a person elected
to Janpad Panchayat was not qualified to be chosen as a Member
and in restraining him to function as a Member - Election of
respondent No. 7 quashed. (Paras Sto 7)
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A.K. Mishra, for the petitioner.
Vivek Agrawal, G.A. for the respondents No. 1,3 & 4
Rahul Rawat, for the respondent No.7.

ORDER

At SiNGH, J: By this petition, the petitioner has prayed for quashing
of the election of respondent no.7 Mohan Singh to Janpad Panchayat, Anuppur
as Member and Vice President. -

2. The facts in brief are that the petitioner is a resident of Village
Lohasur, District Anuppur. His name also appears in the voter list at Serial
No.714, Janpand Panchayat, Anuppur. Respondent no.7 has been
convicted for offences under sections 302/149, 307/149 and 148 of the
Indian Penal Code and sentenced to imprisonment for life and 10 years
vide judgment dated 11.7.2008 passed by the Special Judge, Shahdol in
Sessions Trial No.286/2000. Aggrieved, respondent no.7 has filed
Criminal Appeal No.1637/2008 before the High Court and the same is
pending for final decision. The High Court vide order dated 23.10.2008
has suspended the jail sentence of respondent no.7 and directed for his
release on bail. In the result respondent no.7 after spending few months
in jail has been released on bail. Respondent no.7 despite being
disqualified to be an office bearer of Janpad Panchayat submitted his
nomination form on 29.12.2009, Annexure P4, for his election as Member.
In the nomination form respondent no.7 did not mention about his
conviction under section 302 of the Indian Penal Code and sentence of
life imprisonment. His nomination form was, therefore, accepted. He was
then first declared elected as Member and thereafter as Vice President
of Janpad Panchayat. It in this background, the petitioner has filed the
present petition for quashing of the election of respondent no.7 as Member
and Vice President of Janpad Panchayat.
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3. Respondent no.7 in his return has not denied regarding his
disqualification for being office-bearer of the J anpad Panchayat. The sole
objection raised by him is that having regard to Article 243-0 of the
Constitution his election can be challenged only by filing election petition
under section 122 of the Madhya Pradesh Panchayat Raj Avam Gram
Swaraj Adhiniyam, 1993 (in short “the Adhiniyam™).

4, Section 36 of the Adhiniyam provides for disqualification for being
office-bearer of Panchayat. Its relevant sub-section (1)(a) read as under:

36. Disqualification for being office-bearer of Panchayat.-

(1) No person shall be eligible to be an office-bearer of
Panchayat who.-

(@)  has, either before or after the commencement of this
Act, been convicted.-

@ of an offence under the Protection of Civil Rights
Act, 1955 (N0.22 of 1955) or under any law in connection
with the use,consumption or sale of narcotics or any law
corresponding thereto in force in any part of the State,
unless a period of five years or such lesser period as the
State Government may allow in any particular case has
elapsed since his conviction; or

(i)  of any other offence and had been sentenced to
imprisonment for not less than six months, unless a period
of five years or such less period as the State Government
may allow in any particular case has elapsed since his
release; or '

5. Respondent no.7 after his conviction under sections 302/149, 307/
149 and 148 of the Indian Penal Code and sentence of imprisonment for
life and 10 years is apparently disqualified under above quoted section
36(1)(a) of the Adhiniyam for being an office-bearer of Janpad Panchayat.
In the nomination paper he deliberately suppressed the fact of his
conviction in a serious crime of murder and attempt to commit murder
and sentence of life imprisonment. He, therefore, by playing fraud got
himself elected as Member and Vice President of Janpad Panchayat.
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" 6. The-objection of respondent-no.7 that his election can be
challenged only by filing an election petition under section 122 of the.
Adhiniyam is without any substance and cannot be accepted. The Supreme
Court in K. Venkatachalam Vs. A. Swamickan AIR 1999 SC 1723 has
held that Article 329 (b) does not prevent the High-Court from declaring
under Article 226 that a person elected to the legislative assembly of a
State was not qualified to be chosen as a member and in restraining him
to function as a member and directing realisation from him of penalty
under Article 193. In this case the person concerned was not an elector
in the Assembly Constituency which fact he knew and he got elected by
impersonating another person of the same name entered in the clectoral
roll. The election-was not challenged by election petition as the rival
candidate, who later moved the High Court, came to know of the fraud
long after the period for challenging the election by election petition had -
expired. Also Article 243-0, which relates to election to Panchayats,
and Article 243ZG, which relates to election to Municipalities, were
brought in by the Constitution 74th Amendment Act and which are similarly
worded as Article 329 have been similarly construed but subject to the
qualification that a Constitution Amendment cannot destroy the basic
structure of judicial review enshrined in Article 32, 136 and 226 of the
Constitution. (See Principles of Statutory Interpretation by Justice
G.P.Singh 13th Edition, 2012 PP 813 and 814).

7. Therefore, in suitable cases the High Court is not prevented from
declaring under Article 226 that a person elected to J anpad Panchayat
was not qualified to be chosen as a Member and Vice President and in
restraining him to function as a Member and Vice President. The case
in hand is one such suitable case which deserves interference by the

High Court under Article 226. I accordingly quash the election of
' respondent no.7 to Janpad Panchayat, Anuppur as Member and Vice -
President and direct that henceforth he shall not function as Member
and Vice President.

8. The petition is allowed with cost of Rs.2000/- which shall be payable
to the petitioner by respondent no.7 within one month from today.

Petition allowed.
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WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice Sujoy Paul ‘
W.P. No. 1176/2013 {Gwalior) decided on 7 May, 2013

GWALIOR DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY . ...Petitioner
Vs. ) o
DUSHYANT SHARMA & ors. ~ ...Respondents

- A. Constitution - Article 227 - Power of Superintendence -
When to be exercised - Held, if the order suffers from any jurisdictional
error or manifest procedural irregularity or impropriety or it is pregnant
with any palpable perversity - Interference can be made sparingly in
rare cases when such ingredients are fulfilled - It cannot be made as a
matter of routine on a drop of hat. ‘ (Para17)
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B. Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Sections 63 & 65 - Secondary
evidence - Both the sections are to be read conjointly - If one fulfills
the test of secondary evidence, the document can be treated as
secondary evidence. - (Paral3)
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2013(2) MPHT 277, AIR 1958 Patna 133, AIR 2000 SC 2629, (2010) 4
SCC 329.

Raghvendra Dixit, for the petitioner,
J.P. Shrivastava, for the respondent No.1.



LL.R.[2013]M.P. Gwalior Dev. Authority Vs. Dushyant Sharma 1583 |
ORDER .

Susoy PauL, J: Byinvoking the jurisdiction of this Court under Article
227 of the Constitution, the petitioner-Gwalior Development Authority (GDA) -
has assailed the order dated 17.12.2012, By the said order, the application
preferred by the petitioner/defendant No.1 under Section 65 of the Evidence
Act is rejected by the court below. L ‘

(2)  Brieffacts necesséry foradjudication of this matter are as under :-

The respondent No. 1-plaintiff fileda civil suit for declaration and
permanent injunction on the ground that Survey No. 788 are 0.1 08 hectare
situated in village Shankarpur, Tehsil and District Gwalior, is purchased by
him through a registered sale deed dated 1.7.2009 from respondent No.2-
Housing Society. Mutation has been done in revenue record. The land in
question as an agricultural land. It is the case of the plaintiff that on 26.6.09,
a Sub-Engineer of GDA threatened him for dispossession on the ground that
the land in question is acquired by GDA by way of agreement dated 12.6.1998.
The stand of GDA before the court below is that the land in question is a part
of valuable notified scheme of Transport Nagar and in view of Section 53 of
Nagar Tatha Gram Nivesh Adhiniyam, 1973 (for brevity, the 'Adhiniyam’),
any sale subsequently done by respondent No.2 is void ab initio and 2 nullity
in the eyes of law. '

It is further stated by GDA that possession of the land question was
taken over by them or 2.12.1998 from respondent. No.2 Society. The scheme
needs to be implemented as per Section 56 of the Adhiniyam.

Learned trial court framed four issues after completion of pleadings.
The plaintiff, thereafter submitted his affidavit under Order 18 Rule 4 CPC.
The GDA cross-examined the plaintiff/respondent No.1 and its witnesses.
The matter was then fixed for defendant evidence. An affidavit under Order
18 Rule 4 CPC with relevant documents was filed by GDA. The documents
include agreement dated 12.6.1998, possession receipt, order dated
12.12.1998, allotment order dated 22.8.2000, final lay out plan of the scheme
in question and copy of FIR dated 21.8.2000. The documents filed along
with aforesaid affidavit by GDA are photocopies. Accordingly, GDA preferred
an application under Section 65 of the Evidence Act (Annexure P-4) witha
prayer that the said photocopies may be. taken in evidence as secondary
evidence. The singular reason assigned for seeking such permission was that
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the original documents and files relating to present case have been stolen by
some person from the office of GDA. AFIR was registered for this purpose
and investigation is going on. Since the original documents have lost due to
theft committed by some person and a criminal case is registered in this regard,
the photocopies of the said documents can be treated as secondary evidence.
The respondent No. 1/plaintiff submitted his reply and prayed for rejection of
said application.

The court below by impugned order dated 17.12.2012 rejected the
said application preferred under Section 65 of the Evidence Act. The court
below opined that Section 63 of the Evidence Act provides the categories of
secondary evidence. In absence of original, secondary evidence is permissible
under certain circumstances as enumerated in Section 63 r/w Sec. 65 of the
Evidence Act. The court below opined that the documents filéd by GDA do
not fall within the five categories mentioned in Section 63 of the Evidence Act
. and said documents could not be compared with the original and, therefore,
the said documents cannot be treated as secondary evidence. The court below
opined that the photocopies can be compared with the original and then only
it gathers relevance and genuineness. In absence thereof,, the said documents
cannot be treated as secondary evidence.

(3)  Criticizing the said order, Shri Raghvendra Dixit, learned counsel for
the GDA, submits that a careful reading of Section 63(a) (illustrations) r/w'S.
65(c) makes it clear that the documents in question can be treated as secondary
evidence. He relied on the definition of "proved" in the Evidence Act and
submits that said documents would be proved by leading the evidence but at
this stage the documents cannot be discarded. He relied on AIR 1999 PUNJAB
& HARYANA 21 (Smt. Sobha Rani and Others Vs. Ravi Kumar and
others); 2001 (1) MPWN SN 54 (Tawar Singh vs. Ranjit Singh), and
2012 (5) MPHT 160 (Mahaveer Kumar Jain vs. Atal Bihari Tamrakar).

(4)  Shri J.P.Shrivastava, learned counsel for the respondent No.1
supported the order and submits that the photocopies of the documents do
not fall within the ambit of "secondary evidence" as per the Evidence Act.
He submits that the said documents were filed along with affidavit of witness
of GDA, namely, Shri Manoj Mathur (Officer Incharge of the case-OIC).
The OIC is admitted appointed on 11.9.2012. As per GDA's own case, the
documents were stolen in 2004. The FIR was lodged in 2011. The OIC in his
affidavit has nowhere stated that he had seen the original documents and
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compared it with the photocopies. The aforesaid fact makes it crystal clear

 that the documents were stolen much before appointment of OIC and there is

no occasion for the said OIC to certify the correctness and genuineness ofthe
said documents of compare it with originals. He submits that in absence of
taking that responsibility and comparing of documents with the original, the
said documents are impermissible for the purpose of treating them as secondary
evidence. He relied on, 2002 (3) MPLJ 371 (Sunil Kumar and another Vs.
Anguri Chaudhari and another); 2006 (3) MPLJ 334 (Haji Mohd. And
another Vs. Asgar Ali and another); 2012 (5) MPHT 381 (Smt. Aneeta
Rajpoor vs. Smt. Saraswati Gupta) and, 2013 (2) MPHT 277 (Vijendra
Smgh and others vs. Deena and others).

(5)  Ihave heard learned counsel for the partles and perused the record.

(6)  Before dealing with the rival contentions of the parties, it is apt to
quote the relevant provisions of the Indian Evidence Act, 1872. Section 63(2)
reads as under:

"63. Secondary evidence.-- Secondary evidence means and
includes-- :
(1) XXX xxx xxx

(2)  Copies made from the original by mechanical
process which in themselves insure the accuracy of
the copy, and copies compared with such copies.”

Section 63(a) and (b) (Illustrations) reads as under:

(a) A photograph of an original is secondary evidence
of its contents, though the two have not been
compared, if it is proved that the thing
photographed was the original.

() A copy compared with a copy of a letier made by a
copying machine is secondary evidence of the contents
of the letter; if it is shown that the copy made by the
copying machine was made from the original”

Section 65(c) reads as under:

65. Cases in which secondary evidence relating to
documents may be given.-- Secondary evidence may be
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given of the existence, condition, or contents of a document
in the following cases:

(@)  xxx XXX xxx
()  xxx o xxx

(c) when the original has been destroyed or lost, or
whenthe party offering evidence of its contents cannot,
for any other reason not arising from his own default or
neglect, produce it in reasonale time. "

(7)  The arguments of learned counsel for the parties are based on
these provisions. Section 63(2) aforesaid makes it obligatory that the copies
which are made from the original by mechanical process are required to be
compared with such copies. Thus, there is no manner of doubt that two
conditions are required to be fulfilled for applying Section 63(2) viz, (i) the
copies are made from the original by mechanical process (ii) copies are
compared with original copies. :

Section 63 (Ilustration) (a) has no application, in my opinion, in the
present matter because the said illustration deals with photographs. Iltustration
(b) talks about comparing a letter with the original. Thus, a conjoint reading
of Section 63(2) with Section 63 (Illustration) (c) makes it clear that aforesaid
two conditions are necessary to bring a document within the ambit of
"secondary evidence”,

Section 65(c) is an enabling provision where the original document is
lost or destroyed and it is shown that the said event of loss or destroy of the
document is not arising out of any default or neglect of the party concerned,
the document can be taken as secondary evidence.

(8) Shri Raghvendra Dixit relied on the judgment of this Court in Tawar
Singh (supra). In the said case, as per the statement of the witness it was
established that the applicant was in possession of ori ginal of promissory note
of which the photocopies are filed. On the basis of aforesaid factual backdrop,
this Court treated the photocopies as secondary evidence. In Mahavir Kumar
Jain (supra) another Bench of this Court delivered the judgment on the basis
of Tawar Singh (supra). However, a perusal of this judgment shows that the
nature of document which was directed to be taken in evidence is not reflected
in the judgment. The, judgment is solely based on Tawar Singh (supra).
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Pausing here for a moment, in Tawar Singh this Court rightly held that
secondary evidence can be taken into account and photocopy is acceptable
because the witness prima facie established that he was in possession of the
original promissory note. In the present case, the affidavit preferred under
Order 18 Rule 4 CPC of the OIC with other factual background mentioned
in para 4 of this order makes it crystal clear that there was no occasion for
OIC to see the original documents because the same were stolen in the year
2004 and OIC is appointed on 11.9.2012. In other words, this OIC had no
opportunity either to see the original documents nor there was any chance for
him to compare these documents with the original. There is no material to
show that photocopy which is sought to be produced as secondary evidence
is made from original by mechanical process. The facts narrated by Shri
].P.Shrivastava, mentioned in para 4, have not been doubted by Shri
Raghvendra Dixit, learned counsel for the petitioner.

(9) In AIR 1958 PATNA 133 (Katihar Jute Mills Ltd. vs. Calcutta
Match Works (India) Ltd. and another), the Patna High Court opined as
under:

"(c) Evidence Act (1872), S. 63(5) - Secondary evidence -
When is admissible.

In the case of a document no secondary evidence

. can go in unless it is proved that the original has been

destroyed or lost. Further so far as the oral account of its

contents is concerned, it must be by a person who has
himself seen it implying that he has read it. (Para 0"

(10) The judgment in Sobharani (supra) cited by the petitioner is of no
assistance to him because in that case the High Court gave opinion on the
basis of the pleadings of the parties. It was opined that existence of secondary
evidence is proved from the facts mentioned in the plaint and reply of the
defendant. This is not the position here and, accordingly, the said judgment
has no application in the present matter.

(11) In AIR 2000 SC 2629 (Marwari Kumhar and others Vs.
Bhagwanpuri Guru Ganeshpuri and another,) the Apex Court opined about
a public document and held that such document can be taken into evidence
when it is proved that the original was no longer available and certified copy
was lost. The aforesaid statement of a party about the non-availability ofthe
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document and certified copy is not disbelieved. In the presenf'case, the
defendant has disbelieved and doubted the correctness and genuineness of
the photocopies sought to be taken by the petitioner as secondary evidence.

(12)  Justice Dipak Misra (as His Lordship then was) in Sunil Kumar (supra)
opined that when it is not disputed that neither the certified copy nor a true
copy indicates and contains an endorsement and it was compared with original,
the document does not meet the requirement of Section 63 of the Evidence
Act. In another judgment in Haji Mohd. (supra), His Lordship opined that
the other party denied the execution of the docurment. No proof was produced
that the document was executed and it is in possession of the plaintiff, The
copy filed was neither a certified copy nor a true copy of the original deed. It
is further held that in absence of any proofand requirement of law, the said
document cannot be treated as secondary evidence.

(13)  Inthe present case, it is crystal clear that in application under Section
65 of the Evidence Act it is nowhere stated that the photocopies in question
were made by mechanical process from the original and it is compared with
the original. The OIC, by no stretch of imagination, could have compared or
certified that these are taken from the original for the reasons stated above. In
my opinion, Sections 63 and 65 of the Evidence Act are to be read conjointly
and if one fulfills the test of secondary evidence, the documents can be treated
as secondary evidence. In Tukaram §. Dighole vs. Manikrao Shivaji
Kokate, reportedin (2010) 4 SCC 329, the Apex Court opined that "to pur
the matter briefly, the general rule is that secondary evidence is not
admissible until the non-production of primary evidence is satisfactorily
proved."

(14) Inarecentjudgment, reported in Vijendra Singh (supra), this Court
opined that unless there is some material to show that for admitting secondary
evidence, the necessary ingredients were fulfilled by the petitioner, the document
cannot be taken as secondary evidence.

(15)  Onthebasis of aforesaid analysis; in my opinion, the court below has
not committed any error of law in rejecting the application of the petitioner.
The necessary ingredients fortreating the documents in question as secondary
evidence were not available and application preferred under Section 65 of
Evidence Act does not contain necessary averments and declaration on the
strength of which the documents could have been treated as secondary
evidence. '
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(16)  The last submission of Shri Raghvendra Dixit, learned counsel for the
petitioner is based on the definition of “proved”is of no help to him at this
stage. The question of treating a document or giving a finding about “proved”
would arise provided the documents in question are taken into the evidence.
At this stage, this argument is premature.

(17)  For the aforesaid cumulative reasons and analysis, I find no infirmity
in the order of court below. Interference under Article 227 of the Constitution
can be made, if the order suffers from any jurisdictional error or manifest
procedural irregularity or impropriety or it is pregnant with any palpable
perversity. Another view is possible is not a ground for interference.
Interference can be made sparingly in rare cases when such ingredients are
fulfilled. It cannot be made as a matter of routine on a drop of hat. In my
opinion, the court below has given justifiable and plausible reasons based on
legal position. However, it is made clear that liberty is reserved to the petitioner
to prefer proper application and affidavit before the court below which may
fulfill the requirement of Sections 63 and 65 of the Evidence Act. This Court
has given opinion on the basis of present affidavit preferred by the petitioner
under Order 18 Rule 4 CPC and on the basis of application under Section 65
of the Evidence Act.

(18)  Withthe aforesaid observations, petition is dismissed. There shall be
no order as to costs.

Petition dismissed.

LL.R. [2013] M.P., 1589
APPELLATE CIVIL
Before Mr. Justice A.K. Shrivastava
M.A. No. 1946/2012 (Jabalpur) decided on 11 January, 2013

SKOLBREWERIES LTD. . ‘ ...Appellant
Vs. -
SOM DISTILLERIES LTD & BREWERIES LTD. ...Respondent

A. Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 39 Rule 1 & 2, Designs
Act (2 of 1911), Section 22, Trade Marks Act (47 of 1999), Sections 134, 135 -
Requirements of granting injunction - Prima facie case - Plaintiff by an interim
injunction undoubtedly seeks to interfere with the rights of the defendants
before the plaintiff's right is finally established, therefore very strong prima
facie case in respect of his rights should be asserted and it should so exist in
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favour of the plaintiff. - (Para16) -

# Rifyer afdrar af2ar (1908 @7 5), ana9 39 Freg 1 7 2,
FEorrg SIEAra® (1911 @1 2), a7 22, =9Ie % JfSIfram (1999 &7 47),
8TV 134, 135 — S USIT &¥7 & FUAC — FoI¥ §5IT §HVT —
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& ¥ Tedt, gy @ aftrert ¥ sx@ety amEar 2, safiu, 9 o
Fftre @ W9a ¥ At yew v Al YHROT BT YR HAT AR
Y 9% 39 YR 9l & ver A fyewm st =Ry

B. Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 39 Rule 1 & 2 -
Temporary injunction - Irreparable Injury - The plaintiffs can be
compensated by way of damages and by keeping this important aspect
in mind the legislature has enacted Section 22(2) of the Designs Act,
wherein it is enacted that the suit can be filed for grant of damages and
therefore it can not be said that the plaintiff will suffer irreparable
injury. (Para 29)

@ e afHar afkar (1908 @7 5), FRE 39 9T 1 T 2 —
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C. Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 39 Rule 1 & 2 -
Temporary injunction - The grant of temporary injunction is discretionary
relief and discretion is to be exercised in favour of plaintiff, if he comes
with clean hands and with fair conduct. ) (Para 32)

7 ferfaer gfarar wiear (1908 &7 5) IR 39 fFr9 1 7 2 —
Ieeqrs BRer — Sl ARy 33fed smaly € Ak RdsiRer o ard
® gd ¥ wal T B B, afy 98 Prepuear € ud wemERer 9 aar

Cases referred :

2002(24) PTC 93=2002(3)SCC 65, 2010 (42) PTC 806, O.A. No.
815/2011 & 816/2011 in C.S. No. 652/2011 decided on 12.09.2012, (2011)
11 SCC 524, AIR 1991 Delhi 25, (2005) 5 SCC 30, (2008) 10 SCC 657,
149 (2008) DLT 338, 2007 (35) PTC 257, (2008) 10 SCC 723, (2004) 6
SCC 145, (2001) 5 SCC 73.
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Kishore Shrivastava wWith Anshuman Singh & Rahul Diwakar, for
the respondent.

ORDER

A.K. SHIRIVASTAVA, J. :- This appeal under Order 43 Rule 1(r) CPC
has been filed at the instance of plaintiff whose application for issuance of
temporary injunction has been rejected by learned Trial court on 03.07.2012
in Civil Suit No.2-A/2012.

2. In brief the suit of the plaintiff as borne out from the plaint is that the
plaintiff is a Company registered under the Companies Act, 1956 (in short
"Companies Act") having its registered office mentioned in para 1 of the plaint.
The plaintiff is involved in the business of brewing, marketing and sale of
beer, non-alcoholic beverages and mineral water, The plaintiff manufactures
and sells the beer in the name and trademark "Haywards 5000" while name of
defendant's Beer is "Black Fort". The plaintiff has registered the bottle of its
beer under Section 9(1) of the Designs Act, 2000 (in short "Designs Act")
having registration No.223479 dated 19.06.2009 registered on 15.01.2000.
The beer which defendant manufactures is filled and bottled in its own bottles
and apart from it, the defendant also used to purchase the empty bottles from
the junk market and after recycling it fills its own product "Black Fort" and
sells in the market. Thus, the defendant also used to sale its own product
(beer Black Fort) in the empty bottles of the plaintiff's bottle whose design
has been registered under the Designs Act for which defendant has no right
and its action is contrary to the said Act. It is the further case of the plaintiff
that defendant used to sell his beer in the empty bottle of plaintiff with a mala
fide intention that because the plaintiff is having own reputation in the market
and therefore customers may purchase the beer of defendant under the
impression that it is the product (beer Haywards 5000) of plaintiff and thus
the plaintiff has filed the suit with the aid of Section 22 of Designs Act and
Section 134(1)(c), 135(1) and 135(2) of the Trade Marks Act, 1999 (in
short "Trade Marks Act"} for grant of decree of injunction against the defendant
against design infringement, passing-off, misrepresentation, his act of unfair
competition and also for damages.

3. An application for issuance of temporary injunction has also been filed
by the plaintiff-appellant praying that till the suit is decided the defendant be
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restrained from selling its Iﬁroduct beer Black Fort in the bottle of plaintiff
whose design has been registered under the Designs Act.

4. The defendant-respondent filed written-statement and has also filed
reply against the plaintiff's application for issuance of temporary injunction
and has pleaded that defendant is not using the plaintiff's name and design and
product to sell its product Black Fort beetr. The defendant has its own
registered trade mark under which its products are sold. Specific denial has
been made that defendant has made afny unauthorized use of trade mark/name
of plaintiff. According to defendant as per practice prevailing in the beer
trade, every beer sold in the market is not contained in a freshly manufactured
bottle. Used bottles are collected from the open market for recycling and
rebottling, According to defendant, the plaintiff and defendant are practitioner
of the same system of bottling and sale of beer in recycled bottles. Denial has
been made in the written-statement that plaintiff's bottle has a unique visual
appeal to beer consumers or the bottles are visually distinguishable from the
bottles of other brands. The averments of plaintiff are also denied that
consumers identify or associate any unique shape of a bottle to the beer
manufactured by the plaintiff.- According to the defendant the registration of -
‘plaintiff does not bear any distinguishing feather of plaintiff's alleged design to
make the plaintiffaileged bottle unique. It has also been pleaded in the written
statement that plaintiff's claim of certain rights by operation of the Designs Act
is subject to restrictions and conditions under the said Act and since the design
of plaintiff's bottle is not unique or a new design created by or exclusive to the
product of plaintiff, the plaintiff has no right to lay any claim under the said
Designs Act. In additional pleas it has been pleaded that the defendant-
Company was formed in the year 1985-86 and is achieving greater height of
success. Further in para 7 of the additional pleas of the written-statement it
. has been pleaded that the plaintiff himselfhas stated that until recent past the
brewers in India sold their beer in a common bottles. According to defendant,
used bottles of beer are collected by the Junk dealer (Kabadis) from the market
and are sold back to different brewers for the purpose of recycling the bottles.
The bottles are sold by junk dealers to brewers with or without labels of
different companies, who in the process of recycling ensure that all previous
labels are carefully removed and labels of respective companies are pasted
prominently on the bottle during rebottling process. Thus, the re-filled bottles
come out in to the market with the fresh labels of respective companies which
are easily distinguishable from each other and are sold in different brands and
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names of different companies. In para 8 of the additional pleas it has been
pleaded by the defendant that the consumers of beer identify the beer of its
brand name and brand name is prominently displayed by a label pasted on
the face of the bottle and also a paper covering the neck at the cap of the .
bottle. The consumers do not identify a particular brand of beer by the shape
of its bottle especially as the most prominent feature exclusive to the product
is the unique brand name pasted during the labeling on the face of the bottle
having exclusive use of words, fonts, pattern, colour, design etc. on the label.

5. The defendant-respondent also filed written reply of plaintiff's
application forissuance of temporary injunctionand by refuting the averments
prayed that temporary injunction application be dismissed.

6. Learned Trial Court after hearing the parties did not find any case for
grant of temporary injunction in favour of plaintiff and eventually dismissed
the application by the impugned order.

7. In this manner this appeal has been filed by the plaintiff.

8. Shri Agrawal, learned Senior Counsel for plaintiff-appellant by inviting
my attention to Section 22 of the Desi gns Act has submitted that since the
design of the bottle of the plaintiff has been registered having registration
1n0.223479 and this has not been disputed by the defendant, therefore, the
defendant cannot sell its own product (beer Black Fort) in the bottles of plaintiff
whose design has beenregistered. Further by inviting my attention to Section
27(2) of the Trade Marks Act and doctrine of passing-off it has been contended
by learned Senior Counsel that why the bottles of plaintiff-appellant are being
used by defendant in which he is selling his own product (beer Black Fort).
Obviously because the buyers may be misled that the beer which they are
purchasing is the product of plaintiff or the defendant has some connection or
some bondage with the plaintiff and therefore the plaintiff's bottles are being
used by the defendant. In support of his contention, learned Senior Counsel
has put emphasis mainly on the decisions Laxmikant V. Patel vs. Chetanbhat
Shah & Anr. 2002 (24) PTC 93 =2002(3) SCC 65, decision of Delhi High
Court Rhizome Distilleries P. Ltd. & Ors. v. Pernod Ricard S.4. France &
Ors. 2010 (42) PTC 806 (Del.) (DB) and decision of Madras High Court in
0.A. No.815/2011 and 816/2011 in Civil Suit N0.652/2011 decided on
12.09.2012. Learned Senior Counsel has also invited my attention to other
case laws and has submitted that a prima facie case of plaintiff is made out
and if temporary. injunction is not granted plaintiff company will suffer



1594  Skol Bre. Ltd.Vs. Som Dist. Ltd & Bre.Ltd. LL.R.[2013]M.P.

irreparable loss and balance of convenience is also in its favour. But, despite
the principles granting temporary injunction exist in favour of plaintiff, the Trial
Court illegally and contrary to law has rejected the application of temporary
injunction and thus it has been prayed that by allowing this appeal, the temporary
injunction prayed by the plaintiff be allowed restraining the defendant not to
sell its beer Black Fort in the bottles of the plaintiff whose design has been
registered under the Designs Act.

9. Shri Kishore Shrivastava, learned Senior Counsel appearing for
defendant-respondent argued in support of the impugned order and has raised
an objection that suit itself is not maintainable because as per the plaintiff's
own showing the plaintiff is a company registered under the Companies Act
but there is no resolution of the Company in terms of Sections 291 and 292 of
the Companies Act to file a suit. In this regard he has also placed reliance
upon the decision of Supreme Court in State Bank of Travancore v. Kingston
Computers India Private Limited (2011) 11 SCC 524, M/s. Nibro Limited
v. National Insurance Co. Lid. AIR 1991 Delhi 25 and Shubh Shanti
Services Ltd. v. Manjula S. Agarwalla and others (2005) 5 SCC 30.

10.  Learned Senior Counsel for respondent by inviting my attention to
Section 19 of Designs Act has submitted that defendant has applied for
cancellation of registration of plaintiff and has also taken a defence which is
available to defendant under Section 22(3) of the Designs Act. Eventually, an
application under Section 22(4) of the Designs Act was submitted by the
plaintiff which was rejected by the Trial Court on 22.11.2011 although a petition
under Article 227 of the Constitution of India is pending in this Court against
the said order. By inviting my attention to para 15 of the plaint it has been
put-forth by him that no cause of action has accrued to the plaintiff because in
this para the plaintiff himself has pleaded that its unique shaped bottles have
already been introduced in the State of Andhra Pradesh, Rajasthan, Haryana,
Punjab, Delhi, Chandigarh, Maharashtra and Orrisa but there is no pleading
that it has been introduced in the State of M.P. and therefore no cause of
action has been accrued to the plaintiff because it is not the pleading of plaintiff
that the plaintiff's bottle is having circulation in State of M.P.

11.  Onmerits my attention has been drawn to Section 2(d) of the Designs
Act wherein the definition of 'design' has been mentioned and has submitted
that on its bare perusal it is clear that the similarities should appeal to and are
judged solely by eyes and these words are deliberately and purposely used in
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this section. By inviting my attention to different photographs of the bottles of
the plaintiff's brand and that of defendant which were also filed in the Court
below and after giving the permission by this Court on being prayed by learned
Senior Counsel for both the parties, the empty bottles were also demonstrated
in the Court, it has been submitted that bottles in which plaintiff's product
(beer Haywards 5000) is filled is not having any particular eye appeal and
therefore defendant can take the protection under Section 22(3) and 19 of
the Designs Act. Learned Senior Counsel has also placed reliance upon the
decision of the Supreme Court Bharat Glass Tube Limited v. Gopal Glass
Works Limited.(2008) 10 SCC 657 and also on decision of Delhi High Court
Dabur India Limited v. Mr. Rajesh Kumar and Ors. 149 (2008) DLT 338.
He has also placed reliance upon another decision of Delhi High Court Dabur
India Limited v. My. Amit Jain and Anr. 2007 (35) PTC 257. According to
learned Senior Counsel for respondent Section 22(3) pertains to defence and
registration under the Designs Act can be cancelled under Section 19 of the
said Act. Learned Senior Counsel has also invited my attention to endorsement

~made in the certificate of registration of plaintiff and has submitted that in the

registration itself there is a note that no claim is made by virtue of this
registration to the exclusive use of words, letters, numerals, flags, crons, arms,
shaded portion and reflection etc. including the background and thus submitted
that registration certificate does not authorize the plaintiff'to claim any benefit.

12.  Inreplying the contention of learned Senior Counsel for the appellant
on the point of passing-off, reliance has been placed by learned Senior Counsel
for respondent upon Khoday Distilleries Limited v. Scotch Whisky
Association and others (2008) 10 SCC 723 and Satyam Infoway Ltd. v.
Sifynet Solutions (P) Ltd. (2004) 6 SCC 145. Learned Senior Counsel
submits that the question of mis-description or any type of confusion in the
mind of consumers does not arise for the simple reason that on the beer bottle
of defendant eye-catching label of Som Distilleries by name Black Fort label
and manufactured by Som Distilleries is embossed. Thus, according to learned
Senior Counsel the buyer will never be deceived or will be confused in any
manner. In this context learned Senior Counsel has placed reliance upon the
decision of Supreme Court Cadila Health Care Ltd. v. Cadila
Pharmaceuticals Ltd. (2001) 5 SCC 73 and the decision of Supreme Court
in'Laxmikant V. Patel (supra) which is also relied upon by learned Senior
Counsel for respondent.

13, Atthelastithas been submitted that plaintiff himselfis using the bottles
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of beer Kingfisher by filling his own product (beer Haywards 5000) and by
showing a bottle of Kingfisher to this Court, it has been submitted that by
pasting its label upon the bottles of Kingfisher in which its name is embossed
is selling its product Haywards 5000 and therefore the plaintiff has not come
with clean hands before this Court and thus the application of temporary
injunction has been rightly dismissed by the Trial Court because neither the
plaintiff is having prima facie case nor it will face any irreparable loss if
temporary injunction is not granted and balance of convenience is also not in
favour of the plaintiff.

14.  Inreply Shri Agrawal learned Senior Counsel for plaintiff-appellant
submitted that so far as the question of maintainability of suit etc. is concerned,
it shall be left open to the Trial Court to decide it at the time of decision of the
suit particularly when no pleading of defendant is there in the written-statement.
He has also submitted that if the plaintiff is using the bottles upon which
Kingfisher's name is embossed by mistake it happened. Learned Senior
Counsel submits that looking to the mandate envisaged under Section 22 of
the Designs Act since deliberately the plaintiff's bottles are being used by
defendant in filling his product (beer Black Fort) the real intention'is to be
seen and therefore why the defendant is using plaintiff's bottle? The answer is
simple that because the buyers may get confused and deceived and by
understanding that they are purchasing the product of plaintiff or defendant is
having some bondage or connection with the plaintiff, therefore, they will
purchase the product of the defendant with the understanding that it belongs
to plaintiff and hence it has been prayed that appeal be allowed and temporary
injunction as sought in the application be granted in favour of the plaintiff by
setting aside the impugned order.

15.  Having heard learned counsel for the parties, I am of the view that this
appeal deserves to be dismissed.

16.  Since the plaintiffby an interim injunction undoubtedly seeks to interfere
with the rights of the defendant before the plaintiff's right is finally established,
therefore, very strong prima facie case in respect ofhis right should be asserted
and it should so exist in favour of the plaintiff. It is equally true that at the
interlocutory stage, the Court should not embark upon detailed investigation
on the relevant merits of the contentions of the parties. Itis enough if the
plaintiff raises a question of substantive character, calling for a decision after
an examination of facts and law rising in the case. The Court dealing with
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the application of temporary injunction is also having wisdom to consider the
nature and merits of the rival contention prima facie at the interlocutory stage
for the limited purpose of determining as to whether or not the plaintiff has
made out a strong prima facie case.

17. The plaintiff should next demonstrate that the court's interference is
necessary to protect him from an injury or mischief which is imminent and at
the same time that it is irreparable. He should make out that the injury is so
serious, irreparable and imminent that an immediate order of the court is
necessary even before the rights are established at the trial.

18.  Needless to say that this burden will lie upon the plaintiff to make that
the comparative mischiefor inconvenience which would ensue from withholding
the injunction would be far greater than what would ensue from the injunction
being granted.

19.  Inprecise way, the abovesaid three points are well settled that plaintiff
should have a strong prima facie case in his favour, he will suffer irreparable
loss in case temporary injunction sought for is not granted and balance of
convenience also lies in his favour. I may add that these three essential
ingredients to pass an order of temporary injunction are akin to that of three
strong pillars upon which the roof of temporary injunction would rest and [
may further add that if any pillar is lacking, the roof will collapse and fall
down, meaning thereby the plaintiff would not be entitled for temporary
injunction. By keeping the aforesaid three principles in my mind, I shall now
consider the cases of parties vis-a-vis to each other.

Regarding prima facie case :

20.  Broadly speaking and as borne out from the argument of learned Senior -
Counsel for the appellant, the plaintiff is banking upon prima facie case on
two points. Firstly the plaintiff company has registered the design of its bottle
having a registration number under the Designs Act and because defendant in
the bottles of the plaintiff is selling its own product by filling Black Fort beer,
therefore, his act and action runs de hors to Section 22(1) of the Designs Act.
The remedy is also provided against the person who acts in contravention to
Section 22(1) which is provided under subsection (2) of Section 22 of the
Designs Act. Secondly, the plaintiffis placing very strong reliance upon the
doctrine of "passing-off".

" 21.  Sofarasthe first point in regard to having a prima facie case in favour
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of plaintiff is concerned, it would be condign to go through first the definition
of "design" as envisaged under Section 2(d) of the Designs Act, which reads
thus :-

2(d) "design" means only the features of shape,
configuration, pattern, ornament or composition of lines or
colours applied to any article whether in two dimensional or
three dimensional or in both forms, by any industrial process
or means, whether manual, mechanical or chemical, separate
or combined, which in the finished article appeal to and
are judged solely by the eye; but does not include any mode
or principle of construction or anything which is in substance a
mere mechanical device, and does not include any trade mark
as defined in clause (v) of sub-section (1) of section 2 of the
Trade and Merchandise Marks Act, 1958 (43 of 1958) or
property mark as defined in section 479 of the Indian Penal
Code (45 of 1860) or any artistic work as defined in clause
(¢) of section 2 of the Copyright Act, 1957 (14 of 1957).

(emphasis supplied)

The legisature has deliberately used the words upon which I have put emphasis
while quoting the definition clause. Several photographs from different angles
of the various bottles are on record. Apart from that on the prayer of both the
parties, this Court allowed to show empty bottles in which the defendant is
selling its own product (beer Black Fort). On examination by naked eye this
Court finds no peculiar distinguishing feature from the ordinary bottle is seen
in order to judge plaintiff's bottle solely by eye. The structure of the bottles is
not an eye-catching. It is only an ordinary bottle which s being used. Upon
each bottle almost covering its middle part of the bottle, a label showing brand
name of defendant "Black Fort" the name of distillery and manufacturer etc.
has been pasted and at a glance one could very easily see even if that bottle is
kept with several other beer bottles and even alongwith the bottles of plaintiff
that the bottle contains the product of defendant. On bare perusal of the
plaintiff's bottle this Court finds that it is an ordinary shaped bottle and there is
nothing peculiar or special in order to observe ata glance or an eye-catch that
this type of shape of bottle is of plaintiff. On seeing the bottle, one would not
be confused even if the defendant's product is filled in the bottle of plaintiff
which is registered under the Designs Act because of covering the large size
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label of defendant upon the bottle. Thus, by keeping this important aspect in
mind by the legislature deliberately the words "which in the finished article
appeal to and are judged solely by the eye" have been used in the definition
clause of "design" under the Designs Act. For further clarification I may add
that the shape, design, pattern, configuration, ornament etc. should be so
peculiar and distinct as eye-catching and can be caught by an intending buyer
that a particular bottle having its own shape, design, pattern and configuration
is of particular brand only and therefore according to me, deliberately the
legislature has further enacted Section 22(3) and section 19 of the Designs
Act. On bare perusal of subsection (3) to Section 22 of the said Act this
Court finds that it is a defence which is available to the defendant. Ifa particular
brand is not having any particular or eye-catching or appeal to its shape,
pattern, configuration etc. any person can apply for cancellation of the design
under Section 19 of the Designs Act. In this regard rightly reliance has been
placed by learned Senior Counsel for respondent to the decision of Supreme
Court Bharat Glass Tube Ltd. (supra) in which para 26, 29 and 30 are
quite relevant. I have also gone through the decision of Delhi High Court in
Dabur India Limitedv. Mr. Rajesh Kumar (supra) and ] am of the view that
para 11 of this decision is quite relevant and ratio dicidendi is also applicable
in the present case. Similarly another decision of Delhi High Court in Dabur
India Limited v. Mr. Amit Jain and Anr 2007(35) PTC 257 para 7 is also
relevant.

22.  Inthisbackdrop of facts and circumstances, the décisions which have
been placed reliance by learned Senior Counsel for appellant pertaining to
Designs Act are not applicable.

23.  Thus, by paying heed to the expression "design" as defined in the
Designs Act according to me it means features of shape, configuration, pattern
or ornament applied to an article by any industrial process, being features
which in the finished article appeal to and are judged solely by the eye, but it
does not include-

(a) “amethod or principle of construction or
(b)  features of shape or configuration which

) are dictated solely by the function which the
article has to perform; or

- (i) are dependent upon the appearance of another
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article of which the article is intended by the author of
the design to form an integral part.

In this context, I may again rely upon the decision of Apex Court Bharat
Glass Tube Limited (supra) para 35, which fully supports the case of
defendant-respondent. Thus, I am of the view on the first point in regard to
prima facie case, plaintiff stands nowhere.

24.  Inorderto prove its prima facie case on the second point the plaintiff
company is placing reliance upon the doctrine of "passing-off". The ingredients
of the action for passing off has been reiterated in the Halsbury's Laws of
England, fourth edition Vol.48 para 144 at page 98, which reads thus:

144. Ingredients of the action for passing off} ...... (1) @
misrepresentation (2) made by a trader in the course of trade
(3) to prospective customers of his or ultimate consumers of
goods or services supplied by him (4) which is calculated to
injure the business or goodwill of another trader, in the sense
that this is a reasonably foreseeable consequence, and (5)
which causes actual damage to a business or goodwill of the
trader by whom the action is brought or, in a quia timet action,
will probably do so.

25.  The doctrine ‘passing off is usually taken into account while considering
the cases under the Trade Marks Act. Indeed term "passing-off" has not been
defined in this Act also although in section 27(2) there is a reference of these
wordings. The plaintiff-appellant indeed is also placing heavy reliance upon
this provision. Before dealing with this point, it shall be apt to quote Section
27(2) of the Trade Marks Act, which reads thus;

27. No action for infringement of unregistered trade
mark;-

a

(2) Nothing in this Act shall be deemed to affect rights of
action against any person for passing off goods or services as
the goods of another person or as services provided by another
person, or the remedies in respect thereof.

According to me, an action for passing-off as a phrase "passing off" itself
suggests is to restrain defendant from passing-off its goods or services to the

S
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public as that of plaintiff's {see the decision of Supreme Court in Satyam
Infoway Ltd (supra)}. In para 13 of this decision the Supreme Court has
further held that it is an action not only to preserve the reputation of the plaintiff
but also to safeguard the public. The defendant must have sold its goods or
offered its services in a manner which has deceived or would be likely to
deceive the public into thinking that the defendant's goods or services are the
plaintiff's. According to me, this action is normally available to the owner of a
distinctive trade mark and the person who, if the word or name is an invented
one, invents and uses it, If two trade rivals claim to have individually invented
the same mark, then the trader who is able to establish prior user will succeed.
The second element that must be established by the plaintiff in the passing off
action is misrepresentation by the defendant to the public. In the same

~ judgment the Supreme Court in para 14 has held that if the misrepresentation

is intentional, it might lead to an inference that the reputation of the plaintiff is
such that it is worth the defendant's while to cash in on it. What has to be
established is the likelihood of confusion in the minds of the public that the
goods or services offered by the defendant are the goods or the services of
the plaintiff.

26.  Inthe given case at hand, both the plaintiff and defendant are the
manufacturer and seller of beer. The plaintiff is manufacturing and selling the

~ product beer Haywards 5000 while defendant is manufacturing and selling

the product beer Black Fort. On seeing the bottles and certain photographs
of the bottles it is gathered that almost middle part of the bottle is covered
with very peculiar label of each manufacturer and the company so that the
buyer or consumer may purchase it by going through the label, its design,
colour, etc. Thus, according to me no intending buyer is getting confused
because with an intention to purchase a particular brand (which may be either
of plaintiff or defendant) he will go to market and buy the beer by seeing the
label, which covers maximum portion of the bottle and not from the size of the
bottle.

27.  Thavealready held hereinabove that shape, size, dimension, pattern,
configuration, etc. of bottle of plaintiff is not of an eye-catching or appeal to
eye having its own distinct feature. Thus, according to e, the intending
consumer is not at all being misrepresented or is deceived in any manner.
Certainly, he will go to market and buy the product if he wants to purchase
the product of plaintiff or defendant by seeing the label upon the bottle.
Therefore, it cannot be said at this stage that intending buyers are deceived.
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In this context the decision of Supreme Court Cadila Health Care Lid. (supra)
para 20 may be seen. Needless to say on bare perusal of the label pasted on
the bottle of plaintiff and defendant they are quite distinct to each other and
even an illiterate person can distinct the manufacturer. The same principle has
been reiterated in the decision of Laxmikant V. Patel (supra) in para 8 which
has been placed reliance by learned Senior Counsel for both the parties. Shri
Agrawal learned Senior Counsel for appellant has also placed reliance upon
para 10 of this decision that law does not permit any one to carry on his
business in which a way as would persuade the customers or clients in believing:
that the goods or services belonging to someone else are his or are associated
therewith. But, according to me as I have already held hereinabove looking to
the quite distinguishing features upon the labels on the bottles of plaintiff and
defendant the intending buyer is not persuaded even if bottle of plaintiff
registered under the Designs Act has been used by the defendant.

28.  Onthe elucidation of facts and law, I am of the view that there is no
prima facie case exists in favour of plaintiff and learned Trial Court has rightly
held so. Thus, if plaintiff company is not having any prima facie case, no
temporary injunction can be granted in its favour.

Regarding irreparable injury :

29.  So faras ireparable injury is concerned, if ultimately the suitis decreed,
the plaintiff can be compensated by way of damages and by keeping this
important aspect in mind the legislature has enacted Section 22(2) of the
Designs Act wherein it is enacted that the suit can be filed for the grant of
damages and therefore it cannot be said that the plaintiff will suffer any
irreparable injury.

Regarding balance of convenience :

30.  Atpresentitcannot be said that comparative mischief or inconvenience
which would ensue from withholding the injunction would be far greater than
what would ensue from the injunction being granted and therefore according
to me the balance of convenience is also not in favour of the plaintiff.

31.  The grant of temporary injunction is a discretionary power and
discretion should be exercised upon the well settled sound principles for
granting the temporary injunction. The plaintiffis not having any prima facie
case in his favour, he shall also not suffer any irreparable loss which cannot be
compensated by damages and further balance of convenience is also not in his
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favour.-Thus, according to me, the plaintiff is not entitled to temporary
injunction.

32.  Thatapart, one important fact which cannot be marginalized and blinked
away and which has not been disputed by learned Senior Counsel for appellant
during the course of argument that the plaintiff's Company itself is filling its
own product (beer Haywards 5000) in the bottle of beer seller Kingfisher.
During the course of argument learned Senior Counsel for respondent also
placed before me the empty bottle of the beer of Kingfisher upon which brand
name of Kingfisher is embossed and label of plaintiff's company is pasted. -
According to me, before passing a temporary injunction order in favour of
plaintiff, the Court must have due regard to conduct and dealings of the plaintiff.
This is so because the Court where summary inference is invoked, the conduct
of the party is always seen and the Court will refuse to grant temporary
injunction in a case where the action of the plaintiffis not fair. It is well settled
law that the grant of temporary injunction is a discretionary relief and discretion
is to be exercised in favour of plaintiff, if he comes with clean hands and with
fair conduct. No authority is need but I may place reliance on Halsbury's
laws of England Fourth Edition Vol.24 para 1006 at page 563.

33.  Sofarasmaintainability of suit is concerned, all the submissions which

. are made by learned Senior Counsel for respondent cannot be taken into

account at present for the simple reason that these are having nexus with the
facts and they have not been pleaded in the written-statement. The respondent
shall be free to amend the written-statement to raise all these objections. If
necessary pleadings in regard to maintainability of suit is taken in the Court
below by filing amendment application to amend the written-statement , that
application may be considered by learned Trial Court and if the amendment
application is allowed, an issue shall be framed in that regard and it may be
decided in accordance with law. At-present in this appeal, the question of
maintainability of suit is not taken into account and it is left open to learned
Trial Court to decide the same in accordance with law.

34, For the reasons stated hereinabove, I do not find any merit in
this appeal, the same is hereby dismissed with costs. Counsel fee Rs.10,000/-
if pre-certified.

Appeal dismissed.
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Motor Vehicles Act (59 of 1988), Sections 166 & 173 -
Compensation - Multiplier - Multiplier on the age of claimants would
be applicable if their age is more than the age of deceased - In a case
of bachelor's death one half deduction towards personal expenses may
be made from the earning of deceased to capitalize the loss of
dependency applying the multiplier either at the age of deceased or as
per the age of the claimant whichever is higher. (Para 23)
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ORDER

J.K. Manesnwari, J. :- All these five appeals are arising out of the
common award dated 20/07/2010 passed by Member. Motor Accident Claims
Tribunal, Bhanpura, Distt. Mandsour in Claim Case No. 15/2007, Claim
Case No. 23/2007. Claim Case No. 14/2007. Claim Case No. 24/2007 and
Claim Case No. 32/2007 whereby the Tribunal awarded the sum of
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compensation in the case of death and injuries in the respective cases.

2. As per Claim averments, on 10/05/2007 Ashfaq along with his friends -
Areef and Mustafa were standing at new bus stand, Bhanpura near Vijay
Stambh with the motorcycle Hero Honda Splender. At about 10.20 p.m. in
the night Mahindra Pickup Jeep bearing registration No. M.P. 14-G.A./0157
driven rashly and negligently by the driver-non-applicant No.1, dashed t
them and also to Mustafa, Shabbeer, Fareed, Jeeshan, Ashraf and Bilal, wherein
Ashfaq and Areef were died and other persons received injuries. Legal heirs
and injured persons have filed their claim petition seeking compensation before
Motor Accident Claims Tribunal.

3. In Claim Case No. 14/2007 Ashfaq is the deceased and his widow,
son, daughter, mother and father residing jointly filed claim petition. It is
contended that he was the owner of Truck bearing No.RJ-33-GA/O171 and
a Trollar No. RJ-33-GA/0470 having earning Rs.30,000/- per month. He
was also the President of Rajeev Matsya Udyog Sahakari Samiti Maryadit,
Bhanpura and have earning from fishing work however, compensation to the
tune of Rs.16,65,000/- has been prayed for.

4. In Claim Case No.15/2007 Areefis the deceased and claimants are
mother, father, brother and sister. The deceased was the owner of Troller
bearing No. R.J. 33G.A'/0173 having monthly income of Rs. Rs.20,000/-,
however, compensation to the tune of Rs.17,05,000/- has been prayed for.

5. In claim case No.23/2007.claim petition was filed by Jahir and his
minor son Jishan jointly on account of the injuries received to them. Injured
Jahir received injury over the head, stomach, back, left leg toe, left hand in
thumb. For those injuries compensation to the tune of Rs.2,80,000/- was
. prayed but Claim Tribunal rejected it. For the injuries received to Jishan over
the head, right leg, knee, having fracture at tibia fabula bone and the permanent
disability (Ex.P-3) the compensation to the tune of Rs.6,63,000/- was claimed.

6. In claim case No.24/2007, Ashraf and his minor son Bilal have filed a
joint claim for the injuries received to them. Ashraf received the fracture in left
hand and left leg ankle. Certificate of permanent disability (Ex P-5) was filed.
However, looking to the injuries compensation to the tune of Rs. 12,37,000/-
was prayed for. While in case of Bilal, he received fracture of left leg femur
bone having permanent disability as per (Ex.P-12). However, compensation
to the tune of Rs. 4,66,000/- was prayed for.
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7. In claim case No. 32/2007 injured Mustafa Hussain received fracture of
ankle bone and right leg and certificate of permanent disability (Ex.P-1). However,
the compensation to the tune of Rs. 5,76,000/- has been prayed for.

Jakir Hussain Vs. Dinesh

8. It is not in dispute that respondent No.2 is the owner of Mahindra
Pickup Jeep bearing registration No. M.P.14-G.A./0157 which was driven
by driver Dinesh. It is also not disputed that driver was possessing a driving
license which was valied up to 8/1/2027. It is also not disputed that the said
vehicle was insured with the National Insurance Company Limited bearing
policy No. 320303/3106/6350008491 for the period 11/5/2006 to 10/05/
2007. It is also not in dispute that all the claimants have filed claim petition
under Section 166 of the Motor Vehicles Act seeking compensation as specified
in their respective claims.

9. Learned Claims Tribunal recorded the finding that the accident has
taken place on account of rash and negligent driving of the driver of the
offending vehicle Mahindra Pickup Jeep bearing registration No.M.P.14-G.A./
0157 on 10.5.2007. It has further been held that the said jeep was owned by
respondent No.2 and insured with National Insurance Company Limited. The
finding has also been recorded that the respondents are jointly and severally
liable to pay compensation because violation of the terms and conditions of
policy has not been proved, accordingly, awarded the sum which shall be
reflect from the following tables :-

Serial  Nature of  ClaimCase  Claimants Amount Amount
No. Case No. Claimed Awarded
1 Fatal 1407 Ashfaq (deceased) Rs.16,63,000/- Rs. 6,02,000/-
7 Claimants
2. Fatal 15/07 Arif (deceased)  Rs. 17.05,000/- Rs. 3,42,000/-
7 Claimants
3. Nan-Fatal 23/07 [ Jahir 1Rs. 2,80,000/<in I Nothing to Jahir
II Jishan Jahir is Case
1l Rs. 6,60,000/-in 11, Rs. 19,138/-
Jishan's case to Jishan
4. Non-fatal 24/07 I Ashraf I1Rs. 12,37,000/<in  Rs..82,900/- in total
I1 Bilal Ashraf’s case to both
IIRs. 3 lacin
Bilal's case
5. Non-fatal 32/07 1 Mustafa Rs. 5,76,000/- Rs. 9,000/-
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10.  Learned Counsel appearing for claimants has argued at length, inter-
alia, contending that the compensation awarded in a case of death of Areef
Rs.3,42,000/- is inadequate accepting the earning of Rs. 2,500/~ per month -
and applying the multiplier of 17 after deduction of 1/3 towards personal
expenses, however, compensation so awarded may be reasonably enhanced
accepting his earning as pleaded in the claim petition.

11.  Learned counsel for the claimants by placing heavy reliance on the
judgments of the Apex Court in the cases of Sarla Verma and others V.

Delhi Transport Corporation and another, 2009 ACJ 1298, P.S.

Somanathan and others V. District Insurance Officer and another,2011

ACJ 737, Amrit Bhanu Shali and others V. National Insurance Co. Ltd.

and others, 2012 ACJ 2002, has contended that even ina case of bachelor’s
death multiplier shall be applicable on the age of deceased with deduction 1/3

and not as per the age of the claimants after and one half deduction. Thus,
Claims Tribunal has rightly deducted 1/3 amount towards expenses and
applying the multiplier on the age of the deceased awarded the sum, therefore,

interference is not called for, however, by placing reliance on the Full Bench
judgment of this Court in the case of Jabalpur Bus Operator Association

Vs. State of M.P. and others, AIR 2003 MP 81, contended that later decision
in the cases of Amrit Bhanu Shali and others (supra) and P.S. Somanathan
and others (supra) are binding, because in those cases the judgment of Sarla
Verma (supra) has been considered therefore, on the instance of the insurance
company the deduction towards personal expenses cannot be made ¥2 and
the multiplier as per the age of claimant in case of bachelor's death cannot be
applied for. In case of death of Ashraf, the earning so accepted by the Tribunal
is adequate because he was the owner of the truck and troller, however,
accepting the reasonable earning looking to material brought on record,
adequate amount of compensation may be awarded. In other case of injuries
i.e. Jahir and Jishan, the claim of Jahir has wrongly been rejected and the
finding so recorded is perverse. Itis also submitted that reasonable amount of
compensation may be awarded to J ahir and Jishan directing enhancement.
Similarly, in the case of Ashraf, Bilal and Mustafa and looking to the injuries
received to them, amount of compensation as awarded is un-reasonable which
may also be enhanced.

12.  Per contra, learned counsel representing owner driver and the
Insurance Company, have strenuously urged that as per Section 167 of the
Motor Vehicles Act, adequate, just and reasonable amount of compensation
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- may be awarded. In the present case dependents are the mother, father, major
sister, and brother, therefore, deduction 1/3 made by the Tribunal is
inappropriate. In such a case % deduction ought to be made and the brothers
and sisters cannot be said to be the dependents on deceased because his
father is alive. It is also submitted that the multiplier at the age of the claimant
would be applicable in Bachelor's death, In addition to it, it is submitted that
deceased was the owner of the Trollar but the same was given by the father
Jakir Husain to him, however deceased was not having any independent
earning, therefore, earning accepted by the Tribunal Rs.2,500/- is just and
proper and the compensation as awarded is not liable to be enhanced in the
facts of the case.

13. While learned counsel for the Insurance Company placing reliance on
the judgment of the Apex Court in the case of General Manager, Kerala
State Road Transport Corporation V. Susamma Thomas and others, 1994
ACJ 1. three Judges Bench judgment in the case of U P. State Road T ransport
Corporation and others vs Trilok Chandra and others, 1996 ACJ 831
which is relied upon in the case of Saria Verma (supra), at the Division Bench
of Apex Court, It is submitted that the observations made in three Judges
Bench in the case of Trilok Chandra and others (supra) regarding applicability
of the multiplier on the age of parents in bachelor's death has been considered
in the judgment of Sarla Verma (supra) also. It is further contended that in the
judgment of Sarla Verma (supra), as well as the other two judgments relied
upon by earned counsel for the claimants, three Judges Bench of the Apex
Court in the case of New India Assurance Co.Ltd. V. Shanti Pathak and
others, 2007 ACJ 2188 has not been considered. It is also said that other
two Judges Bench of Apex Court in the case of Gyanchand Jain and another
V. Parmanand and others, 2003 ACJ 2153 has considered and explained
on the issue of applicability of the multiplier. In addition to the same, the Apex
Court applying the judgment of Sarla Verma (supra} in the-case of Shakti
Devi V. New India Assurance Co. Ltd and another, 2011 ACJ 15, National
Insurance Co. Ltd V. Shyam Singh and others, 2011 ACJ 1990 and also in
a case of New India Assurance Co. Ltd. V Yogesh Devi and others, 2012
ACJ 702 applied the multiplier as per the age of claimant in a case of bachelor's
death after deducting '%. In such circumstances, compensation has rightly been
awarded by the Tribunal. Leamned counsel for the Insurance Company as well
asthe owner and driver submitted on the of enhancement as prayed by the
claimant, that the Claim Tribunal in the facts and circumstances of the case,
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has adequately awarded the amount of compensation which is not hab]e tobe
interfered with. :

14.  Leamned counsel for the claimants has also placed reliance on a'Single
Bench judgment of this Court in the case of Kamlabai and another Vs. Ashish
and others reported in 2011 (3) ACC 848 wherein in a bachelor's death,
multiplier on the age of deceased has been made applicable while the counsel
for insurance Company has placed reliance on another judgment of Single
Bench of this Court in the case of Narsingh and others Vs. Ghasiram_and
others passed in M.A. No.2754/2007 decided on 11/12/2012, and contended
that the multiplier as per the age of the parents shall be applicable. In such
circumstances, controversy as involved in the case is required to be resolved
on the issue of applicability of the multiplier in a case of bachelor's death.

15.  After hearing learned counsel appearing on behalf of the parties, first
of all, the law led down by various judgments of Hon'ble Apex Court is required
to be considered. In the said context, the Division Bench of Apex Court in the
case of Susamma Thomas and others (supra) has taken note that in a fatal -
accident cases, accepted measure of damages awarded to the dependents is
the pecuniary loss suffered by them as a result of death to determine "how
many members and the widow are suffered due to death". 'In answer to the
same, Lord Wright in Davies V. Powell Duffryn Assoczated Collieries Ltd. ,
(1992) AC 601 observed as under:-

"The starting point is the amount of wages which the
deceased was earning, the ascertainment of which to
some extent may depend on the regularity of his
employment. Then there is an estimate of how much was
~ required or expended. for his own personal and living
expenses. The balanee will give a datum or basic figure
which will generally be turned into a lnmp sum by taking
a certain number of years' purchase. That sum, however,
has to be taxed down by having due regard to
uncertainties, for instance, that the widow might have
again married and thus ceased to be dependent, and other
. like matters of speculation and doubt."

16.  The observation of Lord Macmilian has been considered that the
measure of damage is the pecuniary loss suffered and is likely to be suffered
_by each dependent. Thus, "except where there is express statutory direction
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to the contrary, the damages to be awarded to a dependent of a deceased
person to the fatal accident must taken into account any pecuniary benefit
accruing to the dependent in consequence of the death of the deceased. It is
the net loss on balance which constitutes the measure of damages." The
observation of Lord erght has also been considered that the actual pecuniary
loss of each individual entitled to sue can only be ascertained by balancing on
the one hand, the loss to him of the future pecuniary benefit, and, on the other,
any pecuniary advantage which from whatever source comes to him by reason
of the death. The aforesaid principle has been adopted in India in the case of
Gobald Motor Service Ltd. V. R.M..K. Veluswami, 1958-65 ACJ 179 (SC).
" Considering the aforesaid in the case of Susamma Thomas and others (supra),
the Court observed that the assessment of damages to compensate the
dependents is beset with difficulties because from the nature of things, it has
to take into account many imponderables, ¢.g. the life expectancy of the
deceased and the dependents, the amount that the deceased would have earned
during the remainder life, the amount that he would have contributed to the
dependents during that period, the chances that the deceased may not have
lived or the dependents may not lived up to the estimated remaining period of

their life expectancy, the chances that the deceased might have got better
employment or income or might have lost his employment or income altogether.
In the said context, it is observed that the manner to arrive at the damages is
to ascertain the net income of the deceased available for the support of himself
and his dependents, and to deduct therefrom such part of his income as the
deceased was accustomed to spend upon himself, as regard both self-
maintenance and pleasure and to ascertain what part of his net income the
deceased was accustomed to spend for the benefit of the dependents. Then
remaining income should he capitalized by multiplying it by a figure representing
the proper number of year's purchased. In the said context, it is observed that
much of the calculation necessarily remains in the realm of hypothesis "and in
that region arithmetic is a good servant but a bad master" since there are so
often many imponderables. In every case it is the overall picture that matters”
and the Court must try to assess at best as it can the loss suffered. In the said
context, two methods were adopted for determination and for calculation of
compensation in fatal accident actions, the first is multiplier method borrowed
from Davies V. Powell Duffiyn Associate Collieries Ltd. (supra) and second
in Nance V. British Columbia Electric Railway Co. Ltd., (1951) AC 601.
In the said context, it has been observed that the multiplier method involves
the ascertainment of the loss of dependency or the multiplicand having regard
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to the circumstances of the case and capitalizing the sum by an appropriate
multiplier. The choice of the multiplier is determined by the age of the deceased
(or that of the claimants, whichever is higher) and by the calculation as to
what capital sum, if invested at a rate of interest appropriate to a stable
economy, would yield the multiplicand by way of annual interest. In ascertaining
this, regard should also be had to the fact that ultimately the capital sum should
also be consumed up cover the period for which the dependency in expected
to last.

17.  Thereafter, in the case of Trilokchandra (supra) three judges Bench
of Hon'ble Apex Court has Considered the issue regarding applicability of the
multiplier in the case of bachelor's death. In the said case the judgment of
Susamma Thomas (supra) was considered and it was held that the maximum
multiplier can be upto 18 and not 24 as was held in the said case. In para 18,
the Court observed as under :-

We must at once point out that the calculation of
compensation and the amount worked out in the Schedule
suffer from several defects. For example, in item No.1
for a victim aged 15 years, the multiplier is shown to be
15 years and the multiplicand is shown to be rs.3,000/-.
The total should be rs.3000/- x 15 = Rs.45,000/- but the
same is worked out at Rs.60,000/-. Similarly, in the
second item the multiplier is 16 and the annual income is
Rs.9.000/-; the total should have been Rs.1,44,000/- but
is shown to be Rs.1,71,000/-. To put it briefly, the Table
abounds in such mistakes. Neither the Tribunal is nor
the courts can go by the ready reckoner. It can only be
used as a guide. Besides, the selection of multiplier
cannot in all cases be solely dependent on the age of the
deceased. For example, if the deceased, a bachelor, dies
at the age of 45 and his dependents are his parents, age
of the-parents would also be relevant in the choice of
multiplier. But these mistakes are limited to actual
calculations only and not in respect of other items. What
we propose to emphasize is that the multiplier cannot
exceed 18 years’ purchase factor. This is the
improvement over the earlier position that ordinarily it
should not exceed 16. We thought it necessary to state
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the correct legal position as courts and Tribunals are
using higher multiplier as in the present case where the -
Tribunal used the multiplier of 24 which the High Court
raised to 34, thereby showing lack of awareness of the
background of the multiplier system in Davies’ case,
(supra).”

18.  In the case of Gyanchand Jain and another (supra), the Division
Beach of Apex Court in the matter of appl;cab:hty of the multiplier in para-4
observed as under:-

""4. Claimants, being aggrieved, filed the special leave
petition in which leave was granted. The learned counsel
appearing for appellants argued that in the present case,
keeping in view the age of the deceased, multiplier of 18
ought to have been applied. We do not find any merit in
this submission. It is not disputed that maximum
multiplier that could be applied is 18. Since the deceased
was unmarried and the age of the mother was 49 vears
and that of the father was 55 vears, the total loss of
dependency has to be determined Keeping in view the
age of the parents. It is well established that age of
claimants when they happen to be parents in the case of
a deceased unmarried child is a relevant factor for
determining the multiplier to be adopted. Under such
circumstances, the multiplier applied by the Tribunal
which was upheld by the High Court is appropriate.”

19.  Again the issue of applicability of the multiplier in the case of bachelor's
death has come up for consideration before the three J udges’ Bench of Hon'ble
Apex Court in the case of Shanti Pathak & Others wherein, Hon'ble Apex
Court has held as under:-

"Considering the income that was taken, the foundation for
working out the compensation cannot be faulted. Monthly
contribution was fixed at Rs, 3,500. In the normal course we
would have remitted the matter to the hi gh Court for
consideration on the materials placed before it. But considering
the fact that the matter is pending since long, it would be
appropriate to take the multiplier of 5 considering the fact that
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the mother of the deceased is about 65 years at the time of the
accident and age of the father is more than 65 years. Taking
into account the monthly contribution at Rs.3,500 as held by
"the Tribunal and the High Court, the entitlement of the claim
would be Rs.2,10,000. The same shall bear interest at the
rate of 7.5 per cent per annum from the date of the application
for compensation. Payment already made shall be adjusted
from the amount due."

20. - Inview of the forgoing facts, it is clear thatthe principles adopted
with respect to the applicability of the multiplier Davies's case (supra) has
been recognized in India. Three Judges Bench of the Supreme Court in the
case of Trilokchandra (supra) has also applied the multiplier either as per
the age of the deceased or as per the age of the claimant whichever is higher.
Thereafter, before the Hon'ble Supreme Court in the case of Ramesh Singh
and another 2008 ACJ 814 , the aforesaid issue has brought for consideration.
After considering various judgments including the judgment in the case of
Trilokchandra Hon'ble Apex Court in para 5 relying upon the judgment of
the Oriental Insurance Company Limited Vs. Syed Ibrahim reported in
2007 ACJ 2816 (SC) held that the multiplier applied on the age of claimant
by the Claims Tribunal is just and proper. The observations of Hon'ble
Supreme Court in the said judgment are relevant, which reads as under :-

"5.- The learned counsel relying on the Second Schedule to
the Act contended that the deceased being about 22 years of
age, a multiplier of 16 or 17 should have been granted. It is
undoubtedly true that section 163-A was brought on the statute
book to shorten the period of litigation. The burden to prove
negligence or fault on the part of driver and otherallied burdens
under section 140 or 166 were really cumbersome and time-
consuming. Therefore, 'as a part of social justice, a system
was introduced via section 163-A wherein such burden was
avoided and thereby a speedy remedy was provided. The
relief under section 163-A has been held not to be additional
be alternate. The Schedule provided has been threadbare
discussed in various pronouncements including Deepal
Girishbhan Soni Vs. United India Insurance Co. Ltd., 2004
ACJ 934 (SC). Second Schedule is to be used not only
referring to age of victim but also other factors relevant
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therefore. Complicated question of facts and law arising in -
accident cases cannot be answered all times by relying on

mathematical equations. In fact in U.P. State Road Trans.

Corpn.v. Trilok Chandra, 1995 ACJ 831 (SC), Ahmedj, J.

(as the Chief Justice then was) has pointed out the shortcomings

in the said Schedule and has held that the Schedule can only
be used as a guide. It was also held that selection of multiplier
cannot in all cases be solely dependent on the age of the

deceased. [fa young man is killed in the accident leaving behind

aged parents who may not survive long enough to match with

a High multiplier provided by the Second Schedule then the

court has to offset such hish multiplier balance the same with

the short life expectancy of the claimants. That precisely has

happened in this case. Age of the parent was held as a relevant

factor in case of minor's death in recent decision in Oriental

Insurance Syed Ibrahim 2007 ACJ 2816 (SC). In our
considered opinion, . the courts below rightly struck the said

balance."

21. ' Thereafter, in the case of Sarla Verma (supra), the said issue has
come up for consideration wherein also the recognition of "Davies Theory"
has been affirmed in a case falling under section 166 of the Motor Vehicles
Act. In the case of Sarla Verma, it is laid down that as per schedule of Motor
Vehicles Act, the applicability of the multiplier is on the basis of the age. Ithas
also been observed that in case of Bachelor's death, the multiplier may be
made applicable as per the age of the deceased or as per the age of the
claimant whichever is higher. Thus, it is clear that in Shakti Devi's case (supra)
the two Judges Bench of Supreme Court considering the judgment of Sarla
Verma itself, has observed in para 12 as under :-

"2. So far as the present case is concerned, at the time of
accident, the deceased was 22-year old and not married. He
was running a general store from his house and earning about
Rs. 1000/-- per month from the business. In Sarla Verma,
this Court stated that where the deceased was self-employed,
the court shall usually take only the actual income at the time
of death; a departure from there should be made only in rare
and exceptional cases involving special circumstances. Does
the present case involve special circumstances? In our view, it
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does. The evidence has come that the deceased was to get
employment in the forest department after the retirement of
his father. Obviously the evidence is based on the government
policy. The deceased, thus, had a reasonable expectation of
the government employment in near future. In the circumnstances,
the actual income at the time of deceased's death needs to be
revised and taking into consideration the special circumstances
of the case, in our view, the monthly income of the deceased
deserves to be fixed at Rs. 2000/-. As regards the personal
expenses, since the deceased was not married, we are satisfied
that the principle stated in Sarla Verma 3 that 50% should be
treated as the personal and living expenses of the bachelor
may he applied. Seen thus, the annual loss of dependency
would come to Rs. 12,000/-. Insofar as multiplier is concerned,
the Tribunal applied the multiplier of 8. Learned counsel for
the appellant argued that the multiplier of 18 should have been
applied keeping in view the age of the deceased. The argument
is devoid of any substance. In a case where the age of the
claimant is higher than the age of the deceased, the age of
claimant and not the age of the deceased has to be taken into
account for the capitalization of the lost dependency. It is so
because the choice of multiplier is determined by the age of
the deceased or thaf of the claimant, whichever is higher. The
exact age of the claimant has not come on record. As per the
evidence of AW1 (Pankaj Kumar Sinha), on the date of his
deposition, the claimant's age was about 63 years. The date
of deposition of AW-1 is not available. The accident occurred
in 1991 and the date of decision of the Tribunal is June 6,
2000. Ordinarily, the Tribunal would not have taken much time
after the evidence was complete. We may assume that the
statement of AW-1 was recorded somewhere in 1998 or 1999.
If that be so, the age of the claimant on the date of the accident
would be about 54-55 years. As per the table prepared in
Sarla Verma, the multiplier of 11 would, therefore, be
applicable. By multiplying the annual loss of dependency
(Rs.12000/-) with the multiplier of 11, the claimant becomes
entitled to the compensation in the sum of Rs. 1,32,000/-.
The compensation determinéd by the Tribunal at Rs. 60,000/

1615
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~and coﬁﬁnned by the High Court in the appeals manifestly
erroneous and is enhanced to Rs. 1,32.000/-."

22.  In subsequent three judgments in the case of PS Somnathan &
another (supra), Shyam Singh (supra) and Amrit Bhanu Shali (supra)
Hon'ble the Supreme Court though considered the judgment of Sarla Verma,
but without considering the case of Shakti Devi held that the multiplier or the
age of deceased should be applicable. Thus, it is clear that the three Judges'
Bench judgment in the case of Shanti Pathakand two Judges' Bench judgment
of Shakti Devi which were of prior dates and not considered in the subsequent
said three judgments of Hon'ble the Supreme Court. In such circumstances,
as per the judgment in the case of Jabalpur Bus Operator Association (supra),
this Court is bound by the earlier three Judges' Bench judgment and the two
Judges' Bench judgment which has not been considered in the subsequent
judgments.

t

23. - Inaddition to the aforesaid, the principle of the law applicability in
India recognized in principle as specified in Davies’ Case. In Davies's case
on the point of applicability of the multiplier, it should be applicable either on
the age of the deceased or on the age of the claimant whichever is higher.
Therefore, in the considered opinion of this Court the multiplier on the age of
the claimants would be applicable if their age is more than the age of the
deceased. In such circumstances, the two judgments of learned Single Judge
of this Court in the case of Kamla Bai (supra) and Narsingh (supra) are
hereby explained. Thus, As per the aforesaid discussion, now it is apparent
that in a case of bachelor’s death one half deduction towards personal expenses
may be made from the earning of deceased to capitalize the loss of dependency,
applying the multiplier either at the age of the deceased or a7s per the age of
the claimant whichever is higher.

25.  Inthe context of the said legal position, if the case of the deceased
Arifis being considered, then as per the documents available on record (Exhibit
P-353) itis clear that he was the registered owner of the Troller RJ-33-GA-
0173. From the document Exhibit P-305 to Exhibit P-351 the Troller was
financed and every month EMI of Rs.27,055/- was paid to creditor. In the
said context the earning of the deceased in addition to the aforesaid repayment
further Rs.8000/- may safely be accepted, looking to the fact, he was not
income-tax payee. Thereby the annual earning comes to Rs.96,000/-. On
reducing one half towards personal expenses and applying the multiplier of 9

1)
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as per the age of the claimant, the loss of dependency comes to Rs.4,32,000/-.
On adding Rs.25,000/- in conventional heads i.e. funeral loss of estate and
loss of love & affection then, the total sum of compensation comes to
Rs.4,57,000/-. On deducting the amount awarded by the Tribunal
Rs.3,42,000/- net enhancement comes to Rs. 1,15,000/-. The claimant would
be entitled to receive the said enhanced amount along with interest.

26.  Inthe Claim Case No.14/2007, Ashfaq, aged 43 has died. The
claimants are the widow, four sons, a daughter. mother and father. As
per the pleadings and the evidence brought on record, it is apparent that
he was the owner of the Truck RJ-33-GA-173 and the Troller RJ-33-
GA-0470. It has also been brought on record that he has not paid income-
tax for the financial year 2007-08, but he was the driver of heavy transport
vehicle, however his earning can safely be accepted of Rs.10,000/- per
month which annually comes to Rs.1,20,000/-. Looking to number of of
dependents, if 1/4"is deducted towards the personal expenses, then loss
of dependency comes to Rs.90,000/-. As per the age of the deceased, if
multiplier of 14 is applied for, then loss of dependency comes to
Rs.12,60,000/-. By adding Rs.25,000/- in funeral consortium, loss of
estate and love & affection, the total compensation comes to
Rs.12,85,000/-. On deducting the amount so awarded by the Tribunal,
the net enhanced amount comes to Rs.6,83,000/- and payable alongwith
interest.

27.  The Claim case N0.23/2007 has been filed seeking compensation in
case of injuries-received b}; Jahir Hussain and Jishan. The claim petition of
the Jahir was dismissed by the Claims Tribunal because the MLC of claimant
Jahir was not produced. While in case of Jishan, who received fracture of
Tibia Fibula in his right leg and a certificate of permanent disability has also
been produced, the Tribunal has awarded Rs.19,138/- only.

28.  Onperusal of the record the MLC of Jahir (Exhibit P-29)is available
and he has received the injuries over the head, face, shoulder and other parts
of the body, for which he was hospitalized for a day and the medical papers
are also produced on record. Thus, the finding recorded by the Claims Tribunal
to reject the claim petition of Jahir due to non-availability of MLC is perverse.
However looking to the MLC and papers of medical expenses of injured
Tahir and also looking to the fact he was not, having any bony injury, in lump
sum Rs.20,000/- deserves to be awarded. While in case of Jishan, who suffered



1618 Jakir Hussain Vs. Dinesh LL.R.[2013]MP.

a fracture of Tibia Fibula bonie in his right leg and remained hospitalized for
about five days in Kota, medical expenses incurred by him amounting to
Rs.14,138/-, however the compensation so awarded by the Tribunal appears
to be meager, therefore, enhanced by Rs.31,000/- in Iump sum. Thus, the
finding of rejection of the claim petition of Jahir Hussain is hereby set aside. It
is held that Jahir would be entitled to receive Rs.20,000/-, while in case of
Jishan, the compensation awarded is enhanced by Rs.31,000/- and payable
alongwith interest.

- 29. - Inclaim case No. 32/2007, the injured has suffered a fracture of right
ankle bone, right leg and remained in hospital for a day having expenses of
Rs. 3,298/ alongwith certificate of permanent disability. But the Tribunal has
merely awarded Rs. 9,000/-. In the considered opinion of this Court looking
to the documents (Exhibit P-200 to P-202), Discharge-Ticket (Exhibit P-203)
and the medical expenses, in lump sum Rs. 25,000/- further deserves to be
awarded. Making the total compensation of Rs. 34,000/~ The enhanced amount
shall payable alongwith interest. '

30.  InClaim Case No. 24/2007, Ashraf and Bila] are the injured. Ashraf
received injury in his left hand humerus bone and in left leg Ankle, while Bilal
is having fracture of Femur bone in his left leg. Both were hospitalized for 5-
6 days. The Tribunal in the case of Ashraf awarded Rs. 61,278/- out of which
Rs. 50,229/- in Medical Expenses. Though the certificate of permanent disability
is available on record, but it has not been believed. Similarly, in case of Bilal
medical expenses of Rs. 10,629/- are available, but the Tribunal has awarded
Rs. 19,138/-. After over all consideration of the documents Exhibit P-46to
Exhibit P-155 and 199 and also the documents P-156 to P-195.and other
documents, in the considered opinion of this Court, the claimant Ashraf Hussain
would be entitled to receive the amount of Rs. 70,000/ in addition and in
case of Bilal, he is entitled to Rs.40,000/- in addition lump sum respectively.
Thus in case of Ashraf, the total compensation comes to Rs.1,31,278/- while
in case of Bilal, it comes to Rs.59,138/-. The enhanced amount shall payable
alongwith interest.

31.  Inview ofthe foregoing discussion, it is to be held that in case of
Bachelor's death, where mother and father are claimants, the deduction
one half may be made. In exceptional cases, the court may look into facts
the and circumstances of the individual case. It is to be further.observed
that as per the Motor Vehicles Act in second schedule, the multiplier at
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the age of the deceased would be applicable. But where the dependents
are the mother and father, who are old aged, in such case looking to the
expectancy of life of dependents, the suitable multiplier may be made
applicable, applying the principle of the Devies’s case that while calculating
the compensation, the multiplication as per the age of the deceased or as
per the age of the claimants whichever is higher, would be appllcable

32.  Accordingly, MA No. 69/201 11is hcreby allowed in part’ and the
enhancement of Rs.1,15,000/- is directed. Similarly M.A. No.77/2011 isalso
allowed in part and the enhancement of Rs.6,83,000/- is directed. In M. A.
No.73/2011 is allowed in part and it is held that the rejection of the clairi of
Jahir is illegal and the findings are perverse, however such findings are sét

. aside and claimarit Jahir would be entitled to receive the amount of Rs.20,000/-
. while Jishan would be entitled to receive the enhanced amount of Rs.30,000/-.

M.A. No.85/2011 is also allowed in part and the enhancement of Rs.25,000/-
in addition is directed M.A. No.81/2011 is also allowed in part. In the said

. case, for the injuries received by Ashraf, he would be entitled to receive the

enhanced amount of Rs.70,000/- and forihe injuries of Bilal, the enhancement
of Rs.40,000/- is directed. It is made clear here that the claimants in all the
appeals would be entitled to receive the amount awarded or enhanced amont

along with intérest @ 7.5% p.a. from the date of filing of the claun"pet'ltlon till . -

its realization. In the facts and circumstances of the case, partles to bear thcn'
OWI COStS.

Appeal partly allowed,
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APPELLATE CIVIL
Before Mr. Justice A.K. Shrivastava .
F.A. No. 358/ 1995 (Jabalpur) demded on 21 February, 2013 L

DULARI BAI (SMT.) (DEAD) &ors. G Appellants
Vs. o . .
" RAMESHWAR DAYAL SHRIVASTAVA & anr . Respondents

A. Specific Relzef Act (47 of 1 963), Section 20 Smt for
specific performance - Agreement to sell or loan transaction’- More
than 90% of the sale consideration and that too in odd figures of Rs. -

"~ 22,984/- is alleged to have been paid at the time of agreement ~In

‘agreement it was mentlone_d that one gentleman is residing i !n the suit

Gt aEe
PR
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property and the sale deed wﬂl be executed after: getting it vacated
from him - In plaint it was mentioned that as the defendants are not
getting the suitable alternative accommodation therefore, time for the
execution of sale deed was extended thrice - Plaintiff also admitted
that he does not know about the measurements of the house - Conduct
of plaintiff in agreeing to purchase a house without inspecting it is
highly unnatural - It can be inferred that real intention was not to
purchase the house in question and the defendant never intended to
sell the house to plaintiff. _ (Paras 15-21)

&, ﬁﬁﬁ‘fﬂgﬁvaﬂﬁw(mssaﬂﬂ) arr 20 — RARE
w7 8g @7 — [Py &1 IR AYEr #v GAaer — fawa sfows #1 90
fera Q@ afe 3R 98 N 3. 22,984 /— F faw e § a9 Q
IR & 99g Ier fpar T — =R ¥ 4% sfeafaa o1 1% te uswe, 9
Fftg ¥ PrawRa 2 3t 39 SW R o9 oR @ uwEw Rwa R
freqfaa fvar Wl — g o= ¥ 48 Shafaa of 5 w®ifs afardeer st
g Aafere e T8 | o1 e 2, gafiy fasa e @ s -1 e
A IR T T at — T 3 ¥ W WheR A 5 @ weH @ I B
TR ¥ T WIFET o — WH BT A 3 BT 99 B e B fag R
HE ST qIEY BT ATEROT IS aRgaiias & — a8 frepd e W wwar
2 5 TlT JTY TEOT HBIT ST Y FA1 T8 AT i girar< 7 Jem,
AT B ABE BT ST FH A v ' '

, B. Specific Relief Act (47 of 1963), Section 20 - Specific
Performance of Contract - Decree of specific performance is a
discretionary relief and Court is not bound to grant such relief on its
asking - Although discretion is to be exercised on the basis of sound
and reasonable grounds but the Court should take care to see that it is
not used as an instrument of oppression to have unfair advantage to
the plaintiff - Value of the house at the time of agreement was more
than Rs. 2 lacs and would never fetch the value of Rs. 25,000/ on the
date of agreement - Appeal is partly allowed - Decree of Specific
Performance of Contract set aside - Plaintiff is entitled to a decree of
refund of advance amount of Rs. 22,984/- with interest @ 6% per
annum. ‘ (Paras 26-31)

@ s sgaly St (1963 T 47), ST 20 — GlAET
@7 AffRe gaT - fafafde uag A oo Adfes sgalw @ iy s
AR W W SFE FIAT I FA B g araraE 9y Tl — gu
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RTIRER &7 T3 aew ™ vd qffages ameam ) fear o arfey,.
freg =TT B 4% e S A @l AT 5 9wST IuEiT T @
AEE @ T N Al B afua. wm @ T R S - SR B W
Wﬁﬁ@ﬁ:ﬂ@ﬁﬂfﬁﬁimmmaﬁﬁmaﬁﬁ 25,000 /—
$1wwm_ﬂﬁﬁ$m_—mtﬁasfmzﬁqg—=ﬁﬁm$ﬁﬁﬁ‘rz
ara @) fEE aured — a1, ¢ ufirera gRad @ @ § =9 @ Wy Afyw
IHH G, 22,984 /— B it @Y FEW1 BT THER

Cases referred :
(2008) 12 SCC 145,'1987 (Suppl.) SCC 34_0.

Mrigendra Singh with Amit Khatri for the appellants.
Manikant Sharma, for the respondent No. 1/Plaintiff.
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JUDGMENT

AK. SHRIVASTAVA, J. :- Feeling aggrieved by the judgment and decree
dated 04.08.1995 passed by learned Second Additional District Judge,
Hoshangabad in Civil Suit No.19-A/1991 (Old No.91-/1986) whereby the
suit of plaintiff-respondent has been decreed, this appeal under Section 96 of
the CPC has been filed by the defendants no.1 to 4-appellants.

2. In the Trial Court the suit has been filed by Rameshwar Dayal
Shrivastava against Prem Narayan alias Rabude however during the pendency
of the suit the defendant died and present appellants as well as respondent
no.2 Smt. Sangeeta were brought on record as defendants, however, the fifth
defendant (respondent no.2) Smt.Sangeeta was proceeded ex parte.

3. The facts in compendium are that a suit for specific performance of
contract has been filed by the plaintiff-first respondent in respectto a double-
storeyed house, the description whereof has been mentioned in the plaint and
which is the subject matter of the suit. According to the plaintiffin order to
contest the election the original defendant Prem Narayan was in need of money,
as a result of which, he gave an offer to the plaintiff to purchase his house for
a consideration of Rs.25000/- which was readily accepted by the plaintiff-
respondent. Thereafter, on 17.04.1980 a registered agreement of sale was
executed between the parties in which it has been stated that today i.e.
17.04.1980 the original defendant has obtained a sum of Rs.22,984/- towards
advance money and balance amount of consideration Rs.201 6/- would be
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paid within three year latest by 17.04.1983 and thereafter the sale-deed can
be executed and the possession would also be delivered at that time. It was
also agreed between the parties that the possession of the house in question
will be delivered to plaintiff after getting the tenant evicted from the suit shop.
When the original defendant failed to get the sale-deed executed, on
28.05.1983 a notice was sent to him by the plaintiff to getitexecuted. But,
the original defendant requested that because at present he is unable to getan
alternative residential accommodation for him and his family members and
hence requested on humanitarian ground to provide some more time to get
the sale-deed executed. Thereafter on 05.07.1983 another agreement of sale
was executed between the parties wherein it has been mentioned by defendant
that since still he could not arrange an alternative residential accommodation,
therefore, furhter period of one year more may be provided to execute the
sale-deed. This agreement was notarized. When the-original defendant did
notexecute the saledeed, again an agreement was executed acknowledging -
‘the _e'érl__ier execution of _agréements of sale and this was also stated in the said
document that although in the agreement dated 05.07.1983 the -original
defendant sought time to execute the sale-deed but because again alternative
residential house was not found, therefore, again time of one year was sought
to execute the sale-deed. In the agreement dated 23.06.1984 it has been
mentioned that additional sum of Rs.16/- has also been paid towards advance
by the plaintiff which has been received by original defendant Prem Narayan
and he is only required to obtain balance consideration of Rs.2000/-. Thereafter
another agreement was executed by said Prem Narayan on 11.10.1985 wherein
it was agreed by the defendant to get the sale-deed executed of the disputed
house in favour of plaintiff upto 17.04.1986. But when the defendant failed to
perform his part of contract after sending a registered AD post notice to him
on 12.04.1986 and also on 07.10.1986 the plaintiff has filed the present suit
for specific performance of contract.

4.: In the plaint it has been pleaded by the plaintiff that he was throughout
ready and willing to perform his part of contract but every time under the
‘pretext that defendant could not arrange alternative house for himself and his
family members, therefore, the sale-deed was not executed by him. In the
plaint it is also pleaded that even today the plaintiff is ready to purchase the
suithouse after making the payment of requisite balance consideration of
Rs.2000/- and thus it has been prayed that a decree of specific performance
- of conitract be passed. L :

e -



LL.R.[2013]M.P. ‘Dulari Bai (Smt) Vs. R.D. Shrivastava 1623

5. The original defendant before he passed away filed written-statement
but his statement could be recorded in the Court. Upon his death, the present
appellants and second respondent were brought on record as defendants 1 to
5. In the written-statement filed on behalf of original defendant averments
made in the plaint were denied but on bare perusal of the pleading of the
written-statement and particularly by paying heed to additional pleas itis
gathered that document of agreement of sale dated 17.04.1980 was executed
by the defendant but it was a loan transaction and in order to settle the loan
account this document was executed. In para 16 and 17 of the additional
pleas it has been pleaded by the defendant that since relationship between the
plaintiff and him was quite cordial, therefore, on 14.04.1978 he obtained a
loan of Rs.3000/- and similarly in March, 1983 he obtained loan from him.
According to the plaintiff earlier to 1978 also he was taking loan from the
plaintiff. In the year 1980 the plaintiff asked defendant to clear and settle all
accounts and loan amount which defendant has taken by repaying to him, but,
the defendant put his inability that presently his financial condition is weak
and therefore he is unable to pay the loan amount in lump sum. Thus, by
calculating the original amount of loan and the interest, document of agreement
of sale dated 17.04.1980 was executed. It has also been pleaded by him that ‘
he never executed a document of agreement of sale dated 17.04.1980. 1t is
also pleaded that on 17.04.1980 the plaintiff never paid any amount towards
advance to him and the said document is without consideration and has been
executed towards the security of earlier loan.

6. In para 18 it has been specifically pleaded by defendant that suit house
is situated on main Court road of Hoshangabad city and on 17.04.1980 its
value was Rs.2 lac and therefore the question of selling it for a meagre amount
of Rs.25000/- does not arise. It is also pleaded by him in this para that houses
in the nearby locality where the suit house is situated are also having high
valuation. According to the defendant the suit house is constructed in ahuge
area and is a double storeyed Pakka house. Since on 17.04.1980, when it is
said that the document of agreement of sale was executed the valuation of suit
house was Rs.2 lac, therefore one could infer that transaction between the
parties was of loan. According to the defendant on 17.04.1980 the cost of
the doors and widows of the disputed house was more than Rs.30,000/- and
therefore entire house which is 100 sq.feet towards northern and southern
side and 25 sq. feet towards eastern and western side cannot be agreed to be
sold for a meagre amount of Rs.25,000/-. According to defendant on

Al
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17.04.1980 the valuation of the plot itself was Rs.1 lac and therefore double
storeyed house built upon it cannot be sold for Rs.25,000/- hence it has been
prayed that the suit be dismissed. _ : '

7. The learned Trial Court framed necessary issues and after recording
the evidence of the parties, decreed the suit of the plaintiff. In this manner this
appeal has been filed by the LRs of the original defendant.

8. The contention of Shri Mrigendra Singh, learned counse! for appellants
is that if the evidence of plaintiff and his witnesses is considered in proper
perspective manner and is tested on the touchstone and anvil of the evidence

of defendant and his witnesses it would reveal that the transaction between
the parties was of loan. Learned counsel further submits that.there is

+ overwhelming documentary evidence on record that on 17.04.1980 (the date

of execution of agreement of sale) the valuation of the suit house which is
constructed in a huge area and double storeyed was having valuation of Rs.2
lac and therefore learned Trial Court erred in decreeing the suit of the plaintiff,

- 9. Apart from this it has also been vehemently argued by him that the
document of agreement of sale dated 17.04.1980 which is a registered
document has been attested by two attesting witnesses, they are Shankar
Singh and Dhanpal Singh. By inviting my attention to the testimony of plaintiff
it has been argued that according to the plaintiff both these attesting witnesses
have died which is ex facie false because one of the witnesses Shankar Singh
was alive and the appellants have filed the affidavit of attesting witness Shankar
Singh dated 02.11.1995 alongwith application under Order XLI Rule 27 CPC ‘
(I.A. No.1388/2012) on 23.11.2012 but lateron said Shankar Singh died
and the appellants have also filed his death certificate alongwith the application.
Learned counsel submits that the grant of decree of specific performance of
contract is a discretionary relief and discretion should be exercised in favour
of plaintiff only when he comes with clean hands.l eamed counsel submits that
looking to the controversy in the matter since the valuation of the suit house is
having handsome value even on the date of alleged agreement of sale and
because the grain may not come out of chaff in order to expose the plaintiff
that the real intention between the parties was of loan transaction, deliberately
he did not examine the attesting witnesses and particularly Shankar Singh
whose affidavit has been filed by him alongwith application under Order XLI
Rule 27 CPC. By inviting my attention to the averments made in the affidavit .
of Shankar Singh it has been contended by him that ex facie falsely the plaintiff
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deposed that this witness died when the trial of the suit was going on. In the
affidavit attesting witness Shankar Singh has deposed by giving the details of
his sons, who are residing at Sehore and Jabalpur and has deposed that he
used to stay with his sons also. He has also deposed that transaction between
the parties was of loan and on the date of alleged document of agreement of
sale the valuation of the suit house was in between Rs.2.50 lac and Rs.3 lac
and thus it has been prayed that by allowing the application (I.A.No.13388/
2012) the additional evidence may be taken on record. Learned counsel
submits that no reply of the said application has been filed by the plaintiff nor
any affidavit in rebuttal to the affidavit of Shankar Singh is filed that said
*Shankar Singh is not the same person who attested the document of agreement
of sale dated 17.04.1980 (Ex.P/1). Learned counsel has also submitted that
in the registered document (Ex.P/1) the name of Shankar Singh S/0. Kanhaiya
Singh Rajput R/o. Sanischara Tehsil and District Hoshangabad is mentioned
and in para 1 of the affidavit said Shankar Singh S/o. Kanhaiya Singh has
specifically stated that he was earlier residing in Ward No.1, Sanischara,
District Hoshangabad but for certain reasons he has shifted and now residing
in Village Bori Post Semri Tehil Budhni P.S. Rehati District Sehore. It has also
been deposed that for some days in every year this witness used to stay with
his sons who are residing in Sehore and Jabalpur and therefore since the
plaintiff has not come with clean hands the suit of specific performance be
dismissed.

10.  Onthe other hand Shri Sharma, learned counsel appearing for plaintiff-
respondent no.1 argued in support of the impugned judgment and submitted
that since the factum of admitting the signature upon the document of agreement
of sale and its attestation has been admitted by the plaintiff, therefore, the
burden was upon him to prove that the transaction was of loan and parties
never agreed to sell the suit property. Learned counsel submits that as per the
defendant’s pleading the plaintiff is a money lender but there is no cogent
evidence of his to prove this fact and therefore the arguments which are
advanced by the learned counsel for appellants are not having any sanctity in
the eye of law. Learned counsel submits that throughout his life, first defendant
was a Councilor in the Municipality Hoshangabad and in order to contest the
election of M.L.A. he was in need of money and therefore he requested the
plaintiff to purchase his house for a consideration of Rs.25000/- and
accordingly a document of agreement of sale was executed which is a
registered document. Learned counsel submits that first defendant is not an
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illiterate person-and from time to time he executed three agreements
acknowledging the original agreement of sale dated 17.04.1980 and every
time sought time to get the sale-deed executed because he is not in a position
fo get an alternative residential accommodation where he could settle his family
to reside and therefore learned Trial Court after considering each and every
aspect of the matter rightly decreed the suit of the plaintiff.

1. By inviting my attention to the document (Ex.P/20) which is a certified
copy of the order-sheet dated 30.03.1981 of the Court of First Civil Judge,
Class-II Hoshangabad in Civil Suit No.35-B/1979 (Gyan Chand S/o.

. Hazarilalv. Prem Narayan and Smt. Dulari Bai) it has been contended by

learned counsel that in the said suit there is an admission of defendant Prem
Narayan that house in question has been agreed to be sold in favour of the
plaintiff and therefore the house may not be attached upon the application
under Order XXXVIII Rule 5 CPC. Hence, it has been prayed that looking
to the admission of defendant Prem Narayan there is no scope of any
- interference in the impugned judgment which has been passed by learned Trial
Court decreeing the suit of plaintiff for specific performance of contract.

12.  Learned counsel for plaintiff-respondent no.1 further submitted that a
false plea has been taken in the written-statement stating that valuation of the -
suit house is Rs.2 lac. Indeed since the price index of immovable property has
been escalated tremendously between 1980 and 1985, therefore, with a mala
fide intention false plea has been taken by the defendant so that he may sell
the house in question for a high price to third person. Thus, it has been prayed
that the appeal be dismissed.

13, Having heard learned counsel for the parties, I am of the view that this
appeal deserves to be allowed.

14.  Onthe basis of arguments advanced before me, I am constrained to
decide the following questions :-

¢y Whether, the document Ex.P/1 which is an agreement
of sale has been executed in between the parties with an
intention that plaintiff has agreed to purchase the suit property
or it was a loan transaction?

(i) Whether, the subsequent agreements between the
plaintiff and defendant Ex.P/5, Ex.P/9 and Ex.P/13 are the
documents extending time to repay the loan obtained by original
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defendant Prem Narayan or these documents were executed
to extend the time to get the sale-deed executed?

(i)  Whether, on 17.04.1980 when the document. of
agreement of sale Ex.P/1 was executed between the plaintiff
and defendant Prem Narayan, the valuation of the suit house
was Rs.2 lac? If yes, whether can it be inferred that the real
intention between the parties was not to get the disputed
property sold in favour of plaintiff? '

(iv)  Whether, in the facts and circumstances of the case,
the discretion should be exercised not to pass a decree of

- specific performance of contract according to section 20 of
the Specific Relief Act?

Regarding questions No.(i) and (ii)

15.  Inthe present case the registered document of agreement of sale dated
17.04.1980 is Ex.P/1. This has been signed by first defendant Prem Narayan
and has been attested by two witnesses namely Shankar Singh S/o. Kanhaiya
Singh R/o. Sanischaradistrict Hoshangabad and Dhanpal Singh S/o. Semri
Harchand Tehsil Suhagpur District Hoshangabad. Apart from the registered
document there are some more agreements which are Ex.P/5 dated
05.07.1983, Ex.P/9 dated 23.06.1984 and Ex.P/13 dated 19.10.1985. Apart
from these three agreements there are notices which were sent by plaintiff’s
counsel through registered AD post, the acknowledgment receipts as well as
postal receipts are also on record. On going through the basic document Ex.P/1

which is a registered document dated 17.04.1980 it is gathered that the house
in question was agreed to be sold by defendant Prem Narayan in favour of
plaintiff for a consideration of Rs.25,000/- and a sum of Rs.22,984/- was
obtained towards part consideration of the sale price which is more than 90%.
In this document further it has been mentioned that a sum 0f Rs.12,984/- has
been received at the house and a sum of Rs.10,000/- would be taken in the
office of Sub Registrar. In this document it is mentioned that three years time
was obtained by defendant to get the sale-deed executed and the reason has
also been assigned that because one person is residing in the suit house,
therefore, after getting it vacated from him the sale-deed would be executed.
However, the name of that person is not mentioned and this much is mentioned
that ar+fY SE¥ (P IR & € ST AGH @Al PX &7 B g€ AT AW BY

347 | (at present one gentleman is residing and after getting it vacated from
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- him sale-deed will be executed). Nowhere in this document it is mentioned
that defendant is residing in different locality or in the part of the suit house. It
is also not mentioned that said person is residing in the entire house in its one
part. In the plaint para 3 it has also been pleaded that in the suit house the
tenants are residing and it was agreed that defendant will execute the sale-
deed after getting it vacated from the tenants but if we test the pleading of
plaintiff on the touchstone and upon the anvil of subsequent agreements Ex.P/5,
Ex.P/9 and Ex.P/13 this Court finds that the time has been sought on the
ground because the defendant is not able to find any suitable residential house
for him. Hence on this point the pleading of plaintiff is contrary to his own
documents. Thus, according to me, when the defendant was not at all residing
in the suit house why by executing subsequent agreements Ex.P/5, P/9 and P/
13 he sought time to get sale-deed executed under the pretext that he is unable
to find out alternative suitable residential house for himself and his family
members. Apart from this, in a document of agreement of sale if some advance
money is paid, normally it is in round figure and not in the odd figure. On bare
perusal of the document dated 17.04.1980 (Ex.P/1) as well as averments
made in the plaint it is gathered that a sum of Rs.22984/- has been paid to the
defendant towards advance money. Why a meager amount of Rs.116/- was
not paid in order to put the advance money in round figure of Rs.23,000/-. It
is well settled in law that civil cases are decided on the basis of high degree of
preponderance and probabilities and thus by keeping this important principle
of law in my mind, I shall examine the evidence of the parties.

16.  Shri Sharma learned counsel for plaintiff-respondent no.1 appears to
be correct that looking to the additional pleadings taken by the defendant in
the written-statement that the transaction between the parties was of loan and
thus the burden of proof was on defendant to prove this plea. Thus, I shall
examine the evidence of plaintiff and the defendant in this regard. Right from
beginning the stand of defendant is that transaction between the parties was of
loan and the defendant never intended to get the suit house sold. Although
suggestion in this regard has been denied by the plaintiffbut in cross-examination
para 18 it has been specifically stated by plaintiff that he did not remember
whether he has handed over the pro-notes executed by the defendant Prem
Narayan or not. According to me, the plaintiff very conveniently is trying to
avoid the factum of loan transaction because if the loan transaction did not
+ take place between him and defendant, straightway he should have denied the
suggestion that he is not having any pro-notes executed by the defendant but
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instead of denying it he avoided by saying that he did not remember whether -
he has handed-over all the pro-notes to defendant Prem Narayan or not. Not
only this Banshilal, witness of plaintiff (PW2) whois the attesting witness of
all the subsequent agreements Ex.P/5, P/9 and P/13 has categorically stated
in his examination-in-chief itself that at the time of execution of the document
Ex.P/5, P/9 and P/13 interaction between the plaintiff and defendant was in
regard to payment of money and for its payment the time was sought by
defendant by executing the agreements. According to me, when plaintiff'sown
witness is saying in examipé.tion—in-chief that the transaction was of money,
the plaintiff is bound by the statement given by his own witness that too in
examination-in-chief, Not only this in cross-examination also again this witness
(PW?2) has reiterated this fact and has deposed that all the agreements (i.e.
Ex.P/5, P/9 and P/13) were executed to extend the period of time to pay the
amount which defendant took from the plaintiff. According to me, if the
transaction between the parties was not of loan why the plaintiff’s own witness
is admitting that document Ex.P/13 was executed only to extend the time to
make the payment to plaintiff by defendant. Thus, it appears and it can be
inferred that transaction between the parties was of loan.

17.  Unfortunately in the present case although written-statement was filed
by defendant Prem Narayan but he could not appear in the Court as he passed
away before he could be examined, but his son Rajesh (DW1) has specifically
deposed in histestimony that in the year 1978 asum of Rs.3000/- was obtained
by his father from plaintiff towards loan and this fact was told by his fatherto
him being his eldest son. Thereafter, in the year 1980 a sum of Rs.10,000/-
was obtained because he wanted to contest the election of MLA and he was
in need of money. He also deposed that how the figure of Rs.22,984/- is
shown in the document of agreement of sale Ex.P/1 and he has stated that
total amount of loan was Rs.13,000/- which his father obtained from plaintiff
and if by calculating the future interest of three year which was agreed by
them a figure of Rs.22984/- would come and therefore this amount has been
shown as advance money in the document of agreement of sale. He has also
deposed that since he is eldest son of his father the factum of obtaining loan
was stated to him by his father and therefore according to me from the plaintiff's
evidence only it can be inferred on the basis of preponderance and probabilities
that the transaction between the parties was of loan and not of sale.

18. Leafned Trial Court in para 14 of its judgment has simply narrated
that part of evidence of Banshilal (PW2) who is the attesting witness to the
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documents (Ex.P/5, P/9 and P/13) that plaintiff and defendant Prem Narayan
were interacting on the point of payment of money, but, the Court has not
marshalled this-evidence vis-a-vis to the evidence of plaintiff and defendant.
The learned Trial Court has not considered and marshalled the material
evidence of plaintiff which has come during his cross-examination para 18
which I have already mentioned hereinabove that plaintiffhas very conveniently
tried to avoid to give specific answer that he did not remember whether he
handed over the pro-notes to the defendant Prem Narayan or not. I would
like to quote the said piece of testimony of para 18 of the plaintiff which reads
thus "#73 SR &t e 147 Ta—ma ® 73 78 | 9 & el e i
YRR BT S6S WiE aifee f5d o £ 8. (1 did not write letters from
time to time regarding loan to Prem Narayan. I do not remember whether I
handed-over the pro-notes to Prem Narayan or not). At this juncture only, I
would like to quote that part of examination-in-chief of plaintiff's witness
- Banshilal (PW2) as well as his cross-examination wherein the transaction was
of loan has been stated by him, R \m T 4 49 @ S9—39 B 9T g3 off,

oI weg & T Tg1 areq w8 ferar—udt 1 A @) TE off 1" (in my presence

both of them were interacting in respect to payment of money and thrice the
documents were executed for extension of time of payment of money). The

same version he has given in the cross-examination also that & QT BRI &7
i gaareraer gy ol T 99 9 orfty IoT @ Ry fereT—1dl Y T | TH S sreTar
3R B a1t =i g¢ | (for three times the documents were executed to extend

the period for payment of money and accept this no other conversation took
place between the parties). This piece of material evidence going to the root
of the matter has not been properly considered and marshalled vis-a-vis to
the statement of plaintiff and his witness Banshilal (PW2). Learned Trial Court
has paid heed simply on the statement of Rajesh (DW1) who is son of
deceased-defendant who has deposed that pro-notes were got executed by
the plaintiff, but, when and in whose presence it was viritten there is no evidence
of defendant. According to me, the entire episode is to be visualized by keeping
in mind that what actually transpired between the parties. The original
defendant Prem Narayan has passed away before his evidence could be
recorded. Therefore, certainiy the son of defendant Prem Narayan was not in
a position to depose all the facts and the conversation which actually took
" place between his father Prem Narayan and plaintiff, However, I do not finid
any ground to disregard his evidence that being the eldest son his father told
him about receiving of the loan from plaintiff. In the present case the interesting
feature is that the case of defendant is proved from the evidence of plaintiff
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and his witness Banshilal who is attesting witness of all the three agreements
(Ex.P/5, Ex.P/9 and Ex.P/13). In these state of affairs, it can be inferred that
transaction between the parties was of loan and defendant never intended to
sell the house in question to the plaintiff. In the entire judgment of learned
Trial Court while deciding issues from 1(a), 1(b), 2, 3, 4 and 5 from para 10
to 30, narration of evidence has been stated and also the execution of the
document of agreement of sale Ex.P/]1 and other agreements as well as other
documents in regard to sending notice etc. have been mentioned. Looking to
the pleadings and evidence, the execution of documents is not at all disputed.
Learned Trial Court has paid heed that defendant Prem Narayan was fully
literate person and he was also a Councilor hence certainly he will not sign
upon the blank papers or would sign the papers without reading them. The
document of agreement of sale (Ex.P/1) is a registered document. The
contention of learned counsel for plaintiff-first respondent appears to be correct
that the deceased defendant would not sign the blank papers or before signing
the documents he would not read them. According to me, although deceased
defendant Prem Narayan signed the documents but the real intention between
the parties was clear between them that the transaction was of loan only and
_defendant never intended to execute the sale-deed. '

" 19.  Learned Trial Court as well as learned counsel for plaintiff-respondent
no.1 has put much emphasis on Ex.P/20 which is a certified copy of the order-
sheet in Civil Suit No0.35-B/1979 of the Court of First Civil Judge, Class-II

~ Hoshangabad between Gyan Chand v. Prem Narayan and Smt. Dulari
Bai. Indeed Smt. Dulari Bai is wife of Prem Narayan. In the said order-sheet
dated 10.03.1981 upon the application filed under Order XXX VIII Rule 5
CPC to get the house attached it was stated by Prem Narayan that defendant
has agreed to sell this house to present plaintiff. Thus, according to learned
counsel for plaintiff-respondent no.1 this amounts to admission of defendant
that transaction between the parties was to execute the sale-deed and not the
loan transaction. To me, the admissions are always not conclusive and it may
‘be explained also. Certainly defendant Prem Narayan who was also defendant
in the suit filed by Gyan Chand in order to save his skin and to come out from
the clutches of attachment of house before judgment must have stated that
house in question has been agreed to be sold to present plaintiff. But, this

~ admission of plaintiffis to be tested on the touchstone and anvil of the present
scenario upon the documentary and oral evidence of the present case. Apart
~ from this, document Ex.P/20 was not confronted to defendant Rajesh (DW1)

”
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in his crossexamination. Hence, no reliance can be placed upon Ex.P/20 in
thissuit.

20.  Itismatter of common parlance that if immovable property that too a
house is to be purchased certainly the intending purchaser would see and
examine the property which he is purchasing in order to ascertain whether he
is paying right price for the said house or not. But, in the present case the
plaintiff before entering into the agreement of sale neither at that time nor later
on saw the house of the defendant Prem Narayan. In cross-examination para
15 he has admitted thatlength, width and dimension of the house in question,
he does not know. According to him, who has prepared the plaint map, he,
cannot say. Further he has stated that who has measured the dimension while
preparing the plaint map he cannot say. This witness is unable to state that
what is the length and width of house from east to west and north to south.
Further has stated that he has seen the hotel (restaurant) on the frontage of the
suit house but has not seen the rear side of the house. He has further admitted
that on the date of agreement of sale also he did not see the house. He cannot
say house in question consists of two big rooms and six small rooms. House in
question might be having latrine, bathroom and open verandah. To me,
surprisingly the plaintiff is purchasing a house but without inspecting it he has
agreed to purchase the house which is highly unnatural and thus it can be -
inferred that real intention of plaintiff was not to purchase the house in question
and defendant Prem Narayan never intended to sell his house to plaintiff.

21.  For the reasons stated hereinabove, point No.(i) is decided that
transaction between the parties was of loan and defendant never intended to
sell the disputed house to the plaintiff. Point No.(ii) is decided that the .
subsequent agreements (Ex.P/5, Ex.P/9 and P/13)} are the documents of
extension of time to repay the loan amount and not to extend period of time to
get the sale-deed executed. Both these points are decided against the plaintiff-
respondent no.1.

Regarding Point No.(iii)

22.  The burden of proof was on defendant to prove that on 17.04.1980
when the document of agreement of sale (Ex.P/1) was executed the valuation
of house in question was Rs.2 lac and not Rs.25,000/- which is sale
consideration mentioned in Ex.P/1. The defendant Prem Narayan unfortunately
passed away before he could be examined in the Court and thus on behalf of
defendant Rajesh (DW1) who is eldest son of Prem Narayan has been
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examined. This witness has categorically proved the pleadings pleaded by
defendant Prem Narayan in his oral testimony and by other documentary
evidence and also by cross-examining the plaintiff and his witness in this regard.
Thus, this Court 1s required to see whether the value of the house in question
on the date of agreement of sale was Rs.25,000/- or it was Rs.2 lac as per
the case of defendant. In para 4 of the examination-in-chief Rajesh (DW1)
has deposed that in the year 1980 the valuation of his house must be between
Rs.2.75 lac or Rs.3 lac. In cross-examination para 7 this witness has stated
that in between year 1980 and 1982 the rate of open plot upon the main road

. ' was Rs.40-45 to Rs.70/- per square feet. At this juncture only, I would like

to mention that it is borne out from the pleadings and evidence placed on
record that house in question is a double-storeyed house and the plot area
according to plaint map is 90x19.4 feet. It is a pakka constructed house
having two shops on the frontage and the disputed house is on the main road.
In between two shops which are on the front side of disputed house, there is
a space of entrance to go inside the residential house. The residential portion
consists of one hall, three rooms, three verandahs, latrine and bathroom on
the ground floor and on the first floor there are five rooms and two open
verandahs. In this regard para 1 of the testimony of Rajesh (DW1) may be
seen.

23.  During the cross-examination, the suggestion has been given to the
plaintiff that the house in question would fetch Rs.2 lac in the year 1980,
although this suggestion has been denied by him, but, the plaintiff was further
cross-examined on this point and he has very conveniently tried to avoid and
admit the factum of valuation of house in question. He has simply stated by
trying to sweep and avoid the crossexamination that valuation of the suit house
which he has said to be Rs.25,000/- is based upon approximation. Defendant
Rajesh (DW1) has examined Pratap Singh (DW2) and Ram Singh (DW4) in
order to prove the fact that the valuation of disputed house was much high.
The house of DW2 is in the same locality, According to him, he has seen the
house of defendant Prem Narayan which is located on the main road. This
witness has purchased a plot adjacent to the disputed house of defendant
from Narottam Rao. His plot area is 1055 sq. feet which he purchased in the
year 1985 for a consideration of Rs.20,000/-. It be noted that plot area of
defendant's house as mentioned in Ex.P/1 is 1740 sq. feet. This witness has
also proved his sale-deed Ex.D/1. This witniess has further stated that when
he bought his plot at that juncture the double storeyed house of Prem Narayan
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was already there. In the sale-deed Ex.D/1 of this witness on the eastern side
the house of Prem Narayan (defendant) has been shown. On bare perusal of
the sale-deed of this witness and the map attached to it this Court finds that
from main road frontage of plot of this witness is only 12 feet while frontage of
defendant's house is 19.4 feet. Thus, the evidence of this witness is having
higher credential value and it can be inferred that in the year 1980 when the
plot area of the defendant was near about double of the area of the plot of this
witness, its value must be at-least Rs.25,000/- because on 19.08.1985 when
this witness purchased the plot of 1055 sq. feet its valuation was Rs.20,000/-.
DW?2 further says that after purchasing the plot he constructed the ground
floor in which he incurred a sum of Rs.1.50 lac consisting of four rooms,
kitchen, latrine and bathroom.

24.  Defendant has also examined Ram Singh (DW4). This witness has
purchased a house from plaintiff and his brother Ramdayal situated at Kothi
Bazaar on 19.11.1984. According to this witness, the said house was
purchased by him for Rs.40,000/- vide registered saledeed (Ex.D/2). But,
this house is a single-storeyed and roof is not Pakka and is made of Khaprel
(earthen tiles). The plot area in-which house is constructed is only 14x44 feet
(total area 616 sq.feet). This witness has specifically stated that he has seen
the house of defendant Prem Narayan which is on main road while house
purchased by him in the name of his wife Shakuntala is not on main road. This
witness has further deposed that disputed house is double-storeyed and
Pakka. In cross-examination this witness has admitted that the house which
has been purchased by him in the name of his wife is inside thé gali (lane).

25.  The plaintiff has also examined Mukesh Shrivastava (DW3) who isa
builder and is running his business in the name and style “M/s.Prabhat
Constructions”. According to this witness defendant Prem Narayan was known
to him and he has also seen disputed house which is double-storeyed pakka
house. According to this witness house is constructed in the area 1700 sq.feet
and its cost at-present on the date of deposition (04.05.1995) was Rs.7.5
lac. He has categorically stated that 15 years ago the valuation of the suit
house must be Rs.2.50 lac. This witness has been examined as an expert. In
cross-examination he has admitted that he is a designer and is also performing
the business of valuation of the house. He has further admitted that he is doing
business of designing, valuing the house, lands etc. and also carrying the
business of construction. Thus, according to me, evidence of this witness is
having great weightage.
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26.  From the aforesaid analysis and marshalling of evidence, the point
no.(iii) is decided that value of the house in question on 17.04.1980 was not
less than Rs.2 lac and it would never fetch the value of Rs.25,000/- on the
date of document of the execution of agreement of sale (Ex.P/1). This point is
also decided against the plaintiff-respondent no.1.

Regarding point No.(iv) :

27.  According to Section 20 (1) of the Specific Relief Act a decree
of specific performance is a discretionary relief and Court is not bound
to grant such relief merely on its asking. No doubt it is true that discretion
is to be exercised on the basis of sound and reasonable grounds and not
in a arbitrary manner. In sub-section (1)} itself the powers have been
vested in the Appellate Authority also to examine whether discretion has
been exercised on sound and reasonable reasonings guided by judicial
principle and further the said discretion exercised by Trial Court is capable
of correction by the Appellate Court. On bare perusal of Section 20(2)
(a) of the said Act this Court finds whether terms of contract and conduct
of the parties at the time of entering into contract or the other circumstance
under which the contract was entered into are such that the contract'though
not voidable, gives the plaintiff an unfair advantage over the defendant. If
this provision is tested on the touchstone and anvil of the pleadings and
evidence of the present case it would reveal that specific case of the
plaintiff is that defendant is in need of money to contest the election. The
case of defendant is that there was a loan transaction between the parties
and he never intenteded to sell his house which is double-storeyed house
situated on the main road having high valuation of Rs.2 lac on 17.04.1980.
Since the defendant was in need of money, therefore, the plaintiff took
an unfair advantage over the defendant. [ have already held hercinabove
by marshalling the evidence that the defendant never intended to sell the
house and the transaction between the parties was of loan. Further [ have
already held that valuation of house on 17.04.1980 was not Rs.25,000/-
but it was Rs.2 lac or even more and therefore in these facts and
circumstances sub Clause (a) to subsection (2) of Section 20 of the said
Act is squarely applicable in the present case and so also clause (¢) of
sub-section (2) to Section 20 which speaks as to whether the defendant
entered into a contract under the circumstance which though not rendering
the contract voidable makes it inequitable to enforce specific performance.
To me, in the facts and circumstances it is inequitable to pass a decree of
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specific performance of contract of a property which was having valuation
of Rs.2 lac on 17.04.1980 to be sold for a meagre amount of Rs.25,000/-
particularly when it is proved that the transaction was of loan and
defendant never'intended to sell the disputed house. According to me,
the Court should take care to see that the agreement should not be used
as an instrument of oppression to have an unfair advantage to the plaintiff.
In this context I may profitably place reliance upon two decisions of
Supreme Court Bal Krishna and another v. Bhagwan Das (dead) by
LRs and others (2008) 12 SCC 145 and Parakunnan Veetill Joseph's
Son Mathew v. Nedumbara Kuruvila's Son and others, 1987 (Suppl.)
SCC 340. In para 14 of the decision of Bal Krishna (supra) it has been
held by Supreme Court that section 20 of the Specific Relief Act gives a
discretion to the Court and Court is not bound to grant the relief of specific
performance merely because it is lawful to do so. The exercise of
discretion should be based upon equitable grounds and while considering
the discretion the Court would certainly take into consideration the
circumstances of the case, the conduct of the parties and their respective
interest under the contract. The Supreme Court further held that decree
of specific performance of contract will not be granted even if the contract
is not misrepresented by fraud, if it would give unfair advantage to plaintiff
and would give undue hardship to defendant. It would be profitable to
reiterate para 14 of the said decision which reads thus;

14.  Ttisalso settled by various decisions of this Court
that by virtue of Section 20 of the Act, the relief for specific
performance lies in the discretion of the court and the court
is not found to grant such relief merely because it is lawful
to do so. The exercise of the discretion to order specific
performance would require the court to satisfy itself that
the circumstances are such that it is equitable to grant
decree for specific performance of the contract. While
exercising the discretion, the court would take into
consideration the circumstances of the case, the conduct
of the parties, and their respective interests under the
contract. No specific performance of a contract, though it
is not vitiated by fraud or misrepresentation, can be granted
if it would give an unfair advantage to the plaintiff and where
the performance of the contract would involve some
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hardship on thé defendant, which he did not foresee. In
other words, the court's discretion to grant specific
performance is not exercised if the contract is not equal
and fair, although the contract is not void.

In this case the Trial Court decreed the suit for specific performance of contract
but High Court dismissed the suit reversing the decree and the Supreme Court
has upheld the decision of High Court.

28.  In Parakunnan Veetill Joseph's Son Mathew (supra) the Trial
Court denied the relief of specific performance of contract but decreed
the suit only to return the advance money in addition to damages for a
sum of Rs.5625/-. But, in appeal to the High Court, judgment was
reversed and it was directed to convey the suit property and transfer
possession thereof. The Supreme Court allowed the appeal and reversed
the judgment of High Court and restored that of Trial Court. In para 14
the Supreme Court has held that Section 20 of the Specific Relief Act
preserves judicial discretion of courts as to decreeing specific
performance. The Supreme Court further held that the Court should
meticulously consider all facts and circumstances of the case and the Court
is not bound to grant specific performance merely because it is lawful to
do so. The Supreme Court has further held that motive behind the litigation
should also enter into judicial verdict. The court should take care to see
that it is not used as an instrument of oppression to have unfair advantage
to the plaintiff. In the present case, the motive part of defendant is proved
that he was in need of money and therefore he took loan from the plaintiff
and unfair part of plaintiff is that he executed the document of agreement
of sale which is although not void or voidable but would give unfair
advantage to him to purchase the property having valuation in the year.
1980 Rs.2 lac for a meagre amount of Rs.25,000/- only.

29.  In the aforesaid decision Bal Krishna (supra) in para 14 it has
been held by the Apex Court that while exercising discretion theCourt
should take into consideration the circumstances of the case respective
interests and also the conduct of the parties. In the present case
throughout from the beginning conduct of the plaintiff is quite unfair and
this I have already held hereinabove by marshalling oral and documentary
evidence vis-a-vis to evidence of witnesses of the parties. One peculiar
fact which I would like to mention here that conduct of the plaintiffis
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also not fair rather it is unfair because in examination-in-chief he has
deposed that attesting witness to the material document which is the
foundation stone of the case i.e. agreement of sale dated 17.04.1980
(Ex.P/1) its attesting witnesses Shankar Singh and Dhanpal Singh are
dead but his evidence is false because an affidavit of Shankar Singh has
been filed in this Court wherein he has specifically stated that he is still
alive and it has been incorrectly stated by the plaintiff that he'is dead.
Unfortunately the said witness has also died later on 30.07.2009 and his
death certificate is also filed. The plaintiff-respondent no.1 was not having
any courage to rebut the said affidavit. Thus, the conduct of the plaintiff
is also quite unfair and it can be inferred that attesting witness to document
Ex.P/1 was not examined by the plaintiff with uttermost object that if he
would have been examined he would have deposed the truth that
transaction was of loan and not to execute the sale-deed. I have already
marshalled the evidence hercinabove but, at the cost of repetition I must
say here again that Banshilal (PW-1) who has been examined by plaintiff
not only in his examination-in-chief but in cross-examination has stated
that subsequent agreements were in respect of extending time to repay
the loan amount.

31. Thus, point No.(iv) is also decided against the plaintiff. It is hereby
held that while exercising the power under Section 20(1) of Specific Relief
Act this Court as Appellate Court, it would not be lawful to pass a decree
of specific performance of contract. However, the plaintiff is entitled to a
decree of refund of advance amount of Rs.22,984/- with interest @6%
per annum from the date of passing of decree by the Trial Court which is
4.8.1995. )

32.  Exconsequenti, this appeal succeeds in part and is hereby allowed.
The judgment and decree passed by learned Trial Court is hereby set aside
and the suit of the plaintiffis decreed only to the extent of refund of money of
advance as indicated hereinabove.

33. . In the facts and circumstances of the case, the application (I.A.
No.13388/2012) under Order XLI Rule 27 CPC is not being decided.

34.  Looking to the facts and circumstances, the parties are directed to
bear their own costs.
Appeal allowed.
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APPELLATE CIVIL
Before Myr. Justice U.C. Maheshwari
F.A.No. 166/2011 (Gwalior) decided on 22 February, 2013

RAMDEVI(SMT.) & anr. ...Appellants
Vs.
MADHYAPRADESH VIDYUT MANDAL & ors. ...Respondents

A. Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Section 96 - Death by
Electrocution - Deceased came in contact with loose and hanging
live wire -Compensation - In order to decide the just and proper
compensation or sum of damages, the court is bound to adopt the
practical approach - If specific provision, rule, regulation or guideline
is not available, the court may borrow the provision of some other
enactment to assess the compensation amount. (Para 10)
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B. Law of Torts - Strict Liability - Negligence of Servant or
employee - Respondent or company can not escape from the liability
on any count. (Para 11)
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Case referred :
(2009) 6 SCC 121.

Ravi Gupta, for the appellants.
Rajendra Bhargava, for the respondents.

ORDER

U.C. Mauesawari, J: The appellants/ plaintiffs have filed this appeal
under section 96 of the CPC, for enhancement of the sum decreed by the Ist
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ADI, Pichhore district Shivpuri in COS No.5-B/09 vide judgment dated
19/1/2011 whereby their suit for damages and compensation of Rs.3 lacs in
respect of electrocution death of Chimanlal Gupta, the husband of appellant
No.1 while father of appellant No.2, has been decreed against respondents
No.1 to 5 only for the sum of Rs.75,000/- along with interest at the rate of
6% per annum from the date of filing the suit with a direction to pay such

decreetal sum jointly and severally by such respondents. .

2. The facts giving rise to this appeal in short are that the appellants
herein being wife and son of deceased Chimanlal by impleading respondent
No.6 and 7 the mother and daughter of deceased Chimanlal, have filed the
impugned suit for damages and compensation of Rs.3,00,000/- along with
interest and cost contending that on dated 1.4.08 at about 6 O' Clock in the
morning said Chimanlal went at the back of his residence to answer the call of
nature where due to negligence of the officials of the respondent/ electricity
board, the live electricity line of 11 KV being loose was hanging. /Due to such
situation, he came into the contact of such hanging electric line and after
sustaining the electric current died on the spot. This incident wasreported to
the Police Chowki Himmatpura, PS Pichhore, on which, a marg intimation
was registered under section 174 of the Cr.P.C. After holding the inquiry of
such inquest intimation, an offence under section 304-A of the IPC was
registered against respondent No.5 Hariram, the Lineman of the respondent-
Board. After holding the investigation, he was charge sheeted for his
prosecution before the criminal court. Such criminal case is still pending. Before
happening the alleged incident, a complaint in writing with the signature of the
villagers in the shape of Panchnama was also given to the aforesaid Lineman
respondent No.5, inspite of that such wire was not repaired. On account of
such negligence, the alleged incident was happened in which aforesaid Chimanlal
died and for that respondents are jointly and severally liable to pay the
compensation. In further averments it is stated that at the time of death
deceased Chimanlal was working as Asst. Teacher in the Govt. Primary School,
Gouchoni, Pichhore and after requisite necessary duductions, he was getting
Rs.13646/- per month as monthly salary and the appellants as well as
respondents No.6 and 7 were dependent on him. On account of his untimely
death in the alleged incident, the appellants as well as the respondent No.6
and 7 suffered the mental agony of the incident. Besides this, the appellant
No.1 has also lost the company of her husband and they have also lost the
earning member. It is further stated that appellants do not have any source of
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income and, in such premises, the impugned suit initially was-filed for
Rs.6,00,000/- but subsequently, till the extent of respondent No.6 and 7, the
same was reduced upto 3,00,000/- for the present appellants as compensation
along with interest as stated above.

3. In the written statement of respondent No.4, the material averments
of the complaint with respect of the alleged incident have been denied. In
additional to it, it is stated that the particulars of respondents No.2,3 and 4
have not been correctly mentioned in the suit. The suit has been filed under
collusion with the respondent No.6 and 7, as such, the appellants or
respondents No.6 and 7 were not dependent on the income of the deceased.
In addition, it is stated that one day earlier.to the incident, i.e.on31.3.08 in
the night there was heavy storm so due to such act of God, the insulator got
burst consequently the wire was broken and the same was hanging till the
next morning. It is further stated that the complaint regarding breaking and
hanging of electric wire was not received by the respondents/authorities within
time so, in the lack of such information, repairing was not possible and, in
such premises, it could not be said that any negligence was committed by the
respondent board or its officials in maintaining the aforesaid line. In such
premises, it is stated that the respondents-board or its officials are not liable
to pay any compensation as prayed by the plaintiffs or respondent No.6 and
7. The inquest report was also lodged on the false averments. The police case
was also wrongly registered and respondent No.5 was produced before the
court for his prosecution under wrong premises. In addition, it is stated that
deceased himself was responsible for the incident because at about 6 O'clock
in the morning there was day time and due to his negligence he came into the
contact of the live electric wire. So, in such premises, such liability could not
be saddled against the respondents. In addition it is stated that deceased was
working in the Govt. school as Asst. Teacher but after his death, his terminal
benefits of the service, the sum of insurance and the compassionate appointment
was also given to his wife. So, in such premises, the appellants are not entitled
for any compensation from the respondents/company and its officials. With
these averments prayer for dismissal of the suit was made.

4. After framing the issues and recording the evidence of the parties, on
appreciation of the same, by holding that the aforesaid electric line had become
loose and was hanging due to improper maintenance of the same by the .
respondent/company and its officials, it was held that due to such negligence
of respondents No.1 to 5, on coming into contact of such electric line after
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. sustaining the electric current said Chimanlal had died and in such premises,
the suit of the appellants was decreed only for 75,000/- along with interest as
stated above, on which, appellants have come to this court for further
enhancement of such sum and decreeing the suit for the entire sum of
Rs.3,00,000/- along with interest as claimed in the plaint.

5. Appellants counsel after taking me through the record of the trial court
as well as the impugned judgment argued that on appreciation the trial court
held that the deceased was working as Asst. Teacher in Govt. School and
after necessary deductions was getting the salary of Rs.13646/- per month. It
was held that the deceased died due to negligence of the respondent/ company
and its officials in maintaining the above mentioned electric line. In such
premises, there was no occasion with the trial court to decree the suit for
lesser amount Rs.75,000/- only but, on any calculation, Rs.3,00,000/- was
not the sum of higher side. In continuation he said that although there is no
rule, regulation or guideline to assess the compensation or the damages but in
order to assess the just and proper compensation, treating the death of
Chimanlal as accidental death, till some extent, by borrowing the provision
and interpretation of Motor Vehicle Act, the compensation could have been
assessed by the trial court and, in such premises, on assessing the same even
then the compensation comes more than Rs.7,00,000/- for the appellants. In
continuation, he said that if 1/3rd of the salary is deducted on the expenses of
the deceased which he would have spent, had he been alive, then dependency
comes to Rs.9000/- per month, and in such premises, the same comes to Rs.
1,08,000/- per annum and in the light of the age of the deceased as 50 years,
onapplying the multiplier of 13 as decided by the Apex Court in the matter of
Sarla Verma (smt) and others Vs. Delhi Transport Corporation and
another-(2009) 6 SCC 121, the compensation comes near about 14,00,000/-
but the suit was filed only for Rs.3,00,000/- and, in such premises, prayed to
enhance the amount and decree the suit for Rs.3,00,000/- in accordance
with the plaint by allowing this appeal.

6. The aforesaid prayer has been opposed by the counsel of the
respondents saying that the impugned judgment has been passed by the trial
court on proper appreciation of the evidence available on record. In
continuation he said that in the lack of specific provision, rules, regulation and
guideline in this regard, taking into consideration the provision and
interpretation of the Motor Vehicle Act, the compensation could not be
assessed. He further said that the compensation assessed by the trial court is
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just and proper and it does not require further enhancement and prayed for
dismissal of this appeal.

7. Having heard, keeping in view the arguments advanced by the counsel,
I have carefully gone through the record of the trial court along with the
impugned judgment so also the evidence led by the parties and the exhibited
documents.

8. In view of the aforesaid discussion, in the absence of any appeal on
behalf of the respondent/company or its officials, this court has not to examine
or decidé the validity of the findings of the impugned judgment according to
which it was held that the alleged accident of electrocution in which Chimanlal
had died was happened due to negligence of the respondent No.1 and its
officials. So, this court has to answer the question whether the.quantum of
compensation of Rs.75,000/- as decreed by the trial court is sufficient for the
appellants or it requires some further enhancement as prayed in the plaint.

9. Asper the available evidence, it is undisputed fact that the deceased
was working as Asst. Teacher in some Govt. School from where after necessary
deduction, he was getting Rs.13,646/- per month and his age was 50 years.
It is also undisputed fact from the evidence that respondent No.6 and 7, his
mother and daughter along with the appellants wife and son, were dependent
on him. So, in such premises, it could be assumed that if he had not died in the
alleged accident then he would have helped his family from the aforesaid salary
upto the age of his retirement.

10.  In order to decide or assess the just and proper compensation or
sum of damages, the court is bound to adopt the practical approach and
if some specific provision, rules, regulation or guidelines is not available
in the special provision or any enactment then in that circumstance, the
court may borrow the provision of some other enactment to assess the
compensation. For the sake of arguments to assess the reasonable
compensation or damages if the provisions of Motor Vehicle Act and its
interpretation are taken into consideration then in view the salary of the
deceased on the date of the incident Rs.13646/-, in the light of said case
of Sarla Verma ( supra ) , on deducting its 1/3rd sum on account of
expenses of the deceased which he would have spent on himself had he
been alive, then the dependency of the appellants and respondent No.6
and 7 on the deceased comes to Rs.9000/- per month. Accordingly, the
annual dependency comes to Rs.1,08,000/- and in view of the aforesaid
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case of Sarla Verma (supra) on applying the multiplier of 13, the total
compensation comes to Rs.14,04,000/-. In the lack of the court fee and
also in view of the prayer clause of the suit, the same has not been decreed
for respondent No.6 and 7, therefore, if fifty percent amount from the
aforesaid sum is deducted on such count then appellants claim comes to
Rs.7,02,000/- besides the other expenses but the appellants have filed
the suit only for Rs.3,00,000/-. So,.in such premises, the impugned decree
of the trial court allowing the suit of the appellant only for Rs.75,000/-
could not be said to be correct and, in such premises, the impugned decree
requires modification by enhancing the sum upto the aforesaid limit but
because the suit has been filed only for Rs.3,00,000/-, and the court fees
was paid accordingly, therefore, this court is bound to consider the prayer
of the appellants only upto the aforesaid maximum limit of the prayer
clause of the suit.

11. Inthe aforesaid premises it is held that the trial court has committed
error in decreeing the suit only for Rs.75,000/-. In the available circumstances,
as discussed above, the same requires further enhancement upto Rs.3,00,000/-
as prayed in the plaint. It is needless to say that on any count the respondents/
company could not escape from the aforesaid liability in view of the principle
of strict liability.

12, In view of the aforesaid, by allowing this appeal, the suit of the
appellants till their extent is hereby decreed for three lacs as prayed in the
plaint along with interest @ 6% per annum from the date of filing the suit. If
remaining decreetal amount is not paid by the respondents No. 1 to 5 within
three months from today then the appellants shall be entitled to get the interest
on the remaining sum @ 9% per annum. It is made clear that by this judgment,
the sum of the impugned decree has been enhanced from Rs.75,000/- to Rs.3
lacs with the aforesaid interest. The respondents/company and its officials
shall bear their own cost as well as the cost of appellants of both the courts.
Counsel fees shall be payable in accordance with the schedule, if the same is
certified. Till this extent, the impugned judgment and decree is modified while
the other findings of the same are hereby affirmed. The decree be drawn up
accordingly.

13.  The appeal is allowed as indicated above.

Appeal allowed.
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APPELLATE CIVIL
Before Mr. Justice M.C. Garg
M.A. No. 755/2013 (Jabalpur) decided on 26 March, 2013

RAM GOPAL & anr. ...Appellants
V8.
HANEEF KHAN & ORS. ' ...Respondents

Court Fee (M.P. Amendment) Act, 2012 (3 of 2013), Section 3 -
Court Fee on appeals arising out of Motor Accident Claim - Court fee
on motor accident appeal which arises out of motor accident claim filed
after 2nd of April 2008 shall be payable only @ 2.5% on the enhanced
amount. . ' (Para 16)
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Kapil Patwardhan, for the appellants.
R.D. Jain, A.G, PK. Kaurav, Addl. A.G. & A. Namdeo, P.L. for
the respondents.

ORDER

M.C. GARG, J. :- This order shall govern in M.A. No. 1283/2011,
M.ANo.2545/2011., - M.ANo.2551/2011, M.A.No.2556/2011,
M.A No. 2562/2011, M.A.No. 2564/2011, M.A. No. 2566/2011,
M.A.No. 2573/2011, M.ANo.3593/2011,  M.A.No. 4873/2011,

M.A.No. 30/2012, M.A.No. 33/2012, M.A.No. 34/2012,
M.A.No. 36/2012, M.A.No. 38/2012, M.A.No. 45/2012,
M.A.No. 1492/2012, M.A.No. 2452/2012, M.A.No. 642/2013,
M.A.No. 668/2013, M.A.No. 669/2013, M.A.No. 671/2013,

M.A.No. 672/2013, M.A.No. 673/2013, M.A.No. 674/2013,
M.A.No. 675/2013, M:A.No. 676/2013, M.A.No. 679/2013,
M.A.No. 680/2013, M.A.No.687/2013, M.A.No. 688/2013,
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M.A.No. 689/2013,
M.A.No. 693/2013,
M.A.No. 700/2013,
M.A No. 705/2013,
M.A.No. 710/2013,
M.A No, 713/2013,
M.A.No. 725/2013,
M.A .No. 734/2013,
M.A.No. 738/2013,
M.A.No. 741/2013,
M.A.No. 745/2013,
M.A No. 748/2013,
M.A.No. 757/2013,
M.A.No. 761/2013,
M.A.No. 766/2013,
M.A.No. 773/2013,
M.ANo. 777/2013,
M.A No. 780/2013,
M.A.No. 784/2013,
M.A No. 787/2013,
M.A.No. 792/2013,
M.A.No. 795/2013,
M.A.No. 800/2013,
M.A.No. 805/2013,
M.A.No. 810/2013,
M.A.No. 813/2013,
M.A.No. 817/2013,
M.A.No.821/2013,
M.A.No.825/2013,
M.A.No. 237/2011,
M.A.No. 51/2012,

M.ANo. 61/2012,

M.A No. 64/2012,

M.A.No. 69/2012,

M.A.No. 76/2012,

M.A.No. 822/2013,
M.A.No. 829/2013,
M.A.No. 833/2013,

M.A.No. 690/2013,
M.A.No. 696/2013,
M.A.No. 701/2013,
M.A.No. 707/2013,
M.ANo. 711/2013,
M.A.No. 715/2013,
M.A. No.726/2013,
M.A. No.735/2013,
M.A. No.739/2013,
M.A. No.743/2013,
M.A. No.746/2013
M.ANo.751/2013,
M.A.No.758/2013,
M.A.N0.763/2013,
M.ANo.769/2013,
M.A.No.774/2013,
M.A.No.778/2013,
M.A.No.781/2013,
M.A.No.785/2013,
M.A.No.788/2013,
M.A.No.793/2013,
M.A.N0.797/2013,
M.A.No.801/2013,
M.A.No.806/2013,
M.A.No.811/2013,
M.ANo.814/2013,
M.A.No.818/2013,
M.A.No.823/2013,
M.A.No.826/2013,
M.A.N0.365/2013,
M.A.No. 56/2012,
M.A No. 62/2012,
M.A No. 66/2012,
M.A.No. 73/2012,
M.A.No. 77/2012,
M.A.No. 827/2013,
M.A.No. 831/2013,
M.A.No. 834/2013,

IL.R.[2013]M.P.

M.A.No. 692/2013,
M.A.No. 699/2013,
M.A.No. 704/2013,
M.A.No. 709/2013,
M.A.No. 712/2013,
M.A.No. 724/2013,
M.A.No. 733/2013,
M.A.No. 737/2013,
M.A No. 740/2013,
M.A.No. 744/2013

M.A.No. 747/2013

M.A.No. 756/2013,
M.A.No. 759/2013,
M.A.No. 764/2013,
M.A.No. 770/2013,
M.A.No. 776/2013,
M.A.No. 779/2013,
M.A.No. 783/2013,
M.A No. 786/2013,
M.A.No. 790/2013,

" M.ANo. 794/2013,

M.A.No. 798/2013,
M.A.No. 804/2013,
M.A.No. 807/2013,
M.A.No. 812/2013,
M.A.No. 816/2013,
M.A.No. 819/2013,
M.A.No. 824/2013,
M.A.No. 830/2013,
M.A.No. 47/2012

M.A.No. 60/2012,

M.A.No. 63/2012,

M.A.No. 67/2012,

M.A.No. 75/2012,

M.ANo.789/2013,
M.A.No. 828/2013,
M.A.No. 832/2013,
M.A No. 835/2013,
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M.A No. 836/2013, M.A.No. 838/2013, M.A.No. 840/2013,
M.A No. 842/2013, M.A.No. 843/2013, M.A.No. 844/2013,
M.A.No. 845/2013, M.A.No. 847/2013, M.A.No. 852/2013,
M.A.No. 855/2013, M.A.No. 857/2013, M.A.No. 858/2013,
M.A.No. 859/2013, M.ANo. 860/2013 & M.A.No. 78/2012.

2. Arguments heard on the question as to what amount of Court Fee is
payable on an appeal filed under Section 173 of the Motor Vehicles Act for
enhancement of compensation against the award passed by the Motor Accident
Claims Tribunal after the amendment of the II Schedule of the Court Fees
Act, 1870 in its application to the State of Madhya Pradesh.

3. It has been argued on behalf of the learned counsel for the appellants
that after coming into force of the Second Amendment in the Court Fees Act
by way of Madhya Pradesh Amendment Act therein vide Court Fees (Madhya
Pradesh) Amendment Act, 2012, the Court fee on appeal flied in the year
2013 arising out of an accident claim case except for those accidents claim
case filed prior to 2™ of April, 2008 is payable only @ 2.5% and not @ 10%
as was contemplated in the first State Amendment of the Court Fees Act by
the State of Madhya Pradesh vide first amendment., i.e. the Court Fees (MP)
Amendment Act, 2008.

4. I have also heard the learned Advocate General. According to him,
the Court Fee on the appeal for enhanced compensation is payable according
to the date of filing of the accident claim that is to say, if the claim has been
filed prior to 2™ April, 2008 then the fixed Court Fee of Rs.30/- is payable,
however if the claim has been filed after 2™ April, 2008 and between 9th
January, 2013 then the Court Fee shall be payable @ 10% of the enhanced
claim. However, if the claim has been filed after 9th January 2013, the Court
Fee shall be payable @ 2.5% of the claim amount. He has relied upon the
following judgments; -

AIR 1957 SC 540
AlR 1960 SC 930
1980 MPLIJ 801 (Para-4)
2009 (4) MPLI 50

5. It is submitted that the first amendment was incorporated on 2™ April,
2008 requiring 10% of the Court Fee on the difference amount awarded by
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the Claims Tribunal and that claimed in the appeal, from 2013 by virtue of the
second amendment, to be of the fee be reduced, but the term substituted in
the second amendment will not change the law, which was in force prior to the
amendment.

6. I have considered the judgment cited by the learned Advocate General.
In the case of Garkapati Veeraya V Subbiah Choudhry and others [AIR
1957 SC 540] the Hon'ble Supreme Court had considered the right of appeal
and in this regard it has been submitted that the right of the appeal is vested
right and such a right to enter the superior court accrues to the litigant and
exists as on and from the date of lis commences and although it may be actually
exercised when the adverse judgment is pronounced such right is to be governed
by the law prevailing at the date ofthe institution of the suit or proceeding and
not by the law that prevails at the date of its decision or at the date of the filing
of the appeal. It has been held, that the vested right of appeal cannot be taken
away. In the present case the issue is not about the rlght to appeal but is about
the Court Fee payable on the appeal.

7. In the second judgment in the case of State of Bombay Vs. M/s
Supreme General Films Exchange Ltd. [AIR 1960 SC 980] the issue
involved was claim of enhanced Court Fee on a claim filed prior to coming
. into force of the notification enhancing the Court Fee. In that context the
Hon'ble Supreme Court made the following observation: -

"In dnand Ram Pramhans and others v. Ramgulam Sahu,
AIR 1923 Pat 150, the question which was mooted and
discussed related to the proper presentation of a memorandum
of appeal, and incidentally it was observed that the new Bihar
and Orissa Court Fees Act which had already come into force
- applied to the case. There was no discussion of the question
as to whether the enactment in question was given retrospective
effect or not. As to the decision in ILR 1941 All 558: (AIR
1941 All 298) on which so much reliance has been placed by
the appellant, it is necessary to point out that the question there
was if the right of appeal created by S. 6A of the Court Fees
Act, which was added by U. P Act, XIX of 1938, was available
as-against an order passed after the coming into force of the
latter Act, although that Act was not in existence and
consequently there was no right of appeal at the date of filing
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that plaint. It was held that the enactment, by the amending
Act of 1938, of S. 6A which allowed an appeal against an
order demanding the payment of a deficiency in court fees did
not take away any right which was vested in the plaintiff on
the date on which he filed the plaint, it only conferred on him a

‘new right; nor.did it take away any right which was vested in

the defendant, for though the defendant could object if the
plaint was not properly stamped and might also have arightto
have the matter determined by the court he had no vested
right in the procedure by which it was to be determined, and
this procedure could be changed pending the suitand a change
in procedure could not be said to deprive him of any vested
right. It would appear from what has been stated above that
the decision proceeded on the footing that the amending Act
conferred a new right of appeal, and not that it took away a
vested right of appeal; and the reason of the decision was
based on the principle that there is no vested right in the
procedure by which the sufficiency of court fees is determined
by a court. That is a principle of a different character from the
one ‘we are concerned with in the present case, viz., the
retrospective effect of a subsequent enactment which either
takes away a rlght of appeal or impairs it by imposing a more
stringent or onerous condition thereon. We do not, therefore,

think that the Allahabad decision helps the appellant."

1649

Now, coming to the judgment of this Court the Division Bench of this
Court in the case of Fatehchand V. Land Acquisition and Rehabilitation
Officer and others 2009 (4) M.PL.J. 50} where the question of amendment
in Court Fees Act has been considered, the Court has opined that with respect
to Court Fees Act, the amendment which reduces the Court Fees without
there being anything said in the amendment that it will be retrospective will
permit the Court Fees payable at an amount provided for by the amendment
even with respect to a claim filed earlier. :

Paragraphs- 8, 9 and 13 are applicable, which are as under: -

"8. As per this amendment in a suit orin an appeal, the maximum
limit of Rs.1,50,000/- has been provided, but the entire
Amendment Act does not provide that this amendment shall
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be retrospective in nature, in absence of which it should be
treated as prospective in nature,

"9. The Apex Court has an occasion to consider this aspect in
Supreme General Films Exchange Ltd. (supra). The Apex
Court considering this aspect held thus: -

"Where a suit is filed prior to 01.04.1954, on which
the Court-Fees (Bombay Amendment) Act, 1954, levying
enhanced Court-fees, came into force, in the absence of
provisions giving retrospective effect to the amendments,
the Court-fees payable on the memorandum of appeal filed
after the relevant date (1.4.1954) are payable according
to the law in force at the date of filing of the suit (which
was prior to the relevant date) and not according to the
law in force at the date of the filing of the memorandum of
appeal (which was after the relevant date:; (S) AIR 1955
Bom 332, Affirmed.

It is thus clear in a long line of decisions approved
by this Court and at least in one given by this Court, it has
been held that an impairment of the right of appeal by
putting a new restriction thereon or imposing a more
onerous condition is not a matter of procedure only; it
impairs or imperils a sibstantive right and an enactment
which does so is not retrospective unless it says so
expressly or by necessary intendment.

We are, therefore, of the view that the High Court
was right in the view it took, and the orders of refund of
excess Court fees which it passed were correct in law."

9. . Inthe present case, the second amendment reads as under: -
"MADHYA PRADESHACT
NO.3 OF 2013
THE COURT-FEE (MADHYA PRADESH AMENDMENT)ACT
2012
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(Received the assent of the Governor on the 8th J anuary, 2013, assent first
published in the "Madhya Pradesh Gazette (extra ordinary)", dated the 9th
January, 2013.)

An Act further to amend the Court-fee Act, 1870 in its application to the
State of Madhya Pradesh,

Be it enacted by the Madhya Pradesh Legislature in the Slxty- third
year of the Republic of India as follows:-

1. - This Actmay be called the Court-fee (Madhya Pradesh
Amendment) Act, 2012,

. 2. The Court-fees Act, 1870 (No.VII of 1870)

(hereinafter referred to as the principal Act), in its application

- to the State of Madhya Pradesh be amended in the manner
hereinafter provided.

3. In Schedule II to the Principal Act, in article 11, in
clause (a), in sub-clause (i), in the column pertaining to proper
fee, for the words "Ten percent of the enhanced amount claimed
in appeal”, the words "Two and one half percent of the
enhanced amount claimed in appeal subject to a maximum of
"one lac rupees" shall be substituted. "

10.  In this peculiar situation where the second amendment has
substituted the word 10% to 2.5%, the question arise as to what shall be
the Court Fee payable on appeal, irrespective of the fact that the accident
claim was filed after 2nd April, 2008 or after 9th January, 2013.

11.  Asperthe Division Bench Judgment of this Court delivered in the
case of Smt. Supriya Kathane and others Vs. Shri Lal Singh and others,
[M.A. No.2110/2008], despite the amendment brought in by the State of
Madhya Pradesh in the Court Fee Act applicable to the State of Madhya
Pradesh, with respect to any appeal which arose out of the accident claim
filed prior to 2nd April, 2008, the Court Fee @ Rs.30/-, which was payable
is as per the original schedule irrespective of the fact that the appeal was filed
after 2" April 2008 and prior to 9th January 2013.

12. However, after coming into force of the amendment by the State of
Madhya Pradesh, the Court Fee @ 10% becomes payable on an appeal filed
for enhancement of the amount of award passed by the Motor Accident Claims
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Tribunal in a case which was instituted after coming into force of the Madhya
Pradesh Amendment enharicing the Court Fee payable on the enhanced
amount claimed in the appeal @ 10% W.e.f. i.e. the date, the amended provision
came into being i.e. w.e.f. 02.04.2008 would be payable.

13.  Itisthe matter of record that the aforesaid judgment is now subject
matter of a review before the Division Bench of this Court in terms of the
directions given by the Hon'ble Supreme Court.

14.  Itmaybe observed here, thatin the second amendment there is no provision
for enhancing the Court Fee on the accident claim case. In fact, the Court fee
payable on appeal is substituted @ 2.5% instead of 10%. Thus, it is the contention
of the appellants that if appeal arises even with respect to accident claim filed
either after 2nd April, 2008 or after 9th January, 2013 while, the Court Fee onthe
‘original claim amount is fixed but the Court Fee payable on an appeal on account
of the amendment of the Act, becomes payable only @ 2.5%. Moreover, the
Motor Vehicles Act, is a welfare legislation, any benefit granted by the statute
must be reached in such a manner that it confers benefit to the poor litigant, who
are coming to the Court for redressal of the grievance for obtaining accident claim.
It was in the light of that schedule, Court Fee on appeal was only payable @
Rs.30/-. Using the word, "substituted" from 10% to 2.5% also reflects to the
intention of the D:glslature In this regard my attention was brought to the judgment
of the Hon'ble Supreme Court in the case of Dahiben widow of Ranchhodji
Jivanji and others V. Vasanji Kevalbhai (dead)[AIR 1995 SC 1215] wherein
in respect of pendiig suit despite the amendment brought in Bombay Tenancy and
Agricultural Lands Act, 1948, which made the Act applicable even to those areas
where it was not applicable earlier, it was held that the amendment was not
applicable to those areas for which a suit for eviction has been filed.

15.  Inthis regard it would be appropriate take note of the judgment of
Hon'ble the Supreme Court delivered in the case of Zile Smgh Vs. State of
Haryana [(2004) 8 SCC1], wherein it has been held: - -

"25.Substitution of a provision results in repeal of the
earlier provision and its replacement by the new
provision (See Principles of Statutory Interpretation,
ibid, p.565.). If any authority is needed in support of
the proposition, it is to be found in West U.P Sugar
 _Mills Assn. and Ors. Vs. State of UP, State of Rajasthan
Vs. Mangilal Pindwal, Koteswar Vittal Kamath Vs. K.
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Rangappa Baliga and Co. and A.L.V.R.S.T. Veerappa
Chettiar Vs. S. Michael &-Ors. In West UP Sugar Mills
dssn. case.athree-Judges Bench of this Court held that
the State Government by substituting the new rule in
place of the old one never intended to keep alive the
old rule. Having regard to the totality of the
circumstances centering around the issue the Court held
that the substitution had the effect of just deleting the
old rule and making the new rule operative. In Mangilal
Pindwal's case this Court upheld the legislative practice
of an amendment by substitution being incorporated
in the text of a statute which had ceased to exist and
held that the substitution would. have the effect of
amending the operation of law during the period in.
which it was in force. In Koteswar's case a three-Judge
Bench of this Court emphasized the distinction between
'supersession' of a rule and 'substitution’ of a rule and
held that the process of substitution consists of two
steps : first, the old rule is made to cease to exist and,
¢« next, the new rule is brought into existence in its place.”

16.  Thus, onaccount of substitution of the Court Fee payable from 10% to
2.5% only by way of amendment brought in force on Sth January, 2013, the
Court Fee on motor accident appeal which arise out of motor accident claim filed
after 2nd of' April, 2008, shall now be payable only @ 2.5% on the enhanced
amount. Accordingly, it is held that Court Fee on the appeal which is filed after
coming into force of the second amendment, which become effective from 9th
January, 2013, shall be payable only @ 2.5%.

17.  Theappellants are allowed 2 weeks' time to deposit the Court Fee. The
Registry after ensuring that the Court fee is filed as paid in terms of the direction
and also after ensuring that other defects are removed would place the matter
before the Court for the purpose of admission.

18. . The order passed in this appeal shall apply ipso facto in respect of all
the appeals whereby the enhancement of compensation sought for where
accident claim was filed after 02.04.2008.

A-copy of which order be placed in all connected files. *
 Order aceordingly.
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APPELLATE CIVIL
Before Mr. Justice Sheel Nagu
S.A.No.155/2011 (Gwalior) decided on 8 July, 2013

HARISINGH & anr. . ..Appellants
Vs. -
VIKRAM SINGH & ors. ... Respondents

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 8 Rules 3 & 5, Evidence
Act (1 of 1872), Section 18 - Implied or deemed admission - Vague or
evasive reply in written statement - Pleadings made in the plaint can
get converted into evidence only when it passes test of proof - Mere
alleging a fact in the plaint with absence of denial in the written
statement with regard to the fact, cannot by itself entitle the plaintiffs
to decree by deemed admission. ‘ (Para7)

Rifaer giFar afear (1908 @71 5), A*eT 8 Frag 3 7 5 wed
FFTT (1872 ®71 1), &°T 18 — [39fra ar wwsl 74t Whigfa — fafaa
FUF § IR AT TFATHS I} — 1€ ux ¥ fpd R aframat st 9y
% daa a1 yRaffa fam w7 9o 2 99 a8 @q@ & pald IR W —
9 & ge" 4 faRea som § awfigf & avm9 @ wig 9w w3 7 q=a
BT Ao AP AuR ang ¥ wash Y Wi g T | fed 5
FHAR TEl 91T |

Case referred :
2004(1) MPLJ 180.

Ashish Saraswat, for the appellants.
J.P. Mishra, for the respondents No.1, 2, 5,6, 8,9 & 10.

JUDGMENT

SHEEL NaAGU, J. :- Learned counsel for the rival parties are heard on
the question of admission. Record of both the Courts below is perused.

2. This second appeal arises out of concurrent findings of both the Courts
below in rejecting the suit for declaration of title and permanent injunction
filed by the plaintiffs-appellants on the strength of partition between the plaintiffs
and the defendants, which took place 40 to 50 years ago in respect of the
agricultural land in question.
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3. The defendants in their written statement denied the factumn of partltlon
as alleged by the plaintiffs. The defendants further contend that land falling in
the share of Narayan Singh had been alienated by the said Narayan Singh
during his life time by way of registered sale deed dated 18.06.1991 in favour
of defendant No. 10 Rajesh, who has been put in possession. The defendants
thus contended that the suit has been filed after 17 years of the said sale deed
having been executed and, therefore, the same deserves to be rejected.

4. The trial court after framing various issues including issue No. 2 asto
whether any partition took place 40 to 50 years ago between Dalel Singh,
Narayan Singh and Bhagwan Singh or not ? held on the basis of evidence
adduced on record that the factum of partition as alleged by the plaintiffs is
not established. The trial Court found that during life time of Suwaju, the
property in dispute were in joint ownership and possession of Suwaju, Narayan
Singh, Bhagwan Singh and Dalel Singh. The trial Court found that Suwaju
died prior to 1950 till when the land in question was in joint ownership and
possession. The trial Court further found that after the death of Suwaju, the
suit property was in joint ownership and possession of Dalel Singh, Bhagwan
Singh and Narayan Singh and that no partition as alleged by the plaintiffs
could be established. Consequently, the trial Court held that the plaintiffs could
not be said to be in separate ownership and possession of their respective
shares in the suit property. Accordingly, the suit for declaranon and perrnanent
injunction was decreed against the plaintiffs.

5. The first appellate court has upheld the judgment and decree of the
trial Court by finding that the trial Court has rightly found the factum of partition
to be not established thereby rendering negative findings in respect of other
issues against the plaintiffs.

6. Learned counsel for the appellants primarily contends that since the
factum of partition was not denied by the defendants in their written statement

~ the same ought to have been treated as admitted fact under Order § Rule 3 &

5 of CPC for which reliance has been placed on the decision of this Court in
the case of Mohd. Syed and Anr. Vs. Hmdustan Petroleum and Three Ors.
reported in 2004(1) MPLJ 180. :

7. True it is, implied admission is inferred under Order 8 Rule 3 & 5 of
CPC in case of vague or evasive reply in written statement to the pleadings in
the plaint, but at the same time pleadings made in the plaint can get converted
into evidence only when it passes test of proof. In other words mere alleging
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afact in the plaint with absence of denial in the written statement with regard
to the fact, cannot by itself entitle the plaintiffs to decree by deemed admission.
The plaintiffs have to produce documentary / oral evidence to establish the
pleadings. When the Court finds that the evidence produced in support of the
fact alleged are sufficient after being weighed on the scale of preponderance
of probability, can pleadings get transformed into proof, thereby entitling the
Court to render findings on that basis.

8. In the instant case, the plaintiffs desperately failed to produce the
evidence in support of their basic and primary contention of partition of the
suit land in question having been occasioned 40 to 50 years ago. Thus the
pleading of partition in the plaint remained “pleading” and could not get
converted to proof, notwithstanding the failure of the defendants denying the
said factum in the written statement. '

9. A bare scrutiny of concurrent findings rendered by both the Courts
below, this Court does not find any glaring irregularity or illegality in the said
findings and, therefore, this Court is of the considered view that neither any of
the proposed substantial questions of law nor any new one arises for
consideration. '

10.  Accordingly, this second appeal deserves to be and is hereby dismissed
at admission stage, Sans cost.

Appeal dismissed.

LL.R. {2013] M.P., 1656
APPELLATE CIVIL
Before Mr. Justice M.K. Mudgal
F.A. No.184/2004 (Gwalior) decided on 9 July, 2013

BALRAM SHIVHARE & ors. ... Appellants
Vs, .
.SUNEETA SHIVHARE (SMT.) & anr. ... Respondents

Family Court Act (66 of 1984), Sections 3, 7 & 8(c) - Suit for
recovery of 'Stridhan’ was filed on 01.05.2000 at Gwalior Court - On
04.03.2002 the Family Court was established under Family Courts Act
to the area of Municipal Corporation, Gwalior - Held - All the
proceedings after 08.03.2002 by Civil/District Court cannot be held to
be legal and decree passed by trial Court (ADJ) is found to be without
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jurisdiction - Suit is transferred as per Section 8(c) of the Act to the
Family Court, Gwalior. . (Para 20)

FE= =TITAd FAFITT (1984 BT 66), &VIY 3, 7 T 8(Wf}) — T
! Tl 23 e va@riAY AT ® 01.05.2000 B URGA fwAr —
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aifeR 89 3 ot mom = e fear @ e — gfifrafRe -
08.03.2002 @ waTd Rufda /frer =ararem gra @7 ¥ g srfarfar
T g 9E e W1 wear ai¥ AR =red (TE) gRr ia o
e st ey aftreRar @ BT 9rm T — 9% @ AP w e
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Case referred :

AIR 1985 SC 628, 2003(3) MPLJ 524, AIR 2003 Orissa 89, 2004(1)
JLJ 353, 2005(3) JLJ 173, (2012) 4 SCC 148, 1997 5C 3562, AIR 1982
Punjab & Haryana 372, 2003(3) MPLJ 544 (SC), AIR 1996 SC 1819, AIR
1993 SC 1756, AIR 1996 SC 2821.

K.S. Tomar with J.S. Kaurav, for the appellants.
Madhusudan Shrivastava, for the respondents.

- : JUDGMENT

M.K. MubGaL, J. :- By filing this appeal under Section 96 of the Code
of Civil Procedure, appellants/defendants have challenged the validity and legality
of the judgment and decree dated 20.2.2004 passed by the Court of 11 Additional
District Judge Gwalior in Civil Suit No.53A 0£ 2001 whereby, partly allowing the
suit filed by the respondent/plaintiffno.1 the trial Court has awarded Rs.50,000/-
along with interest at the rate of 9% per annum from the date of filing of the suit till
realization of the entire money as “Stridhan'. In this appeal, the appellants are
referred as “defendants' and respondents as "plaintiffs'.

(2). The admitted facts are as follows :

(D). Smt. Suneeta plaintiff no.1 and Hari Babu Shivhare (now '
deceased) were married on 6.6.1991 at Gwalior. Out of their
wedlock, Shashank plaintiff no.2 was born. Hari Babu Shivhare
died on 2.8.1999 in a jeep accident.

(3).  Facts in brief of the plaint are that the parents of the plaintiffno.1 had
given Rs.1,00,000/- along with chain and ring made of gold, scooter and
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other articles at the time of ring ceremony. Besides other gold ornaments as
ear-rings, bangles, necklace and other articles mentioned in para 2 of the
_plaint were given by her parents at the time of marriage. Apart from this, some
articles were also given by her in-laws to her in the marriage. The total cost of
the said articles has been estimated at Rs.1,50,000/- by the plaintiffno.1 in
para 9 of the plaint. The plaintiffno.1 has further alleged that she is residing
with her parents at Gwalior because, she was forced to leave her in-laws
house by the defendants after the death of her husband. All the articles including
. money given in the marriage to the plaintiff no.1 are her Stridian which were
in possession of the defendants. Hence, the suit for recovery of Stridhan
was filed by the plaintiff on 1.5.2000 against the defendants.

(4).  Denying the allegations of the plaint, the defendants have submitted
that the plaintiff's parents (no.1) gave only Rs.10,000/- at the time of ring
ceremony. Neither Rs.1,00,000/- nor gold ornaments referred in the plaint
were given by the them to the plaintiff no.1. The defendants have, further,
stated that they had given to the plaintiffno.1 Suneeta a few gold ornaments in
the marriage which are still in her possession. The scooter given by her parents
was in her custody and it was also sold by her. The defendants have, further,
pleaded that all the articles given to her by her parents and by them are in her
possession and thus, nothing remains in the possession of the defendants.
Therefore, the plaintiffno.1 is not entitled to get any relief from the defendants
as claimed by her in the plaint.

(5).  Theleamed trial Court after framing 11 issues and after recording evidence
of both the parties and having discussed the recorded evidence in detail, has
decreed the suit partly by the impugned judgment and decree as stated earlier.

(6).  Thefollowing question arises for consideration in this appeal :

(I). Whether, the learned trial Court had the jurisdiction to entertain
the suit?

(7). Heard the arguments of both the parties and perused the record.

(8).  Learned Senior counsel for the appellants has pointed out only one
aspect of the case i.¢. the jurisdiction of the trial Court. The learned Senior
Counsel has strennously argued that the trial Court had no Jjurisdiction to
entertain the suit as the Family Court Act (referred to “the Act') came into
force in Madhya Pradesh in 1986 Le. 14.11.1986. As per contention of
learned counsel under Section 7 of the said Act, the exclusive jurisdiction has
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been given to the Family Court to entertain the matters relating to property
involved in a marriage. Stridhan comes under the purview of “property'. The
learned Senior counsel has cited the following judgments in his submission.

“(1). Pratibha Rani Vs. Suraj Kumar and another AIR 1985
SC 628; ' :

(ii). KA. Abdul Jaleel Vs. T.4.Shahida 2003 (3) MPLJ 524;

(iii). Sanjay Kumar Sharma Vs. Smt. thyﬁ Sharma and
Another AIR 2003 Orissa 89;

(iv). Dwarka Prasad Agrawal (D) by Lrs and another Vs.
B.D.Agarwal and Others 2004 (1) JLJ 353;

(v). Vijendra (Brijendra) Singh Yadav Vs. Smt. Rajkuhmri
Yadav and Others 2005 (3) JLI 173;

(vi). Raheja Universal Ltd. Vs. NRC Ltd. And Others (2012)
4 SCC 148;”

(9).  Refuting the submissions made by appellants’ counsel, counsel for the
respondents submits that the appellants/defendants did not challenge the
jurisdiction of the suit before the trial Court in the written statement. Besides,
no ground for challenging the jurisdiction of the trial Court has been stated in
the appeal memo, because of which,appellants are estopped from saying that
the lower Court had no jurisdiction to entertain the suit and the impugned
judgment and decree are without jurisdiction. The learned counsel has further
submitted that the dispute of the instant suit does not come in the purview of
Section 7 of the Family Court Act. As per requirement of Section 7, the dispute
should be between the parties to a marriage whereas, in the instant case, the
defendants are not party of marriage in the plaint. The learned counsel has
further argued that when the suit was filed before the trial Court, the Family
Courts were not established under Section 3 of the Family Court Act. Hence,
it was not possible for the plaintiff to have filed the suit before the Family
Court. Learned counsel has further submitted that no sufficient reason has
been shown on behalf of the appellants to interfere in the impugned judgment.

10.  In chapter IIl of the family Court under Section 7, the following
provision has been made regarding jurisdiction:-

(1)  Subject to the other provisions of this Act, a Family
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Court shall-

(@ have and exercise all the jurisdiction exercisable by any
district court or any subordinate civil court under any law
for the time being in force in respect of suits and
proceedings of the nature referred to in the explanation;
and

(b)-  bedeemed, forthe purposes of exercising such jurisdiction
’ under such law, to be a district court or, as the case may
be, such subordinate civil court for the area to which the

- jurisdiction of the Family Court extends.

. Explanation.- The suits and proceedings referred to in this subsection
are suits and proceedings of the following nature, namely:-

" (c) a suit or proceeding between the parties to a marriage
with respect to the property of the parties or of either
of them. The relief sought by the plaintiff for recovery
of Stridhan comes under the purview of Section 27
of the Act.; :

1. Atthe outset, we have to consider whether Stridhan is a property of
the parties to a marriage. In para 10 of Balkrishna Ramchandra Kadam v.
Sangeeta Balkrishna Kadam, AIR 1997 SC 3562, the Hon'ble Apex Court
has held as under :

“The property, as contemplated by Section 27 isnot the property
which is given to the wife at the time of marriage only. It includes
the property given to the parties before or after marriage also, so
long asit is relatable to the marriage. The expression “at or about
the time of marriage” has to be properly construed to include
such property which is given at the time of marriage as also the
property given before or after marriage to the parties to become
their “joint property”, implying thereby that the property can be
traced to have connection with the marriage. All such property is
covered by Section 27 of the Act™.

12. - In the same manner in Vinod Kumar Vs. State of Punjab and
" Haryana AIR 1982 Pujab and Haryana 372, the Full Bench has taken the
view that Section 27 in no way abolishes Stridhan but expressly recognizes
the property exclusively owned by the wife. In this connection, the Court
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observed thus :

““The express words of the provision refer to property 'which
may belong jointly to both the husband and the wife'. It nowhere
says that all the wife's property belongs jointly to the couple
or that-Stridhan is abolished and she cannot be the exclusive
owner thereof. Indeed, in using the above terminology the
statute expressly recognize that property which exclusively
owned by the wife is not within the ambit of Section 27 of the
Hindu Marriage Act................ Equally no other provision in
the Hindu Marriage Act could be pointed out which erodes
the concept of Stridhan or in any way incapacitates the Hindu
wife to hold property as.an exclusive owner”. '

Considering the aforesaid views, there is no iota of doubt that Stridhan isa .
property of marriage and dispute relating to Stridiian comes in the arena of
Section 7 of the Act as quoted in para 11 of this judgment,

(13).  Interpreting Section 7 of the Family Court, Hon'ble Apex CourtinK.A. 4bdul
Jaleel Vs. T.A.Shahida 2003 (3) MPLJ 544 (SC) has observed as under : .

“It is now well-settled principle of law that the jurisdictionofa .
court created specially for resolution of disputes of certain

' kinds should be construed liberally. The restricted meaning if
ascribed to Explanation (c) to section 7 of the Family Courts
Act, would frustrate the object where for the Family Courts
were set up. The wording 'disputes relating to marriage and
family affairs and for matters connected therewith' in the '
preamble must be. given a broad construction. The statement .
of objects and reasons of the Act would clearly go to shiow
that the Jurlsdlctlon of the Famlly Court extends, inter alia in

‘relation to propernes of spouses or of either of them which
would clearly mean that the properties claimed by the parties
thereto as a spouse of other, irrespective of the claim whether
property is claimed during the subsistence of a marriage or
otherwise. Family Court has jurisdiction to adjudicate upon
any question relating to the propertles of divorced parties.
(Paras 14-17)” -

Considering the said view, it is inferred that the Family Court has jurisdiction .
to entertain such a matter that comes under the purview of Section 7 of the
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Family Court Act. '

(14). Now, the question that arises for consideration is that whether a Family
Court has exclusive jurisdiction to entertain a suit referred to under Section 7
of the Act. In this regard, the learned counsel for the appellants inviting the
attention to Section 8 of the Family Court Act, contended that after the Family
Court Act coming into force, the Civil Court has no jurisdiction to entertain
the suit. Hence, if a decree is passed by a civil Court, it being without jurisdiction
shall have the effect of nullity. Section 8 of the Family Court Act is as under :

. «8, Exclusion of jurisdiction and pending proceeﬂings.-
-Where a Family Court has been established for any area, -

‘(@)  nodistrict court or any subordinate civil court referred
to in sub-section (1) of section 7 shall, in relation to
such area, have or exercise any jurisdiction in respect
of any suit or proceedlng of the nature referred to in
the Explanation to that sub- sectlon,

(b)  nomagistrate shall, in relation to such aréa, have or
exercise any jurisdiction or power under Chapter IX .
of the Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 (2 of 1974);

(©) every suit or proceeding of the nature referred to the
Explanation to sub-section (1) of section 7 and every
proceeding under Chapter IX of the Code of Criminal
procedure, 1973 (2 of 1974) :-

(D).  whichispending immediately before the establishment of
such Family Court before any district court or subordinate
court referred to in that sub-section or, as the case may
be, before any magistrate under the said Code; and

().  Whichwould have been required to be instituted or taken
before or any such Family Court if, before the date on
which, such suit or proceeding was instituted or taken,

_this Act had come into force and such Family Court had
been established shall stand transferred to such Family
Court on the date on which, it is established.

(15). Byreading of Section 8 of the Family Court Act, it is explicitly clear
that after coming into force of the said Act and after establishment of a Family
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Court for any area under Section 3 of the Act, a civil Court of th?.t areashall |
- not have jurisdiction to entertain the disputes as defined under Section 7of . -

the Act.

Al

(16). The contention submitted by learned counsel for the respondents to” ‘.

the effect that the defendant no.1 had not raised the objection as regards the
exclusive jurisdiction of Family Court before the trial Court in the written
statement, so that objection cannot be raised before this Court in appeal,

does not appear to be acceptable wherein there is inherent lack of jurisdiction .-

of a Court, it may be raised not only in.appeal, even it may be raised in

execution proceedings also. If a decree is passed by a Court without having -

jurisdiction to entertain a suit, the decree would have the effect of nullity. As
held by the Hon'ble Apex Court in Urban Improvement Trust Jodhpur Vs.
Gokul Narain and another AIR 1996 SC 1819.

(17). Now, the question raised by learned counsel for the respondent that -
arises for consideration is that whether, after establishment of the family Court
under Section 3 of the Act to the area from which, the cause of action for
filing the suit to the plaintiff had arisen in the instant case ? Indisputably, the
Family Courts Act, 1984 has come into force in Madhya Pradesh since
19.11.1986 vide SO No.79/6/86 dated 14.11.1986 Gazetted of India. Extra:
Part I Section 1. However, the Family Courts under Section 3 of the Act to
the area of Municipal Corporation Gwalior were established from 8:3.2002
vide notification No.F.No.4.1.2002 Twenty one-B(one) Family Court Act,

1984 dated 4.3.2002. On perusal of the said notification, it is crystal clear

that the family Courts for the area of Municipal Corporation Gwalior were
established on 8.3.2002. The instant suit was filed on 1.5.2000. Thus, it is
inferred that when the instant suit was filed, no family Court was in existence
for the area of Municipal Corporation, Gwalior. Resultantly, it is inferred that
the civil court had jurisdiction to entertain the said suit. It is true that under
Section 8 (c) of the Family Court Act, the provision is made that after
establishment of the Family Court under Section 3 of the Act, pending cases
in the civil Court shall stand transferred to such Family Court having jurisdiction
for that area. '

(18). Going through the record, it becomes clear that during pendency of
the instant case before the learned trial Court, family Court came into force
on 8.3.2002 for the jurisdiction of the area to entertain the disputed matter.
Nonetheless, the instant case was decided by the impugned judgment and
decree dated 20.2.2004 by the learned trial Court. It is also true that no
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objection was raised by either party before learned trial court during pendency

of the suit regarding section 8§ of the Act. In spite of the fact that after
establishment of the Family Court, the Civil Court had no jurisdiction to proceed
with the suit as the civil Court's _]urlsdlctlon was ousted by the Fa.mﬂy Court
set up under Section 3 of the Family Court Act. Moreover, under Section 8
(c) of the Act, the provision has been made relating to the pending cases for
which, it has been provided that the pending cases shall stand transferred to
the Family Court. What would be the effect of new enactment on the pending
cases which were filed before the competent Court having jurisdiction to
entertain them at the time of filing of the cases. Similar legal point was considered
by the Hon'ble Apex Court in Shri Inacio Martins Deceased through Lrs
Vs. Narayan Hari Naik and Others AIR 1993 SC 1756 and in para 9, it has
. been held as under : , '

“Before we answer those questions we must decide on the
“impact of the fifth amendment on pending litigation. The
question whether the fifth amendment is prospective or
retrospective really recedes in the background if we examine
.. the question froin the angle whether the civil court can decide
any question falling within the jurisdiction of the special forum
under the Act in a pending litigation in the absence of an express
provision in that behalf. If the question of tenancy in regard to
agricultural land cannot be decided by the civil court under the
Act and there is no express saving clause permitting the civil
court to 'deéide the same, it is obvious that any decision
‘rendered by the civil court would be without jurisdiction. A
. similar situation did arise in the context of another statute. In
Shah Bhojraj Kuverji Oil Mills and Ginning Factory v.
Subhash Chandra Yograj Sinha' the facts were that the
‘landlord had filed a suit for eviction on April 25, 1957 in the

, regular court, i.c., the Court of the Joint Civil Judge (Junior .
Division), Erandol which admittedly had jurisdiction to pass a
decree for possession of the demised premises. However,
" during the pendency of the suit, a notification was issued under

* ‘Section 6 of the Bombay Rents, Hotel and Lodging House .
. Rates Control Act, 1947, (hereinafter called ‘the Rent Act’)
applying Part II of the Act to areas where the property in
. qizestion was situate, The tenants claimed protection of Section
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12 in Part II of the Rent Act which deprived the landlord of -
the right of possession under certain circumstances. The
question which arose for consideration was whether the tenants
were entitled to the protection of Section 12 in pending cases
and if yes, its effect. Since Section 12 of the Rent Act was
held to be prospective, the question which arose for
consideration was whether its protection could be extended
to tenants in pending litigation. This Court pointed outthat the
point of time when sub-section (1) of Section 12 operates is
when the court is called upon to pass a decree for eviction.
Thus, said this Court, the language of the sub-section applies
equally to suits pending when Part II comes into force and
those to be filed subsequently. The contention of the landlord
that the operation of Section 12(1}is limited to suits filed after
the Rent Act comes into force in a particular area was not
accepted. Applying the same principle to the facts of the
present case, we have no hesitation in concluding that the
provisions of the fifth amendment would apply to pending suits
also. However, the Act does not preclude the institution of a
suit by a tenant for restoration of possession from a trespasser.
If the defendant who is sued as a tres passer raises a plea of
tenancy, a question arises whether his plea of tenancy can be
decided by the civil court as incidental to the grant of relief for
possession or is the civil court precluded from deciding the
same in view of Section 7 read with Section 58(2) of the Act.
As pointed out earlier, Section 7 in terms states that if any
question arises whether any person is a tenant or should be
deemed to be a tenant under the Act, the Mamlatdar shall
decide such question. The jurisdiction is, therefore, vested in
the Mamlatdar under Section 7 of the Act and Section 58(2)
specifically bars the jurisdiction of all other courts to settle,
decide or deal with any question which is by or under the Act
required to be settled, decided or dealt with by the Mamlatdar.
Section 8(2) has limited operation where a person referred to
in Section 4 has been evicted on or after July 1, 1962. In that
case he would be entitled to recover immediate possession of
the land in the manner prescribed by or under the Act unless it
is shown that his tenancy was terminated in the manner
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authorised by Section 9. In the present case, the plaintiff came
to court contending that even though his lease was not
terminated as provided by Section 9 of the Act, defendant 1
had dispossessed him by an act of trespass. He, therefore,
sought possession of the demised property from the trespasser,
defendant 1. He impleaded the owner of the land as defendant
2 on the plea that she had colluded with defendant 1. Defendant
1 raised a contention in his written statement that he was lawfully
inducted as a tenant in the lands in question by the owner,
defendant 2. In other words, he disputed the plaintiff’s
contention that he was a trespasser and pleaded tenancy. If
his plea was found to be well-founded, he would be entitled to
retain possession but not otherwise. Therefore, the question
which arose in the suit was whether defendant 1 proved that
he was a tenant in respect of the land in question. This question
could not be gone into by the civil court in view of the clear
language of Section 7 read with Section 58(2) of the Act. What
procedure should the court follow in such situations? It would
not stand to reason to non-suit the plaintiff who had filed the
suit in a competent court having jurisdiction to try the same
merely because of the subsequent change in law. The proper
course, therefore, would be one which was followed by the
Bombay High Court in Bhimaji Shanker Kulkarni v.
Dundappa Vithappa Udapudi®. That was a case arising under
the provisions of the Bombay Tenancy and Agricultural Lands
Act, 1948. The lands in question were agricultural lands.
Section 29(2) of that law provided that no landlord shall obtain
possession of any land or dwelling house held by a tenant
except under an order of the Mamlatdar on an application
made in that behalf in the prescribed form. Section 70(b) next
provided that for the purposes of the Act, one of the duties
and functions to be performed by the Mamlatdar is to decide
whether a person is a tenant or a protected tenant or a
permanent tenant. Section 85(1) laid down that no civil court
shall have jurisdiction to settle, decide or deal with any question
which is required to be settled, decided or dealt with by the
Mamlatdar under the statute. The law was silent as to how a
dispute of this nature raised in a suit filed for eviction on the

o
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footing that the defendant is a trespasser should be dealt with
by the civil court. This question squarely arose for consideration
by the Bombay High Court in Dhondi Tukaram v. Dadoo
Piraji* wherein that court observed as under:

“Therefore, we hold that in a suit filed against the defendant
on the footing that he is a trespasser, if he raises the plea that
he is a tenant or a protected tenant, the civil court would have
no jurisdiction to deal with that plea .... We would, however,
like to add that in all such cases where the civil court cannot
entertain the plea and accepts the objection that it has no
jurisdiction to try it, it should not proceed to dismiss the suit
straightway. We think that the proper procedure to adopt in
such cases would be to direct the party who raises such a
plea to obtain a decision from the Mamlatdar within a
reasonable time. If the decision of the Mamlatdaris in favour
of the party raising the plea, the suit for possession would
have to be dismissed, because it would not be open to the
civil court to give any reliefto the landlord by way of possession
of the agricultural land. If, onthe other hand, the Mamlatdar
rejects the plea raised under the Tenancy Act, the civil court
would be entitled to deal with the dispute on the footing that
the defendant is a trespasser.” Pursuant to the court’s
recommendation, the Bombay Legislature introduced Section
835-A which provided that if in any suit instituted in a civil court
issues which are required to be settled, decided and dealt with
by any authority competent to settle, decide and deal with the
same arise, the civil court shall stay the suit and refer such
issues to such competent authority for determination under the
statute. Unfortunately even under the Act with which we are
concerned the legislature though aware of Section 85-A has
not chosen to make any provision for dealing with such
situations. We are, therefore, of the opinion that it would be
just and fair that the issue whether defendant 1 was a tenant in
respect of the lands in question should be referred to the
Mamlatdar for decision and after his decision is received by
the civil court if the issue is held against defendant 1, the civil
court may consider passing of a decree in eviction but if on
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* the other hand he is held to be tenant, the civil court may be
required to dismiss the suit™.

The same view has been taken by the Hon'ble Apex Court in Mrs.
Judith Fernandes and Others Vs. Conceicao Antonio Fernandes and
another AIR 1996 SC 2821.

(19). Having gone through the Apex Court's judgment, it is inferred that after
coming into force of the Act and establishment of the Family Court under Section
3 of the Act on 8.3.2002 in the Municipal Corporation area Gwalior, the learned
trial Court had no jurisdiction to proceed with the suit. Consequently, the
impugned judgment and decree passed by learned Court is found to be without
jurisdiction. On account of this, the impugned judgment and decree has the
effect of nullity. It is also inferred that after establishment and coming into force
of the Family Court, all the proceedings after 8.3.2002 cannot be held to be
legal. However, entire suit cannot be dismissed because, when the suit was filed
on 1.5.2000, the learned trial Court had jurisdiction to entertain the suit and
during pendency of the suit, jurisdiction of the learned trial Court was ousted by
coming into force of the Family Court as stated earlier. In view of the facts, it
would be apt to transfer the case as per provisions of Section 8 (c) of the Act
from learned trial Court to the Family Court Gwalior which has jurisdiction to
entertain the suit after its establishment under Section 3 of the Act.

(20). Having considered the submissions made by the learned counsels for
both the parties, allowing the appeal, the impugned judgment and decree passed
by learned trial Court is hereby set-aside being without jurisdiction and all the
proceedings of the trial Court after establishment of the Family Court at Gwalior
on 8.3.2002 are also cancelled as being found to be without jurisdiction. The
suit is transferred as per Section 8 (c¢) of the Act to the Family Court Gwalior
from learned trial Court for a fresh decision as per provisions of law mentioned’
before. The parties are directed to appear before the Family Court Gwalior
on 26.8.2013. Office is directed to send the record along with a copy of this
judgment to the trial Court and the trial Court in turn shall immediately transfer
it to the Family Court and inform the parties concerned for appearance before
the Family Court Gwalior on 26.8.2013. The Family Court is directed to
decide the case on the priority as early as possible as the case is old one and
has been pending since 2000. Considering the facts, no order as to the costs.

Decree be drawn up accordingly.

Aﬁpeal allowed.
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Vs.
BABULAL & ors. Respondents

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 41 Rule 33 - Power of
appeliate court - No such plea of adverse possession was raised before
the trial court nor any declaration for ownership was sought and the

_suit was merely for permanent injunction - Plaintiff solely sought

permanent injunction for restraining defendants from dispossessing
the plaintiff from the suit property - Trial court dismissed the suit by
holding that plaintiff has failed to prove his possession over the suit
property and also failed to prove that the defendants were attempting
to dispossess him - First appellate court proceeded to decide the case
on the assumption that the suit was for declaration of ownership of
plaintiff/appellant based upon adverse possession - Held - The first
appellate court has misdirected itself by rejecting the appeal of the
plaintiff on the ground not germane to the issue involved in the case -
Second appeal allowed with direction to the first appellate court to
decide the appeal afresh on merits. (Paras 7 &.9)

Rifaer gfrar afear (1908 1 5), F3er 41 A7 33 — Fdet
~rarerd #1 T — faaryr <Earay & | T 9 ufuad oo @1 B
¢u7 fiare foar Tar or Ak 9 £ arficg 9 S givon T O oft e
ag Sad Wil ey @ Ry of — a1 3, 9rg iy | ard) 7 v
ded W afarfaat ®t e ey 9 Rl @Ry @ — RErer s
3 I8 awvn ®d gV 9% enfe faar 6 are Wl v ard araem deen
wfyq a1 4 Iued @ iR ¥w uifdd e 7 ff amrea <y

" gfardhTer 99 IPedT B BT 9T FY @ o — vuq i<l ey 18

e fafifaa o1 @ fav srwR gan % arg, ofiee o= W smenRa
Tl /afiarefl @ w@ifre # wivon @ fag om - afifedRa — gem
Ffiell TYTEY 7 99 AR W W IHR ¥ v faarae @ wag €Y
o, 911 1 i T o3 WT ) e ¥ - v srfiely =gmarers
Bt afie &1 o fAffEE, Rt $ seR ® 56 @1 PRy 39 5%
e adta A9



1670 Kailash vs. Babulal " LL.R.[2013]M.P.

S.K. Shrivastava, for the appellant.
S.S. Rajput, for the respondents.

JUDGMENT

SHEEL NAGU, J. :- Learned counsel for the rival parties are heard on
the question of admission.

2. This appeal is admitted for hearing on the following substantial question
of law:-

“Whether the first appellate court was right in rejecting the
appeal of the plaintiff by rendering the findings in respect of
plaintiff being not entitled to declaration of ownership on the
suit property on the strength of adverse possession, when no
such plea of adverse possession was raised before the trial
court nor any declaration for ownership was sought and the
suit was merely for permanent injunction”.

3 Since the contesting parties are represented, this Court deemed it
appropriate to decide this matter finally at this stage with the consent of rival
parties as the controversy involved lies within a narrow campus. The record
of trial court and the first appellate court are perused.

4. Suit was brought by the plaintiff solely seeking permanent injunction
for restraining the defendants from dispossessing the plaintiff from the suit

property.

5. Issues which were framed by the trial court also related to the above
said relief. The trial court dismissed the suit by holding that plaintiff has failed
to prove his possession over the suit property and also failed to prove that the
defendants were attempting to dispossess him.

6. While deciding the first appeal preferred against the judgment and
decree of the trial court, the first appellate court in para 7 of its judgment and
decree proceeded to decide the case on the assumption that the suit was for
declaration of ownership of plaintiff/appellant based upon adverse possession.

7. From reading of the judgment and decree of the first appellate court,
itis evident that the first appellate court has misdirected itself by rejecting the
appeal of the plaintiff on the ground not germane to the issue involved in the
case.
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8. . Accordingly, this Court deems it appropriate to answer the above
said substantial law in favour of the plaintiff/appellant herein.

9. Consequently, this second appeal is allowed. The judgment and decree
of the first appellate court dated 26.04.2012 passed in Civil Appeal No. 8-
A/2011 is set aside with direction to the first appellate court to decide the
appeal afresh on merits as expeditiously as possible.

Appeal allowed.
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APPELLATE CIVIL
: Before Mr. Justice GD. Saxena
M. A. No. 936/2007 (Gwalior) decided on 18 July, 2013

UNITED INDIA INSURANCE CO.LTD. ...Appellant
Vs,
JAGANNATH & ors, ...Respondents

Motor Vehicle Act (59 of 1988), Sections 147 & 149 - Liability
of Insurance Company - When there is no statutory liability to pay
compensation by the Insurance Company to the deceased who had
travelled as an unauthorised passenger in the vehicle, the Insurance
Company cannot be directed to pay the compensation amount and
recover the same from the owner of the vehicle.

In a case, where the Insurance Company is successful in its
defence under section 149, it may yet be required to pay the
amount to the claimant and thereafter, it may recover from the
owner of the vehicle - When the insurance company is not
statutorily required to cover the liability in respect of a
. passenger in a vehicle under section 147 unless such passengers
is the owner or agent of the owner of the goods accompanying
such goods absolutely there is no need for the Insurance
Company to pay compensation since there is no contractual
liability under the statute to pay the amount to the gratuitous

passenger travelling in the goods carriage vehicle.
(Paras 18 & 20)
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ORDER

G.D. SaxeNa, J: The United India Insurance Company has come up
with the present appeal, feeling aggrieved by the award dated 14th August,
2007 passed by the Additional Member of the Motor Accidents Claims
Tribunal, Chachoda, district Guna in Claim Case No.14/2006 whereby the
learned Claims Tribunal has directed the Insurance Company to pay the amount
to the claimants/respondents No. 1 to 3 of the deceased and recover the
same from the owner of the vehicle.

(2)  Indisputably, respondents No.4 and 5, owner and driver of the
offending vehicle did not prefer any appeal nor file any cross-objection against
the Award assailing the impugned findings in this appeal. Same is the situation
with respondents No. 1 to 3/claimants because they did not prefer any appeal
for enhancement of compensation. Further there is no dispute about quantum
of Award by either of the parties. -

(3)  Admitted facts of the case are that on 22nd May 2006, in night,
deceased Badambai alongwith her husband went in a tractor-trolley bearing
registration No. MP08/H-9294, driven by Suraj (Respondent No.5) and
owned by Babulal (Respondent No. 4). In mid-way, due to negligence and
rash driving on the part of the driver, the said tractor and trolley turned turtle.
Consequently, Smt. Badambai, wife of Jagannath died on the spot. Onreporting
the above accident, the crime was registered against the driver and charge-
sheet was filed before the criminal court, It is also admitted that at the time of
accident, the offending tractor was only registered under “Farmer’s Package
Insurance with the Insurer Company/ appeliant, herein, and the driver of the
offending vehicle was having the valid driving licence. The learned claims
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tribunal after considering the evidence adduced from both the sides and after
hearing them issued an Award in favour of the claimants in the sum of Rs.
1,77,000/- (Rs. One Lac Seventy Seven thousand Only) in all heads. While
recording the aforesaid findings, the tribunal, however, exonerated the
Insurance Company on the ground of violation of the terms of policy known
as ‘Farmer’s Package Insurance® but was directed on the principles of “pay
and recover” to satisfy the awarded amount and then recover the same from
the owner of the offending vehicle. Being aggrieved, the Insurance Company -
has submitted the present appeal. :

(4)  Learned counsel appearing for the appellant- Insurance Company
submitted that the deceased had travelled as a passenger in the vehicle, which
is in violation of the provisions of Section 147(b)(1) of the Motor vehicles
Act and the learned tribunal in this manner has rightly chosen to consider the
submissions put forth while fixing liability on the part of the owner of the
vehicle. '

(5)  Leamed counsel further submitted that the principle of 'pay and recover’
will arise only in the circumstances where the Insurance Company is successful
in its defence available to them under section 149. If there is any statutory
violation under section 147 by allowing a person to travel in a vehicle as an
unauthorised passenger, then absolutely there is no contract between the insured
and the insurer to pay the amount. It is the submission of the learned counsel
that in this case, the owner of the vehicle, by permitting the deceased to travel
in the vehicle as an un-authorised passenger has committed statutory violation.
Therefore, under section 147(b)(1) of the Motor Vehicles Act, the Insurance
Company cannot be held responsible to pay the compensation and the doctrine
of 'pay and recover’ does not arise in the cases.of statutory violation.

(6)  Further submission put forth on behalf of the appellant is that except
the offending tractor, no other attachment parts such as trolley or agriculturat
implements were insured vide insurance policy (Ex.D/1). It is submitted that
at the time of accident, the offending tractor and attached trolley were used
for transporting the stone flooring chips while carrying the persons for
commercial purposes. No additional premium for carrying such persons or
workers for agricultural purpose was paid by the owner and so the offending
vehicle was driven in utter violation of the terms and conditions of specified
insurance policy. Under these circumstances, itis prayed that the finding of
the Tribunal on the principle of 'pay and recover' is not legally sustainable and
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is liable to be set aside by allowing the present appeal.

(7)  Per contra, learned counsel appearing for the claimants/respondent
No. I to 3 submitted that as on date, there is an Award in favour of the
claimants by the Tribunal. When there is an award in favour of the claimants
by the Tribunal, under section 149, the Insurer shall pay to the personentitled
to the benefit of the decree and even if there is any violation, the appellant,
after paying the amount to the claimants, can recover the same from the owner
ofthe vehicle. He accordingly prayed for early payment of the awarded amount
to the claimants in accordance with law. :

(8) The respbndents No. 4 and 5, i.e., owner and driver of the offending
vehicle, on the other hand, submitted that the vehicle was at the time of accident
was used for agricultural purposes for transporting the stone flooring chips for
construction of boundaries of agricultural field and the persons were hired as
masonry labourers on the trolley. Hence, according to them, the tractor-trolley
was being driven within the sphere of the insurance policy and in such
circumstances, the Insurance Company was fully responsible for satisfaction
of the award passed in favour of the claimants by the tribunal. On the aforesaid
pleadings as well as grounds, it is prayed that the appeal may be dismissed.

(9) Heard the learned counsel for the parties and perused the materials.

(10)  Inview of the submissions made by the learned counsel on either side,
now the question that arises for consideration is :-

“Whether the learned tribunal has any statutory power to direct
insurer to pay amount of compensation for which it is
exonerated from liability in view of fundamental breach of the
policy conditions, and direct that it may be subsequently
recovered from the insured ?”

(11)  Before discussing the issue with regard to the doctrine of 'pay and
recover, it could be appropriate to extract the relevant provisions of the Motor
Vehicles Act.

“S.147. Requirements of policies and limits of liability:-
(1) In order to comply with the requirements of this Chapter, a
policy of insurance must be a policy which-

(a) is issued by a person who is an authorised insurer; and
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(b) insures the person or classes of persons specified in the -

policy to the extent specified in sub-section (2) -

(i) against any liability which may be incurred by him in respect
of the death of or bodlily injury to any person including, owner
of the goods or his authorised representative carried in the
vehicle or damage to any property of a third party caused by
or arising out of the use of the vehicle ina public place.”

“149. Duty of insurers to satisfy judgments and awards

- against persons insured in respect of third party risks.

(1) If, after a certificate of insurance has been issued under
sub-section (3) of Section 147 in favour of the person by whom
a policy has been effected, judgment or award in respect of
any such liability as is required to be covered by a policy under
clause (b) of sub-section (1) of Section 147 (being a liability
covered by the terms of the policy) or under the provisions of
section 163-A is obtained against any person insured by the
policy then, notwithstanding that the insurer may be entitled to
avoid or cancel or may have avoided or cancelled the policy,
the insurer shall, subject to the provisions of this section, pay

* to the person entitied to the benefit of the decree any sum not

exceeding the sum assured pajyable thereunder, as if he were
the judgment debtor, in respect of the liability, together with
any amount payable in respect of costs and any sum payable
in respect of interest on that sum by virtue of any enactment
relating to interest on judgment. (2) No sum shall be payable
by an insurer under sub-section (1) in respect of any judgment
or award unless, before the commencement of the proceedings
in which the judgment or award is given the insurer had notice
through the Court or, as the case may be the Claims Tribunal
of the bringing of the proceedings, or in respect of such
judgment or award so long as execution is stayed thereon
pending an appeal; and an insurer to whom notice of the
bringing of any such proceedings is so given shall be entitled
to be made a party thereto and to defend the action on any of
the following grounds, namely;-

(a) that there has been a breach of a specified condition of the
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policy, being one of the following conditions, namely:-
(i) a condition excluding the use of the vehicle--

(a) for hire or reward, where the vehicle is on the date of the
contract of insurance a vehicle not covered by a permit to ply
for hire or reward, or

(b) for organized racing and speed testing, or

(c) for a purpose not allowed by the permit under which the
vehicle is used, where the vehicle is a transport vehicle, or

(d) without side-car being attached where the vehicle is a motor
cycle; or

(if) a condition excluding driving by a named person or persons
or by any person who is not duly licensed, or by any person
who has been disqualified for holding or obtaining a driving
licence during the period of disqualification; or

(iii) a condition excluding liability for injury caused or
contributed to by conditions of war, civil war, riot or civil
commotion; or

(b) that the policy is void on the ground that it was obtained by
the non-disclosure of a material fact or by a representation of
fact which was false is some material particular.

(4) Where a certificate of insurance has been issued under
sub-scction (3) of Section 147 to the person by whom a policy
has been effected, so much of the policy as purports to restrict
the insurance of the persons insured thereby by reference to
any conditions other than those in clause (b) of sub-section
(2) shall, as respects such liabilities as are required to be
covered by a policy under clause (b) of sub-section (1) of
Section 147, be of no effect: Provided that any sum paid by
the insurer in or towards the discharge of any liability of any
person which is covered by the policy by virtue only of this
sub-section shall be recoverable by the insurer from that
person.
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(5) If the amount which an insurer becomes liable under this
section to pay in respect of a liability incurred by a person

_ insured by a policy exceeds the amount for which the insurer

would apart from the provisions of this sectionbe liable under
the policy in respect of that liability, the insurer shall be entitled
to recover the excess from that person.”
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In National Insurance Co. Ltd. Vs. Chinnmma (AiR 2004 SC
4338), the Hon. Apex Court has observed as follows :-

“There is nothing on records to show that the owner of the
tractor had produced any insurance cover in respect of the
trolley. It is furthermore not disputed that the tractor was
insured only for the purpose of carrying out agricultural works.
The representative of the Insurance Company Mr. Hari Singh
Meena on cross-examination merely accepted the suggestion

. that cutting the earth and levelling the field with earth would

be an agricultural work but respondent No.1 himself

categorically stated in his claim petition before the Tribunal

stating that the earth had been dug and was being carried in
the trolley to the brick-kiln. Evidently the earth was meant to
be used only for the purpose of manufacturing bricks. Digging
of earth for the purpose of manufacture of brick-kiln
indisputably cannot amount to carrying out of the agricultural
work. On above facts Apex court considered the above facts
and observed as follows :- -

16.  Furthermore, a tractor is not even a goods carriage.
The "goods carriage” has been defined in Section 2(14) to
mean "any motor vehicle constructed or adapted for use solely
for the carriage of goods, or any motor vehicle not so
constructed or adapted when used for the carriage of goods”
whereas "tractor” has been defined in Section 2(44) to mean
"a motor vehicle which is not itself constructed to carry any
Joad (other than equipment used for the purpose of propulsion);
but excludes a road-roller". The "trailer” has been defined in
Section 2(46) to mean "any vehicle, other than a semi-trailer
and a side-car, drawn or intended to be drawn by a motor
vehicle.”
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“17. A tractor fitted with a trailer may or may not answer
the definition of goods carriage contained in Section 2(14) of
the Motor Vehicles Act. The tractor was meant to be used for
agricultural purposes. The trailer attached to the tractor, thus,
necessarily is required to be used for agricultural purpose,
unless registered otherwise. It may be, as has been contended

- by Mrs. K. Sharda Devi, that carriage of vegetables being
agricultural produce would lead to an inference that the tractor
was being used for agricultural purposes but the same by itself
would not be construed to mean that the tractor and trailer
can be used for carriage of goods by another person for his
business activities. The deccased was a businessman. He used
to deal in vegetables. After he purchased the vegetables, he
was to transport the same to market for the purpose of sale
thereof and not for any agricultural purpose. The tractor and
trailer, therefore, were not being used for agricultural purposes.
However, even if it be assumed that the trailer would answer
the description of the "goods carriage” as contained in Section
2(14) of the Motor Vehicles Act, the case would be coveréd
by the decisions of this Court in Asha Rani (supra) and other
decisions following the same, as the accident had taken place
on24.11.1991, i.e., much prior to coming into force of 1994
amendment.

(13)  InOriental Insurance Co. Ltd. Vs, Brij Mohan (AIR 2007 SC 1971),
itis observed as follows :-

10.  Furthermore, respondent was not the owner of the tractor. He
was also not the driver thereof. He was merely a passenger
travelling on the trolley attached to the tractor. His claim
petition, therefore, could not have been allowed in view of the

“decision of this Court in New India Assurance Co. Ltd. v
Asha Rani and Ors. [(2003) 2 SCC 223] wherein the earlier
decision of this Court in New India Assurance Co. v, Satpal
Singh [(2000) 1 SCC 237] was overruled. In 4sha Rani
(supra) it was, inter alia, held :-

"25. Section 147 of the 1988 Act, inter alia, prescribes
compulsory coverage against the death of or bodily injury to
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(14)

any passenger of "public service vehicle". Proviso appended
thereto categorically states that compulsory coverage in respect
of drivers and conductors of public service vehicle and
employees carried in a goods vehicle would be limited to the
liability under the Workmen Compensation Act. It does not
speak of any passenger ina "goods carriage”. '

26. In view of the changes in the relevant provisions in the
1988 Act vis-a-vis the 1939 Act, we are of the opinion that
the meaning of the words "any person" must also be attributed
having regard to the context in which they have been used i.e.
"a third party". Keeping in view the provisions of the 1988
Act, we are of the opinion that as the provisions thereof do
not enjoin any statutory liability on the owner of a vehicle to
get his vehicle insured for any passenger travelling in a goods
vehicle, the insurers would not be liable therefor.

27. Furthermore, sub-clause (i) of clause (b) of sub-section
(1) of Section 147 speaks of liability which may be incurred
by the owner of a vehicle in respect of death of or bodily
injury to any person or damage to any property of a third party
caused by or arising out of the use of the vehicle in a public
place, whereas sub-clause (ii) thereof deals with liability which
may be incurred by the owner of a vehicle against the death of
or bodily injury to any passenger of a public service vehicle
caused by or arising out of the use of the vehicle in a public
place.”

In National Insurance Co. Ltd. v. Baljit Kaur (AIR 2004 SC

the Hon. Apex Court court observed as follows:-

“20. It is, therefore, manifest that in spite of the amendment of
1994, the effect of the provision contained in S. 147 with
respect to persons other than the owner of the goods or his
authorised representative remains the same. Although the owner
of the goods or his authorised representative would now be
covered by the policy of insurance in respect of a goods
vehicle, it was not the intention of the Legislature to provide
for the liability of the insurer with respect to passengers,
especially ‘gratuitous passengers, who were neither
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contemplated at the time the contract of insurance was entered
into, nor any premium was paid to the extent of the benefit of
insurance to such category of people.

21,  The upshot of the aforementioned discussions is that
instead and in place of the insurer the owner of the vehicle
shall be liable to satisfy the decree. The question, however,
would be as to whether keeping in view the fact that the law-
was not clear so long such a direction would be fair and
equitable. We do not think so. We, therefore, clarify the legal
position which shall have prospective effect. The Tribunal as
also the High Court had proceeded in terms of the decisions
of this Court in Satpal Singh (supra). The said decision has
been overruled only in Asha Rani (supra). We, therefore, are
of the opinion that the interest of justice will be subserved if
the appellant herein is directed to satisfy the awarded amount
in favour of the claimant if not already satisfied and recover
the same from the owner of the vehicle. For the purpose of
such recovery, it would not be necessary for the insurer to file
a separate suit but it may initiate a proceeding before the
executing Court as if the dispute between the insurer and the
owner was the subject-matter of determination before the
Tribunal and the issue is decided against the owner and in favour
of the insurer. We have issued the aforementioned directions
having regard to the scope and purport of S. 168 of the Motor
Vehicles Act, 1988 in terms whereof it is not only entitled to
determine the amount of claim as put forth by the claimant for
recovery thereof from the insurer, owner or driver of the vehicle
jointly or severally but also the dispute between the insurer on
the one hand and the owner or driver of the vehicle involved in
the accident inasmuch as can be resolved by the Tribunal in
such a proceeding.”

(15) In National Insurance Co. Ltd Vs. Prembai Patel (AIR 2005 SC
2337), it is observed as follows :- :

~“The insurance policy being in the nature of a contract, it is
permissible for an owner to take such a policy whereunder the
entire liability in respect of the death of or bodily injury to any
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such employee as is described in sub-clauses () or (b) or (¢)-
of proviso (i) to Section 147(1)(b) may be fastened upon the

insurance company and insurance company may become liable

to satisfy the entire award. However, for this purpose the owner .
must take a policy of that particular kind for which he may be

required to pay additional premium and the policy must clearly

show that the liability of the insurance company in case of
death of or bodily injury to the aforesaid kind of employees is

not restricted to that provided under the Workmen's Act and

is either more or unlimited depending upon the quantum of
premium paid and the terms of the policy.

It is thus clear that in case the owner of the vehicle
wants the liability of the insurance company in respect of death
of or bodily injury to any such employee as is described in
clauses (a) or (b) or (c) of proviso (i) to Section 147(1) (b)
should not be restricted to that under the Workmen's Act but
should be more or unlimited, he must take such a policy by
making payment of extra premium and the policy should also
contain a clause to that effect. However, where the policy
mentions "a policy for Act Liability" or "Act Liability", the
liability of the insurance company qua the employees as
aforesaid would not be unlimited but would be limited to that
arising under the Workmen's Act. ST

- (16) In the case of Bhav Singh Vs. Savirani & another 2008 ACJ 1043
Full bench of this court observes as follows :-

“10., Sub Section (5) of Section 147 of the Act, however
provides that notwithstanding anything contained inany law
for the time being in force, an insurer issuing a policy of
insurance under Section 147 of the Act shall be liable to
indemnify a person or classes of persons specified in the policy
in respect of any liability which the policy purports to cover in
‘the case of that person or classes of persons. Thus if the policy
of insurance covers any liability in addition to the Liability under
Section 147 (1) of the Act , the insurer will be liability to
indemnify the insured in case of any liability not because ofthe
provisions of sub section (1) of section 147 but because of
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the terms and conditions of contract of insurance between the -

- insurer and the insured. Therefore, if the contract of insurance
provides for a liability to a passenger or to an employee other
than the liabilities provided under sub section 1) ofthe Section .
147 of the Act, the insurer would be liable to indemnify the
insured against such Lability.”

(17)  Recently, inS. M. Sharmila Vs. National Insurance Company (2012)
2 8CC 770, the Hon. Apex Court considered where the appellant, the owner
- of vehicle and her workman were travélling in the offending vehicle. The
workman claimed compensation contending that gccidéht arose out of and in
- course of employment. So, liability was fixed on respondent insurance company.
In appeal High Court concluded that vehicle involved in accident was not
insured with the insurer on the date of accident and fixed the liability on the
owner of the vehicle, which was held to be justified.

(18) A reading of the above judgments would show that only in a case,
where the Insurance Company is successful in its defence under section 149,
it may yet be required to pay the amount to the claimant and thereafter, it may
recover from the owner of the vehicle. When the insurance company is not
statutorily required to cover the liability in respect of a passenger in a vehigle
under section 147 unless such passengers is the owner or agent of the owner.
of the goods accompanying such goods absolutely there is no need for the
Insurance Company to pay compensation since there is no contractual liability
" under the statute to pay the amount to the gratuitous passenger travelling in
the goods carriage vehicle. Under such circumstances, in the opinion of this
court, a direction could not be given to the Insurance Company to pay to the
claimants and recover from the owner of the vehicle. '

(19)  Thus, from an analysis of the statutory provisions as explained by Hon.
.Supreme Court in various decisions rendered from time to time, the following
picture emerges :

(i} The Insurance Policy is rcquired.‘to cover the liability
envisages under Section 147, but wider risk can always be
undertaken.

(i) Section 149 envisages the defences which are open to the
[nsurance Company. Where the Insurance Company is not
successful in its defence, obviously it is required to satisfy the
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decree and the award. Where it is successful in its defence, 1t
may yet be required to pay the amount to the claimant and

thereafter recover the same from the owner under such -

circumstance envisaged and enumcrated in Sectlon 149(4) and
Section 149(5).

(iti) Under Sectlon 147 the Insurance Company is not
statutorily required to cover the liability in respect of a
passenger in a goods vehicle unless such passenger is the

owner or agent of the owner of the goods accompanying such

goods in the concerned goods vehicle.

(iv) Since there is no statutory requirement to cover the liability
in respect of a passenger in a goods vehicle, the principle of
'pay and recover’, as statutorily recognised in Section 149(4)
and Section 149(5), is not applicable ipso facto to such cases
and, therefore, ordinarily the Court is not expected to issue

.such 4 direction to the Insurance Company to pay to the

claimant and thereafter recover from thc OWner.

(v) Where, by relymg upon the decision of Hon Supreme Court

in Satpal Singh's case, either expressly or even by implication, -

there has been a direction by the Trial Court to the Insurance
Company to pay, the appellate court is obviously required to
consider as to whether such direction should be set aside in its
entirety and the liability should be fastened only on the driver
and the owner or whether the Insurance Company should be
directed to comply with the direction regarding payment to
the claimant and recover thereafter from the owner.

(vi) No such direction can be issued by any trial court to the
Insurance Company to pay and recover relating to liability in
respect of a passenger travelling in a goods vehicle after the

~ decision in Baljit Kaur's case merely because the date of

accident was before such decision. The date of the acc\:\ldent is

trial court is expected to decide contrary to such decision.

(vii) Where, however, the matter has already been decided by
the trial court before the decision in Baljit Kaur's case, it would

. 1683
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be in the discretion of the appellate court, depending upon the
facts and circumstances of the case, whether the doctrine of
'pay and recover' should be applied or as to whether the
claimant would be left to recover the amount from the person
liable, i.e., the driver or the owner, as the case may be.

A

(20)  Now, turning to the case at hand, on perusal ofithe record, it appears '
that the offending vehicle “tractor” was insured by the insured vide insurance
policy Ex.D/1 (Cover-note) under ‘Farmer’s package Insurance’ but no
documents relating to the insurance of the attachments like trolley or any terms
or conditions of the insurance in relation therewith are placed on record. The
cover note (Ex.D/1) contained in the record indicates that a lump sum premium

amount of Rs. 5919/- was paid for the period during 31st January 2006 to'

30th January 2007. So, upon carefully going through the pleadings vis-a-vis
evidence on record, it is gathered that Jagannath, son of Kishore, husband of
deceased appeared as AW-1 before the tribunal. He deposed that at the time

of accident, the stone floor chips were loaded and carried for the purpose of

construction of the boundary of agriculture field and the persons travelling in
the offending vehicle were going for the labour work. The record of the case
clearly shows that no premium was recéived in respect of any non-fare paying
non-employees. Witness Jagannath (AW-1) also admitted in his evidence that
neither he nor his wife had paid any charges for travelling in the tractor. The
Insurance Company is bound to compensate but where owner of the vehicle
or others are proposed to be covered, an additional premium is required to
be paid for covering their life and property. So far as this case is concerned,
there is a statutory violation under section 147 of the Act. Therefore, following
the principles laid down in Baljit Kaur's case (supra), this court is of the view
that the Insurance Company is not liable to pay compensation. When there is
no statutory liability to pay compensation by the Insurance Company to the
deceased who had travelled as an un-authorised passenger in the vehicle, the
Insurance Company cannot be directed to pay the compensation amount and
recover the same from the owner of the vehicle.

(21)  Therefore, this court has no hesitation to hold that there is an excess
of jurisdiction by the learned tribunal. In the light of the decisions of the Hon.
Supreme Court on the issue, the direction of the Tribunal fastening the Liability
on the appellant-Insurance Company to pay compensation and to recover the
same from the owner is liable to be set aside and accordingly set aside.

]

»
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(22) - Forthereasons stated above, the miscellaneous appeal stands hereby
allowed. The respondents No. 4 and 5 are directed to make the payment of
the amount of award to the claimants alongwith interest @ 6% per annum
from the date of filing of claim petition, else the amount shall carry penal
interest @ 9% per annum. :

No costs. A
Appeal allowed.
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APPELLATE CIVIL
Before Mr. Justice M.K. Mudgal
F.A.No. 149/2001 (Gwalior) decided on 23 July, 2013

RAM PRASAD , ... Appellant
Vs.
RAJENDRA SINGH & ors. : A ... Respondents

A, Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Section 11 - Res
judicata - It is necessary that the matter should be finally heard and
decided by a competent court. (Para7)
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B. Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 23 Rule 1(4} - Suit
filed by plaintifffor declaration of title/share and injunction, was withdrawn
in Lok Adalat without seeking permission for filing a suit - Subsequent
suit shall be precluded on the same cause of action. (Para8)
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Case refer_red :
2000(11) MPWN 31.

R.P. Gupta, for the appellant.
None for the respondents.
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JUDGMENT

.~ MK.Mup6aL, J. :- The appellant/plaintiffhas filed the appeal under
Section 96 of the Civil Procedure Code, being aggrieved by the Jjudgment and
decree dated 12.4.2001 passed by the Court of Additional District Judge,
Gohad District Bhind in Civil Suit No.11A/2000, dismissing the suit for
declaration of title permanent injunction and cancellation of sale deed dated
5.4.2000 executed by Shyam Lal in favour of defendant No.1 Rajendra Singh.
In this appeal plaintiff is referred as appellant and defendants as respondents.

2 The admitted facts are that the plaintiff Ramprasad and defendants
No.1 Rajendra Singh, defendant No.2 Ram Lakhan are real brothers and
defendant No.3 Smt. Panchobai is the mother, and Shyam Lal was the father
of them. The disputed agricultural land was recorded in the name of Shyam
Lal as Bhoomiswami. Earlier the plaintiff filed a suit No.8 A/86 for declaration
of title to % share in the disputed agricultural land and permanent injunction
before the Court of Additional District Judge, Gohad against his father Shyam
Lal stating that the disputed agriculture land is ancestral property. His father
inherited the disputed property from his father. The said suit was withdrawn
"vide order dated 22.3.1987 in Lok Adalat. After dismissal of the suit the
father of the plaintiff Shyam Lal executed a sale deed dated 5.4.2000 in favour .
of his son Rajendra Singh defendant No.1. :

3. Factsinbriefofthe plaint are that, the disputed agricultural land is the
ancestral property of plaintiff and the father Shyam Lal who inherited the
disputed agricultural land from his father, thus the plaintiff has % share in the
disputed land being ancestral property. Shyam Lal has no right to sale the
entire disputed agricultural land to defendant No.1. Hence, suit for the relief
as stated earlier was filed on 9.5.2000 against the defendants.

4. The defendants have filed an objection under Order 7 Rule 11 of the
{Civil Procedure Code before the trial Court, stating that the suit filed by the
plaintiff was not maintainable, as the earlier suit filed by him was dismissed
vide order dated 22.3.1987 as withdrawn. Hence, the earlier order dismissing
the suit has the effect of res-judicata. That objection was decided by the
impugned order dated 11.4.2001 and the suit was dismissed holding that suit
filed by the plaintiff is barred by res-judicata under Section 11 of Civil
" Procedure Code.

5. " Learned counsel for the appellant submits that the impugned order
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- passed by the leamed trial Court is contrary to the provision of law as the

earlier suit No. 8 A/86 was not finally heard and decided on merits. The said
suit was withdrawn by the plaintiff/ appeéllant on the basis of compromise.
Hence, the suit ought to have not been dismissed by the learned trial Court by
the impugned order. Learned counsel requests that the impugned order be set
aside and case be remanded back for fresh disposal as per provisions of law.

6. No one is appearing on behalf of the respondents to pursue the appcal
Arguments of the appellant's counsel were considered.

7. On perusal of the record of the trial Court, it is indisputably clear that
the former suit No.08 A/86 filed by the plaintiff/ appellant for the same relief

. as stated by him in the instant suit No.11A/2000. The plaintiff filed earlier suit

for declaration of title to V4 share in the disputed agricultural Jand against his
father Shyam Lal. The said suit was withdrawn vide order dated 22.3.87 by
the appellant/ plaintiff before Lok Adalat without seeking permission for filing
a fresh suit on the same cause of action. It is true that the suit 8A/86 was not
decided on merits by the trial Court. For application of Section 11 of the Civil

; Procedure Code, it is necessary that the matter should be finally heard and
decided by a competent Court. Hence, the opinion of the trial Court for

application of res-judicata in this case is not proper as per the provision of
Section 11 of the Civil Procedure Code which is an under - :

“11. Res judicata.-No Court shall try any suit or issue in which
the matter directly and substantially in issue has been directly
and substantially in issue in a former suit between the same
parties, or between parties under whom they or any of them
claim, litigating under the same title, in a Court competent to
try such subsequent suit or the suit in which such issue has
been subsequently raised, and has been heard and finally
decided by such Court.

Explanation 1.-The expression “former suit” shall denote a suit
which has been decided prior to the suit in question whether
or not it was instituted prior thereto.”

However, the suit filed by the plaintiff was not maintainable. It was
barred by Sub Rule 4 of Rule 1 of Order 23 of Civil Procedure Code. The
provision of the aforesald rule is as under: :

Withdrawal of suit or abandonment of part of claJm
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2.....
3.

| 4. Where the plaintiff -
(a})  abandons any suit or part of claim under sub- rule (1)
or : .

(b)  withdraws from a suit or part of claim without the
permission referred to in sub-rule (3), he shall be liable for
such costs as the Court may award and shall be precluded
from instituting any fresh suit in respect of such subject-matter
or such part of the claim.

8. On perusal of the said provision, it becomes clear that the suit filed by
the plaintiffis precluded by the provision of Sub Rule 4 Rule 1 of Order 23 of
Civil Procedure Code, as former suit was withdrawn by the plaintiff without
seeking permission for filing a suit for the same cause of action relating to the
same subject matter where the suit is withdrawn without seeking permission
the subsequent suit shall be precluded on the same cause of action. As held in
2000 (II) MPWN 31, Dayachand v. Kesarbai.

9. It is correct that the former suit was filed by the plaintiff against his
father and the instant suit has been filed against his brother defendant No.1
but the status of defendant No.1 would be the same as that of his father
because the defendant No. 1 has purchased the disputed land from the deceased
father Shyam Lal. The defendant No.1 being transferee of the property has
stepped in the shoes of his father. Hence, the plaintiff cannot claimed that the
parties of both the suit are not same.

10.  Therefore, it is concluded that the suit filed by the plaintiff was not
maintainable. Hence, the lower Court has not committed any mistake in
dismissing the suit. Accordingly, the appeal has no substance and is hereby
dismissed.

No order as to the cost.

Appeal dismissed.
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L.L.R. [2013] M.P., 1689
APPELLATE CIVIL
: Before Mr. Justice M.K. Mudgal
F.A.No.51/2003 (Gwallor) decided on 24 July, 2013

KALURAM AGARWAL ... Appellant
Vs. . -
DINESH KUMAR & ors. ' ... Respondents

A Spec:f ic Relief Act, I 963 (47 of 1 963), Sectton 16(c) -
Readiness & Willingness - Plaintiff compelling defendant for closing
of windows and ventilators and making partition wall, which was not a
part of the contract - Held - The plaintiff was not ready & willing for
getting sale deed executed in his favour and he himself was avoiding
to perform the agreement by imposing arbitrary conditions.

(Paras 25,26 & 27)
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B. Specific Relief Act, 1963 (47 of 1963), Section 22 -
Refund of earnest money - Earnest money for part consideration of the
contract and mentioned as such in the contract - No clause forfeit for
earnest money made in the contract -The defendant has a duty to refund
it to the plaintiff with interest. (Para 28)
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C. Specific Relief Act, 1963 (47 of 1963), Section 20 -

. Specific performance of contract - The plaintiff himself was avoiding

the performance of the contract - He unnecessarily burdened the
defendant with conditions, not a part of the contract before execution
of sale deed - The trial court committed no mistake in refusing the
decree for performance of contract. - (Para 27)
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Case referred : . !

(2008) 8 SCC 511, (2001) 10 SCC 619, 2002(3) MPHT 414, (2008)
5 SCC 676, (2006) 12 SCC 146, (2012) 8 SCC 659, (2004) 8 SCC 689,
(1997) 2 SCC 200, 2001 SC 2783, 2003 (11) SCC 17.

Nandita Dubey, for the appellant.
Manoj Gupta, for the respondent No. 1.
Arvind Dwivedi, for the respondents No.2 & 3.

JUDGMENT

M.K. MupgaL, J. :- By this common judgment both the appeals
No. 51/03 filed by the plaintiff, Kaluram and appeal No. 89/03 filed by the

defendant No. 1, Dinesh Kumar Agarwal, arising out of the same judgment

dated 11/11/2002 passed by the Court of 3rd Additional District Judge, Gwalior
in Civil Suit No. 47A/95 filed by the plaintiff are being decided.

2. The said suit has been partly decreed in favour of the plaintiff for

recovery of Rs. 10,000/ along with compound interest @ 12% per annum

dismissing the suit of specific performance of the contract against which the
-appeal No. 51/03 has been filed.

3.  Appeal No. 89/03 has been filed by Dinesh Kumar Agarwal, being
aggrieved by the finding of the impugned judgment and decree regarding
recovery of Rs. 10,000/- along with the compound interest from him.

4. The undisputed facts are that the disputed.house No. 7-A described
in para 1 & 2 of the plaint owned by the defendant No. 1, Dinesh Kumar
Agarwal who executed an agreement to sell the disputed house on 26/12/1992
to the plaintiff for consideration of Rs. 1,95,000/- and sum of Rs. 10,000/-
was received by him as advance vide Account Payee Cheque dated
26/12/1992. 1t is also an undisputed fact that as per terms and conditions of
the said agreement the permission under Section 26 of the Urban Land Ceiling
Act, 1976 for the sale of the property was to be obtained by the vendor at his
own cost. The vendor would execute the sale deed of the property in favour
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of the vendee or in the name of third party within three days from the date of -
permission for sale. If the permission for sale under the Urban Land Ceiling
. Act wasreceived early within the time limit for execution of the sale deed and
the period of registration of sale deed would be sixty days from the date of .
agreement. The actual possession of the house would be delivered by the
vendee at the time of registration after due measurement.

5. From para 5 and 6 of the plaintiff Kalu Ram's (PW1) statement and
para 4, 5 and 6 of the defendant Dinesh Kumar's (DW1) statement and para
1,3 and 4 of the defendant Ram Babu Goyal's (DW3) statement, it has
undisputedly come on record that before contracting to sell the disputed
property on 26/12/1992 by the defendant No. 1 Dinesh Kumar Agarwal to
the plaintiff, the defendant No. 1, Dinesh Kumar Agarwal had agreed to sell
the entire house to the defendant No. 2 Smt. Shushila wife of plaintiff's younger
brother Ram Babu Agarwal, defendant No. 3 for consideration of Rs.
5,75,000/- and executed a document of agreement for sale Ex.P-13. When
the defendant No. 2 and 3 were unable to get the sale deed executed in their
favour in the stipulated time, the contract for sale Ex. P-1 was made in favour
of plaintiff with the consent of the defendant No. 2 and 3 for selling to him the
half portion of the house. The sale deed dated 19/09/1993 Ex. P-10 was
executed by the defendant No. 1 in favour of defendant No. 2.

6. In brief, facts of the plaint are that the plaintiff had been ready and
willing to perform the contract as per terms and conditions of the contract Ex.
P-1. The plaintiff has further pleaded that in furtherance of agreement of sale
he applied for loan of Rs. 1,85,000/- for paying the remaining part of the
consideration which was sanctioned on 10/01/1993 by his employer, the Dena
Bank and pay order bearing No. 3299/147 dated 13/03/1993 was also issued
for the sum of Rs. 1,85,000/- in favour of the defendant. The plaintiff gave a
notice dated 04/04/1993 Ex. P-7 to the defendant to get the registered sale
deed executed in his favour in respect of the disputed property at his expenses.
However, the defendant did not perform the contract. On the other hand, the
defendant No. 1 had executed the sale deed dated 19/09/1993 in favour of
the defendant No. 2 who had full knowledge of'the existence of sale agreement
dated 26/12/1992 in favour of the plaintiff. In view, of the facts the plaintiff
filed a suit for specific performance of the contract.

7. Defendant No. 1 denying the allegations of the plaint has submitted
that he had been always ready and willing to perform the contract. After
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obtaining the permission under the Urban Land Ceiling Act he requested the
plaintiff time and again for performance of the contract and also gave anotice
to him for the same. Nonetheless the plaintiff raised some objections and did
not get the contract executed. The defendant No. 1 has further picaded that
after cancellation of the said contract he executed a sale deed in favour of the
defendant No. 2 who is wife of plaintiff's younger brother, defendant No. 3
and further has added that he had not committed any breach in performance
of the contract. The trial Court has committed the mistake decreeing the suit
for payment of money along with compound interest.

8. . Defendants No. 2 and 3 also denying the allegations made in the plamt
have submitted that they are bonafide purchaser. They have further pleaded
that plaintiff was not ready for getting the sale deed executed in his favour
from the defendant No. 1 and so defendant No. 1 Dinesh Kumar Agarwal
canceled the agreement for sale executed in favour of the plaintiff. Thereafter,
defendant No. 2 purchased the disputed house after paying the agreed
consideration to the defendant No. 1. They have further submitted that
defendant No. 2 purchasing the house secured its possession given from the
defendant No. 1.

9. Leamed Trial Court after framing issues and after recording the evidence
of both the parties and having discussed the evidence has dismissed the suit
for specific performance of the contract Ex. P-1 and only decreed the suit for
payment of Rs. 10,000/- with compound interest as stated earlier.

10.  The following issues crop up for consideration in this appeal:-

(@ Whether, the plaintiff had been ready and willing to
perform the contract of sale Ex. P-1.

(i) Whether the suit decreed regarding the payment of Rs.
10,000/~ along with compound interest is not based on proper
reasonings.

11.  The appellant has filed an application [.A. N0.8201/10 under order
41 rule 27 of the C.P.C. for taking an additional evidence on record a photo
copy of bank draft dated 13/03/1993 issued by Dena Bank, Gwalior in favour
of defendant No. 1for payment to the same as part consideration of the contract
Ex.P-1. Learned counsel for the appellant placing reliance on the judgment
North Eastern Railway Vs. dead Bhagwan Das by his LR's (2008) 8 SCC
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511, State of Rajasthan Vs. T. N. Sahani & ors. (2001) 10 SCC 619 and
Nawab Saheb Vs. Firoz Ahmed 2002(3) MPHT 414 has submitted that the
additional evidence at the appellate stage may be taken on record. Considering
the facts stated in the application and perusing the cited judgments the
application is allowed and the document is taken on record.

12, Assailing the findings recorded by the trial Court the learned counsel
Smt. Nandita Dube for the appellant submits that the plaintiff had successfully
proved his readiness and willingness for performing the contract of sale Ex.
P-1but the learned Trial Court has erred in giving findings against the plaintiff
and further adds that the plaintiff after having received the sanction from Dena
Bank, Gwalior for grant of loan of Rs. 1,85,000/- sent an information to the
same effect to the defendant No. 1 vide notice Ex. P-7 dated 04/04/1993
and requested him to execute the sale deed in his favour as per terms and
conditions of the contract Ex. P-1 but the defendant Dinesh Kumar did not
-.do so. Besides, the defendant No. 1 had to seek the permission for sale from
the Urban Land Ceiling Department and inform the plaintiff for executing the
sale deed’inhis favour even though he failed to perform his part of the contract.
The counsel placing reliance on the following judgments has submitted that
the impugned judgment and decree be set aside and suit be decreed in favour
of the plaintiff. The judgments are as follows:-

@) Dead Rameshwar Prasad by LR's Vs. Basanti Lal
(2008) 5 SCC 676.

(i) Faquir Chand & another'Vs. Sudesh Kumari (2006)
12 SCC 146.

@)  Since deceased Rattan Lal through his LR's Vs S.
N. Bhalla & ors (2012) 8 SCC 659.

(iv)  Smt. Swarnam Ramachandran & another vs.
Aravacode Chakungal Jayapalan (2004)8 SCC 689,

(v)  Sukhbir Singh & ors. Vs. Brij Pal Singh & ors.
(1997) 2 SCC 200.

13. Combating the submissions made on behalf of the appellant, the learned
counsel Shri Manoj Gupta for the respondent No. 1 submits that the findings
 recorded by the learned Trial Court dismissing the suit for specific performance
-of the contract are based on proper and cogent reasons as the defendant No.
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1 after getting the permission Ex D-1 from the concerned department gave
the notice, Ex.D-2A along with the copy of the Ex. D-1 to the plaintiff and
requested him to get the sale deed executed in his favour but the plaintiff had
no money for its execution. The counsel further pleads in his submissions that
the defendant was ready and willing to perform the contract and he was not at
 fault. The learned Trial Court seems to have committed the mistake in passing
the decree as regards payment of Rs. 10,000/- with compound interest thereon.

14.  The learned counsel, Arvind Dwivedi for respondents No. 2 and 3
submits that the defendant No. 2 is a bonafide purchaser. After the plaintiff's
failure to get the sale deed executed in his favour, the defendant No. 1, canceled
the contract Ex P-1 and thereafter defendant No. 2 got the sale deed executed
in her favour after paying the full consideration to the defendant No. 1. The
counsel, therefore, argues that there is no proper reason for the interference
in the findings of the Trial Court.

15.  The submissions made by both the parties were considered.

16.  The execution of agreement to sell Ex. P-1 dated 26/12/92 is not
disputed. The main terms and conditions to be complied by the plaintiff and
defendant No. 1 are as follow:-

(i) The defendant No. 1 was required to seek permission
under section 26 of the Urban Land Ceiling Act for
selling the disputed property and intimate to the plaintiff
for execution of the sale deed.

(i) The plaintiffhad to get the sale deed executed in three
days after obtaining the permission and if the permission
was not receli{/ed at the earliest the period for execution
of the contract would be sixty days.

(T? The plaintiff was required to take the loan from the
bank for paying the consideration to the defendant No.
1 and was to get the sale deed executed in his favour.

17.  The plaintiff has made the statement in support of his pleadings and
has produced the document. The notice dated 4.4.1993 Ex. P/7 was given by
the plaintiffto the defendant, there in, he stated that he got the loan sanctioned
for payment of consideration and requested the defendant No.] to seek
permission from the concerned department and executed the sale deed in his
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favour appropose of the contract Ex.P/1-. The said notice was replied by the
defendant No.1 vide notice dated 24.4.1993 Ex. D-2-A. In this connection,
the defendant No.1 deposing in his statement in para 2 has stated that the
plaintiff did not get the sale deed executed after receiving the Ex,D/2-A. The
plaintiff has not specifically denied in para 16 of his statement receiving of
notice Ex. D/2 A in the cross examination, '

18. .. Inthisregard the defendant Dinesh Agarwal was cross examined on
behalf of the-plaintiffin para 7 of his statement, it has come onrecord thatthe
defendant giving the notice Ex.D-2-A along with copy of Ex.D/1 asked thé
plaintiff for getting the sale deed executed in his favour. The plaintiffagain
sent a notice Ex. P/15 dated 1.5.1993 and dated 8.5.1993 Ex. P/17 to the
defendant No.1 in which the plaintiff has not alleged that the information
regarding required permission for sale was not received by him. On perusal
of both the notices Ex. P/15 and Ex. P/17, it is evident that permission letter
was not demanded again by the plaintiff as asked by him in Ex. P/7 dated
4.4.1993_In this connectfon, the learned trial Court considering the evidence
in paras 21 and 22 of the impugned Judgment has inferred that the letter as
regard the permission for sale was received by the plaintiff, The findings given
by the trial Court seem to be proper. -

19.  The defendant No.1 has tried to say in his pleadings as well as in his
statement that he was ready and willing for performance of the contract but
after receiving the letter of permission, the plaintiff did not make sincere efforts
for getting the sale deed executed in his favour. On the contrary, by giving
notice dated 8.5.1993 Ex: P/17 the plaintiff directed the defendant to make
the partition wall and closed the windows and ventilators ofhis house which
opened on the disputed property. The contents of Ex. P/17 are as follows:

B [ Y 5797 AT T 7 R vy w S Ot waw B el
¥—17 % 77 4 Req ga v ¥ Resiaal, veerm anfe & 7=
@¥d §Y 10 Bie Feh Harer qrterT Fawe 8 wew & AT 57
@I gret W BT T ST dHV gFT AW o T v A
TN P [T ¥ w7 wwn &/ ' '

20."  The said notice Ex.P/17 dated 8.5.1993 was given by the plaintiffto
the defendant in response to the notice dated 7.5.1993 Ex.P.11 which was
sent by the defendant No.1, thereby the defendant warned the plaintiff that he
should get the performance of the contract executed in his favour within 10
days, otherwise the agreement would be cancelled but the plaintiff persisted
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with his demand referred to above to the defendant No.1 in his notice dated
18.5.1993 Ex. D/2. On perusal of Ex. P/17 and Ex. D/2 it become clear that
plaintiff was persisting the defendant to get the partition wall constructed and
windows and ventilators closed of his portion. The condition for making
partition wall and closing windows and ventilators was not a part of the contract.
In this reference, in para 16 of the plaintiff's statement it is on record that it is
true there is no mention in the agreement Ex.P/1 about closing of windows
and ventilators and making partition wall.

21.  Inview ofthe facts it is concluded that plaintiff was compelling the
defendant to make the construction which was not a condition for performing
the contract. The defendant No.1 was repeatedly requesting the plaintiff to
perform the contract but the plaintiff was not read and willing for getting sale
deed executed in his favour and he himself was avoiding to perform the
agreement Ex. P/1 by imposing arbitrary conditions which were not part of
the contract and which the defendant No.1 was not under any obligation to
perform. It is pertinent to mention here that after receipt of the defendant
letter dated 7.5.1993 Ex. P/11 the plaintiff did not fix any date and did not
inform the defendant No.1 for getting the sale deed executed in his favour.

22.  The provision of Section 16 (¢) ofthe Specific Relief Act, 1963 (in
short “the Act” are as follows:

“16 Personal bars to relief —Specific performance of a
contract cannot be enforced in favour of a person-

(a@)-(b)

(c)  who fails to aver and prove that he has performed
or has always been ready and willing to perform the
essential terms of the contract which are to be performed
by him, other than terms of the performance of which has
been prevented or waived by the defendant.”

The basic principle behind Section 16 (c) read with
Explanation (ii) is that any person seeking benefit of the
specific performance of contract must manifest that his
conduct has been blemishless throughout entitling him to
the specific relief. The provision imposes a personal bar.
The court is to grant relief on the basis of the conduct of

-the person seeking relief. If the pleadings manifest that
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the conduct of the plaintiff entitles him to get the relief on
perusal of the plaint he should not be denied the relief.
Section 16 (c) of the Act mandates the plaintiff to aver in
the plaint and establish as the fact by evidence aliunde
that he has always been ready and willing to perform his
part of the contract.

These aspect were highlighted in Sugani Vs.
Rameshwar Das 2 (2006) 11. SCC 587.

23, The learned counsel for the appellant contends that the finding given
by the trial Court in para 26 of the judgment are perverse and against the
contents of the documents as the document Ex/P/4 and P/5 have not been
understood correctly. The arguments were considered. The certificate dated
17.9.98 Ex. P/4 issued by the Dena Bank is related to the payment of
Rs.10,000/- by cheque dated 26.12.1992 which was given by the plaintiff to
the defendant No.1 as earnest money for part consideration of the contract
and it is mentioned in the contract for sale Ex. P/1 dated 26.12.1992.

24.  Though aphoto copy of the bank draft dated 1.7.1992 issued by the
State Bank of Indore Branch Gwalior has been produced on record, yet it
has neither been exhibited in the evidence by the plaintiff nor has been tendered
by the defendant during the cross examination. All the same, no explanation in
this regard has been sought from the plaintiff on behalf of the defendant. Where
the photo copy of the document was not proved in evidence by either of the
party of the case, it could not have been made the basis of findings.

25.  The plaintiff has stated in para 2 of his statement that he had got the
loan of Rs.1,85,000/- sanctioned from the Dena Bank and informed the
defendant No.1 about the same vide notice Ex. P/7. The Ex. P/5 dated
10.1.1993 being a loan sanction letter corroborates the plaintiff statemnent
whereby the loan of Rs. 1,85,000/- was sanctioned to the plaintiff. On perusal
of the notice dated 4.4.1993 Ex. P/7 it becomes clear that the plaintiff had
given the intimation to the defendant No.1 about the loan having been
sanctioned to him for payment of remaining consideration of the contract but
on the basis of said fact, it cannot be held that the plaintiff was ready and
willing to perform the contract. As discussed earlier the plaintiff was compelling
the defendant to make the construction which was not a condition for
performance of the contract. In view of the fact that the defendant No.1 cannot
be blamed for non-performing the contract Ex.P-1. Over and above, the
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plaintiff did not take steps to get the sale deed executed in his favour for
considerable period after receipt of letter dated 7.5.1993 Ex.P/11 sent by the
defendant No.1, who executed the sale deed dated 20.9.1993 Ex. P/10 in
favour of the defendant No.2. It shows that the defendant No. ] had waited
for sufficient time before execution of the sale deed Ex.P.10.

26.  Asper Section 20 of Specific Relief Act, relief of specific performance
is discretionary as held in A.LR. 2001 Supreme Court 2783 A.C. Arulappan
Vs. Smt. Ahalya Naik.

27.  Inthe instant case the plaintiff himself was avoiding the performance
of the contract. He unnecessarily burdened the defendant No.1 with conditions
which were not a part of the contract before execution of sale deed. In the
facts and circumstances of the case, it can be concluded that the learned trial
Court has not committed any mistake in refusing the decree for performance’
of the contract Ex. P/1. The judgment cited on behalf of the appellant do not
support his case in any manner, they are based on different facts and
circumstances and different from the instant case.

28.  Thelearned counsel for the defendant No. 1 contends that the defendant
was ever ready and willing to perform the contract, so the trial Court ought
not to have passed the decree for refund of Rs.10,000/- along with compound
interest at the rate of 12% per annum. The submission placed by the learned
counsel do not appear to be acceptable in to-to as no clause forfeit for earnest
money has been made in the contract Ex.P/1. Besides, the defendant No.1 do
not make any such intention in the letter dated 7.5.1993 Ex.P/11 also. Where
the defendant No.1 had received Rs. 10,000/- as carnest money it was his
duty to refund it to the plaintiff with interest as he was getting the benefit of the
plaintiff's money. It is true that the trial Court has erred in awarding the
compound interest at the rate 12% per annum. In the interest of justice, payment
of interest at the rate of 12% per annum (Simple) will be justified as held by
the Honble Supreme Court in para 9 of the judgment 2003 (11) SCC 17
Aditya Mass Communication (P) Ltd. Vs. A.P SRTC.

29.  Having taken into account, the recorded evidence, this Court comes
to the conclusion that findings given by the learned tria] Court for rejection of
the suit for relief of specific performance of the contract are affirmed and
Appeal No. 51/2003 is hereby dismissed.

30.  Appeal No. 89/2003 is hereby partly allowed and it is ordered that
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the rate of interest is changed from the compound to simple. It is clarified that
defendant No.] would pay simiple interest at the rate of 12% per annum instead
of compound interest. '

31.  The remaining conditions shall be same as per trial Court's judgment.

32.  The cost of the appeal for the respondent shall be borne by the
appellant.

33.  Letdecree be drown up accordingly.
‘ Order accordingly.

LL.R. [2013] M.P., 1699
APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice U.C. Maheshwari
Cr. A. No. 943/1997 (Jabalpur) decided on 15 January, 2013

RAM SANEHI & ors. ...Appellants
Vs. :
STATE OF M.P. ...Respondent

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 307, 323/34 - Attempt to
Maurder - According to x-ray report no bony injury was found - Neither
the Radiologist was examined nor x-ray report was proved - Held -
The only act which could fall within the perview of Section 307, I.P.C.
is an act which by itself must be ordinarily capable of causing death in
the natural and ordinary course of events and accused's criminal liability
must be limited to the act which he in fact did, and can not be extended
so as to embrace the consequence of another act which he might have
done but he did not do - Conviction u/s 307 converted into Section 323/
34 of .LP.C. : ) (Paras 8,9 & 10)

g8 Giear (1860 &7 45), &IV 307, 323,34 — Fcdl & TIT —
g Ruid @ aqur g Ry A wd ug 78 — 7 9t fafexor
fagiorst &1 waor fear mar @ty 7 & gww Ruid ufaa &) T
—srfhﬁafﬁa—ﬂmswmz-ﬁ.aﬁuﬁﬁrﬁ'm@wmﬁ@mﬁ
By & Wl AN ATY A TedT B FHNE 0T WA B9 7 q7g FIRG B
q |rTaa: wEaw 2 Y afga o1 Rt 31fie 99w 9@ Wi
g 9y g wud aag ¥ fear 8t ol s fawarRa T fear Wi
goar e 5 faeh arg ooy a1 TfRome W 98 *R 9edr o W1 96
) frar wwrfree 81 — oRT 307 @ Swfa TuRifE B GRT 323 /3470
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Case referred :

AIR (29) 1942 Peshwar 21(1).

Raj Kamal Chaturvedi, for the appellants.
Lalit Jogiekar, P.L. for the respondent/State.

\ JUDGMENT

U.C. MaHESHWARI, J. :- The appellants accused have preferred this
appeal under Section 374 (1) of Cr.P.C being aggrieved by the judgment
dated 21st April 1997 passed by the Sessions Judge, Chhatarpur in S.T. No.
102/94 convicting and sentencing to each of them under Section 307/34 of
IPC for RI five years with fine of Rs.500/-. In default of depositing the fine
amount further three months RI has been awarded.

2. The facts giving rise to this appeal in short are that on 12.2.1994 at
about 4.30 in the noon the victim Thowan came to the P.S. Rajnagar, district
Chhatarpur and lodged the FIR contending that he being an agriculturist is
having his own field in village, while adjoining field to his field belongs to the
appellants. At about 3 o'clock in the noon, he was removing the bushes of
_ Beshram from the boundary of his field, at the same time the appellants with
their common intention to cause him injuries came there and asked him why
he is removing the bushes of beshram and in continuation gave him athreat to
kill him. Thereafter the appellant no. 1, Ram Sanchi gave a blow of stick on
his head. Resultantly he sustained injury. He was also subjected to blows of
sticks by the co-accused, the appellant nos. 2 and 3, namely Ram Kripal and
Munna @ Gopal. Resultantly on sustaining the injuries, he fell down on the
floor, on his shouting, Hemraj and Pragi working at the nearest place also
came there, on which the appellants flade away from the spot. Such persons
brought the victim to his residence from where he was taken to the Police
Station where he lodged the report, on which a crime for the offence of under
Section 307/34 of IPC was registered against the appellants. He was sent to
the hospital where after medical examination, his MLC report was prepared.
He was referred for x-ray of head injury and some other injuries. On carrying
out the same, no bony injury was found on his person. The appellants were
arrested. Witnesses were interrogated and on completion of investigation, the
appellants were charged sheeted for the offence of Section 307/34 of IPC.

3. On committing the matter to the Sessions Court, on evaluation of the
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charge sheet, the charge of above mentioned Section was framed against
each of the appellants. They abjured the guilt, on which the trial was held. On
appreciation of the evidence after holding guilty to the appellants under Section
307/34, each of them were punished with the punishment, as stated above.
Being dissatisfied with such conviction and sentence, the appellants have come
to this court with this appeal.

4, Initially the appellants' counsel has argued the case on merits for
extending the acquittal to the appellants. But in response of some query of the
court, the appellants’ counsel has restricted his arguments and without
challenging any findings of the trial court holding guilty to the appellants for
causing the alleged incident with the victim argued that on taking into
consideration the evidence adduced by the prosecution including the medical
evidence, as accepted in its entirety, even then looking to the nature of the
injuries sustained by the victim, so also in the lack of any fracture, as stated
by the Doctor in the MLC report, (Ex.P-4), of the victim, this was not the
case of conviction of more than Section 323 of IPC. According to him because

~ in the MLC report except the injury no. 1, all other injuries were found to be

simple in nature while such injury no. 1 was stated to be dangerous to life and
in such premises, such injury alongwith injury nos. 5, 6 and 9 was referred for
x-ray also. The same was carried out and its report was also place with the
charge sheet. But it is apparent fact on record that neither the Radiologist was
examined nor in any other manner x-ray report was proved on such record.
Even on taking into consideration the x-ray report available on record, then
according to it, no bony injury was found on the person of the victim. He also
said that as per deposition of Dr. I.D. Chourasiya, (PW-4), in the absence of
any fracture in the injury no. 1 was also the same injury in nature, while the
same was stated by the Doctor in the MLC report as dangerous to life. With
these submissions, he prayed to modify the impugned conviction of the
appellants from Section 307/34 of IPC. In continuation he said that on such
modification, taking into consideration that the appellants being first offenders
did not have any criminal antecedents in their earlier life or subsequent to the
impugned incident and during last 15-16 years, they have suffered the mental
agony of this case and have also settled in their families and on sending them
again to jail, then in comparison to themselves, their families have to suffera
lot. So firstly he prayed for extending the benefit of Probation of Offenders
Actto the appellants and in alternate prayed that if such benefit is not extended
to them, then by adopting some lenient view, they be punished with the jail
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- sentence for which they bave already undergone either in the judicial custody
during the pendency of the trial or subsequent to the impugned judgment till
passing the order for suspension of their remaining jail sentence by this court
by enhancing some amount of fine under the discretion of the court. In this
regard, he also said that as per record the appellant no. 1 — Ram Sanehi was
remained in judicial custody from 13.2.1994 to 12.4.1994, i. e. near about
two months while other appellants were remained in judicial custody from

13.2.1994 to 28.2.1994, i.e. for 15 days and besides this, each of the

appellants has suffered the awarded jail sentence from the date of the impugned
judgment, i.e. 21.4.1997 till 12.6.1997, on which date the remaining jail
sentence of the appellants was suspended by this court and prayed to allow
this appeal. : ‘ '

5. The aforesaid prayer has been opposed by the State's Counsel saying
that inthe available circumstances and scenario in which the intention of the
appellants was apparent to cause death of the victim and on such appreciation
the impugned conviction and sentence has been imposed on the appellants.
The same being in consonance with the available evidence, does not require
any interference at this stage either for modification of the offence from Section
307/34 of TPC to Section 323/34 or in any case for reduction of the awarded
jail sentence. He also said that in any case if the offence is modified as prayed
by the appellants’ counsel, then the appellants be punished with the maximum
punishment provided under Section 323/34 and prayed for dismissal of this
appeal,

6. Having heard, keeping in view their arguments ] have carefully gone
through the record of the trial court alongwith the impugned judgment. I am of
the considered view that in the available circumstances the approach of the
trial court holding guilty to the appellants for the offence of Section 307/34 is
not sustainable. On proper appreciation of the available evidence, the trial
court ought to have convicted the appellants for the offence under Section
323/34 of IPC and not more than that. ’

1
7. Before proceeding further, I would like to mention the injuries sustained
by the victim which was found and stated in the MLC report, (Ex.P-4) of the
victim Thowan, (PW-4). The same is read as under:-

(D) Lacerated wound 10x.5x2.00 cm in the mid parietal
region. (Profuse bleeding) and horizontally placed bone deep.
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(II) Lacerated wound 1x.5 cm on the left side of chin.
(I1I) . Lacerated wound 2.5x.5 cm on the right eye brow.

(IV) Lacerated wound 1x.5 cm on the post aspect of left
forearm near elbow.

(V)  Contusion with tenderness near the left elbow.

(V) Contusion 12x 2.5 cm on the left chest at the level of
4th and Sthrib.

(VII) Contusion two parallel to each other 10x2.5 cm — over
the left lumber region. -

(VHI) Multiple contusions—Irregularly each measuring 10x2.5
cm on the left Gluteal region placed.

(IX) Contusion—12x2.5 cm on the left Pendenem soleal
region.

8. It is apparent from aforesaid injuries, except injury no. 1, in the lack
of fracture all other injuries were simple in nature and it is also apparent on
record that neither the Radiologist has been examined nor x-ray report has
been exhibited on record. X-ray report is available on record from whichitis
apparent that on carrying out the x-ray of the injuries advised by the Doctor
no bony injury was found on the person of the victim. Even in the head injury
also no fracture was found. On recording the deposition of Doctor Chourasiya,
(PW-4), in para 12 of his deposition he categorically stated that in the lack of
fracture in injury no. 1, such injury is also simple in nature and in such premises,
the same could not be treated to be dangerous to life. So in such premises,
there is no option with the court except to hold that injury no. 1 was also
simple in nature and it is also apparent that the victim sustained nine injuries
and out of them, some were contusions, abrasions and some of them were
lacerated wounds. No other injury was found on the person of the victim
which was caused by hard and sharp weapon. In such premises, when
lacerated simple injuries or contusions were found on the person of the victim,
then the appellants could not be convicted more than the offence of Section
323/34 of IPC. In such premises, it is held that the trial court has committed
grave error in holding guilty to the appellants for the offence under Section
307/34 of IPC. Pursuant to it, such conviction and sentence of the appellants
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under Section 307/34 of IPC is hereby set aside and instead of it, they are
held guilty for the offence of Section 323/34 of IPC. The findings of the trial

court holding that alleged incident was caused by the appellants in furtherance
of their commeon intention does not require any interference. Pursuant to it, the -
same are affirmed.

9. Itis settled proposition of criminal law that accused like the appellants
should be convicted for such act which they have actually committed with the
victim and not for that act, which they could have committed but did not
commit. In the present case the appellants could have committed the offence
of Section 307/34 but actually they did not commit. As such they have
committed the offence which has been made punishable under Section 323/
34 of IPC. My such approach is also fortified by the decision of the Peshwar
Judicial Commissioner's Court of undivided India in the matter of Sultan
Mohd. Khan Vs. Risaldar Abdul Karim Khan and others reported in AIR
(29) 1942 Peshwar 21 (1), in which it was held as under:-

“The only act which could fall within the purview of S.307 is
an act which by itself must be ordinarily capable of causing
death in the natural and ordinary course of events and accused's
criminal liability must be limited to the act which he in fact did,
and cannot be extended so as to embrace the consequence of
another act which he might have done but did not do.

Accused stabbed the complainant with g knife and
caused two injuries one in the back 3/4” x 1/4” x 3/4” deep
and another on the back of the thigh 1, 1727 x V4" x 1/4” deep.
Both the injuries were simple in nature:-

Held that the offence was under S. 324 and not under
S.307: 211.C. 881 (Bom.) and ('31) 18 AIR 1931 Lah. 63,
Rel. on.”

10.  Inview of the aforesaid by allowing this appeal in part, the impugned
conviction and sentence of the appellants under Section 307/34 of IPC is
hereby set aside and instead it, the appellants are held guilty under Section
323/34 of IPC and each of them are punished with the jail sentenced for
which they have already undergone in the judicial custody during trial and
subsequent to passing the impugned judgment till passing the order by this
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court for suspension of the remaining jail sentence of the appellants, as stated
above in para 4 of this judgment, which on verification from the record is
found correct, by imposing the fine of Rs.1000/- against each of the appellants.
Such imposed amount of fine is to be deposited within 45 days from today by
each of the appellants with the trial court. The amount of fine deposited in
connection of the offence under Section 307/34 of IPC shall be adjusted in
the aforesaid imposed fine amount. Failing in depositing the remaining fine
amount within the stipulated period, the concerning appellants has to suffer
further three months SI. On depositing the aforesaid sum, out of it, Rs.1500/-,
in addition to the amount given by the trial court by the impugned judgment to
the victim, be also given him by calling in the trial court through summon. The
bail bonds of the appellants are hereby cancelled. Till the aforesaid extend the
impugned judgment is modified while the other findings of the trial court are
hereby affirmed.

11.  Theappeal is allowed in part as indicated above.

Appeal partly allowed.

LL.R. [2013] M.P., 1705 -
APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice U.C. Maheshwari
Cr. A. No. 1002/1997 (Jabalpur) decided on 16 January, 2013

CHHOTE ALIAS SURENDRA ...Appeilant
Vs. . ’
STATE OF M.P. ...Respondent

A Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 376, Scheduled Castes
and Scheduled Tribes (Prevention of Atrocities) Act (33 of 1989),
Section 3(1)(xi), Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 45 - Caste of
Prosecutrix - Any documentary evidence - Whether produced or proved
on record - No inference could have been drawn by the trial court to
hold the caste of prosecutrix covered under the Act - To hold conviction
under the Act the prosecution is bound to prove the caste of the victim
covered under the Act as well as of the accused like appellant to invoke
the provision of the Act - Convition and sentence of the appellant set
aside. (Para 9)

7. TvS Wieal (1860 FT 45), gyer 376, JYYlAT wfy alv
ST TAAT (=TT Frareey) ST (1989 &7 33), %7 3(1)(xi), Grey
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AT (1872 &7 1), a7 45 — IRFITH B T — B eI "Wew
~ 77 J¥eE qv yega e aif¥d fEyr qar — stafwa @ siwlq
s @ iy et @Y e B @ far R wmaTeE gRn S
forsed Y fraar o woar o — aftfram @ et <twfufy sfrfeiRa
a3 @ fag afriss s @ sudy o1 aads d@F 8g Ofvw ek
w1y @ afiga B sfr sftfe 3 ofaefa stsn wifyg o7 @ fag aex
2 — adtanefl 9 qivfify alx Tvsdw amur

B. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 376 - Rape - Lack of
injury - It is well settled propostition of law that mere lack of injury or
sign of struggle on the person of the prosecutrix or absence of any
injury on her private parts are not sufficient circumstance to disbelieve
the version of the prosecutrix - Where the ocular evidence as well as
expert evidence (medical evidence) are available and both are
conflicting to each other then in such a situation, the ocular evidence
would prevail over the expert evidence. (Paras 12 & 13)

A TUS WIear (1860 BT 45) T 376 — Foilcpiv — AlE &1
srarg — ¥e fafer @1 afarfy wenfa yfmes € v = afrmtet @ i
W fpel ate a1 eerngen @ fa B e a1 WS Wi U ekl we
®1 IgulRerfy, afmeh @ o W afaw™ o @ 9 gafw aRferfr
T § —~ WET wigy wieg o we-wuie iy wew (fafvww aew)
Sucre] 8 iR q e g¥R ¥ falgramh 2, aw o Retfy #, =egw
e, ety " w afirardt 8

Sharad Verma, for the appellant.
Geetesh Singh Thakur, P.L. for the respondent.

JUDGMENT

U.C. MaHESHWARI, J. :- This appeal is directed by the appellant/
accused under section 374(2) of the Cr.P.C being aggrieved by the judgment
dated 9.5.1997 passed by the Special Judge, Satna in Special Sessions Trial
No.71/95, convicting and sentencing him under section 376(1) of IPC and
section 3(1)(xi) of the Schedule Caste and Schedule Tribe (Prevention of
Atrocities) Act, 1989 (in short "the Act"), for RI 7 years with fine of Rs.5000/-,
in default of depositing the fine for six months RI in the earlier section while RT
2 years in the later section. The sentences are directed to run concurrently.

2. The facts giving rise to this appeal in short are that on 9.4.95 at about
10 O' Clock in the morning the prosecutrix Janki, aged 10 years lodged the

J
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FIR atP.S. Tala, district Satna against the appellant contending that prior to
the date of incident, she was used to work as laborer in the family of Ramkripal
the father of the appellant and assigned the work to take the animals for grazing.
On 8.4.95 in the night, after taking dinner, she was sleeping in the courtyard
of the appellant's house. In the mid-night, she was subjected to forcefully
intercourse by the appellant due to which blood was profused from her private
part. She immediately informed about the incident to Ramkripal, the father of
the appellant and Lallu, the elder brother of the appellant but they did not
take any care and sent her with the appellant to her parents home. After
leaving her at parental home, the appellant fled away. On reaching to home,
she apprised about the incident to her mother Chourasia Bai (P.W.4). Then
accompanied with her mother and village watchman Lalman (PW 2), she went
to police station and lodged the FIR, on which, the offence of section 376
IPC and section 3(1)(xi) of the Act was registered against the appellant and
he was arrested. The witnesses were interrogated. On completion of
investigation the appellant was charge-sheeted for the aforesaid offence.

3. After committing the case to the Sessions Court, on evaluation of the
charge sheet also taking into consideration that the prosecutrix is from the
community and caste covered under the Act, the charge of section 376 IPC and
3(1)(xi) of the Act were framed against the appellant. He abjured the guilt, on
which, the trial was held. After recording the evidence, on appreciation of the
same, the appellant was held guilty for the above mentioned offence and was also
punished with the punishment as stated above. Being dissatisfied with such
conviction and sentence, the appellant has come to this court with this appeal.

4. Shri Sharad Verma, learned counsel of the appellant after taking me
through the record of the trial court including the evidence led by the
prosecution as well as by the defence so also the impugned judgment argued
that due to some previous enmity between the family of the appellant and
father of the prosecutrix, the appellant has been falsely implicated in the matter
while, in fact, he has not committed any offence. In continuation, he argued
that the story putforth by the prosecution has not been supported by any
independent source of the evidence. Even the story putforth by the prosecutrix
has not been supported by the medical evidence. The doctor who examined
the prosecutrix immediately after the incident and prepared her MLC report
had also not stated specifically that the rape or intercourse was committed
with the prosecutrix. He also referred the concerning part of the deposition of
such doctor and said that in the lack of any positive medical evidence, mere
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on the testimony of the prosecutrix, the accused like the appellant could not
have been convicted in the matter. He further said that even on taking into
consideration, the deposition of the prosecutrix and her parents as accepted
in its entirety then the act of penetration by the appellant in the private part of
the prosecutrix, is not made out and in such situation also the impugned offence
could not be said to be the offence of section 376(1) of IPC or any other part
of such section. According to him, it was not the case of more than section
376 (1) read with section 511 of the IPC. With these arguments firstly he
prayed for extending acquittal to the appellant and, in alternate, prayed that
by adopting the lenient view the impugned case be modified from section
376(1) of the IPC into section 376(1) read with section 511 of the IPC and in
such premises, he be punished with the lesser sentence i.e upto the period for
which he has already undergone during pendency of the trial and subsequent
to judgment of the trial court till passing the order for suspension of his jail
sentence, He also argued that in the available circumstances, the ingredients
of the offence of section 3(1)(xi} of the Act are also not made out and prayed
for extending acquittal to the appellant under such section also.

5. On the other hand, Shri Geetesh Singh Thakur, PL by-justifying the
impugned conviction and sentence of the appellant said that the findings and
the approach of the trial court in this regard being based on proper appreciation
of the evidence are in conformity with law, the same does not require any
interference at this stage either for acquittal to the appellant or modifying his
awarded conviction and sentence into some other section and prayed for
dismissing this appeal.

6. Having heard the counsel, keeping in view the arguments advanced, I
have carefully gone through the record of the trial court including the evidence led
by the prosecution as well as by the defence along with the impugned judgment.

7. It is apparent that in FIR the prosecutrix was shown to be the age of
10 years. According to the ossification test, carried out by Dr. V.G.Hinduja
(PW 12) Asst. Surgeon posted at district hospital Satna, in view of x-ray
plate (Ex.P/16) and report (Ex.P/17), her age was shown and proved to be
between 9 to 12 years. However, in cross-examination, he categorically stated
that he only received the x-ray plate and on that basis he has given the report
Ex.P/7. He further stated that he did not personally see the prosecutrix. But it
is apparent from the cross-examination that such x-ray plate and x-ray report
has not been challenged on behalf of the defence saying that the same is not
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related to the prosecutrix.

8. Apart the aforesaid, on recording the deposition of the prosecutrix
Janki, her age was recorded 10 years by the Court in her deposition sheet.
Her mother Chourasia Bai (PW 4) in her deposition stated her age to be
years. Dr. Mahendra Singh (PW 8) who initially examined the prosecutrix
and prepared her MLC report (Ex.P/10) also stated her age to be 10 years.
Accordingly in the aforesaid depositions the age of the prosecutrix was shown
to be between 9 to 12 or 10 years. The same have not been disputed in the
cross-examination of any such witnesses. So, in such premises, it is held that
the trial court has not committed any error in holding the prosecutrix to be
minor in the age. So, till this extent the impugned judgment does not require
any interference, hence such finding of the trial court are hereby affirmed.

9. The prosecution had initiated the case stating the prosecutrix is
belonging to the community of schedule caste “chamaar” covered under the
Act. But it is apparent from the evidence led by the prosecution as well as the
papers exhibited on the record that in order to prove the caste of the prosecutrix
covered by the Act, any documentary admissible evidence has neither been
produced nor proved on the record. It is also apparent from the record that
any certificate issued by the appropriate authority regarding caste of the
prosecutrix has neither been produced nor proved on the record. In the lack
of such certificate soalso in view of the depositions of the prosecutrix as well
as her mother Chourasia Bai (PW 4) in which they have not stated that they
are from the community covered under the Act, mere on the statement of the
father of the appellant Ramkripal examined as defence witness, no inference
could have been drawn by the trial court to hold the caste of the prosecutrix
covered under the Act. It is settled proposition of the law that to hold the
conviction under the Act the prosecution is bound to prove the caste of the
victim covered under the Act as well as of the accused like appellant to invoke
the provision of the Act but prosecution has failed to prove the same. In such
premises, the trial court has committed error in holding guilty to the appellant
for the offence under section 3(1)(xi) of the Act. Pursuant to it, such findings
as well as conviction and sentence of the appellant imposed by the trial court
under such section is hereby set aside and he is acquitted from such charge.

10.  Coming to consider the sustainability of conviction and sentence of
the appellant under section 376(1) of the IPC, is concerned, on recording the
deposition the prosecutrix Janki (PW 3) aged 10 years had categorically stated
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that on the date of the incident she was working in the family of the appellant
and was assigned the work to take the animals for grazing. During such working
as labor, she was residing at the courtyard of the house of appellant's father.
Before the alleged incident in the day time she was caught-hold by the appellant
then she called elder brother of the appellant to save her, on which, the appellant
fled away. She also informed about this incident to the father of the appellant.
She also stated some other things of such day. In further deposition she stated
that in the evening after taking meals, she went to sleep in the aforesaid
courtyard of the appellant's house. At about 2 O' Clock in the night, the appellant
came there and after pulling her leg upside, pressed her hands and committed
intercourse on her. She categorically stated that the appellant inserted his private
part into her private part. Due to which blood profused from her private part,
on which, she became unconscious. Thereafter the appellant took her to her
parental home. On the way she became conscious, on which, appellant said
her that he will give her two rupees if she will not tell about the incident to
other person. She further stated that on reaching home, appellant apprised
her mother that the prosecutrix sustained the injuries due to some beating and
thereafter appellant fled away from the residence. On going through the entire
cross-examination of the prosecutrix, I have not found any substance showing
that any of the material statement stated in the in-chief has been destroyed by
any version of such cross-examination.

11.  The version of the prosecutrix is further supported by her mother
Chourasia Bai (P.W.4) who on recording her deposition categorically stated
that her daughter was brought to her home by the appellant in the morning at
about 7 O' Clock and he informed her that the prosecutrix has been subjected
to beating by the ghosts. But when she asked about the incident from Janki
then she narrated the entire incident according to which rape was committed
by the appellant on hef. Her version of in-chief has not been destroyed in her
cross-examination. So, accordingly the alleged incident has been proved by
the prosecutrix herself which is further supported by her mother who was
informed by the prosecutrix immediately after the incident.

12.  Trueitisthatin the deposition of Dr. Mahendra Singh (PW 8) and Dr.
Snehlata Gulati (PW 7) it has come on the record that no defnite opinion
could have been given about committing the rape on the prosecutrix. They
have also stated that they have not seen any sign of struggle on the person of
the prosecutrix. Apart it, it was also stated by them that the prosecutrix was
habitual of intercourse and no blood was found on her private parts. It is
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settled proposition of the law that mere lack of injury or sign of struggle on
the person of the prosecutrix or absence of any injury on her private parts,
are not sufficient circumstance to disbelieve the version of the prosecutrix.
The prosecutrix has categorically stated in her deposition that rape has been
committed on her by the appellant and specially when the particulars of such
incident have been stated by the witness and from the other available evidence
if her version does not appear to be false then the prosecutrix could not be
disbelieved mere on the basis of the expert opinion or the deposition of the
doctors. In the case at hand, the version stated by the prosecutrix has been
further proved by her mother Chourasia Bai (PW 4) to whom the prosecutrix
informed about the incident soon after it was committed on her by the appellant.

13. Itissettled proposition of the law where the ocular evidence as well
as expert evidence (medical evidence) are available and both are conflicting
to each other then in such a situation, the ocular evidence would prevail over
the expert evidence and not the expert evidence over the ocular evidence.
So, in view of such principle also, the trial court has not committed any error
in relying on the deposition of the prosecutrix and her mother for holding
guilty to the appellant under section 376(1) of the IPC.

14.  Inthe aforesaid premises, I have not found any perversity, infirmity,
illegality or anything against the propriety of the law in appreciation of the
evidence in the impugned judgment for holding guilty to the appellant under
section 376 of the IPC. So, in such premises, the impugned conviction of the
appellant does not require any interference at this stage in the appellate
jurisdiction of this court.

15. Trueitis that as per available record the prosecutrix was below 12
years of age on the date of the incident and the impugned case ought to have
been considered and decided by the trial court by framing the charge of section
376(2)(1) of the IPC in which minimum sentence of 10 years is provided but
neither such charge was framed nor such aspect has been considered by the
trial court. In the lack of framing the charge of section 376(2)(f) of the IPC by
the trial court after 15 years from the date of impugned j udgment I do not find
fit to consider such matter afresh at this stage specially in the absence of any
appeal at the instance of the State or on behalf of the prosecutrix. I am of the
considered view that the trial court has not committed any illegality in holding
guilty and punishing the appellant under section 376(1) of the IPC.

16. I am also of the view that in order to consider the charge of section
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376(2)(f) the court has to frame the charge of such section afresh against the
appellant because this is the major offence in comparison to section 376(1) of the
IPC and on framing such charge again the court is bound to remand the matter to
the trial court by extending opportunity to adduce the additional evidence to the
parties and, in such circumstance, possibility to make prayer for recalling the
prosecutrix for reexamination, could not be ruled out. At the time of incident, the
prosecutrix was 10 years of age and now she must be near about 27 years of age
and might have settled in her family and; on remanding the matter, if she is recalled
for examination then it may create difficulty in her family life. So, in such
circumstance, I do not find fit either to frame the charge of section 376(2)(f) of the
IPC or to remand the matter for any purpose even for the question regarding
enhancement of the awarded jail sentence.

17.  Inview of the aforesaid by allowing this appeal in part, the conviction
and sentence awarded to the appellant under section 3(1)(xi) of the Act is
hereby set aside while his conviction and sentence awarded by the trial court
under section 376(1) of the IPC is hereby affirmed. Pursuant to it, the appellant
is directed to surrender himself before the trial court on or before 15.2.2013
for facing the remaining awarded jail sentence, failing which the trial court

shall be at liberty to take appropriate steps in this regard to serve the remaining

jail sentence to the appellant. Till the aforesaid extent, the impugned judgment
is modified while the other findings of the same are hereby affirmed. The bail
bonds of the appellant are hereby canceled.

18.  Appeal is allowed in part as indicated above.
Appeal partly allowed.

LL.R. [2013] M.P., 1712
APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice Rakesh Saksena & Smt. Justice Vimla Jain
Cr. A. No. 34/1997 (Jabalpur) decided on 19 March, 2013

SANJU & anr . ) ...Appellants
Vs.
STATE OF M.P. ‘ ...Respondent

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302, Evidence Act (1 of 1872),
Section 32 - Murder - Appellant No. 2 who was having a katar in bis
hand had caught hold the deceased and appellant No. 1 inflicted injuries
by knife - 10 injuries of sharp and pointed weapon found by doctor on

-
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the person of deceased - Evidence of eye witnesses, oral dying
declaration and dying declaration found to be cogent, consistent and
reliable - It stood established that both the appellants assaulted
deceased with knife/katar with the intention of committing his murder
- Sentence of life impriosnment held proper.  (Paras 21,22,23 & 24)
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FT IvSTRY SIfFa T W)

S.K. Gangrade with Anita Kaithwas, for the appellants.
Amit Pandey, P.L. for the respondent.

JUDGMENT

The Judgment of the Court was delivered by : -
RAKESH SAKSENA, J. :- Appellants have filed this appeal against the judgment
dated 26.12.1996 passed by I Additional Sessions Judge, Hoshangabad in
Sessions Trial No.105/1995 convicting to appellant No.1 under section 302
of the Indian Penal Code and to appellant No.2 under section 302/34 of the
Indian Penal Code and sentencing each of them to imprisonment for life.

2. Initially, this appeal was disposed of by this Court by the judgment
dated 8.2.2005 by affirming the judgment of conviction passed by the trial
Court. However, the Hon'ble Apex Court by order dated 5th July, 2010 passed
in Criminal Appeal No.1153/2010 set aside the said judgment and remitted
the matter back to this Court for fresh hearing on merits after appointing an
amicus curiae or directing the Legal Aid Committee to nominate an
experienced Advocate to represent the appellant. Earlier, the appeal was
decided when learned counsel for the appellants did not appear to argue the
matter. Presently, appellants have been represented by Shri S. K Gangrade
and Ku. Anita Kaithwas, Advocates.

3. In short, the prosecution case is that on 3.12.94 in the night around
9:30 p.m. when complainant Gulab Singh was asleep in his house in Itarsi,
Bablu Shukla (PW-2) came to him and informed that his son Ajay was lying in
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his house in injured condition. Appellants Sanju and Sheru had assaulted him
with knives. Gulab Singh (PW-1) rushed to the house of Bablu Shukla and
saw his son in injured condition. Ajay told to Gulab that Sanju and Sheru had
dealt knife blows to him. Complainant sent injured Ajay along with Lalji Ram
(PW-6) to hospital and himself went to police station, Itarsi and lodged report
Ex.P/1. 1t is said that Ajay was assaulted because he protested against the
teasing of girls by the appellants.

. 4. In Itarsi hospital, Dr. A.T.Mangtani (PW-5) examined the injuries of
Ajay. Ajay also told to him that Sanju and Sheru had assaulted him. Dr.
Mangtani referred the injured to Surgical Specialist for treatment. On 4.12.94
i.e. on the next day, S.D.M. Itarsi viz. Madanlal Kaurav (PW-15), in the
- presence of Dr.Sanad Dalal (PW-14),recorded dying declaration of Ajay
wherein he reiterated that appellants assaulted him with knife and Katar. Ajay
was thereafter referred to Hamidia hospital, Bhopal for further treatment, but
on 6.12.94 he succumbed to his injuries. Dr. D.K.Satpathi, Director Medico
Legal Institute, Bhopal (PW-8) conducted autopsy of the dead body of Ajay.

5. During investigation, Investigating Officer M.S.Thakur (PW-9)
prepared the spot map, arrested accused persons and seized knife and Katar
from them and sent them to Forensic Science Laboratory for examination.
After completion of investigation, charge sheet was filed in the Court of
Magistrate and the case was thereafter committed for trial.

6. During trial, appellants abjured their guilt and pleaded false implication.

7. Learned Additional Sessions Judge after appreciating the evidence on
record, held the appellants guilty, convicted and sentenced them as mentioned
above. Aggrieved by their conviction and sentence, appellants have filed the
present appeal.

8. Learned counsel for the appellants submitted that the evidence of
eyewitnesses as well as the dying declaration allegedly recorded by S.D.M.
was not reliable. It was not possible for deceased to have spoken anything in
seriously injured condition. He submitted that appellant Sanju has already
been released from jail after serving out his sentence. Learned trial Judge
committed error in convicting appellant Sheru @ Narendra with the aid of
section 34 of the Indian Penal Code merely on the ground that he held deceased
at the time of occurrence. On the other hand, learned counsel for State while
supporting and justifying the impugned judgment of conviction, submitted that

e
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the evidence on record was cogent, consistent and reliable.

0. We have heard the learned counsel for the parties at length, perused
the impugned judgment and the evidence on record carefully.

10.  Ithasnotbeen disputed by the appellants that deceased Ajay @ Bablu
met with a homicidal death. Dr. A.T.Mangtani (PW-5) Assistant Surgeon of
Itarsi hospital, deposed that on 3.12.94 Ajay @ Bablu was brought to hospital
in injured condition by Lalji Ram. Lalji Ram disclosed to him that Sanju and
Sheru had caused injuries to him. He also received requisition for his medical
examination from police station, Itarsi. On examination, as per report Ex.P/
10, he found following injuries on body of Ajay:-

(1)  Incised wound 2” x 1” on abdominal cavity on left
lumber region. Omentum protruding out.

(2)  Incised wound 17 x 1/4” in third intercostal space
muscle deep. Emphysema present.

(3)  Incised wound 1%4” x 1/4” x depth not taken on r1ght
side scapular region.

(4) Incised wound 3/4” x 1/4” x bone deep on right
scapular region.

(5) Incised wound onright side back 1 lateral to injury
no.4.

(6)  Incised wound 1/2”x 1/4” on left scapular region.

(7)  Incised wound 14" x 3/4” x muscle deep on right upper
arm.

(8)  Incised wound 1%4” x 1/4” x muscle deep on left
forearm.

(9)  Incised wound 3” x 1%4” x muscle deep on left upper
arm on posterior aspect.

(10) Incised wound 1/2” x 1/4” x muscle deep on left upper
arm.

Injuries from 1 to 10 were caused by sharp edged
weapon within 6 hours from the time of examination. Patient
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was in the state of semi-conscious.

Because of serious condition, Ajay was referred to Hamidia hospital,
Bhopal for further treatment where on 6.12.94 he expired. Postmortem
examination of the body of deceased was performed by Dr.D.K.Satpathi (PW-
8) who vide his postmortem report Ex.P/15 opined that the death of deceased
occurred due to shock and haemorrhage as a result of Thoracic abdominal
injury. As per report Ex.P/15, he found following injuries on the body of
deceased:- ‘ ' §

(1) Stitched incised wound situated over right arm cubical 1
fosse 4 x Sem tranverse medially muscle deep.

(2)  Incised wound (stitched) over right arm medial aspect
obliquely vertical 6 X .5cm muscle deep.

(3)  Stab wound right pectoral region 2.5 x lcm travel
obliquely upward within the muscles for a length of 6cm.

(4)  Stitched stab wound situated over right flank extending
from 13cm below the axillary pit 2.5 x 1cm communicating
with thoracic cavity.

(35)  Abrasion present over right lateral stolid 1em dia.

(6)  Defence incised wound present over right palm upper
- part transverse skin deep tapering laterally.

(7)  Stitched incised wound present over right lumber region
of abdomen starting from 8cm right to midline 5 xlcm
transverse through which loops of intestine protruding out.

(8)  Stitched incised wound present over left side of
abdomen extending from Scm. left to midiine vertical
underneath all the layers of abdomen is stitched in layers.
Another stitched wound present 2.5cm left to this stitched
wound. Itis 2.5 x .5cm and also communicating with abdominal
wall (cavity).

(9)  Thereisincised nick present just above left supermiliae
spine. Size .5x .1lcm. '

(10) ° Stitched incised wound situated over left forearm

L
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exterior aspect medially 10cm. below obesanon tip 4.5 x 1cm
vertically muscle deep.

(11)  Stabwound present over right back 4cm right to midline
and 5cm above iliac crest medial end is broad, lateral end is
sharp 2.5 x 1.5cm it has gone with the Para vertebral muscles
obliquely upward medially and struck in the vertebra, total
length is §cm.

. (12) Stab wound situated over left scapula vertical 2.5 x
.5cm it has reached upto muscle with 5cm deep. Lower end is
broad. '

(I3) Stab wound 4cm right to midline vertical 2.5 x .5cm
lower end is broad over medial aspect of scapula right. It has
reached the thoracic cavity and stabs the right upper lobe and
has travel within the lung for 5¢m length.

(14)  Stab wound present over mid of right scapula lower
end is broad 2.5 x 0.5¢m runs obliquely upward medially within
Scm.

(15) Stab wound present over lower end of scapula
transverse medial end is broad 2.5 x .5cm. It has travel within
the muscle deep for 7cm length.

(16)  Stitched incised wound paramedial line of abdomen it
is 20cm long underneath all abdominal layers stitched layer by
layer.

(17)  Both thoracic cavities contain blood tinged fluid about
300cc some of which is clotted along with'abdominal cavity.

(18) Transverse colon repaired at three places. Small
intestine is anatomized at one place. Descending colon also
repaired at left iliac region.

These injuries were caused by sharp edged weapon.
In the opinion of doctor, the injuries were sufficient to cause
death in the ordinary course of nature. Cause of death was
shock due to excessive haemorrhage. The death was homicidal
in nature,
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11, From the aforesaid evidence, we find it established that deceased died
a homicidal death on account of shock and haemorrhage resulting from the
injuries caused on his chest and abdomen by hard and sharp pointed object.

12, Now it has to be seen whether appellants caused injuries to deceased
which resulted into his death ? In this regard, the case mainly rests on the
evidence of eyewitnesses Narmada Prasad (PW-3),Ram Kumar Sharma (PW-
4) and dying declaration Ex.P/19 recorded by S.D.M.Madanlal Kaurav (PW-
15). -

13.  Narmada Prasad (PW-3) deposed that he and Ajay @ Bablu had
gone to market for purchase of some articles. When they were returning, they
saw appellants standing on the crossing. They came forward and appellant
Sanju dealt a knife blow in the abdomen of Bablu. When he tried to repeat the
assault he caught his hand whereby the blow was prevented. When Bablu
begged pardon from him they started talking peacefully. Appellant Sanju then
proposed to take Bablu to doctor. They went where a compounder lived but
he was not found at the house. In the meantime, appellant Sanju asked him to
bring his bicycle. When he came back with bicycle he saw appellant Sheru
holding Bablu with his one hand and in another hand holding a Katar and
appellant Sanju inflicting knife blows to him. When he tried to intervene Sanju
pushed him and ran after him. Getting scared he ran away crying. He then met
Gulab Singh, the father of Bablu, who asked him to bring a rickshaw. Bablu
was lying in the house of Shukla saying that Sanju and Sheru assaulted him.

14.  Ram Kumar Sharma (PW-4), the another eyewitness,reiterated almost
the same story. He deposed that in the night at about 9 o'clock on hearing
cries “Bachao Bachao ” he came out of his house and saw appellant Sheru
holding the hand of Ajay @ Bablu by one hand and holding a Katar in another.
Appellant Sanju was inflicting knife blows to Bablu. He saw the incident in the
street light in front of his house. He corroborated Narmada Prasad (PW-3)
by saying that when Narmada carne, Sanju and Sheru pushed Bablu over him
and ran away towards the crossing. Bablu and Narmada also ran away.
Subsequently he saw Bablu lying on a bed in the house of Shukla Master.
Father of Bablu also reached there and called a rickshaw. With Bablu he also
went to hospital. He stated that no passer-by stopped there. Though people
of the neighbourhood saw the quarrel from their house but none came forward.
Though he was not scared, but out of fear he did not go near the assailants to
save his friend.
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15. Narmada Prasad (PW-3) and Ram Kumar Sharma (PW-4) were
though subjected to a lengthy cross-examination but nothing material could
be brought out to discredit their testimony.

16.  Matru @ Brajkishore (PW-13) though did not support the prosecution
case wholly and was declared hostile still corroborated the evidence of
Narmada (PW-3) by saying that in the night at about 9-9:30 when he was
coming back from picture, near the crossing he saw Bablu @ Ajay, Narmada
and appellants standing. They were indulging in some altercation. He saw
blood oozing out from the abdomen of Bablu and appellant Sanju holding a
knife in his hand. According to him, he saw nothing in the hand of another
appellant and also did not see as to who caused injuries to Bablu. He stated
that when he reached his house he heard the noise of quarre] between appellants
and Ajay and also the shrieks of Ajay. In cross-examination, when this witness
was confronted with his police statement Ex.P/10 he admitted that he disclosed
to police that Sanju dealt a blow of knife in the abdomen of Bablu.

17.  Gulab Singh (PW-1), the father of deceased, deposed that in the night
at about 9-10:00 p.m. Bablu Shukla (Sunil) came to his house and informed
that his son Ajay was lying in his house soiled in blood. He reached the house
of Bablu Shukla and saw his son injured. There were number of injuries on his
body. On his asking,his son told that appellants Sanju and Sheru assaulted
him with Chhuri and Gupti. He and Lalji Ram then carried Ajay to Jan Sewa
hospital, Itarsi. The doctors refused to provide treatment in the absence of
police report. He then went to police station, Jtarsi and lodged report Ex.P/1.
For further treatment, on the advice of doctors, he took Ajay to Hamidia
Lospital, Bhopal where on 6.12.94 he died.

18.  The evidence of Gulab (PW-1) comes in the category of oral dying
declaration since he categorically stated that deceased told to him that Sanju
dealt knife blows in his abdomen and that appellant Sheru also gave blows to
him. According to Gulab, though Bablu Shukla (Sunil-PW-2) was also present
there, but Sunil stated that deceased did not teil anything to him. He, however,
admitted that on asking of his father he went to the house of Gulab Singh and
called him to his house and that Gulab Singh immediately thereafter reached
his house. Evidence of Gulab Singh however finds support from the evidence
of Lalji Ram (PW-6) who also reached at the house of Shuklaji. When he
went in his house and asked from deceased, he told to him that Sanju and
Sheru assaulted him with Katar etc. He then arranged for a rickshaw and
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along with Gulab Singh carried Bablu to hospital. This witness remained firm
in stating that Bablu told to him that Sanju and Sheru caused injuries to him
with Katar etc. His evidence finds further corroboration from the evidence of
Dr. A.T.Mangtani (PW-5) who deposed that when Lalji Ram brought injured
to him he informed him that injured had told to him that Sanju and Sheru had
caused injuries to him.

19.  Apart from the above evidence, prosecution also examined
S.D.M.Madanlal Kaurav (PW-15) to prove dying declaration Ex.P/19
recorded by him. S.D.M. (PW-15) deposed that on receiving information
from police station for recording dying declaration of Ajay, son of Gulab Singh,
-on 4.12.94 he went to Jan Sewa hospital, Itarsi and at 10:40 a.m. recorded
dying declaration of Ajay. He obtained certificate from doctor about the fitness
and mental condition of Ajay before recording his statement. Deceased stated
that “in the last night at about 8 o'clock just ahead of Panja Chowraha Sanjay
Gadwal and Sheru Goswami dealt Katar blows in his abdomen. They also
had a six round (pistol) which also they took out. He was coming after taking
goods from the shop. Both the assailants lived near his house. Narmada saw
them assaulting. Father's name of Narmada is Devlal. Lalji Badkur had brought
him to hospital. He had no quarrel with them; they used to do Rangbaji (teasing -
girls) because of which quarrel occurred. No more he has to say.” Since there
were injuries on the hands of A_] ay, he obtained his left hand thumb i 1mpressmn
on Ex.P/19.

20.  Learned counsel for the appellants submitted that the said dying
declaration was not reliable. No separate certificate about the fitness of
deceased was taken before recording his dying declaration. We are unable to
accept the submission made by learned counsel. for the appellants for the
reason that the certificate given by Dr. Sanad Dalal is endorsed on the dying
declaration Ex.P/19 itself. Dr. Dalal (PW-14) deposed that on 4.12.94 he
was posted as Surgical Specialist in Jan Sewa hospital, Itarsi. At 10:40 a.m.
3.D.M. Itarsi had recorded dying declaration of Ajay. At that time he was on
the round and he had endorsed the certificate on Ex.P/19 that during recording
of the dying declaration patient had remained conscious. It is true that Dr.
Dalal admitted that the certificate was not given before recording the statement
but he endorsed the certificate when recording of the statement was completed.
Dr. Dalal clarified that though the condition of patient was delicate but it did
not mean that he was not in a position to talk. The delicacy of the condition
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was recorded by him before the patient was sent for operation. This was for
obtaining the consent before administering anesthesia to patient. Learned
counsel for the appellants referring to the evidence of Dr. A.T. Mangtani (PW-
5) submitted that at the time of examination by him deceased was semi-
conscious and was not answering the questions effectively because of shock,
therefore, it was suspicious that his dying declaration could be recorded by
S.D.M. (PW-15). We find no substance in the aforesaid submission. The
condition of patient just after 5-6 hours of the occurrence may be different
then the condition after administering treatment to him. The condition noted
by Dr. Mangtani pertained to the time just after the occurrence on 3.12.94
whereas the dying declaration Ex.P/19 was recorded by S.D.M. on 4.12.94.
Apart fromit, S.D.M. (PW-15) and Dr.Sanad Dalal (PW-14) are not alleged
to have any animus against the appellants for which they would have created
false declaration against them.,

21.  After scanning and critically analysing the evidence of eyewitnesses,
the oral dying declaration and dying declaration Ex.P/19 recorded by S.D.M.
(PW-15), we find them to be cogent, consistent and reliable, as such we hold
that the trial Court committed no error in appreciating the aforesaid evidence
and holding that appellants caused injuries to deceased with knife and Katar
which resulted into his death.

22.  Learned counsel for the appellants contended that since the
eyewitnesses did not say that appellant Sheru @ Narendra dealt any blow
with Katar to deceased, his conviction with the aid of section 34 of the Indian
Penal Code was not justified. We have already discussed that Narmada (PW-
3) and Ram Kumar (PW-4) proved that both the appellants participated in
the incident together, armed with knife and Katar and that while appellant
Sanju dealt blows with knife to deceased, appellant Sheru kept on holding
him armed with a Katar facilitating Sanju to inflict injuries to deceased. Apart
from it, oral dying declarations made by deceased to Gulab Singh (PW-1)
and Lalji Ram (PW-6) and the dying declaration Ex.P/19 recorded by S.D.M.
(PW-15), it clearly stood established that both the appellants caused injuries
to deceased in furtherance of their common intention to cause death of
deceased. In our considered opinion, learned trial Judge rightly convicted
appellant Sheru @ Narmada under section 302/34 of LP.C.

23, Fromthe evidence of Dr.Mangtani (PW-5), who examined the injuries -
of deceased, while he was alive and from the evidence of Dr.D.K.Satpathi
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(PW-8) who conducted autopsy of the body of deceased, it is apparent that
at least 10 injuries were caused on the body of deceased by sharp and pointed
weapon. Injuries were also caused on the vital parts of the body of deceased.
Thus, in our opinion, it stood established that both the appellants assaulted
deceased with knife with the intention of committing his murder,

24.  Forthe aforesaid reasons, the conviction of appellant No.1 Sanju under
section 302 of 1.P.C. and the conviction of appellant No.2 Sheru @ Narendra
under section 302/34 of I.P.C. and the sentence of imprisonment for life
awarded to them by the trial Court is affirmed,

25.  Appeal being devoid of merits, is dismissed.
Appeal dismised,

LL.R. [2013] M.P., 1722
APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice S.K. Seth & Mr. Justice J.K. Maheshwari
Cr. A. No. 789/2005 (Indore) decided on 9 April, 2013

THAVRIYA @ THAVAR SINGH ...Appellant
Vs.
STATE OF M.P. ...Respondent

A. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 302, 352, 84, 304-ITI -
Unsoundness of mind - Various questions put by trial Court to accused
answered satisfactorily - Trial Court observed that he understand that
the act done by him is wrong - Held - Defence of unsoundness of mind
or incapable of knowing the nature of the act committed by him is to be
established by the accused by cogent defence - Otherwise the common

man is presumed to know the nature of the consequence of the act
done. (Paras 7 & 8)
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B. Evidence Act (I of 1872), Section 3 - Evidence of Eye
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Witnesses - Reliability - Appellant caught hold the infant child, push on
his chest, inflicted injury over the stomach by knife thereby his intestine
has come out - Eye witnesses version supported by doetor - Held -
Testimony of witnesses remained in ocular which is apparent from the
autopsy report - Prosecution has proved the charge beyond reasonable
doubt by cogent evidence. (Para9)
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C Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 302 or 304-11 - Murder
or Culpable Homicide not amounting to murder - Appellant created a
scene when he was stopped, he caused injury to his infant son using
knife, which he was having - Held - He was having motive-Offence u/s
302 IPC cannot be converted into Section 304 Part I1, IPC. (Para 10)
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D. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 352 - Use of Criminal
Force - Held - Said charge has been fully established from the evidence
of P.W.1 - No argument to disprove has been made - Same has rightly
been found proved - Appeal dismissed. (Para 11)
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Case referred :
Cr.A. No. 1004/2002 decided on 3Q.1 1.2012.

Vivek Singh, for the appellant.
Raghavendra Singh Bais, Dy. G.A.for the respondent.
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JUDGMENT

The Judgment of the Court was delivered by :
J.K. ManEsRwWARL, J. :- Being aggrieved by the Judgment dated 25.07.2005,
passed by 2nd Additional Sessions Judge (Fast Track) Jhabua, in Sessions
Trial No.356/2004, convicting the appellant for the offence under Section
302, IPC directing to undergo life imprisonment with default stipulation and
for the charge urider Section 352, IPC directing one month's R.1., this appeal
. has been filed under Section 374 of Cr. P.C.

2. As per the prosecution story on 24.08.2004 Noora, wife of the
appellant was admitted in Government Hospital, Thandla due to labour pain,
where she gave birth to male child. She is also having a female child, aged 3
years. On the next date i.e. 25.08.2004 nurse Elizabeth Rawat (PW-2) has
intimated to the Dr. Kiranbala Chaturvedi (PW-1) at 06:15am that appellant
creating violence and dancing with his daughter keeping in his hand and
thereafter, throw her on bed. When the nurse went to save him the accused
taking infant male child in hands inflicted knife injury over the stomach. On
intimation doctor came to the hospital and tried to remove the accused, who
was shouting, thereupon accused also assaulted her. A written intimation was
given to the Police Station Thandla and the medical assistance to the child
was offered thereupon an offence at Crime No.160/2004 at Police Station
Thandla under Section 307, IPC was registered. The infant during treatment
succumbed to the injuries, however, Section 302, IPC was further added,

3. After committal by the Judicial Magistrate First Class, Thandla the
case was assigned to the Sessions Court, Jhabua where the charge under
Section 302 and 352, IPC were framed. Accused has abjured his guilt and
took defence that under influence of some extraneous power he was dancing
and jumping, at that time the incident has taken place. During course of trial
+ the defence of unsoundness of mind of the accused was put-forth but it was
not believed by the trial Court while recording satisfaction as specified under
Section 328, Cr.PC. The prosecution has examined as many as 13 witnesses
while the appellant has not examined any witness in defence. The trial Court
believing the testimony of Elizabeth Rawat (PW-2), Dr. Kiranbala Chaturvedi
(PW-1) and the autopsy report (Ex. P-12) supported by the testimony of Dr.
Ashok Mahajan (PW-12) found the prosecution story proved, however,
convicted the appellant for the said charges and directed to undergo sentence
as specified herein above.

4. The facts in the present case which are not in dispute are that on
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24.08.2004 Noora wife of accused was admitted in Government Hospital,
Thandla at 11:00 am in the morning due to labour pain where a male child was
born at 11:50 am. She is also having a female child, aged three years. It is
also not in dispute that on 25.08.2004 Elizabeth Rawat (PW-2) was posted
on night duty in the Hospital and Dr. Kiranbala Chaturvedi (PW-1) was the
doctor posted in the Government Hospital, Thandla. The infant received knife
-injury over the stomach, due to said injury he has developed septicemia and
succumbed to those injuries.

5. Learned counsel Shri Vivek Singh appearing on behalf of the appellant
has strenuously urged that as per the statement of the prosecution witness
Elizabeth Rawat (PW-2) and Dr. Kiranbala Chaturvedi (PW-1) it is clear that
at the time of incident accused was not of a fit mental state of mind, however
was of unsoundness of mind. It is his contention that he was incapable of
knowing the nature of the act which he was doing is wrong or contrary to law.
In such circumstances he ought to be acquitted accepting the said defence. It
is also his contention that there was no motive to the accused to commit
culpable homicide amounting to murder.Looking to the fact that the injury by
knife has been inflicted all of a sudden without any motive and the incident is
all of sudden, therefore, it may hardly be a ca$¢ of Section 304 Part-II, IPC.
It is also submitted by him that on causing injury the infant was died after
three weeks due to septicemia, therefore, the charge under Section 302, IPC
has not brought at home by the prosecution in the facts of the case. So far as
the charge under 352, IPC is concerned it is submitted that the sentence has
already been undergone, therefore, by allowing this appeal sentence may be
" reduced for the charge under Section 302, IPC setting aside the finding and
the judgment of the trial Court.

6. Shri Raghavendra Singh Bais, learned Deputy Government Advocate
representing the State referring the statement of the prosecution witnesses
and also relying upon the autopsy report and the statement of the doctor
performing the autopsy (Ex. P-12) urged that the injury has been inflicted by
knife by the accused himself to an infant of about 20 hours old. By the said
injury the intestine of the said infant has come out and during treatment
septicemia was developed thereby he has died, therefore, the cause of death
is septicemia developed on account of the injury inflicted by the accused,
however, the trial Court has rightly convicted the appellant and directed the
sentence, thus, interference in this appeal is not warranted.

7. After hearing learned counsel appearing for the parties at length, first
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-of all the defence of unsoundness of mind put-forth by the accused requires
consideration. In this aspect it is relevant to note here that the accused has
moved an application before the trial Court under Section 84, IPC, which
was rejected on 24.12.2004. Learned trial Court has put various questions to
the accused, which has been answered satisfactorily by him. The trial Court
was satisfied that the accused is not of unsound mind. In the said order it was
observed that he is capable of understanding the questions and to answer it. It
has further been observed that he understand that the act done by him is
wrong. In such circumstances after satisfaction the defence put by accused
under Section 84 of IPC was denied. After passing the order by the trial
Court steps were not taken to prefer the appeal before the Medical Board or
to file a revision assailing the said order, however, it has become absolute. In
the said context, on the plea of insanity the guidance can safely be taken by
the Division Bench Judgment of this Court in the case of Bhagirath Vs. State
[Criminal Appeal No.1004 0£2002], decided on 30.11.2012, the Court has
observed as under: -

"11. The law on the subject df insanity is very clear. Section 84
IPC deals with legal insanity as a general exception to an offence
punishable under the Penal code or under any special or penal
law This section lays down the legal test of responsibility in cases
of alleged unsoundness of mind. Under it, a person is not guilty of
an offence, who at the time of doing such act by reason of
unsoundness of mind, is incapable of knowing the nature of the
act or that he is doing what is either wrong or contrary to law.
This is known as Mc'Naghten's Rule. The burden of proving
insanity or non-compos mentis lies on the accused.

It is for him to establish that his cognitive faculties were lost due to
aberration of mind. In other words, defence of unsoundness of
mind being one of the general exceptions to criminal liability, the
prosecution having established the main ingredients of the offence
the burden to prove insanity at the time of occurrence is on the
defense. Everyone is presumed to know the nature or consequence
of his act. The accused may rebut this presumption with cogent
and reliable evidence about his insanity"

8. In view of the foregoing nothing has been brought on record to
establish that the accused was of unsound mind at the time of incident. The
defence of unsoundness of mind or incapable of knowing the nature of the act
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committed by him to be established by the accused otherwise the common
man is presumed to know the nature of the consequence of the act done until
rebutted by cogent defence. In such circumstances the argument on the said
issue of the learned counsel for the appellant is hereby repelled.

9. As per the prosecution story it is apparent that on 25.08.2004 at about
06:15 am when the nurse Elizabeth Rawat (PW-2) was on night duty she visualized
that accused.keeping his daughter on his hand dancing and thrown him on
bed.Thereafter caught hold the infant child and push on his chest. When she has
tried to save him, he was having knife in his hand inflicted injury-to infant son over
the stomach thereby his intestine has come out. She has immediately rushed to
call Dr. Kiranbala Chaturvedi (PW-1). The doctor came on spot, has also
supported the version of Elizabeth Rawat (PW-2) and an intimation of the incident
was given by her to the Police Station. With the help of Police and other persons
the accused was caught hold and sent to the custody. The cause of death of the
infant boy is due to injury received over his stomach by knife, and due to septicemia. .
The said fact is apparent from the autopsy report (Ex. P-12) and the statement of
Dr. Ashok Mahajan (PW12). The testimony of these witnesses has remained in
ocular to inflict the injury by the accused to the infant deceased by knife. In such
circumstances, the prosecution has proved the charge under Section 302, 1PC
beyond reasonable doubt by cogent evidence. Thus, the finding of conviction, as
recorded by the trial Court after due appreciation of the evidence which do not
warrant any interference.

10.  Now;, the argument advanced by learned counsel for the appellant having
no motive to cause death and looking, to the injury it may not be a case of culpable
homicide amounting to murder but it isa case under Section 304-I1 of IPC, requires
consideration. In this respect, as per the evidence of the prosecution witnesses it
is fully proved that the accused has come along with his wife Noora in the Hospital.
Inthe evening he was seated on her bed and discussing on the next day morning -
he has created a seen and when he was stopped by the Hospital staff including
Elizabeth Rawat (PW-2) and Dr. Kiranbala Chaturvedi (PW-1) using a knife
which he was having caused injury to his infant son, who cannot be ina position to
assert. The aforesaid sequel of facts indicates that after creating the scene using a
knife which he was having with him injury has been caused to the infant which
ultimately resulted into death after developing septicemia during treatment. The
infant, who was on the threshold at childhood and not known to the niceties of
society received injury caused by his father and died in the said incident. In such
circumstances it cannot be said that the offence under Section 302, IPC may be
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converted into Section 304 Part-II, IPC and the accused is having no motive.
Considering the aforesaid and looking to the finding so recorded by the trial Court
after due appreciation of the evidence we are of the opinion that the conviction of
the appellant under Section 302, IPC has rightly been directed by the trial Court.

11.  So far as the charge under Section 352, IPC is concerned the said
charge has been fully established from the evidence of the Dr. Kiranbala
Chaturvedi (PW1) and the argument to disprove the said charge has not been
made before this Court. In such circumstances, the charge under Section 352,
IPC has rightly been found prove by the trial Court and the finding of fact so
recorded do not warrant any interference in this appeal.

12.  Accordingly, the appeal filed by the appellant is devoid of any
substance, therefore, upholding the judgment of conviction and sentence so
awarded by the trial Court this appeal stands dismissed. The appellant shall
undergo the remaining sentence as directed by the Court. d

Appeal dismissed.

LL.R. [2013] M.P., 1728
APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice GD. Saxena
Cr.A.No.228/2011 (Gwalior) decided on 10 May, 2013

JAGMOHAN & ors. ' ...Appellants
Vs.
STATE OF M.P. ...Respondent

Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 9 - Delayed Test Identification
Parade - After a lapse of considerable time identification by strangers
cannot be relied on - Identification by a witness for the first time in
court, should not form basis of conviction - Such evidence is a weak
type of evidence unless corroborated by the previous parade or other
evidence - Previous Identification is a check valve to the evidence of
Identification in the court. . (Paral9)
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Rajmani Bansal, for the appellants,
R.K. Shrivastava, P.L. for the respondent/State.

JUDGMENT

G.D. SAXENA, J. :- This appeal under Section 374(2) of the Code of
Criminal Procedure 1973 has been preferred by appellants/accused against a
judgment dated 25th February 2011 in Special Sessions Case No. 22/2008
delivered by the Special Judge, Datia (Under M.P. Dakaity and Vyapaharan
Prabhavit Kshetra Adhiniyam), hereinafter referred to Adhiniyam, thereby
convicting the appellants/accused for commission of offence punishable under
section 397 read with section 13 of the Adhiniyam and sentencing them to
undergo seven years' rigorous imprisonment with a fine of Rs. 5,000/- (Rs.
Five Thousand Only), each, in default of payment of which to serve additional
one year's rigorous imprisonment each by the accused.

(2)  Inbrief, as per prosecution version, the incident in short, is that on |
3rd October 2007 at 8 a.m., when complainant Shahid @ Seth proceeded
from his house on his motorcycle with a cash of Rs.50,000/- to purchase
goats and coming back at around 2 o' clock, then on the way, between Pathhari
to Chak Halai, three miscreants came to him riding on the black coloured
Yamaha Motorcycle bearing No. MP07 CB 0693. The miscreants compelled
him to stop his motorcycle and by putting the country-made pistol on his
chest and neck extorted Rs.35,000/-from his pocket. On the resistance of
complainant, they caused injury on his palm by means of butt of the pistol.
Thereafter the miscreants fled away from the spot. The complainant the lodged
F.I.R. at about 3-50 p.m. on the same day in police station, Jigna district
Datia M.P . The investigation was set in motion. The i injured complainant was
medically examined. During investigation, accused Jagmohan was arrested
on 20th December 2007. Thereafter on information as mentioned in the
memorandum under Section 27 of the Evidence Act, the looted property viz
one currency note of Rs. Five Hundred wrapped in the handkerchief was
recovered. The motorbike used in the incident was also recovered from the
agricultural field situated on village road at Pathari to Chak Halai. The arrested
accused Jagmohan was identified on 5th March 2008 in presence of Shri
P.C. Niranjan Executive Magistrate Datia. Rest two accused Jeewan was
arrested on 12th May 2008 and on his information recorded in Memorandum



1730- Jagmohan Vs. State of M.P. LL.R.[2013]M.P.

under Section 27 of the Evidence Act, looted property viz. one currency note
of Rs. Five Hundred was also recovered from him. Remaining accused Keshav
was absconded. After investigation, the charge-sheet against accused
Jagmohan, Jeevan and supplementary charge sheet against accused Keshav
were filed before the criminal court. On committal, the sessions trial
commenced against the present accused/appellants. The charges for offence
under Section 397 read with section 13 of the Adhiniyam were framed. After
evidence of prosecution, the trial judge convicted the accused and sentenced
them accordingly, hence, the appellants/accused preferred this appeal.

(3)  The contention of the appellants is that the judgment under appeal is
against the law and procedure and therefore same is liable to be set aside. It
is submitted that the trial Judge while convicting the accused/appellants did
not properly assesse the evidence and the documents on record, therefore,
the conclusion arrived at without proper consideration of factual and legal
aspects is not sustainable in law. It is argued that the main ingredients of the
offence under Section 397 of LP.C. are not proved by the evidence on record.
1t is further submitted that for belated test identification of accused Jagmohan,
no cogent reason has been given by the prosecution and the conviction of the

accused is based upon flimsy grounds. Accordingly, itis prayed that by allowing

the appeal, judgment under challenge may be set aside and the accused-
appellants may be acquitted of the alleged offence.

(4)  Per contra, the learned Panel Lawyer appearing on behalf of the
respondent/State contended that the prosecution by placing reliable and cogent
evidence very ably proved the guilt against accused/appellants and there is no

infirmity or illegality committed by the trial court in awarding conviction and

sentence. Hence, it is prayed that by dismissing the appeal, the conviction and
sentence recorded by the learned trial court may be upheld.

(5)  Heard the learned counsel appearing for the appellants and the learned
Panel Lawyer for the respondent/State. Also perused the record of the trial
court and the law applicable to the present case.

(6)  The question for consideration in this appeal is whether the ingredients
of offence of dacoity under Section 397 of I.P.C. are attracted in the present
case and the trial Judge has rightly concluded on the basis of evidence ?

(7)  Heard the learned counsel for the appellants and the learned Panel
Lawyer for the respondent/State. Also perused the record of the trial Judge



ILLR.[2013]M.P. Jagmohan V. State of M.P. 1731
and the law applicable to the case.

(8) To prove the guilt, the prosecution examined in all fourteen witnesses.

(%)  The victim/complainant Shahid (PW-9) deposed in his evidence that
2-3 years ago, he was going from village Pathhai to village Chak for purchasing
the goats on his motor bike. At the time of departure from his residence he
was possessing Rs.50,000/- with him and in village Jugna, he purchased goats
valued Rs.9,000/-. In village Pathhai he purchased the goats valued Rs.
6,000/-. So, at the time of incident he was possessing cash of Rs. 35,000/-
with him. In the noon, when he proceeded from village Chirai to village Chakh,
on way, three accused prevented him. Then accused Jeewan put his country
made pistol on his back while accused Jagmohan put country made pistol on
his head. On the point of pistols, the accused snatched Rs. 35,000/- from his
pocket forcefully. When he objected, the accused inflicted a blow by country-
made pistol injuring his hand. Other accused also assaulted on his body. When
all accused after committing incident ran away, he chased them and tried to
stop by pelting stones. He lodged F.I.R. (Ex.P/6) in Police J igna, Thereafter
the police seized the motor bike used by the accused in commission of crime
by seizure memo Ex.P/4. The police referred him to the District Hospital
Datia for medical examination of the injuries sustained during incident. During
medical examination of the injured, a fracture of left hand was found. In
Panchayat Bhawan in presence of Mahadev Brahmin, he identified currency
note of Rs. 500/- which was soaked with oil drops and the handkerchief of
.pink coloured with engraved number '786' on it. The identification memo to
that respect is Ex.P/5. He also identified the accused in presence of Naib
Tahsildar of Datia by test identification memo Ex.P/7. In cross-examination
the witness admitted that prior to the incident he did not know the name of the
accused and so he did not mention their names in the F.L.R. He also admitted
that at time of offence, one of the accused was covering his face. After incident
he informed the same on mobile phone to his brother Nasir, After lodging
F.LR. by the complainant, a spot map was prepared in his presence and his
case diary statement was also recorded on the day of incident by the police.

(10)  P.C.Niranjan (PW-10) Naib Tahsildar of Tahsil Datia deposed that in
Crime No. 88/2007 of Police Station Jigna on 5th March 2008 he conducted
the test identification pared and complainant Shahid (PW-9) identified accused
Jagmohan among 5-6 persons in prison. Accordingly, he prepared the test
identification memo Ex.P/7.
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(11)  Ajay Chanana {PW-14), Station House Officerof P.S., Jigna deposed
that on 3rd October 2007 at about 3-40 p.m., he being posted as Sub Inspector
in the Police Station Jigna recorded the F.LR. on oral instruction of injured
complainant Shahid and registered the Crime No. 0/61/2007 under section 394 of
L.P.C. and section 11/13 of the Adhiniyam in Police outpost at Urgaova and sent the
FIR for registration of crime in Police Station Jigna. He prepared spot map (Ex.P/7)
in presence on the direction of complainant. On the day of incident he recovered the
motorbike Yamaha black coloured bearing Registration No.MP07 CB 0693 used
in commission of crime by accused from the agricultural field inpresence of complainant
and two attesting witnesses vide Ex.P/4. He stated that the case-diary statement of
the complainant was recorded on the day of incident and the victim was sent for
medical examination on that day to District Hospital Datia. Rest investigation in this
case was conducted by Siddharth Priyadarshan (PW-13) the In-charge of the Police
Station Jigna. He recorded the case diary statements of witnesses from I4thto 17th
December 2007. He received the X-ray report of complainant and spot-map
prepared by Patwari on the basis of revenue recotd. He prepared the memorandum
under Section 27 of the Evidence Act vide Ex.P/2 on the basis of information given
by arrested accused Jagmohan about looted property and thereafter on production
by accused Jagmohan, he seized one currency note of Rs. 500/- wrapped in one
white coloured handkerchief from accused by seizure memo Ex.P/3. On 11th May
2008, he arrested accused Jeewan Parihar by arrest memo Ex.P/11 and on 14th
May 2008 he prepared the memorandum under Section 27 of the Evidence Act
vide Ex.P/12 regarding the currency note of Rs. 500/-. He was also informed of the
weapon of crime (country-made pistol) which was seized by Police Chirula district
Datia. He also recovered currency of Rs.500/- on production by accused Jeewan
by seizure memo Ex.P/13.

(12) Dr. GL.Verma (PW-11) was posted in the District Hospital Datia at
the relevant time. He deposed that on 3rd October 2007 he examined injured
Shahid, son of Mansur Ali, resident of village Choti-Badoni, district Datia who
was brought by Police Constable No. 60 Mahesh and on examination vide his
report (Ex.P/8) he found (i) lacerated wound of size 3 cm. x 4 cm. up to bone
deep on right palm medially ; (ii) contusion of size 2 cm. X 2 cm. onright
frontal head; and (iii) complaining pain on back and chest, but no external
injury. As per the doctor, except injury No.(i) rest were simple and caused by
hard and blunt object. On X-ray examination vide Ex.P/9, little fracture in
fifth metacarpal bone in right hand was detected. This injury was grievous in
nature caused by hard and blunt object. ’
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(13)  Other witnesses Suraj Singh (PW-1) and Yogesh Bhargava (PW-2)
have not supported the prosecution version hence were declared hostile.

(14) Kalicharan Yadav (PW-3) in his statement deposed that police had
seized currency note of Rs.500/- in his presence from accused Jagmohan,
but he denied to have been informed by the accused about the looted property
in his presence, consequence of which the memorandum (Ex.P/2) was
prepared. Saheb Singh (PW-4), constable posted in the Police Station Jigna
deposed that on 3rd October 2007, Sub Inspector Ajay Channa seized one
motor bike bearing registration No. MP 07 CB 0693 from nearby road side
of agricultural field vide seizure memo Ex.P/4. Komal (PW-5), Mahadev (PW-
6), and Kailash (PW-8) who were related to the identification of looted
property turned hostile and they did not support the prosecution version.

(15)  Inthestatements of accused it was pleaded that due to previous enmity
with complainant, they had been falsely implicated and they had no connection
at all. However, no defence witness was examined to prove their plea.

(I16) On perusal of the F.LR. it is gathered that the same was lodged
mentioning the identity of those unknown persons. It is also mentioned that
the corners of looted property viz. currency notes of Rs.500/- which were
wrapped in the handkerchief of white coloured with engraved number '786'
on it, were partly oil soaked.

(17) Now, the question that arises for consideration is as to whether the
accused appeared before the court alongwith an absconded accused robbed
the complainant, as alleged ?

(18) As mentioned above, the complainant Shahid (PW-9) lodged the
report against the miscreants who were not known by names or faces previously
to the complainant. They reached on the spot on black coloured motor bike
bearing registration No. MP 07 CB 0693. That motor bike used in incident
was also recovered on the day of incident lying in abandoned state. The
accused Jagmohan was arrested on 20th December 2007 and he was identified
before P.C. Niranjan (PW-10) Executive Magistrate-cum-Naib Tahsildar Datia
on 5th March 2008 near about three months later from the date of arrest and
no cogent reason was assigned for his delayed test identification. Another
accused Jeewan was arrested on 12th December 2005 after filing the charge
sheet. But no test identification parade was conducted for him. The complainant
Shahid (PW-9) in his court statement identified the accused in dock and also
stated about the specific role in commission of incident. The belated
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identification parade in relation with accused Jagmohan and absence of test
identification parade regarding another accused Jeewan will not help the
prosecution for establishing the crime against the accused Jagmohan and Jeewan
in the incident in question. At this juncture, it would be relevant to refer the
decisions which proceeded on the point in issue as following:

@® Siddanki Ram Reddy V5. State of Andhra Pradesh, (2010)
7 SCC 697, at page 703 : wherein it has been observed as under :-

“23. This Court has held in Daya Singh v. State of
Haryana cited by Mr Reddy that the purpose of test identification
is to have corroboration to the evidence of the eyewitnesses in the
form of earlier identification and that the substantive evidence of a
witness is the evidence in the court and if that evidence is found to
be reliable then absence of corroboration by test identification
would not be in any way material. In the facts of the present case,
a mob attacked the deceased in the crowded corridors of the
Court of the Second Additional District Judge and PW 1,PW 5
and PW 6 in their evidence in the court claim to have seen Accused
1 (appellant) chasing the deceased with an axe and assaulting the
deceased with the axe on his neck. All these three eyewitnesses
have also stated that soon after the assault the appellant ran away
from the court premises. The three eyewitnesses thus saw the
assailant for a very short time when he assaulted the deceased
with the axe and thereafter when he made his escape from the
court premises.

24,  When an attack is made on the injured/
deceased by a mob in a crowded place and the eyewitnesses
had little time to see the accused, the substantive evidence should
be sufficiently corroborated by a test identification parade held
soon after the occurrence and any delay in holding the test
identification parade may be held to be fatal to the prosecution
case. In Lal Singh v. State of U.P,, this Court has held that:
(SCC p. 567, para 28)

“28. Where the witness had only a fleeting glimpse of
the accused at the time of occurrence, delay in holding a test
identification parade has to be viewed seriously.”

({): In Daya Singh v. State of Haryana, (2001) 3SCC
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468, at page 478 : the Hon. Apex Court held as follows :-

“13. The question, therefore, is - whether the evidence of
injured eyewitnesses PW 37 and PW 38 is sufficient to connect
the appellant with the crime beyond reasonable doubt. For this
purpose, it is to be borne in mind that the purpose of test
identification is to have corroboration to the evidence of the
eyewitnesses inthe form of earlier identification and that substantive
evidence of a witness is the evidence in the court. Ifthat evidence
is found to be reliable then absence of corroboration by test
identification would not be in any way material. Further, where
reasons for gaining an enduring impress of the identity on the mind
and memory of the witnesses are brought on record, itisnouse to
magnify the theoretical possibilities and arrive at conclusion - what
in present-day social environment infested by terrorism is really
unimportant. In such cases, not holding of identification parade is
not fatal to the prosecution. The purpose of identification parade
is succinctly stated by this Court in State of Maharashtrav. Suresh
as under: (SCC p. 478, para 22)

“22 We remind ourselves that identification parades are
not primarily meant for the court. They are meant for
investigation purposes. The object of conducting a test
identification parade is twofold. First is to enable the witnesses _
to satisfy themselves that the prisoner whom they suspect is
really the one who was seen by them in connection with the
commission of the crime. Second is to satisfy the investigating
authorities that the suspect is the real person whom the witnesses
had seen in connection with the said occurrence.”

(i) InLal Singh v. State of U.P., (2003) 12 SCC 554, at
page 566 : the Hon. Apex Court observed as follows :-

“28. Thenextquestion is whether the prosecution has proved
beyond reasonable doubt that the appellants®are the real
culprits. The value to be attached to a test identification
parade depends on the facts and circumstances of each
case and no hard-and-fast rule can be laid down. The
court has to examine the facts of the case to find out
whether there was sufficient opportunity for the witnesses
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to identify the accused. The court has also to rule out the
possibility of their having been shown to the witnesses
before holding a test identification parade. Where there is
an inordinate delay in holding a test identification parade,
the court must adopt a cautious approach so as to prevent
miscarriage of justice. In cases of inordinate delay, it may
be that the witnesses may forget the features of the accused
put up for identification in the test identification parade.
This, however, is not an absolute rule because it depends
upon the facts of each case and the opportunity which the
witnesses had to notice the features of the accused and
the circumstances in which they had seen the accused
comrmitting the offence. Where the witness had only a
fleeting glimpse of the accused at the time of occurrence,
delay in holding atest identification parade has to be viewed
seriously. Where, however, the court is satisfied that the
. witnesses had ample opportunity of seeing the accused at
the time of the commission of the offence and there is no
chance of mistaken identity, delay in holding the test
identification parade may not be held to be fatal. It all
depends upon the facts and circumstances of each case.” -

(19)  Inview of the law analysed above, this court has come to conclude
that after a lapse of considerable time in case of total strangers the identification
cannot be relied upon when the witness had only a fleeting glimpse of the
person identified or had no particular reason to remember the person
concerned. Whether the absence of a test identification parade makes the
identification in the dock inadmissible or useless and whether such identification
deserves credence depends on the facts and circumstances of each case but
ordinarily identification of an accused by a witness for the first time in court
should not form basis of conviction, the same being from its very nature
inherently of a weak character unless it is corroborated by his previous
identification in the test identification parade or any other evidence. No doubt,
the previous identification in the test identification parade is a check valve to
the evidence of identification in court of an decused by a witness and the same
is a rule of prudence and not law. Therefore, where an accused is not named
in the first information report, his identification by witnesses after inordinate
delay, should not be relied upon, especially when they did not disclose name
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of the accused before the police. The purpose of prior test identification,
therefore, is to test and strengthen the trustworthiness of the evidence. It is
accordingly considered a safe rule of prudence to generally look for
corroboration of the sworn testimony of witiesses in court as to the identity -
of the accused who are strangers to them, in the form of earlier identification
proceedings but where there is delay in conducting TIP, the court has to be
cautious in placing reliance on the evidence of the victim.

(20) Now coming to the case, this court finds that after arrest of accused -
Jeewan, the memorandum Ex.P/12 regarding the looted property was
prepared and on that ground the part of the looted property was recovered
by seizure memo Ex.P/13. That looted property was identified before witness
Mahadev (PW-6) by complainant Shahid, but this witness turned hostile and
did not support the identification parade proceedings (Ex.P/5) and more so
the looted properties recovered from both accused were not produced for
identification by the complainant during trial, therefore, the looted properties
viz. two currency notes each of Rs. 500/- and specified handkerchief could
not be identified by the complainant. So, in the present case the prosecution
could neither prove the identity of accused nor property looted beyond doubts
and except identification of person and property which are not proved beyond
doubts nothing is on record which may involve the present accused/appellants
in robbery of present incident with the complainant.

(21)  Resultantly, this appeal is allowed and the judgment of conviction and
sentence under appeal is set aside and it is directed that the accused appellants
who are in custody be released forthwith, if not required in any other case.

Appeal allowed.
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APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice Rakesh Saksena & Smt. Justice Vimla Jain
Cr. A. No. 1429/2005 (Jabalpur) decided on 17 May, 2013

RAKESH TIWARI ...Appellant
Vs.

STATE OF M.P. ...Respondent

A. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302 - C ircumstantial
Evidence - Appellant was sleeping with his wife in his room - In the morning -
he lodged a complaint that in the night his wife has committed suicide by
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hanging herself - In postmortem the cause of death was strangulation and
was homicidal in nature - As the appellant was alone in the room and the
explanation given by him appears blatantly false and unreliable -Appellant
is guilty of committing murder. (Paras 11 to 21)
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B. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302 - Suicidal or
Homicidal - Medical Evidence - Ligatures marks were found to be
transverse on the neck however, in the case of suicide they would have
gone upwards - When the team of doctors have opined with certainty that
it was a case of strangulation, then it would be difficult for the Court to
substitute its opinion and hold that the death was suicidal. (Para 16)
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C. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302 - Medical Evidence
- Authoritative text books - Portion of any other authoritative text books
be put to the Doctor with a view to give him an opportunity to explain
his stand. - (Para 16)
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JUDGMENT
The Judgment of the Court was delivered by :

* RAKESH SAKSENA J. :- Since both the appeals arise out of the common

impugned judgment, this judgment shall govern disposal of both the appeals.

2. Appellants have filed the above appeals against the judgment dated
12th July,2005 passed by I Additional Sessions Judge, Khandwa East Nimad
(M.P.) in Sessions Trial No.23/2003 convicting appellant Rakesh Tiwari under
section 302 of the Indian Penal Code and sentencing him to imprisonment for
life with fine of Rs.5000/-. In default of payment of fine further rigorous
imprisonment for one year, and convicting appellants Ramesh Tiwarti,
Smt.Kusumlata Tiwari and Ku.Snehlata Tiwari under section 498-A of the
Indian Penal Code and sentencing them to rigorous imprisonment for 2 years
with fine of Rs.1000/-. In default of payment of fine, further rigorous
imprisonment for 6 months. Appellants Smt. Kusumlata Tiwari and Ku.
Snehlata Tiwari have further been convicted under section 4 of the Dowry
Prohibition Act and sentenced to rigorous imprisonment for 3 years. All the

« jail sentences have been directed to run concurrently.

3. In short, the prosecution case is that Jyoti, the daughter of Naval
Kishore (PW-13) was married to appellant Rakesh Tiwari on 30.6.2002.
After marriage, Rakesh Tiwari, her father-in-law Ramesh Tiwari, mother-in-
law Kusumlata Tiwari and sister-in-law Snehlata Tiwari made demand of dowry
and on not meeting the said demand, subjected her to cruelty. On 30.9.2002,
early in the morning in the room of husband Rakesh Tiwari, Jyoti was found
dead. On the same day, at about 6:45 a.m., accused Rakesh went to police
Kotwali, Khandwa and tendered information that in the night 0£29.9.2002,
he slept with his wife in the same room, but in the morning at about 6:15 a.m.
when he woke up he saw that his wife Jyoti had committed suicide by hanging
on the ceiling fan with the help of her saree. On this information, head constable
Gulab Singh Kajle (PW-12) recorded marg intimation Ex.P/13. When this
information was sent to Sub Divisional Magistrate, Khandwa, on his direction
Additional Tehsildar/ Executive Magistrate Smt. Usha Singh (PW-6) reached
house No.9/24 Police line Khandwa where accused persons resided and
prepared inquest memorandum Ex.P/2. Investigating Officer, after inquest,
sent the dead body to district hospital Khandwa for postmortem examination.
Inthe course of inquiry, statements of witnesses including brothers and brother-
in-law of deceased were recorded.
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4. On 30.9.2002, Gajendra Narvariya (PW-8), Scientific Officer of
Crime Mobile Unit, Khandwa, along with a photo grapher also reached the
spot . He drew up a map of the spot and also got the scene of the crime
photographed. PW-8 sent his report to police Kotwali, Khandwa.

5. On 1.10.2002 at-about 8:30 a.m. Dr.S.B.Jain (PW-7), Dr.N.K.Jain
and Dr.Hemlata Gupta conducted postmortem examination of the dead body
of Jyoti in district hospital, Khandwa. In their opinion, the death of Jyoti was
due to strangulation and was homicidal in nature. '

6 After completing marg inquiry, DSPManoj Shrivastava (PW-16) registered
first information report Ex.P/29 against the accused persons under sections 302 &
498-A/34 of the Indian Penal Code. After completion of investigation, charge sheet,
against the accused persons, was filed in the Court of Chief Judicial Magistrate,
Khandwa and the case was thereafter committed for trial,

7. During trial,accused persons abjured their guilt and denied the charges.
Accused Rakesh Tiwari denied commission of murder of his wife: according
to him, in the morning when he woke up he saw his wife han ging with the help
. of her saree on the fan. Though he removed her string and made her to lie on
the bed but she was not alive. He then reported the matter to police. According
to Ramesh Tiwari, in the night he was on duty at the office of Superintendent
of Police. Kusumlata and Snehlata pleaded false implication. According to
them, they never harassed deceased.

8 To substantiate its case, prosecution examined 16 witnesses. In their
defence, accused Ramesh examined Omkarprasad Sharma (DW-1) and
Kailash Patidar (DW-2). After appreciating the evidence on record, learned
Additional Sessions Judge convicted and sentenced the accused persons as
mentioned earlier. Aggrieved by the impugned judgment of conviction and
sentence, accused/ appellants have preferred these appeals.

9. Shri Prakash Upadhyay, learned counsel for the appellants,submitted that
learned trial Judge mis-appreciated the evidence on record and committed error
in holding that appellants Ramesh Tiwari, Smt. Kusumlata Tiwari and Ku. Snehlata
Tiwari subjected deceased to cruelty and made demand of dowry. He submitted
that learned trial Judge further misappreciated the evidence of Dr.S.B.Jain (PW-
7) and erred in holding that death of deceased was homicidal in nature. On the
other hand, Shri Amit Pandey, learned Panel Lawyer for State and Shri Anand
Nayak, learned counsel for complainant, submitted that the trial Court committed
no error in holding accused/appellants guilty and convicting them. The evidence
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onrecord is sufficient to prove guilt of the appellants. Finding of conviction recorded
by the trial Court does not call for any interference.

10.  We have heard the learned counsel for the parties at length, perused -
the impugned judgment and the evidence on record carefully.

11.  The firstand foremost question in the case is whether the death of deceased
Jyoti was homicidal? Admittedly the death of deceased took place in the room in
which she slept with her husband/accused Rakesh Tiwari. Rakesh, in the morning
at 6:45 a.m. on 30.9.2002, gave intimation at police Kotwali, Khandwa that in
the night he slept with his wife in the room. At about 6:15 a.m. when he woke up

he saw that his wife committed suicide by hanging with a saree on the ceiling fan.

This report Ex.P/13 was recorded as Marg No.44/2002 by head constable Gulab
Singh (PW-12). After receipt of this information, Sub Divisional Magistrate,

Khandwa directed Additional Tehsildar/ Executive Magistrate Smt. Usha Singh

(PW-6) to inspect the spot. PW-6 went at the house of accused persons and
found dead body of deceased kept on the bed. On inspection of the body, she

observed bluish marks on the left arm, right hand, neck and chest of deceased.

She prepared a “Naksha Panchnama” Ex.P/2 and directed body of the deceased

to be sent to district hospital; Khandwa for postmortem examination. She stated
that accused Rakesh told to her that he removed the body of Jyoti from the fan.

On the same day, at about 8:00 a.m., Scientific Officer of Crime Unit Khandwa
Gajendra Narvariya (PW-8) inspected the spot and drew a sketch Ex.P/12 of
the spot. He also got the photographs Ex.P/5 to Ex.P/11 taken by a photographer.

PW-8 deposed that the knot'of the saree was tied about 1 feet away from the fan.

The distance between the bed and the knot was 7 feet and 8 inches. The height of
the bed, on which the body of deceased was lying, was 1 feet and 7 inches. The
stool having height of 1 feet and 8 inches was kept about 4 feet away from the
bed. On opening the lips of deceased, he saw traces of blood under the teeth.
There was slight bluish swelling on the right cheek. There was mild redness in the
eyes. Both the hands of the deceased were bluish.

12. Postmortem examination of the body of deceased was conducted by
Dr. S.B.Jain (PW-7) on 1.10.2002 along with Dr. N.K.Jain and Dr.Hemlata
Gupta. According to Dr. Jain, Rigor mortis was present all over the body of
deceased. The eyes of the deceased were closed and there was swelling on
the face. There were marks of petechial haemorrhage over her neck, upper
part of chest and both the arms. Bleeding was present from both the nostrils.
. A transverse ligature mark was present on the anterior aspect of the neck
below thyroid cartilage. 'Ppstmortem lividity was present on the back. No
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other external injury was seen on the body. On internal examination, he found
thyroid cartilage of the trachea broken. There were blood clots beneath the
ligature mark. Trachea was congested. Left chamber of heart was empty;
right chamber was filled with blood. Brain, spinal cord, diaphragm, ribs, trachea,
right and left lungs, membranes of the eyes, intestine, liver, spleen and kidneys
were congested. In his, and in the opinion of his colleague doctors, deceased
had died of asphyxia due to strangulation within 48 hours prior to postmortem.
The nature of death of deceased was homicidal. Postmortem report Ex.P/3-A
was written and signed by him and also by his colleague doctors.

13.  Dr. Jain was subjected to a lengthy cross-examination. He stated that in cases
of strangulation and throttling struggle marks may or may not come. The ligature marks
found on the neck could have been caused by saree, rope ora 'Dupatta’.

14.  Learned counsel for the appellants submitted that since the tongue of
deceased was found inside the mouth, it was wrongly opined by the doctor
that it was a case of strangulation. He submitted that if it would have been a
case of strangulation, the struggle marks would have been found on the body
of deceased as well as on the body of accused, but since no such marks were

found, it was quite probable that deceased mi ght have committed suicide by’

hanging. Dr. Jain remained firm in his finding and firmly stated that it was nota
case of hanging since the dribbling of saliva from the mouth was not present
and ligature marks were straight in the front whereas in case of hanging the
ligature marks are found going upwards from both sides of the neck. He also
indicated that there was bleeding from the nose. Learned counsel for the
appellants placing reliance on the ratio of the Apex Court decisions rendered
in Subramaniam vs.State of T.N. and Anr.-2009 CRI1.L.J.3002 and Dasari
Siva Prasad Reddy vs. Public Prosecutor, High Court of A.P.-(2004) 11
SCC 282 submitted that though it is a strong circumstance against accused if
death of wife occurs in the matrimonial home and no explanation as to cause
of death is given by accused-husband, but it cannot be made basis for
conviction in absence of any evidence of violence on deceased and further if
the symptoms usually found in death by asphyxia are not found, the opinion of
doctor that the cause of death was asphyxia cannot be relied upon.

15.  Inthe case of Subramaniam (supra), Apex
Court observed:

“14. So far as the circumstance that they had been living
together is concerned, indisputably, the entirety of the situation
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should be taken into consideration. Ordinarily when the
husband and wife remained within the four walls of a house

. and a death by homicide takes place it will be for the husband
to explain the circumstances in which she might have died.
However, we cannot lose sight of the fact that although the
same may be considered to be a strong circumstance but that
by alone in absence of any evidence of violence on the
deceased cannot be held to be conclusive. It may be difficult
to arrive at a conclusion that the husband and husband alone
was responsible therefor.”

Apex Court further observed: “Despite noticing that some of
the usual symptoms that would be available in the case of death
due to asphyxia by smothering were necessary still a purported
formal opinion was arrived at that the prosecution had definitely
established the cause of death.”

16. On examining the evidence adduced by the prosecution in the instant
case, we find that a team of doctors minutely examined the body of deceased
and found that it was a case of homicidal death by strangulation. Had it been
a case of hanging the ligature marks on the neck would not have been found
transverse on the neck, instead they would have gone upwards. When a team
of doctors opined with certainty that it was a case of strangulation and not of
a death by hanging, it would be difficult for this Court to substitute its opinion
and hold that the death of deceased was not homicidal in nature. Though in
cross-examination, Dr.Jain (PW-7) admitted that the Medical Jurisprudence
of Taylor and Modi are recognized treatise in the medical field, but he was
not confronted with any particular portion of the book expressing any
inconsistent opinion under similar circumstances. For discrediting a doctor,
who conducted postmortem examination and gave his opinion, it would be
necessary that the portion of any other authoritative text books be put to him
with a view to give him an opportunity to explain his stand.

17. In the case of Trimukh Maroti Kirkan vs. State of Maharashtra-
(2006)10 SCC 681, the Apex Court held that “where an accused is alleged
to have committed the murder of his wife and the prosecution succeeds in
leading evidence to show that shortly before the commission of crime they
were seen together or the offence takes place in the dwelling house where the
husband also normally resided, it has been consistently held that if the accused
does not offer any explanation how the wife received injuries or offers an
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- explanation which is found to be false, it is a strong circumstance which
indicates that he is responsible for commission of the crime.”

18.  Learned counsel for the appellants submitted that since prosecution
did not prove motive on the part of appellant Rakesh Tiwari to commit murder
of his wife, merely on the basis of circumstance of last seen together, he cannot
be held guilty for committing murder of his wife. In this regard, learned counsel
for the appellants placed reliance on the case of Dasari Siva Prasad Reddy
(supra). With due respect the facts of the said case are different than the facts
of the case in hand. In case of Dasari Siva Prasad Reddy (supra), Apex
Court observed that “High Court agreed with the trial Court that there was no
immediate motive that prompted the accused to kill his wife, the allegation of
accused demanding additional dowry or suspecting the fidelity of his wife was
not established beyond doubt and the evidence relating to deceased last seen
in the company of accused was not reliabie. Therefore, merely because death
of deceased had taken place by asphyxia due to strangulation, the High Court
ought not to have reversed the finding of acquittal of accused recorded by the
trial Court since it was based on possible view.

19.  Intheinstant case, it is admitted case of accused Rakesh Tiwari that -
he was alone with his wife in the night. Scientific Officer Gajendra Narvariya
(PW-8) deposed that knot of saree tied with the fan was about 1 feet away
from the fan. On perusal of photographs of the scene of occurrence, it is
apparent that there was a long gap between the portion of the saree lying
under the neck of deceased and the part of saree tied with the fan. It does not
appear possible for deceased to have shortened the string allegedly made by
saree. Apart from it, it is quite improbable that accused Rakesh, who was
sleeping on the same bed could not wake up when deceased made preparation
of hanging and pushed away the stool from the bed, since without removing
the stool she could not have hanged herself. It is also significant to note that
Executive Magistrate Smt. Usha Singh (PW-6) when inspected the body of
deceased, she found blue marks on the hand, cheek, chest and back of
deceased and further that no dribbling of saliva was found from the mouth.

20. In the light of aforesaid circumstances, we are of the view that learned
trial Judge rightly held that the death of deceased was due to asphyxia by
strangulation and was homicidal in nature, and further that it was only accused
Rakesh Tiwari who caused the death of deceased Jyoti,

21.  Asfarasquestion of motive is concerned, it is not always possible for
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the prosecution to prove the same by direct evidence since motive often remains
hidden in the heart and mind of accused, yet the trial Court found that when
demands of saree and other articles were made from deceased by the mother
and sister of accused Rakesh, it was disclosed by her to her father and brother '
in front of him at Betul. She also disclosed the conduct of his parents and
sister about meeting out cruelty to her in his presence. He therefore, feeling
insulted must have entertained grudge against her, and because of that, in the
night, he strangulated her to death. The explanation given by appellant thatin

~ the morning when he woke up he found deceased hanging with the fan, appears

blatantly false and unreliable. We, therefore, affirm the conviction of appellant
under section 302 of the Indian Penal Code. '

22.  Asfarasthe question of conviction of appellants Ramesh Tiwari, Smt.
Kusumlata Tiwari and Ku. Snehlata Tiwari under section 498-ALP.C. and
conviction of appellants Smt. Kusumlata Tiwari and Ku. Snehlata Tiwari under
section 4 6f the Dowry Prohibition Act is concerned, it rests mainly on the
evidence of Naval Kishore (PW-13), Shyam Kishore (PW-1), Ramkishore
(PW-9) and Basant Kumar Dixit (PW-11). These witnesses are respectively,
the father, brothers and brother-in-law of deceased.

23.  Itisundisputed that marriage of deceased with accused Rakesh Tiwari
took place on 30.6.2002 and deceased died of homicidal death on 30.9.2002.
The death of deceased thus took place exactly within three months after her
marriage. On appreciation of the evidence of aforesaid witnesses, learned
trial Judge in paragraphs 19 & 23 of its judgment found that before 8.7.2002
none of the accused demanded dowry or anything else. Whatever was given
to deceased in marriage were voluntary and customary gifts. However, after
8.7.2002, aforesaid accused persons started making demand of articles and
subjected deceased to cruelty.

24.  Shyam Kishore Shukla (PW-1), the brother of deceased, deposed
that after about 1 month 11 or 12 days of the marriage his brother Rajesh
Shukla took Jyoti to village Kesiya where his parents resided. His another
brother Sanjay when came to Betul, informed him that Jyoti told to him that
her husband, father-in-law and sister-in-law made demand of 20 banarasi
sarees, four daily wear sarees, other clothes, ornaments and full makeup
articles. The same facts were reiterated by Ramkishore (PW-9), another
brother of deceased. Ramkishore (PW-9) stated that when accused Rakesh
came to Betul, Jyoti, in front of him, told that the behaviour of her father-in-
law, mother-in-law and sister-in-law was not good. She also disclosed that
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these persons also told that she (Jyoti) was mad and they would marry Rakesh
again. Rakesh then assured them that the mistake committed by his family
members shall not be repeated.

25.  Naval Kishore (PW-13), the father of deceased, stated that after about
172 months, fatherin- law of Jyoti sent her to village Kesiya where he lived. At
that time his daughter was in pitiable condition. She told him that her in-laws
have made her to swear that she should not tell anything happened in their
house, to her parents otherwise her all the four brothers shall die. She disclosed
about the intimidation given by them that they will kill her. They only gave left
over food to her to eat and taunted her. Naval Kishore stated that deceased
told to him that her in-laws made demands of 20 banarasi sarees, other clothes,
wheat, rice and other articles from her. They also intimidated her to leave their
house after packing her luggage. Naval Kishore stated that J yoti narrated all
the facts about cruelty meted out to her by her in-laws, at Betul before accused
Rakesh when he came there. He admitted that Rakesh apologised for the
same and assured that there shall be no complaint in future. Though, certain
contradictions and omissions were pointed out by the learned counsel in the
statement of Naval Kishore (PW-13), but after perusal of his police statement
Ex.D/15 we find that there were no such omissions, but the facts were recorded
in somewhat different manner.

26. After a careful scrutiny of the evidence of aforesaid prosecution
witnesses, we find that the learned trial Judge committed no error in holding
that appellants Ramesh Tiwari, Smt. Kusumlata Tiwari and Ku.Snehlata Tiwari
subjected deceased to cruelty punishable under section 498-A of the Indian
Penal Code, and that Smt. Kusumlata Tiwari and Ku. Snehlata Tiwari also
committed offence under section 4 of the Dowry Prohibition Act. Their
conviction on the aforesaid charges is, therefore, affirmed.

27.  Learned counsel for the appellants submitted that the incident had
occurred in the year 2002 since then about 10 years have elapsed. Appellants
Ramesh Tiwari, Smt. Kusumlata Tiwari and Ku.Snehlata Tiwari have already
remained in jail for a period of over three months. Appellants Ramesh Tiwari
and Kusumlata Tiwari have now grown old attaining age above 60 years.
Snehlata Tiwari has been married and is now living with her husband and
family members. If they are sent back to jail after so many years again, it shall
serve no useful purpose. In these circumstances, he prayed that their sentence
of imprisonment for 2 years under section 498-A L.P.C. be reduced to the
period of sentence already undergone by them. We find substance in the

e
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submission made by learned counsel for the appellants.
28. For the aforesaid reasons:

(i) Criminal Appeal No.1429/2005 of appellant Rakesh Tiwari
is dismissed. His conviction and sentence awarded by the trial
Court under section 302 LP.C. is affirmed.

(ii) Criminal Appeal No.1431/2005 is partly allowed.
Conviction of appellants No.1 Ramesh Tiwari, No.2
Smt.Kusumlata Tiwari and No.3 Ku.Snehlata Tiwari under
section 498-ALP.C. is affirmed. However, sentence of rigorous
imprisonment for 2 years awarded to them by the trial Court
is reduced to the period of sentence already undergone by
them. Sentence of fine is affirmed. Conviction and sentence
awarded to appellants No.2 Smt. Kusumlata Tiwari and No.3
Ku.Snehlata Tiwari undér section 4 of the Dowry Prohibition
Act is affirmed. Their bail bonds afid surety bonds stand
discharged.

A copy of this judgment be kept in the record of Criminal Appeal

. No.1431/2005.

Order accordingly.

LL.R. [2013] M.P., 1747
CRIMINAL REVISION
Before Mr. Justice N.K. Gupta
Cr. Rev. No. 367/2011 (Jabalpur) decided on 14 May, 2013

ANIRUDH SAINI " ...Applicant
Vs. _
PIYUSH AGRAWAL ' ...Non-applicant

A. Negotiable Instruments Act (26 of 1881), Sections 138
& 139 - Burden of Proof - Initially the burden of proof is on accused to
rebut the presumptions u/s 139 of N.I. Act by raising a probable defence
- If he discharges the said burden, the onus thereafter shifts on the
complainant to prove his case. .. (Paral4)

oy gesTey [ereaa afSifras (1881 &1 26), S9IRT¢ 138 T 139 —
GYT #7 977 — WA 9919 9 $a qeh faaa afufras a1 ensr 139
P Aqud SUEnRl &1 Wed $ @ foay, 9gu o7 9R uRfe vu ¥
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B. Negotiable Instruments Act (26 of 1881), Sections 138 &
139 - Burden of Proof - In cases of Section 138 of N.I. Act, presumption -
u/s 139 of N.I. Act may not lead to injustice or mistaken conviction -
Doctrine of reverse burden introduced by Section 139 of N.I. Act should
be delicately balanced.’ (Para 14)

A vml%f@ﬂsl@ﬁav(mafwzsjmﬁmaamg—
wqT BT AV — GGHT o AP @ eRT 138 @ gewot ¥, qxepTe
forera aiftifrem &Y arr 139 & awia SueRYn, ST AT ey sty
@1 ik T A o wed — werw faew afifrm @ awrr 139 gRT
gETfaa fawde wv &1 fugta genm 9 wgfa s e

1
Cases referred ;

(2009) 6 SCC 72, (2006) 6 SCC 39, (2008) 4 SCC 54, (2013) |
SCC 327, (2010) 6 SCC 230.

. Anil Khare with Harjeet Singh Chhabra, for the applicant.
Sanjay Dwivedi, for the non-applicant.

ORDER"

N.K.Guprta, J: These two criminal revisions arose from the judgment
dated 4.2.2011 passed by the Additional Judge to the First Additional Sessions
Judge, Jabalpur in Criminal Appeal No.317/2009, and therefore both these
revisions are decided by the common order.

2. Applicant Anirudh Saini (herein after he would be referred as “applicant/
accused”) was convicted for the offence under Section 138 of the Negotiable
Instruments Acts (for brevity “N.L Act”) vide judgment dated 9.10.2009 passed
by the IMFC Jabalpur (Shri Ajay Kumar Smgh) in Complaint Case No.28694/
2006 whereby he was sentenced for two years' RI with fine of Rs.1,000/- and
compensation of Rs.8 lakhs. In Criminal Appeal No.317/2009 the learned First
Additional Sessions Judge, Jabalpur vide judgment dated 4.2.2011 partly allowed
the appeal by which the conviction was maihtained, but the sentence of two years
RIwas altered, whereas the sentence of fine and compensation was maintained.

Being aggrieved with both the judgments, the apphcant/accused has filed the prcsent
criminal revision No.367/2011. :

3. On the other hand, the applicant Piyush Agrawal (herein after he would
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be referred as “complainant”) has preferred criminal revision No.468/2011
against the impugned judgment to set aside the impugned _]udgment and to
maintain the sentence directed by the trial Court. e

4. The complainant had preferred a complaint against the applfcant/
accused that the applicant/accused was involved in share marketing whereby
he lost some amount, and therefore a cheque 0f Rs.7,67,027/- was issued in
favour of the complainant. When the cheque was submitted for its encashment,
the complainant was informed that the cheque could not be encashed, because
a direction of stop payment was given by the applicant/accused. Thereafter a
notice of the demand was given to the applicant/accused, but he did not pay
the amount of the cheque, and therefore a complaint was filed.

5. The applicant/accused has submitted a reply to the complaint that some
utensils were purchased by the applicant/accused from the complainant, and
therefore a payment of Rs. 1200/~ was to be made to the complainant. Therefore,
the applicant/accused detached the cheque fromthe cheque book, but it was
lost during transit in Gorakhpur area on 27.10.2004. The applicant/accused
came to know that the complainant has fraudulently submitted a cheque with
the sum of Rs.7,67,027/-, thereupon he directed the bank to stop-the payment,
as no sum was due towards the applicant/accused. The applicant/accused had
also filed a complaint against the complainant for the offence under Section 420
of IPC. One such case was also lodged by Smt. Sobha Soni against the
complainant for a cheque of Rs.1 lakh, which was dishonoured.

6. Ultimately, the applicant/accused abjured his guilt. He took a specific
plea in the defence that the complainant had mentioned the amount on the cheque
in his own handwriting and no amount was due towards the applicant/accused.
In defence Hoshiyar Keshav Chinoy (DW-1) was examined, whereas so many
documents Ex.D-2 to Ex.D-10 were produced in support of the defence.

7. Thelearned IMFC, Jabalpur after considering the evidence adduced
by the parties convicted and sentenced the applicant/accused as mentioned
above, whereas in appeal the jail sentence was removed by the learned appellate
Court.

8. I have heard the learned counsel for the parties at length.

9. The leamed senior counsel for the applicant/accused has submitted that the
cheque was not issued. It was stolen, and therefore its payment was stopped. The
complainant has claimed that the cheque was given because of transaction done by
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the applicant/accused with the complainant. However, it is proved by the defence
witness Hoshiyar Keshav Chinoy (DW-1) that the applicant/accused had direct
transaction with the main broker and not with the sub-broker, and therefore no
amount was due to be paid to the complainant. Therefore, no cheque was given to
the complainant. The learned senior counsel for the applicant/accused has read the
statements of various witnesses to show that no transaction took place between the
applicant/accused and the complainant. The applicant/accused had lodged reports
Ex.D-1 and Ex.D-6 about missing of the cheque. It was for the complainant to
prove the liability upon the applicant/accused to pay the sum. In support of his
contention, he has placed reliance upon the judgments of Hon’ble the Apex Court in
the cases of “Raj Kumar Khurana Vs. State of (NCT of Delhi)” [(2009) 6 SCC
72], “M.S.Narayana Menon alias Mani Vs. State of Kerala” [(2006) 6 SCC
39], “Krishna Janardhan Bhat Vs. Dattatraya G Hegde” [(2008) 4 SCC 54]
and “Reverend Mother Marykutty Vs. Reni C. Kottaram” [(2013) 1 SCC 327].

10.  On the other hand, the learned counsel for the complainant has
submitted that the transaction was admitted. The applicant/accused could not
prove that his cheque was stolen. On the contrary, it was established that he
issued the cheque in the name of the complainant himself, and therefore all
aforesaid judgments of Hon’ble the Apex Court are not applicable in the present
case due to difference of factual aspects. The complainant had lodged a
complaint prior to the FIRs lodged about the lost of the cheque, and therefore
the FIRs relating to lost of the cheque were nothing, but an after thought
overt-act of the applicant/accused to defeat the payment. It is further submitted
that looking to the conduct of the applicant/accused, he should have been
punished with the jail sentence.

11. After considering the submissions made by the learned counse! for the
parties, if the evidence adduced by the parties is perused, then it is apparent that
acheque Ex.P-1 for a sum of Rs.7,67,027/- in the name of the complainant was
in fact issued from the cheque book of the applicant/accused. The applicant/
accused has submitted in reply to the complaint filed under Section 138 of the
N.L Act that no cheque was given to the complainant, but it was stolen and
there was nothing to be paid by the applicant/accused towards the complainant.
The applicant/accused has submitted an affidavit that he had lodged a report
Ex.D-5 to the bank for stoppage of the payment and an FIR Ex.D-6 was also
lodged at Police Station Gorakhpur, Jabalpur. He had also moved a complaint
against the complainant that he had a direct relation with Mehta & Company,
who was broker in the National Stock Exchange, Mumbai and no transaction
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took place between the applicant/accused and the complainant. In support of
his defence, Hoshiyar Keshav Chinoy (DW-1) was also examined. Initially the
applicant/accused took a defence that he had to pay a sum of Rs.1200/- towards
the sale price of some utensils to the complainant, but the cheque was stolen.
‘However, in the statement before the trial Court the applicant/accused did not
mention anything about that fact that he purchased some utensils from the
complainant for sum of Rs.1200/-, and therefore it would be apparent that the
applicant/accused has waived such a defence.

12.  Onconsidering the evidence given by the parties, prima facie if the
cheque Ex.P-1 is perused, then it is true that it was not filled up in the
handwriting of the applicant/accused. The learned senior counsel for the
applicant/accused has submitted that the burden was shifted upon the
complainant to prove that the cheque was issued to the complainant. In support
of his contention, he has placed his reliance upon the judgment of Hon’ble the
Apex Court in the case of Reverend Mother Marykutty (supra) which says
that if the cheque is not in the handwriting of the accused, then it would
strengthen defence version that the cheque was not issued in favour of the
payee/complainant. However, the factual position of the case is different, and
therefore by the fact that the cheque was not in the handwriting of the accused,
no adverse effect is caused in the present case. If the cheque Ex.P-1 is
perused, then it would be apparent from the cheque that initially the date of
the cheque was mentioned to be 27.7.2006 and thereafter it was modified
and the date 14.10.2004 was written on the cheque and the applicant/accused
placed his signature on that correction in the cheque. If the blank cheque with
the signature of applicant/accused was stolen, then there was no possibility
that the applicant/accused would have appended his signature for the correction
of the date, and therefore the story of theft of the cheque is nothing, but an
after thought and after putting a future date on the cheque the applicant/accused
moved various applications before the bank and the police about the theft
and to stop the payment of the cheque. It is not the case of the applicant/
accused that the cheque was issued to someone else or stop payment was
directed, because there was a dispute of accounts between the parties. Under
such circumstances, where the applicant/accused appended his signature on
the modification of the cheque, clearly indicates that it was not lost but it was
given to the complainant. Under such circumstances, the burden is not only
shifted upon the complainant, but the applicant/accused could not discharge
his burden that the cheque was not issued to the complainant.
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13. - The learned senior counsel for the applicant/ accused has also relied
upon the judgment of Hon’ble the Apex Court in the case of Raj Kumar
Khurana (supra) that if the cheque was lost, then the accused cannot be
convicted for the offence under Section 138 of NI, Act. However, in the
present case, it is proved that the cheque was not lost, but it was issued to the
complainant by the applicant/accused after modification of its date and
remaining portion of the cheque was filled up by some other person. Under
such circumstances, the law laid down in the case of Raj Kumar Khurana
(supra) cannot be applied i in the present case.

14. Once the cheque was issued in favour of the complainant, then again
the burden shifts upon the accused to prove that the sum which was mentioned
in the cheque was not due towards the complainant. In this connection, the_
judgment of Hon’ble the Apex Court in the case of Krishna Janardhan Bhat
(supra) may be perused, in which it is mentioned that in cases of Section 138
of the N 1. Act, presumption under Section 139 of the N.1. Act may not be
lead to injustice or mistaken conviction. The presumption of innocence is a
human right and the doctrine of reverse burden introduced by Section 139 of
N.I Act should be delicately balanced. Such balancing acts would largely
depend upon the factual matrix of each case, the materials brought on record
and having regard to legal principles governing the same. Also in the case of
M.S. Narayana Menon alias Mani (supra) Hon’ble the Apex Court has held
that initially the burden of proofis on accused to rebut the presumptions under
Section 139 of the N.I by raising a probable defence. If he discharges the
said burden, the onus thereafter shifts on to the complainant to prove his case.
In the light of the aforesaid judgment, the burden to prove the innocence appears
to be upon the applicant/accused, because his plea that his cheque was lost
appears to be a falsehood. He gave a cheque after modification of its date,
and therefore it was not lost. Thereafter he made so many complaints but such
complaints were made only to defeat the issuance of the cheque. By such
complaints, it is not proved at all that the cheque was lost. Under such
circumstances, where the preliminary burden was discharged by the
complainant that the applicant/accused dealt in the share market and for losses
caused to him, he gave a cheque to the complainant. The cheque is not given
on round figure basis but it is given for specific sum of Rs.7,67,027/- which
indicates that the cheque was issued after calculation of the loss caused to the
applicant/accused. Therefore, a heavy burden was caused upon the applicant/
accused to prove that the cheque was not given to the complainant.
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15, | Itisapparent that the applicant/accused could not discharge his burden
. inany manner. To rebut the allegation of the complainant, the applicant/accused
* -examined one Hoshiyar Keshav Chinoy (DW-1) to show that he had direct
connection with broker Mchta & Company for transaction in the share market
and he never entered in such a contract with the complainant. However, the
witness Hoshiyar Keshav Chinoy (DW-1) has accepted that it was the
complainant who introduced the applicant/accused with broker Mehta &
Company. He has also admitted that he has produced the account which was
related to the cash transaction and he could not show any account which was
related to the cheque transaction or transaction done on oral instructions.
Under such circumstances, by the evidence of this witness, it was proved that
the applicant/accused eiitered into the share marketing with the help of the
complainant and he was introduced to Mehta & Company by the complainant.

16.  Theapplicant/accused was expected to come with a clean hand that the
amount which is shown in the cheque was not due to be paid by him and he
should have either filed a suit for accounts in civil side from the complainant or he
could have said that the amount which was filled up in the cheque was excessive
and it was not due, therefore the applicant/accused directed for stoppage of the
payment, but the applicant/accused did not take such a plea in the entire case. On
the contrary, first of all he denied that the cheque was issued to the complainant
and secondly he has stated that no share business was done by him through the
complainant. However, the applicant/accused could not prove the aforesaid defence
taken by him, and therefore now the burden which was shifted upon the applicant/
accused was not discharged, and therefore the presumption in favour of the
complainant takes a shape of proofthat a sum of Rs.7,67,027/- was due towards
the applicant/accused. Thereafter by an act which was not bonafide at all, the
applicant/accused not only stopped the payment of the cheque but also lodged a
counter complaint against the complainant. Hence, the offence under Section 138
" of the N.I. Act is established against the applicant/accused that sum of
Rs.7,67,027/- was due towards the complainant and the applicant/accused had
issued a cheque in favour of the complainant for payment of that sum and the
cheque was dishonoured. Under such circumstances, both the courts below did
not commit any error in convicting the applicant/accused for the offence under
Section 138 of the N.I. Act. There is no basis by which any interference can be
done in the concurrent findings of both the courts below relating to the conviction
. for the offence under Section 138 ofthe N.I. Act, which was based on the evidence
and facts.
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17.  So faras the sentence is concerned, the complainant has also filed a
revision that the appellate Court has reduced the jail sentence of the applicant/
accused without any basis. The learned senior counsel for the applicant/accused
could not show any precedent in the matter that the sentence reduced by the
appellate Court was proper. However, Hon'ble the Apex Court in the case of
“K.A. Abbas H.S.A. Vs. Sabu Joseph and another” [(2010) 6 SCC 230]
has held that the default sentence can be granted for default in payment of
compensation awarded under Section 357(3) of Cr.P.C. The whole purpose
of the provision is to accommodate the interests of the victims in the eriminal
justice system. Sometimes the situation becomes such that there is no purpose
served by keeping a person behind bars. Instead directing the accused to pay
an amount of compensation to the victim or affected party can ensure delivery
of total justice. By the aforesaid judgment, it would be apparent that while
reducing the sentence, interest of the complainant/victim should not be
overlooked. In the case of N.I. Act a sentence is prescribed and simultaneously
a provision of compensation is also prescribed, which would be dependent
upon the value of the cheque. Under such circumstances, while granting the
sentence, the grant of compensation has a different rol¢ in the present situation.
By aforesaid judgment Hon'ble the Apex Court did not prohibit to direct jail
sentence in an appropriate case. If the overt-act of the applicant/accused is
considered, then he refused to pay the sum though he had issued a cheque in
favour of the complainant, he lodged a counter complaint against the
complainant. He did not deposit any amount in compliance to the judgment of
the trial Court. He did not deposit much amount during the appeal. Under
such circumstances, looking to the overt-act of the applicant/ accused, it is
not the case in which the applicant/accused may be released without any jail
sentence. In the present case, mere grant of compensation is not an effective
sentence. The compensation may be granted to the victim after giving an effective
sentence in the case. Looking to the facts and circumstances of the case and
conduct of the applicant/accused, it is apparent that the learned Additional
Sessions Judge has committed an error in removing the entire jail sentence
passed against the applicant/accused. A nominal jail sentence was required to
be passed in the present criminal case.

18. On the basis of the aforesaid discussion, the Criminal Revision No.367/ -
2011 filed by the applicant/accused cannot be accepted. There is no basis by
which any interference can be done in the concurrent findings of both the
Courts below, and therefore conviction directed by both the courts below for
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the offence under Section 138 of N.I. Act is hereby maintained. The fine and
compensation imposed by the appellate Court are also maintained. Therefore
the Criminal Revision No.367/2011 filed by the applicant/accused is hereby
dismissed. Whereas Criminal Revision No.468/2011 filed the complainant is
hereby partly allowed. The judgment relating to the jail sentence of the
applicant/accused passed by the learned Additional Sessions Judge is hereby
set aside up to that extent which relates to the sentence. However, the sentence
of two years' RI directed by the trial Court is reduced to the period of six
months' RI, and therefore Cr.R. No.468/2011 filed by the complainant is
hereby partly allowed. The applicant/ accused shall also undergo for six months'
RI for the offence under Section 138 of N.I, Act.

19.  The applicant-accused is directed to surrender before the trial Court
without any delay so that he may be sent for execution of jail sentence.

20.  Acopy of this order be sent to the trial Court as well as the appellate
Court for information and compliance.

Order accordingly.
LL.R. [2013] M.P., 1755 '
CRIMINAL REVISION

Before Mr. Justice Brij Kishore Dube
Cr. Rev, No. 493/2013 (Gwalior) decided on 26 July, 2013

SHARIF KHA ... Applicant

Vs.
GAJANAND & anr, ... Non-applicants

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Sections 391 &
401 - Judicial Magistrate First Class, convicted the accused u/s 138 of
the Negotiable Instruments Act and sentenced to suffer imprisonment
with fine - Petitioner/accused preferred an appeal against the judgment
of conviction and sentence - During pendency of the appeal, an
application u/s 391 of Cr.P.C. was filed by the petitioner for taking two
documents as additional evidence - The application was allowed and -
by keeping the appeal pending for decision by the impugned order, the
matter was remanded back to the Trail Court for recording the
additional evidence of the parties - Held - No infirmity and illegality in
the impugned order that may call for any interference in exercise of
the revisional jurisdiction. (Paras 2 & 14)
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Cases referred :
2010 CR.L.R.(MP) 647,2009(1) MPHT 439.

Shishir Saxena, for the applicant.
Ravi Gupta, for the non-applicant No.1.
Kuldeep Singh, P.L., for the non-applicant No.2/State.

ORDER

Bru Kisrore DuBke,J: This Criminal Revision under Sections 397
and 401 of the Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 (for short the ‘Code') is preferred
against the order dated 07/06/2013 passed by Il Additional Sessions Judge,
Guna in Criminal Appeal No.390/11 whereby allowed an application under Section
391 of the Code submitted by the petitioner herein/appellant and remanded the
matter back to the Trial Court for recording the additional evidence.

2. Short facts of the case are that on the basis of a private complaint filed
by the respondent herein/complainant, the Trial Court had taken cognizance
under Section 138 of the Negotiable Instruments Act (for short the 'Act')
against the petitioner herein/accused and the case was proceeded. Vide the
judgment dated 02/09/2011 passed in Criminal Case N0.914/2009 by the
. Judicial Magistrate, First Class, Guna, convicted the accused under Section
138 of the Actand sentenced to suffer 06 months rigorous imprisonment with
fine 0of Rs.2,50,000/. Bemg aggrieved thereof, the petitioner herein/accused
preferred an appeal against the judgment of conviction and order of sentence
which was numbered as Cr. Appeal No.390/2011. During pendency of the
appeal, an application under Section 391 of the Code was preferred by the
petitioner herein for taking two documents as additional evidence. The
application was allowed and by keeping the appeal pending for decision, by

the impugned order the matter was remanded back to the Trial Court for
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recording the additional evidence of the parties by passing the following order:
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3. Against the aforesaid remanded order, the present revision is preferred
by the petitioner herein/accused.

4. Learned counsel for the petitioner submits that the impugned order is
illegal, incorrect and deserves to be set aside as the Appellate Court remanded
the matter only for a limited purpose. Looking to the nature of the documents,

the Appellate Court should have remanded the whole matter for deciding it
afresh after setting aside the judgment of conviction and order of sentence
passed against the petitioner herein/accused. According to him, the learned
Appellate Court erred in law by remanding the matter for a limited purpose.
Learned counsel prays for setting aside the impugned order and to remand
the whole matter to the Trial Court for fresh decision. In support of his
contention, he has placed reliance on the decision of Shobharam and others
Vs. State of M.P,, 2010 Cr. L.R. (MP) 647.

5. In response, learned counsel for the respondent No.1 argued in
support of the impugned order, however, he submitted that looking to the
nature of the documents submitted by the accused, the Appellate Court should
itself decide the case and should have not remanded the matter back to the
Trial Court for recording the additional evidence. In support of his contention,
he placed reliance on the decision of this Court in the case of Babulal S/o
Mukund Shah Gupta and others Vs. State of M.P., 2009(1) MPHT 439.

6. Considered the rival contentions of the learned counsel for the parties.
7. Section 391 of the Code reads as under:
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“391. Appellate Court may take further evidence or directitto be -
taken:

(1)  In dealing with any appeal under this Chapter, the
Appellate Court, if it thinks additional evidence to be necessary,
shall record its reasons and may either take such evidence itself,
or direct it to be taken by a Magistrate, or, when the Appellate
Court is a High Court, by a Court of Session or a Magistrate.

(2)  When the additional evidence is taken by the Court of
Session or the Magistrate, it or he shall certify such evidence
to the Appellate Court, and such Court shall thereupon proceed
to dispose of the appeal.

(3)  Theaccused or his pleader shall have the right to be
present when the additional evidence is taken.

()] The taking of evidence under this section shall be subject
to the provisions of Chapter XXIII, as if it were an inquiry. ”

8. From a bare perusal of sub-section (1) of Section 391 of the Code, it
is clear that in dealing with an appeal, the Appellate Court if it thinks additional
evidence to be necessary, shall record its reasons and may either take such
evidence itself, or direct it to be taken by a Magistrate.

9. Section 391 of the Code forms an exception to the general rute that an
appeal must be decided on the evidence which was before the Trial Court.
_The Section does not contemplate retrial but only taking of the additional
evidence Appellate Court may itself take further evidence or direct Magistrate
to take fresh evidence on a particular point where it feels that it is necessary in
the interest of justice and for a proper decision.

10.  InShobharam & others (supra), this Court held as under:

“Keeping in view the fact that in the incident, which took place for
which the case was registered at Crime No. 219/2004 the
appellants also sustained injuries and upon the complaint of the
appellants party case was registered at Crime No.218/2004 and
also keeping in view the aforesaid position of law the application
filed by the appellants is allowed and the impugned judgment
passed by the learned Sessions Court is set aside and the case is
remanded back to the Sessions Court to give an opportunity to
the appellants to adduce the evidence in defence and pass a fresh

\*



.

LL.R.[2013]M.P. Ajay Goenka (Dr.) Vs. State of M.P. 1759

judgment. It is also made clear that while passing the Judgment
learned Sessions Judge shall also take into consideration the final
outcome of criminal case registered at Crime No.219/2004.

- Parties are directed to remain present before the learned Court
below on 14.05.2010.”

11. InBabulal S/o Mukund Shah Gupta and others {(supra), this Court
held that it is well settled that though an Appellate Court has power to take

additional evidence in a suitable case, but the discretion should not be exercised -

to fill up gaps or lacunae in the prosecution case though Section 391 of Cr.P.C.,
is akin to Order XLI Rule 27 of C.P.C., but avoids de novo trial.

12. Thus, the case cited by the learned counsel for the petitioner in the
case of Shobharam and others (supra) is distinguishable and not applicable
to the case in hand.

13. So far as the case cited by the learned counsel for the respondent in
the case of Babulal S/o Mukund Shah Gupta dnd others (supra) is concerned,
since the discretion as available under Section 31 9(1) of the Code has been
properly exercised by the Appellate Court in the case in hand, no error of
jurisdiction has been committed in remanding the case to the Trial Court for
recording the additional evidence.

14, Resultantly, in the facts and circumstances of the case, the settled legal
position and for the reasons given hereinabove, I do not find any infirmity and
illegality in the impugned order that may call for any interference in exercise of
the revisional jurisdiction under Sections 397 read with 401 of Cr. P.C,, This
revision petition is devoid of merit and is therefore, dismissed.

Revision dismissed.

LL.R. [2013] M.P., 1759
MISCELLANEOUS CRIMINAL CASE
- Before Mr. Justice Anil Sharma
M.Cr.C. No. 12249/2012 (Jabalpur) decided on 1 March, 2013

AJAY GOENKA (DR.) & ors. ...Applicants
Vs.
STATE OF M.P. & ors. ...Non-applicants.

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 156 (3) -
Investigation - Power conferred under Section 156(3) of Cr.P.C. on Judicial
Magistrate is to be exercised with due caution - Before doing so he has to
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apply his mind to know whether allegations in complaint, prima facie, make
out a case - Dispute between the complainant and petitioner is regarding
setflement of account which is a civil dispute - Magistrate was not justified
in referring the matter without assigning any reason and without
considering the complaint - Order passed by JMFC and F.I.R. registered
in pursuance of order of Magistrate quashed. (Paras 12 & 13)

gvg §iFar GfRTT 1973 (1974 ®T 2), 8T 156(3) — <97 — SY.4.
B GRT 156(3) B Iad, G ARgT S e I TS wiE B g
TeE waErl @ W fear arr afey - ¢ T 9 gd 99 e Rass
FT GAIT BT ART UF oW @ fad B e era @ sfiees gem
TRAT 4ERoT Ied B § -~ Romawal 1@l F 9 der @ e 9
gefera faars Rifae faare @ - o) aru R fer sk frerm ) AR 63
famr aioreee BT A PR fear s Smaifte w6 — =iy atawie
yory v g WY fpar T AR ik RrRtE @ Aty © ATEROT A
goflag &) R gom e Raid afrafsa)

Cases referred :

2008 CR.L.J. 2287, 2006 CR.L.J. 3180, 1998 CR.L.J. 463, 2001
CR.L.J. 3363, 1997 CR.L.J. 3948, (2008) 5 SCC 668, (1998) 1 SCC 692.

djay Gupta, for the applicants.
Pratibha Mishra, P.L. for the non-applicant No. 1/State.
None for other non-applicants.

ORDER

ANIL SHARMA, J: By invoking the inherent jurisdiction of this Court, the
instant petition has been filed by the petitioners under Section 482 of Code of
Criminal Procedure,1973 for quashing the proceedings of FIR registered at crime
No.68/12 at Police Station Talaiya District Bhopal and also for quashing the
subsequent proceedings initiated thereupon being abuse of process of law.

2- The brief facts in narrow compass are that respondents No.2 & 3 against
the petitioners alleging commission of offence punishable under Sections 420,
406,415 and 120-B of IPC stated that they have done the construction work of
Hospital Building of Chirayu Medical College and Hospital which belongsto Chirayu
Charitable Trust located at Village Bhainsakhedi, Tahsil Huzoor District Bhopal. It
‘has been further stated that the work of construction was got executed by petitioner
No.1 -Dr. Ajay Goenka, Secretary Trustee on behalf of the Trust and the work of

construction has been executed by Mr. Vipin Goel. Complainant has further stated

[»
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that against whom it has been alleged that he has brought certain plant, machinery
and construction material from the site. Inthe month of July, 2010, the complainant
has stopped the work of construction and left it due to non-payment. Complainant
has left the plant and machinery at the site for being used in construction work. It
has been alleged by the complainant that the accused persons are not returning
the plant and machinery despite being asked by the complainant and complainant
has alleged that they have come to know that one Greaves Concrete Pump Type
350-D machine has been sold by the accused persons to the L.1.C. Construction
Co. Pvt. Ltd. Copy of the complaint preferred by the complainant is attached
with this petition as Annexure P/3.

3- Petitioners' counsel submitted that the allegations are absolutely false in
fact the excess amount has been paid by the petitioners to the complainant of
which no proper account has been submitted by the complainant. Thus, it is not
the petitioners who have committed fraud with the complainant but it is the
complainant who has committed fraud with the petitioners. In the month of July,
2010, complainant has started demanding more money without providing accounts
for the amount which had already been paid by the petitioners to the complainant.
It has been further submitted that supervisors were also not performing the duties
satisfactorily due to which the construction work was hampered badly. On the
one hand, the complainant are avoiding to submit the accounts for settlement and
on the other hands they are adopting such illegal tactics only to create undue
pressure on the petitioners to succumb to their illegal demands. Leamed counsel
for the petitioners further submitted that no case of cognizable offence is made out
against the petitioner. The bare perusal of complaint does not make out any case
of criminal nature, hence prayer for quashing the complaint and other proceedings
has been made.

4- Learned counsel for the petitioners drew attention of this Court towards
the order dated 10-02-2012 passed in unregistered complaint case by learned
JMFC, Bhopal whereby the complaint filed by respondents has been referred to
police investigation under Section 156(3) of Cr.P.C. for registration of case. The
aforesaid order has been put to challenge by the petitioners availing the remedy of
revisional jurisdiction before learned revisional Court which was registered as
Criminal Revision No.127/2012 in the Court of First Additional Sessions Judge,
Bhopal, who vide impugned order dated 14-03-2012 has dismissed the revision
filed by the petitioners without considering the material aspects of the matter.

5- Learned counsel for the petitioners submitted that both the Courts below
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have committed grave error in registering the complaint against the petitioners
without considering the fact that the dispute between the parties are of civil nature
which connotes with regard to settlement of accounts and even bare perusal of
complaint does not smell with regard to any cognizable offence against the
petitioners. It has been further submitted that while referring the matter under
Section 156(3) of Cr.P.C. to police investigation, learned Magistrate has totally
failed to apply its mind and he sent the complaint for police investigation without

assigning any cogent and plausible reason. On perusal of Annexure P/2, the order -

passed by learned Magistrate, it is apparent that no application under Section
156(3) has been filed by the complainant for referring the matter to police
investigation since there is no reference made by learned Magistrate at the time of

passing hte order impugned. The order passed by learned Magistrate, referring

the matter to police investigation is reproduced. below:

“aRRare} wfec 57 wraie avS afte A SuRed gty AfgEaTo @
freg I8 UReTSu= i 9T —200 <9, . @ 789 5T SIS B
ot b | < AT et o SfereEal gIRT |y 7 3o SRRy dEy
ga fsar

qRaTE U3 URI—156(3) THH, @ qed el B a3 39 ey @
raTerd ¥ wEa Y T e fpar o & fF yawwr gofieg el
T B B i EerRt < e afvg Y |

6- Learned counsel for the petitioners submitted that learned trial Court has
not applied its mind as to what kind of cognizable offence is made out against the
petitioners at the time of referring the matter to police investigation. In order to
strengthen his contention, learned counsel for the petitioners placed reliance on
the decision of Andhra Pradesh High Court in the matter of D. K. Pattanaik and
another Vs. Station House Officer and another, 2008 Cri.L.J. 2287 in which it
has been held that before a Magistrate orders for investigation by police under
Section 156(3) of Cr.P.C. he has to apply his mind to know whether allegations in
complaint, prima facie, make out a case. It has been further held that the complaint
filed against the petitioners for the offence under Section 420 of Penal Code there
isnoallegation in the complaint that petitioners intentionally induced respondent
to attend the interview. The grievance of respondent that Selection Committee in
interview has not awarded the marks as prescribed by the guidelines, such allegation
even iftrue by itself, does not constitute an offence of cheating, Allegations contained
in the complaint filed by respondent do not disclose commission of any offence,

\»
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much less an offence of cheating hence quashed the complaint under Section 482
of Cr.P.C.

7. Learned counsel for the petitoners further placed reliance on the decision
of Gujrat High Court in the matter of D Anil X. Khandelwal and another Vs.
Maksud Saiyed and another, 2006 CriL.J. 3180 in which it has been held that
the orderimpugned reveals that the Magistrate has not gone through the complaint
and straight way issued the direction under Section 156(3) of Cr.P.C. to investigate
into the matter which was not just and proper in the facts of the case. Further
reliance has been placed by petitioners' counse! on the decision of Gujrat High
Court in the matter of Arvindbhai Rajvibhai Patel Vs. State of Gujrat and
others, 1998 Cri.L.J. 463 in which while considering the provisions of Section
156(3) of Cr.P.C. it has been laid down that the allegation in complaint simple and
could be investigated by Court itself and the action of Magistrate in mechanically
directing police to investigate case has been deprecated. Such passing of buck to
police for doing needful is improper and amounts to abdication and dereliction of
duty. Paragraph 5 of the judgment is relevant as it has always been seen in State
of Madhya Pradesh that almost all the Magistrates are frequently using the power
for referring the matter under Section 156(3) of Cr.P.C. without any application
of mind merely on the ground that the complaint contains the allegations of
cognizable offence, ignoring the riders which have been mentioned by the Apex
Court for quashing the FIR and criminal proceedings if the dispute is of civil nature
for which the civil suit is pending or the complaint does not disclose any cogmzable
offence. Paragraph 5 reads as under:

"Further still, while dismissing this petition what is quite disturbing
15 the most indiscreet manner in which the learmed Magistrate has
mechanically directed the PI of the concerned police station to
investigate the case under Section 156(3) of the Code and submit
his report. In fact, if we peruse the allegations in the complaint,
they are too simple requiring any assistance worth the name of
the police to investigate into the matter !! And yet the fact remains
that the learned Magistrate has quite curiously directed police to
investigate under Section 156(3) of the Code and report back.
As amatter of fact, instead of directing the PI to investigate
under Section 156(3) of the Code, it was the duty of the learned
Magistrate of his own to straightway take the cognizance of alleged
offences and decide the case after recording the oral and
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documentary evidence as the case may be as lead by the
complainant and hearing the defence version. In fact, having regard
to the facts and circumstances of the case, this is not at all the
case where by any stretch of imagination, the learned Magistrate
needed any police assistance to inquire into the case. One can
quite understand some such complex, complicated cases wherein
a Judge/ Magistrate sitting in the Court-room cannot go out of it

to various places and persons to collect the data, and accordingly -

seize some, muddamal articles, documents in possession of
accused or his associates, etc. which requires investigation and
because of which in absence of police investigating under Section
156(3) of the Code ultimately the cause of justice would suffer.
Accordingly, it is indeed here in such cases only where the
Investigating Agency is required to be called in assistance and will
figure into the picture to supplement its role as one of the important
components/functionary of the administration of justice to assist

the Court. In this view of the matter, all the learned Magistrates

of the State are hereby specifically directed to be henceforth be
quite discreet enough in not mechanically directing the police to
investigate the case under Section 156(3) of the Code. When the
allegations in the complaint are simple enough and further where
the Court undoubtedly can straightway proceed te conduct the
trial, in such cases the Court before which the complaint is filed,
shall never mechanically abandon its sacrosanct duty of recording
the evidence and doing justice by passing a buck to the police for
doing the needful. Thisis clear abdication and dereliction of duty.
In fact, this Court in number of such cases have noticed quite
unfortunate growing tendency on the part of some of the learned
Magistrates to direct the police to investigate under Section 156(3)
of the Code and report reflecting total armchair relaxed attitude
and non-application of mind!! This is required to be curbed in the
overall interests of justice. When the complainant approaches the
Court making a grievance disclosing cognizable offence, it is the
duty of every Court in the first instance to carefully examine the
complaint and find out whether it prima facie discloses the offence
worthy of issuing the process, in the second instance, whether the
allegations in the complaint are such which involve quite complex
and complicated investigation of the case which without the active

.
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and expertize assistance of the police cannot be undertaken, then
in that case, in the third instance, it would be quite desirable to
serve notice along with'a copy of the complaint to the concerned
P.I. or P. 8. I. to remain personally present before the Court,
appraise him of the situation and take a stock of the situation as
to within what time bound period, he would be in a position to
complete the investigation and submit his report under Section
156(3) of the Code, and in the fourth instance; when it is of the
view that having regard to the nature of allegations in the complaint
calling of the police report under Section 156(3) of the Code is
unavoidable, then in that case while ordering for the same, it shall
make it time bound that is to say report to be submitted within
some stipulated period, as warranted by the facts and
circumstances of the particular case, directing the concerned police
officerto submit the periodical progress report of the investigation
every two weeks on affidavit till the final report is submitted on
the given date. This is absolutely necessary to keep the investigating
agency alert, efficient and under the control of the Court to avoid,
in some cases, lethargy and avoidable delay in investigation of the
case. In substance, while passing any order pursuant to the
complaint, it must reflect the total application of mind by the
learned Magistrate"

8- Learned counsel for the petitioners further placed reliance on the Full
Bench decision of Allahabad High Court in the matter of Ram Babu Gupta and
another Vs. State of U.P. and others, 2001 Cri.L..J. 3363 in which it has been
held that onreceipt of complaint Magistrate has to apply its mind to the allegations
made in the complaint and he may at once proceed to take cognizance and may
order itto go to police station for being registered and investigated. The Magistrate's
order must indicate application of mind. Further reliance has been placed by
petitioners' counsel on the decision of Gujrat High Court in the matter of Suresh
Kumar Gupta Vs. State of Gujrat, 1997 Cri.L.J. 3948 in which while considering
the provisions of Section 156(3) of Cr.P.C. it has been held that the parties dealing
in business transaction of purchase and sale of commodity, accused indebted to
complainant and has allegedly hurled filthy abuses and slapped the complainant
when the demand of money was made. The incident take place at the shop of
complainant and there is no medical evidence of injury, no independent witness
has been examined and no reason explained as to why the accused visit the
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complainant particularly when he was indebted to him. Paragraph 11 of the Judgment
isreproduced below:

“The above issue is required to be considered and determined in
“view of the present trend of the litigants, professionals (legal) to
go for criminal complaints and of the learned Magistrates to order
investigation under Section 156(3) of the Code indiscriminately
without inquiring and applying mind whether facts stated constitute
offence or dispute between the parties is not of the civil nature. It
is not the job of the Postman that the Magistrate has to do on
receiptofacomplaint that without application of mind straightaway
to order investigation under Section 156(3), unless there is a clear
case which needs investigation to assist the learned Magistrate to
do justice. Before he orders or directs investigation under Section
156(3), he has to notionally decide that investigation through Police
agency is needed in this case and the enquiry by himself may not
be sufficient. Investigation consists generally of (1) proceeding to
the spot; (2) ascertainment of facts and circumstances; (3)
discovery and arrest of suspected offender; (4) collection of
evidence which may consists of (a) examination of persons,
including accused, and recording statement, if thought fit, (b).
search of place and seizure of incriminating things: (¢) consideration
whether the materials are enough for submitting charge-sheet. Such
and other things if needed to investigate into the matter, then the
question is what is that evidence to prove case cannot be procured
by the Court itself and complainant cannot produce it before the
Court without the help of investigating agency and help of the
concerned Police Officer to proceed in the matter is needed. There
are cases, more particularly non-cognizable offences, and some
of the cognizable ones where the complainant may produce the
whole of the evidence to prove the case. The learmed Magistrate
himself through complainant can collect necessary evidence to
prove guilt. For example, in number of cases, it may not be
necessary to proceed to the spot, ascertainment of facts and
circumstances can be gathered by the Magistrate himself by calling
the witnesses, discovery and arrest of suspected offender may
not be necessary and necessary evidence to prove the case may
be produced by the complainant himself with or without the
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assistance of the Court. There may be no necessity of any search
of place or seizure of the things. In such a situation, when the
necessary material to prove guilt can be produced before the
Court with or without the help of the Court by the complainant,
why direction for investigation under Section 156(3) of the Code?
So, when a complaint is received be it for an offence cognizable
or non-cognizable, the learned Magistrate has to look at the
complaint or the information received, apply his mind and has to
come to atentative decision whether necessary material to prove
the guilt of the accused can be gathered by him without any difficulty
through the complaint or it is necessary to take assistance of
investigating agency. If for the proof of guilt it is felt necessary to
go to spot, to discover and seize some incriminating article, to
search a place, etc., then direction to investigate stands justified.
In all cases where the complainant approaches the Court by
private complaint, anything needed to prove case can be and has
to be done by complainant. For example, in facts of the case on
hand, though cognizable offence is alleged to have been
committed, why was it necessary to direct the Police to
investigate?"

1767

Learned counsel for the petitioners submitted that the judgment passed
by the Gujrat High Court in the matter of Dr: Anil K. Khandehval and others
(supra) has been affirmed by the Apex Court in the appeal filed by Maksud Saiyed
in the title of Maksud Saiyed Vs. State of Gujrat and others, (2008) 5 SCC
668 and held that while considering the provisions of Section 482 and 156(3) of
Cr.P.C. for quashing of proceeding by High Court that the allegations in the
complaint pétition have to be examined with regard to correct statutory provisions
vis-a-vis conduct of parties. The Magistrate ordering police investigation under
Section 156(3) of Cr.P.C. without application of mind on these principles and the
Magistrate not considering bona fide mistake of director in publishing the
prospectus of company, quashing of proceedings by High Court has been upheld.
Relevant paragraph No. 13 of the judgment is reproduced below :

"Where ajurisdiction is exercised on a complaint petition filed in
terms of Section 156(3) or Section 200 of the Code of Criminal
Procedure, the Magistrate is required to apply his mind. Indian
Penal Code does not contain any provision for attaching vicarious
liability on the part of the Managing Director or the Directors of the
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Company when the accused is the Company. The learned
Magistrate failed to pose unto himselfthe correct question vizasto
whether the complaint petition, even if given face value and taken to
be correct in its entirety, would lead to the conclusion that the
respondents herein were personally liable for any offence. The Bank
is a body corporate. Vicarious liability of the Managing Director
and Director would arise provided any provision exists in that behalf
in the statute. Statutes indisputably must contain provision fixing
such vicarious liabilities. Even for the said purpose, it is obligatory
on the part of the complainant to make requisite allegations which
woulld attract the provisions constituting vicarious Iiability"

10-  Learned counsel for the petitioners further placed reliance on the decision
of Apex Court in the matter of Madhavrao Jiwajirao Scindia and others Vs.
Sambhajirao Chandrojirao Angree and others, (1988) 1 SCC 692 in which it
hasbeen held that while considering the question that when the criminal proceedings
can be quashed at preliminary stage by High Court under Section 482 of Cr.P.C.
In that case summons issued on a complaint filed by a trustee alleging that Secretary
and Manager of the trust property in conspiracy with the co-trustee and his wife
created tenancy in respect of the property in favour of the co-trustee's wife. Defence
case that the property intended for tenancy and accordingly co- trustee's wife
being an independent person having her own income inducted as tenant at the rate
of rent which outgoing tenant was paying as higher rent was not chargeable under
existing law. Tenant's wife volunteering to surrender the tenancy in response to a
notice. On facts and in view of the strained relationship between settlor of the trust
and the co-trustee and his wife, held the High Court justified in quashing the
proceedings as ingredients of criminal offence punishable under Sections 406,
467 read with Section 34 and 120-B of IPC are wanting.

11- Learned P.L. for the respondent/State submitted that according to case-
diary, the machinery which is alleged to be sold by the complainant in his complaint
was found intact and no machinery has been sold by the petitioner as it is reflected
from the investigation.

12- On perusal of record and case-diary it is clear that the dispute between
the complainant and petitioner is regarding settlement of account which is a civil
dispute. The machinery and plant of complainant has been kept in the premises of
petitioners under mutual understanding of complainant and petitioner No.1 and
learned IMFC is not justified in referring the matter without assigning any reason

.
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and without considering the complaint, to the police investigation under Section
156(3) of Cr.P.C. The power conferred under Section 156(3) of Cr.P.C. on the
Judicial Magistrate are to be exercised with due caution as exercising of power
against the person i.e. opposite party exposes the accused to the highhandness of
investigating agency by fulfilling the intention of harassment of accused by the
complainant, therefore, considering the citations mentioned above, learned trial
Court is not justified in referring the complaint to police investigation under Section
156(3) of Cr.P.C. and learned revisional Court is also not justified in upholding
the order passed by learned trial Court.

13- Considering the overall conspectus of facts and circumstances of the case,
the petition filed by the petitioners is hereby allowed. Order passed by learned
both the Courts below are hereby quashed and the FIR registered at Crime No.68/
12 at Police Station Talaiya District Bhopal in pursuance to the order of trial
Court is hereby quashed and further proceedings thereto are also quashed being
abuse of process of law.

Registry of this Court is directed to forward the copy of this judgment to
all the Judges of State of Madhya Pradesh and to the director of Judicial Officer
Training and Research Institute, Jabalpur for guidelines as it has always been seen
that all the Judicial Magistrates are passing the similar orders without giving cogent
and plausible reason prior to referring the matter to police investigation in exercise
of power vested under Section 156(3) of Cr.P.C. which has resulted in harassment

of opposite party.

Following measures are to be adopted by the Judicial Magistrate prior to
referring the matter by invoking the provisions under Section 156(3) of Cr.P.C. to
police investigation:

L Whether any cognizable offence is made out from perusal

of complaint or not.

ii- Whether the complaint is not misuse of provisions of Jaw
to drag the innocent person under the threat of criminal
law. ‘

fii- Sometimes the complaints are filed after registration of

FIR by the police for addition of some more offences and
the complainant alleges after 3-4 months certainly after
getting advice that the police has not written certain facts
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which form the graver offence such as offence of theft has
been registered and the ingredients of robbery has not been
mentioned by the police or the offence related to outyaging
of modesty of woman has been registered and ingredients
of rape was not mentioned.,

iv- Sometimesthe civil [itigation regarding document is pending
between the parties which has been mentioned in the
complaint and genuineness of document is to be proved in
the civil suit but the complainant alleges that the forged-
document has been produced by the other parties before
the civil Court.

v- To avoid such misuse of Court, the Courts below are
required to consider the complaint in the light of above-
mentioned measures so that the innocent person cannot
be dragged to criminal complication by obtaining the order
of the Court which has certainly misused the process of
law and court both.

Necessary orders from Hon'ble The Chief Justice be obtained by the
Registry prior to circulating this judgment to all the members of District Judiciaries.

Petition allowed.

LL.R. [2013] M.P., 1770
MISCELLANEOUS CRIMINAL CASE
Before Mr. Justice GD. Saxena
M.Cr.C. No. 7212/2012 (Gwalior) decided on 17 May, 2013

BABBURAJA ...Applicant
Vs.
. STATE OF M.P. & anr. ...Non-applicants

A. Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 91 -
Summons to produce documents - Statements of some of the witnesses
recorded during investigation were not filed along with charge sheet -
Prosecutors are expected to act independently without affecting the
investigation - If some evidence is collected during investigation and is
relevant for the purposes of trial, enquiry or other proceedings before
Court, and if investigating agency purposefully does not like to disclose
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the same, it is the duty of prosecution to make a request to bring all other
evidence collected but not produced before Court for fair justice.(Para 8)

z. Tvs Tyl §iRar, 1973 (1974 &7 2), €T 91 —Gvaidor
gega av? @ [y §57 — J39e 3 <A afufafea 5l W 65w
AR & PN, ARIY TH B W URgd e e ™ - F=wer #it
garfag fpd e wam o @ sdard s, afmiest @ et @ —
afe a4l & SR BT Wi gy 5 T @ A fErer o= 9
AT $ GAE A= SraarEal ® yAie 8 gIEAd €, A qfy F=Aa9
ol 9gdvr ufrg 99 uwe & e g, 99 IREieH &1 sdE @
fF wifa =my @ fod, 99 v o= wew ga &7 FagT &, R
Tei3d fear Tar € WY WaTad ® whe uega @ fear w2

B. Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 91 -
Locus Standi - One of the witness filed an application for production of
statements of witnesses recorded during investigation but not filed
along with charge sheet - As witness was not a complainant therefore,
he has no right to participate independently in criminal trial - However,
when the investigating agency itself while submitting charge sheet
keeps mum and adopts method of pick and choose, Court is bound to
consider the relevancy of the documents - Courts exist for dispensation
of justice and not for its denial for technical reasons. (Para9)

A gve giFar GiRar, 1973 (1974 &T 2), €%T 91 — §7 wrd &7
e — @ el 7 14 gka’ @ sud yiga 54 we gg adEa
uwga fearn firg v @ sivw aififafea fear @ o0, o==g sRiw
= @ g gy 7 Ry — gfE weh freraasal = @, gafav 99
ImaRIfere fammor & wWad $U | T |49 @ i3 AR T2 — Afug,
WY v goie) WY AU UF YR $d 9Hg @y @ i uid
TAHER WEgr] | gAR B €7 Jueardl 2, Eed ¢ Swrast @
gETaaT WY faR I @ iy aew @ — et &1 s, |1 w1d
3 fau @lr 9 5 ge-Nal s ) S99 dfae o @ fag)

Cases referred :
M.Cr.C. No. 1430/2012, AIR 2012 SC 364

Suresh Agrawal, for the applicant.
Vijay Sunderam, P.L. for the non-applicant No.1/State.
Pradeep Katare, for the non-applicant No. 2.
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ORDER

G.D.SAXENA, J: Having been aggrieved by the directions issued vide
order dated 1/8/12 in Misc. Cri. Case No.1430/2012 (Baijnath Singh Vs.
State of ML.P. & another) which are reproduced below, the petitioner has
knocked the doors of this court with a request for exercising powers under
section 482 of Cr.P.C. to secure the ends of justice :-

"Consequently, the impugned order dated 11/11/11 is quashed.
The petition stands hereby allowed. The application filed on behalf
of petitioner under Section 91 of of Cr.P.C. is also allowed (which
apparently by mistake or typographical error is mentioning the
words “on behalf of the accused-petitioner”, whereas it was filed
by the interested party in trial against the accused-respondent No.2,
herein). It is directed that the learned trial court shall summon the
statements mentioned in the application filed by the petitioner
through the Investigating Agency and thereafter proceed with the
matter in accordance with law, without being influenced by any of
the observations made during the course of this order"

(2)  Inthe present petition before this court, the petitioner prays for the
rehiefs as following:-

"It is therefore, most humbly prayed that the petition filed by
the petitioner may kindly be allowed and order dated
01.08.2012 passed by this Hon'ble court in MCRC No.1430/
2012 may kindly be reviewed and heard on merits by giving
opportunity to the petitioner."

(3)  Onperusal of the record of Misc. Cr. Case No.1430/2012, it appears
that on 1st August, 2012, after having heard the learned counsel for petitioner/
interested party as well as learned Public Prosecutor appeared on behalf of
the respondent No. 1/State, admittedly without issuing notice to respondent
No.2-accused, this court passed the order which is called in question.

(4) Learned counsel for the petitioner vehemently argued that the
respondent No.2 has no locus standi to participate by way of petition under
Section 301 of Cr.P.C. in trial against the accused and also by moving previous
petition before this court. He has no locus standi to file the petition under
Section 91 of Cr.P.C. for calling the statements of the witnesses stated to
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have been recorded in investigation but not filed with the charge-sheet by the
LO. under Section 174 of Cr.P.C. It is further submitted that no such petition
was filed with consent of the prosecutor before the trial court. In these
circumstances, the learned trial court has not committed any mistake in rejecting
the prayer of the respondent No.2 which ultimately was allowed by this court
in a petition so preferred, hence, this petition.

(5)  The learned Public Prosecutor appearing for the respondent No.1-
State, as well as learned counsel appearing for the respondent No.2/accused,
on the other hand, submitted that although the Inquiry Officer at earlier point
of time, at the time of inquiry into marg, recorded the statements of Baijnath
Singh Guraia, Roop Singh and Vinod, but during investigation concluded that
there was inimical terms of these witnesses with the accused and so their
statements are not relevant. On this ground, the statements of those witnesses
were kept aside from the investigation and the charge sheet on the available
evidence as collected for offence punishable under Section 306 of LLP.C. was
filled. Consequently, the trial court framed the charges on the basis of material
available by the I.O. It is submitted that in compliance of the order of this
court in a petition, the statements of the aforesaid witnesses were taken on
record which disclosed prima facie offence against the accused under Section
302/34 of LP.C. Under such circumstances, the charge for the alleged offence
is framed against the petitioner/accused vide impugned order. On these
sgrounds, it is prayed for dismissal of the petition.

(6)  Heard the learned counsel for the petitioner and the learned counsel
for the respondent No.1-State as well as learned counsel appearing for the
respondent No.2, at sufficient length. Also perused the proceedings of case
diary written by the Investigating Officer/Inquiry Officer of the Marg and
examined the relevant provisions of law.

(7)  Atthis juncture, it would be useful to reproduce Section 91 and 301
of Cr.P.C, which read as is under:-

“91. Summons to produce document or other thing- (1)
‘Whenever any court or any officer in charge of a police station
considers that the production of any document or other thing is
necessary or desirable for the purposes of any investigation,
inquiry, trial or other proceedings under this code by or before
~ such Court or such officer, such Court may issue a summeons
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or such officer a written order, to the person in whose
possession or power such document or thing is believed to be,
requiring him to attend and produce it or to produce it at the
time and place stated in the summons or order.

(2) Any person required under this section merely to produce
. adocument or other thing shall be deemed to have complied

with the requisition if he causes such document or thing to be

produced instead of attending personally to produce the same.

3) Nothmg in this section shall be deemed-

() to affect Sections 123 and 124 of the Indian Evidence Act,
1872 (1 of 1872), or the Bankers' Books Evidence Act, 1891
(13 0f 1891), or

(b) to apply to a letter, postcard, telegram or other document or
any parcel or thing in the custody of the postal or telegraph authority.

301. Appearance by Public Prosecutors.-(1) The Public
Prosecutor or Assistant Public Prosecutor in charge of a case
may appear and plead without any written authority before any
Court in which that case is under inquiry, trial or appeal.

(2)  Ifinany such case any private person instructs a pleader
to prosecute any person in any Court, the Public Prosecutor or
Assistant Public Prosecutor in charge of the case shall conduct
the prosecution, and the pleader so instructed shall act therein
under the directions of the Public Prosecutor or Assistant Public
Prosecutor, and may, with the permission of the Court, submit
written arguments after the evidence is closed in the case.

8 Abare-peru'sal of the provisions as contained in Section 91 of Cr.P.C.
makes it clear that whenever the court considers that a production of any
document is necessary or desirable for the purposes of any trial, the court
may issue direction for its production before the court in trial. The court should
find out the truth which appears either from record or from other sources and
it should not act as per the choice of the prosecutor or accused. In such
cases, the prosecutors are expected to act independently without affecting
the investigation. If some evidence is collected during investigation and is relevant
for the purposes of the enquiry, trial or other proceeding before the court and
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if the Investigating Agency purposefully does not like to disclose the same -
before the court while submitting charge-sheet and keeps the same in case

diary, in that condition, it is duty of the prosecution to make a request to bring

all other evidence though collected but not produced before the trial court for.
consideration, for fair justice. Simultaneously, provisions contemplated in

Section 301(2) of Cr.P.C. clearly indicated that if in such case any private

person instructs a pleader to prosecute any person, the pleader so instructed

may assist the public prosecutor and with permission of the court may submit

written arguments after evidence is closed in the case.

(9)  Now on coming to the merits of the present case, it appears that
in the case of death of Smt. Meenesh wife of accused-petitioner, on
information of Ramveer Singh, a marg report was lodged at No. 08/2009.
During inquiry, statements of neighboring witnesses Baijnath Singh, Roop
Singh and Vinod Singh were recorded. After marg inquiry, the FIR was
lodged and in investigation the statements of the above-mentioned
witnesses were recorded. But after infvestigation, by removing the
statements of these three above witnesses, the charge sheet was filed
against the accused for offence under Section 306 of I.P.C. In trial, the
trial Judge on the basis of charge-sheet and the prosecution evidence
enclosed therewith, framed charges against the accused. During trial, the
trial Judge recorded statements of prosecution witnesses. Most of the
ocular witnesses did not support the prosecution version. At that juncture,
one of the witnesses, namely, Baijnath Singh who was a neighbour and
an eye-witness of the incident filed an application under Section 91 of
Cr.P.C. before the trial court which after hearing the parties was rejected.
Being aggrieved by the said order rejecting his application under Section
91 of Cr.P.C., said witness Baijnath Singh filed a petition under Section
482 of Cr.P.C. being Misc. Cri. Case No. 1430/2012 which was allowed
by this court under the order impugned directing the trial court for
summoning the case diary of the crime and taking the statements of the
above three witnesses on record. True it is, in view of the provisions
contemplated in Section 301 of Cr.P.C., the said witness Baijnath Singh
was not complainant and so he was not having any right to participate
independently in criminal trial against the accused but when the
Investigating Agency itself while submitting charge-sheet papers keeps
mum and adopts method of pick and choose in filing the documents
alongwith the charge-sheet before the court and when an application is



1776 ~ -= Babbu Raja Vs. State of M.P. LL.R.J2013]M.P.

made to a court under Section 91 of Cr.P.C., at that juncture, obviously
the court is bound to consider whether there is a prima facie case for
supposing that the statements are relevant and the same are likely to have
a bearing on the case. It was in this context, when the application was
rejected by the trial court and the trial court did not focus any attention
on the question whether the statements sought to be summoned by the
petitioner/respondent no.2 had any relevancy in the case, the petitioner/
respondent No.2 approached this court under Section 482 of Cr.P.C.
Keeping in view the fact that the courts exist for dispensation of justice
and not for its denial for technical reasons when law and justice otherwise
demand, this court interfered under its inherent powers vested under
section 482 of Cr.P.C. and directed the trial court to look into the
statements and proceed in accordance with law. A reference may be made
to the decision in the case of State of Punjab Vs. Davinder Fal Singh
Bhullar (AIR 2012 SC 364) wherein the Hon. Apex Court observed as
follows :-

“31. The inherent power under Section 482, Cr.P.C. is intended
to prevent the abuse of the process of the Court and to secure
the ends of justice. Such power cannot be exercised to do
something which is expressly barred under the Cr.P.C. If any.
consideration of the facts by way of review is not permissible
under the Cr.P.C. and is expressly barred, it is not for the Court
to exercise its inherent power to reconsider the matter and
record a conflicting decision If there had been change in the
circumstances of the case, it would be in order for the High
Court to exercise in the prevailing circumstances and pass
appropriate orders to secure the ends of justice or to prevent
the abuse of the process of the Court. Where there are no such
changed circumstances. and the decision has to be arrived at
on the facts that existed as on the date of the earlier order, the
exercise of the power to reconsider the same materials to arrive
at different conclusion is in effect a review, which is expressly
barred under Section 362, Cr.P.C. (See: Simrikhiav. Dolley
Mukherjee and Chhabi Mukherjee and Anr., (1990) 2 SCC
437 : (AIR 1990 SC 1605)).

32.  The inherent power of the court under Section 482,
Cr.P.C. is saved only where an order has been passed by the

R =¥
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criminal court which is required to be set aside to secure the
ends of justice or where the proceeding pending before a court,
amounts to abuse of the process of court. Therefore, such
powers can be exercised by the High Court in relation to a
matter pending before a criminal court or where a power is
exercised by the court under the Cr.P.C. Inherent powers
cannot be exercised assuming that the statute conferred an
unfettered and arbitrary jurisdiction, nor can the High Court
act at its whim or caprice. The statutory power has to be

exercised sparingly with circumspection and in the rarest of
rare cases. (Vide: Kurukshetra University and Anr. v. State

of Haryana and Anr., AIR 1977 SC 2229; and State of W.B.

and Ors. v. Sujit Kumar Rana, (2004) 4 SCC 129 : (AIR
2004 SC 1851)).

33.  The power under Section 482, Cr.P.C. cannot be
resorted to if there is a specific provision in the Cr.P.C. for the
redressal of the grievance of the aggrieved party or where
alternative remedy is available. Such powers -cannot be
exercised as against the express bar of the law and engrafted
in any other provision of the Cr.P.C. Such powers can be
exercised to secure the ends of justice and to prevent the abuse
of the process of court. However, such expressions do not
confer unlimited/unfettered jurisdiction on the High Court as
the "ends of justice" and "abuse of the process of the court”
have to be dealt with in accordance with law including the
procedural law and not otherwise. Such powers can be
exercised ex debito justitiae to do real and substantial justice
as the courts have been conferred such inherent jurisdiction, in
absence of any express provision, as inherent in their
constitution, or such powers as are necessary to do the right
and to undo a wrong in course of administration of justice as
provided in the legal maxim "quando lex aliquid alique, concedit,
conceditur et id sine quo res ipsa esse non potest”. However,
the High Court has not been given nor does it possess any
inherent power to make any order, which in the opinion of the
court, could be in the interest of justice as the statutory provision
is not intended to by-pass the procedure prescribed. (Vide:

1777
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Lalit Mohan Mondal and Ors. v. Benoyendra Nath
Chatterjee, AIR 1982 SC 785; Rameshchandra Nandlal
Parikh v. State of Gujarat and Anr., AIR 2006 SC 915;
Central Bureau of Investigation v. Ravi Shankar Srivastava,
IAS and Anr., AIR 2006 SC 2872; Inder Mohan Goswami
and Anr. v. State of Uttaranchal and Ors., AIR 2008 SC
251; and Pankaj Kumar v. State of Maharashtra and Ors.,
AIR 2008 SC 3077).

(10)  Everytrial must be a fair trial and fair trial is the theme song of provisions

of Criniinal Procedure Code. The concept of fair trial cannot vary from case

to case, accused to accused and person to person. It has to be a consistent

concept applicable to all cases. In fact, detailed procedure laid down by Cr.P.C.

takes care of ensuring fair trial to the accused. Thus, a trial according to Cr.P.C.

has to be considered a fair trial. It is only if provisions of Cr.P.C. are not

followed, one can say that the trial is not fair trial. An important facet of fair

trial is that trial must conclude within a reasonable time and it must not be fair
only to the accused but must be fair to the society, to the victim and to the

witnesses. Any document or other thing envisaged under the aforesaid provision-
can be ordered to be produced on finding that the same is 'necessary or

desirable for the purpose of investigation, inquiry, trial or other proceedings

under the Code'.

(11)  The first and foremost requirement of the section is about the document
being necessary or desirable. The necessity or desirability would have to be
seen with reference to the stage when a prayer is made for the production. If
any document is necessary or desirable for the defence of the accused, the
question of invoking Section 91 at the initial stage of framing of a charge
would not arise since defence of the accused is not relevant at that stage.
When the section refers to investigation, inquiry, trial or other proceedings, it
is to be borne in mind that under the section a police officer may move the
court for summoning and production of a document as may be necessary at
any of the stages mentioned in the section. In so far as the accused is concerned,
his entitlement to seek order under Section 91 would ordinarily not come till
the stage of defence. Therefore, when the section talks of the document being
necessary and desirable, it is implicit that necessity.and desirability of such
document is to be examined by the trial court considering the stage when such
a prayer for summoning and production is made.
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(12) Inview of the aforesaid discussions, this court does not find any error
committed in passing the impugned order. The petition is accordingly dismissed.
Of course the petitioner/accused shall have a legal right to defend and prove
his innocence by leading cogent and reliable evidence at subsequent stage of
defence in the trial which may be considered by the trial court in proper
perspective and the case shall be decided in accordance with law.

Petition dismissed.

LL.R. [2013] M.P., 1779 _
MISCELLANEOUS CRIMINAL CASE -
Before Mr. Justice Brij Kishore Dube '
M.Cr.C. No. 4835/2013 (Gwalior) decided on 3 July, 2013

DINESH KUMAR YADAV ...Applicant
Vs. '
UNION OF INDIA ...Non-applicant

Narcotic Drugs and Psychotropic Substances Act (61 of 1985) -
Re-testing of Samples - Heroine was seized from the possession of
Petitioner - However, the F.S.L. report shows the contraband as Opium -
Prosecution filed application for re-testing of sample from Hyderabad -
Any request for re-testing of sample may be permitted in exceptional
circumstances for cogent reasons to be recorded - Application must be
made within 15 days from the date of receipt of test report - Cogent reasons
have been assigned by Trial Court - Revision dismissed. (Paras7 & 8)
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Cases referred :

Cr.A.No.1640/2010 decided in 23.01.2013, 2001 Cr.L.J. 2690, 2007
Cr.L.J. 2074. .

N.P. Dwivedi & Gagan Sharma for the applicant.
Ankur Mody, Assistant Solicitor General for the non-applicant.
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ORDER

Bru Kiseore DuBg, J: This petition under Section 482 of the Code
of the Criminal Procedure, 1973 (For short, the Code) is preferred by the
petitioner herein/accused for quashing the impugned order dated 07/05/13
passed by the Special Judge NDPS Act), Vidisha in Special Case No. 02/2013
whereby allowed the application to send the samples for retesting them to the
Government FSL, Hyderabad.

2. The short facts of the case are that on 07/02/2013 on the basis of
information received through an informer, 1.210 kgs heroine contained in two
packets was seized on platform No.1 of the Vidisha railway station from the
iliegal possession of the petitioner. Two samples P1S1, P1S2 and P2S1 &
P232 were prepared from each packet. On 11/02/13, two samples P1S1

and P281 were sent to the Government and Alkaloid Works, Neemuch (M.P.)
for chemical examination and the Chemical Examiner submitted a report
according to which each of the two samples is found by qualitative and
quantitative analysis to be “OPIUM” within the meaning of NDPS Act, 1985.

3. After completing the investigation, challan has been filed against the
petitioner before the Special Judge (NDPS Act), Vidisha on 10/04/2013 and on
the same date, an application was submitted by the respondent herein before the
Court below praying that P1S2 and P2S2 be sent to the FSL, Hyderabad for
retesting the samples. The application was opposed by the petitioner.

4, Learned Court below by the impugned order accepted the application
and directed that the samples P1S2 and P2S2 be sent to FSL, Hyderabad for
retesting. The relevant paragraphs of the order reads as under:

8- UEH® NOMNE Wed 5N 5 T ude e & sraelia -
W 8 5 iifos aerr s W wiwrger wre® =t 3 brownish
coloured coarse powder €1 9t a1 7 % pasty mass having
charactraistic odour of OPIUM weras YRrafe e g4 g1
RIS Thevr 7 R dw wme (T.0.C.C.) udigor frar
ST St e g |

o  aiftifrm @Y e 2 ¥ wRenfa s uE BT o7
4 veafag wofa & uftmre w AR e @ | ol
Rerfd ¥ gem geear wRa wer &1 RUld @ e 9
IS B adw gon § Ay wEw ol war @) 3w
AT g 94AM 959 R 990 RUid W qereist @
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Being aggricved thereof, this petition is preferred by the petitioner.

4. Shri N.P.Dwivedsi, learned counsel for the petitioner submits that there
is no provision under the NDPS Act for retesting of the samples. The Apex
Court in the case of Thana Singh Vs: Central Bureau of Narcotics, Criminal
Appeal No.1640/2010 decided on 23/01/2013 held that request for retesting
of the samples shall not be entertained under the NDPS Act as a matter of
course, however, it would be permitted in extremely exceptional circumstances.
According to him, the learned Court below allowed the application of the
respondent herein on superficial grounds as there is no existence of the
compelling circumstances on which the application may be allowed. The
prosecution cannot be permitted to fillup the lacunae of its case by filing an
application for retesting of the samples because the possibility of tampering of
the second sample cannot be ruled out as it was in the possession of the
respondent herein. On these grounds, learned counsel prays for setting aside
the impugned order passed by the Court below. In support of his contention,
he has placed reliance in the cases of State of Kerala Vs. Deepak P. Shah,

2001 Cr. L.J. 2690 of Kerala High Court and Nihal Khan Vs. State (Gowvt.

of NCT of Delhi), 2007 Cr. L.J. 2074 of Delhi High Court.

5. In response, learned Assistant Solicitor General argued in support of the
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impugned order and submits that the application for retesting of the samples was
filed within 15 days and the learned Court below by recording the cogent reasons
and in the light of the law laid down by the Apex Court in the case of Thana Singh
(supra) passed the impugned order and, therefore, the petition may be dismissed.

6. I have considered the rival contentions of the learned counsel for the
parties and perused the record.

7. The scope of retesting or resampling under the NDPS Act was

- considered by the Apex Court in the case of Thana Singh (supra) and by
considering the judgments of High Courts in the cases of Deepak P.Shah
(supra) and Nihal Khan (supra) held as under:

“25. Therefore, keeping in mind the array of factors discussed
above, we direct that, after the completion of necessary tests
by the concerned laboratories, results of the same must be
furnished to all parties concerned with the matter. Any requests
as to retesting/ resampling shall not be entertained under the
NDPS Act as a matter of course. There may, however, be
permitted, in extremely exceptional circumstances, for cogent
reasons to be recorded by the Presiding Judge. An application
in such rare cases must be made within a period of fifteen days
of the receipt of the test report; no applications for retesting/
resampling shall be entertained thereafter. However, in the
absence of any compelling circumstances, any form of retesting/
resampling is strictly prohibited under the NDPS Act.”

8. From a perusal of the record and the impugned order, it is apparent
that the application for retesting of the samples has been made within the
prescribed period fixed by the Hon'ble Apex Court and cogent reasons have
been assigned for allowing the application of the respondent herein in the
impugned order by the Court below.

S. For the foregoing reasons and peculiar facts and circumstances of the
case, this Court in exercise of the powers under Section 482 of the Code
does not find any ground to interfere in the impugned order. This petition
being devoid of merit and substance deserves to be and hereby dismissed.

Certified copy as per rules.
Petition dismissed.
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MISCELLANEOUS CRIMINAL CASE
Before Mr. Justice D.K. Paliwal
M.Cr.C. No. 6183/2011 (Gwalior) decided on 17 July, 2013

LEKHRAJ SINGH KUSHWAH ... Applicant
Vs.
BRAHMANAND TIWARI ... Non-applicant

Negotiable Instruments Act (26 of 1881), Section 138 - Amendment
in the complaint - Complainant wrongly mentioned the cheque No.332534
in place of 332554 in the complaint as well as in the notice - After completion
of cross-examination of complainant an application for amendment in
complaint regarding cheque number filed, which was allowed by the trial
court - Revision against the order was also dismissed by the A.S.J.
observing that the case is at defence stage and petitioner/accused has an
opportunity to defend his case - Held - Courts below have committed
illegality in allowing such amendment. (Paras S & 10)
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Cases referred :

2010(I1) MPJR 228,2002(5) MPLJ 178, 2004(2) DCR 158, 2009(1)
DCR 363, (2010) 13 SCC 336.

S.K. Shrivastava, for the applicant.
K.S. Shrivastava, for the non-applicant.

ORDER

D.K. PaLiwaL, J: This petition under Section 482 of Cr.P.C. is for
quashing the order dated 4.8.2011 passed by the Third ASJ, Vidisha, in
Criminal Revision No.12/11, whereby order dated 24.11.10 passed by JMFEC,



1784 Lekhraj S. Kushwah Vs. Brahmanand Tiwari LL.R.[2013]M.P.
Kurwai, in Criminal Case No.37/2010 has been affirmed.

2. The brief facts of the case are that the respondent has filed a private
complaint under Section 138 ofthe Negotiable Instruments Act (in short the Act)
alleging that petitioner use to do agricultural work and also owns anursery for
which the petitioner borrowed a sum of Rs.74,000/- from the respondent and in
return gave an account payee cheque of Rs.74,400/- of the State Bank of India
dated 20.3.2009. It is further alleged that when the respondent presented the
cheque in Barbai branch of State Bank of India, the same was dishonoured.
Thereafter, aregistered notice was given to the petitioner, but the amount has not
been paid. After inquiry, the complaint has been registered and during the evidence,
respondent was examined and cross-examined. A fter completion of the cross-
examination, the respondent filed an application for amendment in the complaint
before the trial Court submitting that cheque No.332534 has been wrongly
mentioned in place of 332554 due to negligence of the respondent’s counsel and
not because of the respondent. The learned trial Court allowed the application
and ordered for carrying out necessary amendment in the complaint. Being
aggrieved, the order passed by the learned trial Court was challenged before the
learned ASY who has affirmed the order passed by the trial Court. Being aggrieved,
this petition has been filed. '

3. It is submitted by learned counsel for the petitioner that impugned order is
manifestly illegal, arbitrary and against the provisions of law. In the complaint, the
respondent has mentioned the number of cheque as 332534. In the notice, Annexure
P/4, the same number has been mentioned. Thus, there is aclear inconsistency in
the number of cheque given by the respondent. There is no provision in the Cr.P.C.
to make any amendment in the statement already given. The learned trial Court
has erred in holding that if the application filed by the respondent is not allowed,
the whole purpose of filing the complaint would be frustrated. The respondent has
mentioned the cheque No. 332534 in the complaint whereas the actual cheque
No. is 332554 for which neither the complaint has been filed nor the notice has
been issued to the petitioner. Therefore, by allowing the amendment, illegality has
been committed. It is prayed that order passed by the Courts below be set aside.

4. The learned counsel for the respondent supported the impugned
order and submits that there is a typographical error which can be

amended, therefore, there is no scope for any interference in the impugned -

orders passed by the Courts below.

5. The crucial question arises for consideration before this Court is" )

I

e
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where the amendment in the complaint filed under Section 138 of the Act
is permissible under the law. It is not disputed that there is no express
provision in the Code of Criminal Procedure to allow the amendment.
The order passed by the-learned ASJ reveals that while dismissing the
revision of the petitioner, it is observed by the learned ASJ that during
cross-examination of the respondent/complainant suggestion given by the
petitioner does not deny the existence of the questioned cheque, case is
at defence stage, petitioner/accused has an opportunity to defend his case.

Reliance has also been placed on the decision rendered in Pt.Gorelal &
Anr. Vs. Rahul Punjabi, 2010 (I1) MPJR 228.

6. . Thelearned counsel for the petitioner submits that this Court in
the case of Kunstocom Electronics (I) Ltd. Vs. State of M.P. & another,
2002(5) M.P.L.J.178 considering the point as to whether amendment
can be made in the complaint, by placing reliance on Ashok Chaturvedi
Vs. Shitul H. Chanchani; AIR 1998 SC 2976, State of Kerala and

others vs. O.C.K.Kuttan; 1999 SCC (Cri) 304 and M. Krishnan Vs.
- Vijay Singh and another, 2001(4) Crimes 65 (SC), held that there is no
provision in the Code of Criminal Procedure giving right to the parties to
file an application for amendment in the pleadings and give powers to
lower Courts to allow the same. Again this Court in Criminal Revision
No0.1041/2007 (Sunder Dev Vs. Yogesh) decided on 18.3.2008 has held
that such amendment cannot be allowed by observing that “allowing the
application at this stage of the proceeding when the matter of Section
138 of the Negotiable Instruments Act is considered, the liability as well
as the compliance demand strict mandatory compliance then under the
said circumstances if the benefit has accrued to the petitioner, the
respondent cannot be allowed to get away with the negligence at this
stage of the proceedings”.

7. Learned counsel for the petitioner has pointed out that in the matter of Pr.

Gorelal (supra), this Court has taken note of Kunstocom Electronics (I) Ltd's
case, but still allowed the amendment referring the decision rendered in the matter
of Pradeep Premchandani Vs. Smt. Neeta Jain (M.Cr.C.No.2907/2007)

decided on 18.9.2008, wherein this Court has held that so far as wrong mention
of the cheque number either in the notice or in the complaint are concerned, the
Court would always have the jurisdiction to look into the fact and do complete
justice in the matter. Further a decision of Rajasthan High Court rendered in the
matter of Bhim Singh Vs. Kansingh, 2004(2) DCR 158, wherein the application
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for amendment of cheque number and date of information by bank on ground of
typographical mistake was allowed by the trial Court, it was held that trial Court
has inherent power to rectify such typographical mistakes to do justice, and a
decision of Calcutta High Court in the matter of Babli Majmudar Vs. State of
West Bengal, 2009(1) DCR 363, wherein it has been held that wrong number on
dishonour cheque is of no relevance for the drawer to pay the amount covered by
such cheque, have also been referred in Pt. Gorelal's case.

8. It is evident that this Court has taken a consistent view in
Kunstocom Electronics (I} Ltd and Sunder Dev (supra), that there is-
no provision for amendment in the Code of Criminal Procedure and the
amendment in the complaint cannot be permitted, but in the case of Pr.
Gorelal (supra) taking note of the aforesaid cases, it has been held that
application for correction of cheque number can be allowed.

9. The Hon’ble Supreme Court in the matter of Sant Lal Gupta and
others Vs. Modern- Cooperative Group Housing Society Limited and
others, (2010) 13 SCC 336 observed in paras 17 and 18 as under :-

“17. A coordinate Bench cannot comment upon the discretion
exercised or judgment rendered by another coordinate Bench of
the same Court. The rule of precedent is binding for the reason
that there is a desire to secure uniformity and certainty in law.
Thus, in judicial administration precedents which enunciate the
rules of law from the foundation of the administration of justice
under our system. Therefore, it has always been insisted that the
decision of a coordinate Bench must be followed.

18. In, Rajasthan Public Service Commission v. Harish
Kumar Purohit, (2003) 5 SCC 480, this Court held that a Bench
must follow the decision of a coordinate Bench and take the same
view as has been taken earlier. The earlier decision of the
coordinate Bench is binding upon any latter coordinate Bench
deciding the same or similar issues. If the latter Bench wants to
take a different view than that taken by the earlier Bench, the
proper course is for it to refer the matter to a larger Bench.”

10.  Thus, looking to the fact that coordinate Bench of this Court has consistently
held in Kunstocom Electronics (I) Ltd and Sunder Dev (supra) which has been
decided much prior to Pt. Gorelal's case, the decision is binding upon latter

\
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. coordinate Bench. Considering the facts of the instant case that not only in the
pleadings of the complaint, but in the notice as well as in the affidavit filed by the
respondent, number of cheque has been mentioned as 332534, inmy opinion, the
learned Courts below have committed illegality in allowing such amendment.

11.  Inview of the above analysis, the orders passed by the Courts below
are not sustainable. Hence, the petition is allowed and orders passed by the
Courts below dated 24,11.2010 and 4.8.2011 are quashed.

Petition allowed.

I.L.R. [2013] M.P., 1787
MISCELLANEQUS CRIMINAL CASE
Before Mr. Justice Brij Kishore Dube . .
M.Cr.C. No. 5230/2013 (Gwalior) decided on 25 July, 2013

SURENDRA SHARMA & ors. ... Applicants
Vs. -
RAMCHARAN LAL JATAV & ors. ... Non-applicants

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Sections 156(3) & .
482 - On date of incident a F.LLR. was lodged by respondent No.2 in
police station and the same was registered under section 294, 324,
506-B/34 L.P.C. - Later on respondents No.1 & 2 filed a complaint under
Sections 307,326, 294, 506(B) of I.P.C. and Section 3(1)(x) of Scheduled
Case and Scheduled Tribe (Prevention of Atrocities) Act regarding same
incident - Complaint/application (filed by the respondents No.1 & 2)
was ordered to be sent to the concerned Police Station for lodging of
the FIR on the basis of the complaint and submit a report after
conducting the investigation in the matter - Held - Impugned order to
register the alleged second FIR on the basis of complaint application
is contrary to law - Petition allowed. (Paras2 & 9)
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Cases referred :

1997 CRLJ 813, 2001 CRLJ 3329, 2013 CRLJ 2313, (2012) 1
SCC 130, (2013) 6 SCC 384.

YK Pathak, for the applicants.
R.K. Goyal, for the non-applicants No.1 & 2.
Kuldeep Singh, P.L., for the non-applicants No.3 & 4/State.

ORDER

Bru KisHoRE DUBE, J: This petition under Section 482 of Cr.P.C. is
preferred by the petitioners for quashing the order dated 15.04.2013 passed
by Judicial Magistrate First Class, Gwalior in Criminal Case No. /2013
complaint (Ramcharan Lal and others v. Surendra Sharma and others)
whereby the complaint application filed by the respondents No.I & 2 herein/
complainants was ordered to be sent to Officer-in-Charge of the concerned
Police Station for lodging of the FIR on the basis of the complaint and submit

areport after conducting the investigation in the matter.

2. Short facts of the case are that on 07.04.2013 at 11.00 a.m.
Omprakash (Respondent No.2 herein) alongwith his nei ghbour, Ratan Singh
Kushwah reached to the Police Station, Thatipur and lodged a report to the
effect that on the same day i.e., 07.04.2013 at 9.30 a.m. he was cleaning his
shop situated in his house, at that time the accused, Surendra Sh 4, Harsh
Sharma, Bunty and Shailu came to his shop and hurled abuses ,n restratning
to do so, Bunty dealt a lathi blow which struck over his head, then he shrieked,
on hearing the shriek, his father, Ram Charan Lal came to save him, then all
the accused persons caught hold and threw down as well as beaten him, Harsh
dealt a danda blow as a result of which, his father sustained injuries over his
both the legs. Surendra dragged him out from the shop and threw down and
beaten him as a result of which, he also sustained the injuries. They also
threatened to kill him. On the basis of the aforesaid, an FIR was registered at
Crime No.135/2013 for the offence under Sections 294,323, 506 read with
34 of IPC. The criminal law was triggered and set in motion. Thereafter, the
respondents No.1 & 2 filed a complaint application under Sections 3 {(D(x)
of the Scheduled Castes and Scheduled Tribes (Prevention of Atrocities) Act,
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1989 and 307, 326, 294, 506-B read with 34 of IPC against the accused
persons {petitioners herein) before the Court on 15.04.2013 alleging the
incident and that the police has not recorded the report as per the incident
narrated by the complainants but the report has been distorted. The
complainants are getting treatment in J.A. Group of Hospital as indoor patients
and belongs to the Scheduled Caste. Ramcharanlal has sustained fracture in
both the legs. The accused being influenced persons, the report was not
properly lodged and no suitable action has been taken on the complaint,
therefore, case may be registered against the accused (petitioners herein) under
Section 3 (1)(x) of Scheduled Castes and Scheduled Tribes (Prevention of
Atrocities) Act, 1989 and 307, 326, 294, 506-B read with 34 of IPC. The
Court below considered the complaint application and vide the impugned
order passed under Section 156 (3) of Cr.P.C. ordered to send the complaint
application to the Officer-in-Charge of the concerned Police Station with a
direction.to register the FIR on the basis of the complaint and to make the
investigation and submit the report to the Court. Being aggrieved thereof, this
petition has been preferred by the petjtiohers.

3. . Learned counsel for the petitioners submits that respondent No.1,
Ramcharan Lal has agreed to sell his house in favour of the petitioner No.1,
Surendra Sharma for a consideration of Rs.85.00 lacs and executed an
agreement. Subsequently, Ramcharan Lal did not execute the sale deed,
therefore, Surendra Sharma filed a Civil Suit for Specific Performance of the
Contract to Sale and permanent injunction which is pending before III
Additional District Judge, Gwalior wherein temporary injunction has been
passed in favour of the petitioners. On 07.04.2013, respondents No.1 & 2
alongwith their associates came and tried to forcibly dispossess, therefore, a
quarrel took place between both the parties in which members of both the
parties have sustained injuries. On the basis of report lodged by both the
parties, cases were registered against each other. [t is further submitted that
on the basis of report lodged by the respondent No.2, an FIR at Crime
No.135/2013 was registered and the case is under investigation. The
complainants had filed the complaint with an intention to harass the petitioners.
He also submits that the complaint submitted by the respondents No.1 & 2 is
of the same incident, therefore, on the basis of same facts, second FIR as
directed by the learned Magistrate cannot be registered. There can be no
second FIR in respect of the same cognizable offence. In this regard learned
counsel placed reliance upon the following decisions:-
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M Ashwini Kumar v. State of Rajasthan, 1997 Cri.L.J. 813;

(ii) T.T. Antony v. State of Kerala and others, 2001
CriL.J.3329;

(i) . Amitbhai Anilékandra Shah v. Central Bureau of
Investigation and Anr., 2013 Cri.L.J. 2313.

4, In response, learned counsel for the respondents argued in support of the
impugned order. Shri R.K. Goyal, learned counsel for the respondents No.1 & 2
submits that the law does not prohibit registration and investigation of two FIRs in
respect of the same incident, therefore, learned Trial Court has not committed any
error in exercising the power under Section 156 (3) of Cr.P.C. to register the FIR.
Learned counsel in support of his contention placed reliance upon the cases of
" Shivshankar Singh v. State of Bihar, (2012) 1 SCC 130 and 4Anju Chaudhary
v. State of Uttar Pradesh and another, (2013) 6 SCC 384.

5. I have considered the rival contentions of the learned counsel for the
parties and perused the record.

6. In Ashwini Kumar (supra), the first FIR was lodged under Sections 409,

420, 120(B) of Penal Code and after completing the investigation challan was

filed. In that situation, it was held by the High Court of Rajasthan that subsequent

FIR lodged for the offence under NDPS Act on same facts given in the earlier FIR

is not permissible though the police has right to conduct further investigation and

submit supplementary charge-sheet. In the case of 7. 7. Anfony(supra), the Hon'ble

Apex Court held that there can be no second FIR in respect of same cognizable
offence or same incident or occurrence. It has further been held by the Apex
Court that under the scheme of the provisions of Sections 154, 155, 156, 157,
162, 169, 170 and 173 of Cr.P.C. only the earlier or the first information in regard
to the commission of a cognizable offence satisfies the requirements of Section
154, Cr.P.C. Thus, there can be no second FIR and consequently, there can be
no fresh investigation on receipt of every subsequent information in respect of the
same cognizable offence or the same occurrence or incident giving rise to one or
more cognizable offences. On receipt of information about a cognizable offence
or incident giving rise to a cognizable offence or offences and on entering the FIR
in the station house diary, the officer-in-charge of a Police Station has to investigate
not merely the cognizable offence report in the FIR but also other connected
offences found to have been committed in the course of the same transaction or
the same occurrence and file one or more reports as provided in Section 173 of
the Cr.P.C. Inthe case of Amitbhai Anilchandra Shah, the Hon'ble Apex Court

LT
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held that where offences committed in same transaction, recording of second FIR
impermissible.

7. The Hon'ble Apex Court in the case of Anju Choudhary (supra)
considered a cardinal question of public importance that whether there can be
more than one FIR in relation to the same incident or different incidents arising
from the same occurrence? The Apex Court after considering its earlier decisions
on the question including in the case of Shivsharkar Singh (supra) held as under:-

25. The First Information Report is a very important document,
besides that it sets the machinery of criminal law in motion. It is
a very material document on which the entire case of the
prosecution is built. Upon registration of FIR, beginning of
investigation in a case, collection of evidence during investigation
and formation of the final opinion is the sequence which results .
in filing of a report under Section 173 of the Code. The
possibility that more than one piece of information is given to
the police officer in charge of a police station, in respect of the
same incident involving one or more than one cognizable
offences, cannot be ruled out. Other materials and information -
given to orreceived otherwise by the investigating officer would
be statements covered under Section 162 of the Code. The
Court in order to examine the impact of one or more FIRs has
to rationalise the facts and circumstances of each case and then
apply the test of “sameness’ to find out whether both FIRs relate
to the same incident and to the same occurrence, are in regard .
to incidents which are two or more parts of the same transaction
or relate completely to two distinct occurrences, If the answer
falls in the first category, the second FIR may be liable to be
quashed. However, in case the contrary is proved, whether the
version of the second FIR is different and they are in respect of,
two different incidents/crimes, the second FIR is permissible,

~ This is the view expressed by this Court in the case of Babu
Babubhaiv. State of Gujarat and Ors. [(2010) 12 SCC 254].
This judgment clearly spells out the distinction between two
FIRs relating to the same incident and two FIRs relating to -
different incident or occurrences of the same incident etc. o

24 To illustrate such a situation, one can give an example of the
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same group of people committing theft in a similar mannerin different
localities falling under different jurisdictions. Evenifthe incidents were
committed in close proximity of time, there could be separate FIRs
and institution of even one stating that a number of thefts had been
committed, would not debar the registration of another FIR. Similarly,
riots may break out because of the same event but in different areas
and between different people. The registration of a primary FIR

~ which triggered the riots would not debar registration of subsequent
FIRs in different areas. However, to the contra, for the same event
and offences against the same people, there cannot be a second
FIR. This Court has consistently taken this view and even in the
case of Chirra Shivraj (supra), the Court took the view that:

“14. .... there cannot be a second FIR in respect of
same offence/event because whenever any further
information is received by the investigating agency, it is
always in furtherance of the First Information Report.”

8. On examining the facts of the present case, it is apparent that the
alleged incident mentioned in the complaint application was occurred on
07.04.2013 at 9.30 am. The place of occurrence of the incident is the same
1.e., the shop of the complainants. Thus, it is clear that both the FIRs relates to
the same incident and to the same occurrence.

9. In view of the above discussion and in light of the principles stated
(supra), the direction issued by the learned Magistrate by the impugned order
to register the alleged second FIR on the basis of complaint application is
contrary to law and accordingly deserves to be set aside.

10.  In view of the aforesaid, the impugned order is having apparent
perversity and as such requires interference, therefore, by invoking the inherent
powers under Section 482 of Cr.P.C., the impugned order dated 15.04.2013
passed by Judicial Magistrate First Class, Gwalior is set aside. It is made
clear that this Court has not gone into the merits of the rival claims of both the
parties and it is for the Trial Court to decide the same in accordance with law.

11.  With the aforesaid, the petition stands allowed and disposed of
accordingly.

Petition allowed.
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